PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
Regular Commission Meeting
Wednesday, December 21, 2022 at 2:00pm

Teleconference / Meeting Room
16350 Lower Harbor Read Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415

Teleconference Call-In Number: 1 (253) 215-8782

Meeting ID: 771 205 4017 Passcode: 76242022 (to mute/unmute: * 6)
TENTATIVE AGENDA
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER PAGE
e Pledge of Allegiance
o RollCall

Modifications, Additions, and Changes to the Agenda
Declaration of Potential Conflicts of Interest

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

A. Approve Minutes of Special Commissioner Meeting Friday November 4, 2022...................... 3
B. Approve Minutes of Regular Commissioner Meeting Wednesday November 16,2022.................... 5
C. Approve Minutes of Special Commissioner Meeting Wednesday November 30, 2022.................... 8

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Limited to a maximum of three minutes per person. Comments by
teleconference, please email your comments to danielle@portofbrookingsharbor.com prior to the
meeting.

5. MANAGEMENT REPORTS / APPROVAL

A. November 2022 Safety, Security & Environmental Report...........ccovviiiiiiiiiii i, 10
B. November 2022 Harbormaster Report..........cooviiiiiiiini i i e e 11
C. November 2022 FInancial RePOTt. ... .ot ice e e e er e e s en e 20
6. ACTION ITEMS
A, Port Manager AZICOIMENT. .. .. ou . ettt e et e e e 37
B. Port Manager Work PrOEIAIM. . ....cue. it e re vt eee e et ea s ereaeiea e e rnaneannennrnes 46
C. FlCazadores Parking ATCa........o.oiniiiiiiir e iar et e asaas e crraaasa s a e 50
D. Boat Yard Shop Plan. ... ... ee ot e 82
E. Resolution 2022-10, Retaining Property Sale Funds in Reserve Fund for WWTP...................... 84
F. Resolution 2022-11, Employee HandbooK........c..covviiiiiim e 87
G. Capital Improvement Plan Approval..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 177
H. McLennan Excavation Payment Request #4........ccoiiiiriinnii i 182
I. Gerald Burns Financial Consultant Agreement Amendment..........cccieiiinieiiiiiniininnnecnioenns 185
J. Coos-Curry Electric Service Upgrade. .. ..o et ene e e ee e 198
7. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. Project Timelines (EMC ERZINEOIS)......vininrir i et i e e 203
B. RV Park Project UPdate. . ... et eer s ee ettt e et et ee et e e s et e et e aaens 229
C. Letters from C.J. Huntsman, CPA, P.C. .o e e s 231
D. Miss Stacey UPdate......oovnie i e 236

A request Tor an interpreter for the hearing impaired, for those who want to participate but do not have access to a telephone, or for
other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the mesting to Port of Brookings
Harbor Office at 541-469-2218.

This Institution is an Egual Opportunity Provider




PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
Regular Commission Meeting
Wednesday, December 21, 2022 at 2:00pm

Teleconference / Meeting Room
16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415

8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
9. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE — Wednesday January 18, 2023, at 2:00pm

10. ADJOURNMENT

A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, for those who want to participate but do not have access to a telephone, or for
other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Port of Brookings
Harbor Office at 541-469-2218.

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider



DRAFT MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT
Friday, November 4, 2022

This is not an exact transcript. The audio of the session is available on the Port’s website.

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in special session on the above date at 10:00am. Open session at the Port
Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415, teleconference and webinar.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Commission President Richard Heap called the Special Meeting of the Pbrt of Brookings FHarbor of Commissioners to
order at 1(:00am.

¢ Port of Brookings Harbor Commissioners Present:
Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos. #2); Larry Jonas (Pos. #3); Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4); and
Kemneth Range (Pos. #5). Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos. #1) was absent.

¢ Port of Brookings Harbor Management and Staff:
Travis Webster, Harbormaster; Danielle King, Safety/Administrative; and Teri Dresler, Senior Consultant with
SDAO

o There were no modifications, additions, and changes to the agenda.

o There were no declarations of potential conflicts of interest.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA — Audio time 0:01:50
A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve the agenda as discussed. The motion passed 5
- 0.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0:02:24
There were no public comments.

4, APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES — Audio time 0:02:29
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Commissioner Meeting, Wednesday, October 19, 2022

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded hy Range to approve meeting minutes for regular
commissioner meeting, Wednesday, October 19, 2022. The motion passed 5 — 0.

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION PER ORS 192.600 (2)(a) — Audio Time 0:02:56
Heap stated this executive session of the Port of Brookings Harbor Board of Directors is called pursuant to ORS
192.600 (2)(a) to consider the employment for an officer, employee, staff member or agent. Any member of the
media that is here may remain. However, the Board will require that any information derived from this meeting may
not be disclosed pursuant to ORS 192.660(4). ORS 192.660 (6) No executive session may be held for the purpose of
taking any final action or making any final decision.

Adjourn out of executive session and reconvene into regular session at 11:00am. Board agreed to move this item to
the next regular meeting.

6. ACTION ITEMS
A. None - Audio Time 0:01:55

7. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. None— Audio Time 0:01:55

Special Commissioner Meeting Minutes November 4, 2022 Page I of 2



8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS — Audio time 0:02:27
No commissioner comments.

9. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE — Wednesday, November 16, 2022, at 2:00PM
10. ADJOURNMENT — Audio time 0:02:36

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:37 am.

Richard Heap, President Date Signed

Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission packet are available on the

Ports website: www.portofbrookingsharbor.com.

Special Commissioner Meeting Minufes November 4, 2022

Page 2 of 2



DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT
Wednesday, November 16, 2022

This is not an exact transcript. The audio of the session is available on the Port’s website.

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in regular session on the above date at 2:00pm. Open session at the Port
Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, IHarbor OR, 97415, teleconference and webinar.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Commission President Richard Heap called the Regular Meeting of the Port of Brookings Harbor of Commissioners fo
order at 2:00pm.

s  Port of Brookings Harbor Commissioners Present:
Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos. #1), Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos. #2); Larry Jonas (Pos. #3) was
tardy; Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4); and Kenneth Range (Pos. #5).

e Port of Brookings Harbor Management and Staff:
Travis Webster, Harbormaster; Danielle King, Safety/Administrative; and James Walker, Port Counsel.

» Heap referred to a public comment received, requesting for their comment to be made after the executive session.

There were no other modification, additions, and changes to the agenda.
e There were no declarations of potential conflicts of interest.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA — Audio time 0:01:22
A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve the agenda as amended. The motion passed S
-0

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES — Audio time 0:01:44
A. Approve Minutes of Special Commissioner Meeting Tuesday, October 4, 2022,

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Hartung to approve the minutes of Special Commissioner
Meeting Tuesday, October 4, 2022. The motion passed 5 - 0.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0:02:11
There were no public comments.

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION per ORS 192.600 (2)(a) — Audio time 0:02:42
This executive session of the Port of Brookings Harbor Board of Directors is called pursuant to ORS 192.600
(2)(a) to consider the employment for an officer, employee, staff member or agent. ORS 192.660 (6) No
executive session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision.

Adjourned into executive session at 2:03PM and reconvene into regular session at 2:3 1PM.

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0:00:27
There was one public comment made by Mike Murphy regarding the Ports upcoming projects and the payments
made to the Port Engineer, Jack Akin,

7. MANAGEMENT REPORTS / APPROVAL
A. October 2022 Safety, Security, & Environmental Report — Audio time 0:04:54
King reported on staff safety training, incidents, accidents, and security issues that happened for the morith of
October.

Regular Commissioner Meefing Minufes November 16, 2022 Page I of 3

5



B. October 2022 Harbormaster Report — Audio time 0:05:57
Webster reported on projects that were completed in the RV Park, Marina, and equipment services for the
month of October. Webster reminded moorage customers that winter weather is here and to check on vessels.
Webster spoke with the Defazio team regarding the EPA grant for the wastewater treatment plants and were
assured the funds have been appropriated and the grant does not expire. The piling project in Basin 1 has been
closed. Met with Business Oregon and discussed matching funds. Board allowed public comment. Board and
staff discussed haul ouis, FEMA matching fund reimbursement and loan interest accrual.

C. October 2022 Financial Report — Audio time (:21:44
Webster reviewed the financial report for the month of Qctober.

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve October 2022 safety, security and
environmental report, harbormaster report, and financial report as discussed. The motion passed 5 — 0.

8. ACTIONITEMS
A. Port Manager Recruitment — Audio time 0:23:59
Webster reviewed history of the port manager recruitment process.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve closing recruitment process without
interviewing any candidates. The motion passed 5 - (.

Heap made the public aware how the Board decided the approved motion. Board allowed public comment.

B. Acting Port Manager Agreement — Audio time (:27:38
Webster reviewed since the recruitment period has now closed with SDAQ, Port Counsel will draft an
employment agreement between Travis Webster and the Port, to be brought back to the Board for approval.
Heap reviewed the Board will be offering Webster a one-year contract as acting manager, after one year if
Webster doesn’t want the position of Port Manager, he will retain his Harbormaster position. Board directed to
seek an operation supervisor and leave the position of Harbormaster vacant. Board discussed salary for the
position and the increase of wages that were added to port office staff. Heap reviewed the contract will contain:
1 year of the signed date, quarterly reviews, retain original position if vacated for convenience for either party,
retain anmial wage balances, requesting a salary of $95,000 and contract will have provisions that Webster will
provide an educational plan for himself and staff. Board allowed public comment.

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Speir to approve legal counsel to draft “Acting Port
Manager Agreement” between the Port of Brookings Harbor and Travis Webster for a term of 1 year.
The motion passed 5—0.

C. RV Park Improvement Project Payment Request #3 — Audio time 0:42:55
Webster reviewed item with the Board. Webster updated the Board on how the project is going and the
contractors next steps. Board allowed public comment.

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve McLennan Excavation progress Payment
No. 3 for $108,385.77 for work performed August 1, 2022 — October 29, 2022 per contract. The motion
passed 5—0.

D.  Survey for Semi-Annual Moorage — Audio time 0:45:17
Webster noticed there may be a hardship on working vessels wanting to come in for the season but cannot get a
survey before the season starts and suggested allowing the Port Manager to approve these vessels a onetime
semi-annual moorage with the stipulation of proving a survey is scheduled. Webster doesn’t want to amend
anything that has been approved, and another way around this is these vessels pay monthly. The Board and staff

Regular Commissioner Meeting Mimites November 16, 2022 Page2 of3

v



discussed who this would apply to and what the liabilities would be. Board allowed public comment. Board
agreed to take no action on this item.

9. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. El Cazadores Update — Audio Time 1:02:07
Webster gave the Board a new updated appraisal and suggested to postpone moving forward with updating the
asphalt rates until the Board looks at all Port rates and all their options for that piece of property and suggested
to continue them on their current month to month lease. The Board and staff discussed selling that piece of land.

B. Port Sale Update — Audio time 1:06:58
Webster reviewed the timeline of the property sale. Business Oregon did grant the Port to retain the full amount
of the funds to be placed into our Reserved Funds to be used on the wastewater treatment plant.

C. Awareness Campaign for any Port Projects — Audio time 1;09:39
Webster wanted the Board to be aware of this opportunity that he was approached about. It is an article that is
put out by Oregon Business that highlights any of our projects or what the Port is doing. Webster suggested
maybe when one of our bigger projects start, maybe we can highlight one of them if the Board would like.

D. Culvert Update — Audio time 1:12:45
Webster is still talking with counsel about what the Port’s options are, hoping to have more information at the
next meeting. Board allowed public comment.

E. Stormwater Pollution Control Plan Update — Audio time 1:18:10
Webster informed the Board of the updates that were made by Aquarius to the Stormwater Pollution Control
Plan.

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS — Audio time 1:19:36
Commissioner Heap discussed a meeting that he attended for the PFMC regarding next year’s salmon season.

11. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE - Wednesday, December 21, 2022, at 2:00PM
Webster made the Board aware that he is trying to schedule a Special meeting for November 30 at 10:00am.

12. ADJOURNMENT - Audio time 1:21:38

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:53 pm.

Richard Heap, President Date Signed

Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The vecording and the full commission packet are available on the
Ports website: www.porioforookingsharbor.com.

Regular Commissioner Meeting Minutes November 16, 2022 Page 3 of 3 -—l



DRAFT MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT

Wednesday, November 30, 2022

'This is not an exact transcript. The audio of the session is available on the Port’s website.

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in special session on the above date at 10:00am. Open session at the Port
Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415, teleconference and webinar.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Commission President Richard Heap called the called the Special Meeting of the Port of Brookings Harbor of
Commissioners to order at 10:00am.

Pert of Brookings Harbor Comunissioners Present:

Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos. #1); Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos. #2); Larry Jonas (Pos. #3);
Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4) via telephone; and Kenneth Range (Pos. #5).

Port of Brookings Harbor Management and Staff:

Travis Webster, Harbormaster; Danielle King, Safety/Administrative and James Walker, Port Counsel.
Range suggested moving Action Item B to Action Item A. There was no other modification, additions, and
changes to the agenda.

There were no declarations of potential conflicts of interest.

2, APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Audio time 0:01:44
A motion was made by Range and seconded by Speir to approve the agenda as amended. The motion passed 5

-0.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0:02:07
There were no public comments.

4. ACTION ITEMS

A.

Beacon Broadband/Coos-Curry Electric — Audio time 0:02:13

Bill Gerski with Beacon Broadband spoke to the commission about their goals. Board had some questions
regarding costs to the Port. There was discussion regarding construction and the construction timeline. Board
allowed public comment.

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve Beacon Broadband owned subsidiary of
Coos-Curry Electric Cooperative to install Fiber Broadband services utilizing existing easements. The
motion passed 5—0.

Annual Financial Report FY 2021-22 — Audio time 0:18:06
Connie Huntsman with CJ Huntsman CPA, P.C., reviewed the audit with the Board.

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Speir to approve draft Annual Financial Report for Fiscal
Year 2021-2022 and submit to State of Oregon. The motion passed 5 — 0.

5. INFORMATION ITEMS

A.

Capital Improvement Plan Update — Audio Time 0:44:27

Webster reviewed why the Board is looking at this item, projects that were seen as a high priority since the last
review and informed the Board there will be more discussion regarding this at another meeting. Board and staff
discussed funding opportunities this opens to the Port.

Special Commissioner Meeting Minutes November 30, 2022 Page I of 28



B. Port Property Sake — Audio Time 0:53:47
Webster informed the Board that the sale has been completed and all funds have been placed into our Reserved
Funds.

C. Pile Replacement Billeter Marine — Audio Time 0:54:45
Webster reviewed timeline for the piling replacement, estimated work is to start December 20

6. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS — Audio time 0:56:54
Board spoke about how well the andit went. Board allowed public comment.

7. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE — Wednesday, December 21, 2022, at 2:00PM
8. ADJOURNMENT - Audio time 0:59:31

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:58 am.

Richard Heap, President Date Signed

Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission packet are available on the
Ports website: www.poriofbrookingsharbor.com.

Special Commissioner Meeting Minutes November 30, 2022 Page 2 of 2



SAFETY, SECURITY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL
MONTHLY REPORT

Date: December 21, 2022

Period: November 2022

To: Travis Webster, Port Manager

Issued By: Danielle King, Safety, Security, & Environmiental Coordinator
Safety

Port staff was briefed on the updates to the Stonnwater Pollution Control Plan.

Incidents
POBH recorded (3) incidents for the month of November bringing the year total to (74). Incidents
inchuded:

1. A vessels lines snapped created vessel to bump into its neighbor’s vessel. Insurance will resolve
this matter.

2. Needle with tin foil and tar was found in the commercial basin restroom, men’s side. Port staff
properiy picked up and disposed into port’s hazardous waste container. This incident happened
before the gates were added to the shower doars.

3. Individual drove their vehicle thru a dry camp spot in the RV Park, landing on the South Chetco
Jetty. Emergency services were called to the scene to help remove individual and vehicle.

Security
Four Aces Security Solutions and POBH recorded (37) security issues for the month of November
bringing the year total to (1501). Issues included:

s (29) Overnight parking tickets.

¢ (3) Unauthorized visitors on Port Property after hours

® (4) Parking violations in boat launch parking lot.

» (1) Vandalism

Environmental / DEQ 1200-Z Industrial Stormwater

Monthly inspections were completed as required by our Stormwater Pollution Control Plan {(SWPCP).
Stormwater testing was completed during the recent storms. This was the third of four required tests this
year.

Page 1 of 1

\O



HARBORMASTER

MONTHLY REPORT
Date: December 21 | 2022
Period: November 2022
To: Port Commission
Issued By: Travis Webster, Harbormaster/Acting Port Manager
RV Park

Small repairs throughout the park are ongoing,. Staff has collected the old front row pedestals and
put them in storage so that they may be used for parts in the back row sites. One dumpster was removed
from the park for the winter. Staff has started installing our new Wi-Fi system as the park project

continues.

A vehicle drove through the fence at dry camp and had to be removed by a tow truck. Port staff
were on site and helped clean and secure the area. An incident report was made.

Port has received almost all our blocks for the RV park fence dividers. Staff has started staining
the wood that will be placed between fo concrete blocks.

Occupancy Percent by Month & Year

2019 2020+ 2021 2022 | CRADESNOM | porecastes

January 10.3 7.5 19 17 2) 2
February 7.3 16 23 26 3 1
March 16.8 16.4 39 29 (10 I
April 13.5 0 27.5 23 (4.5) 0
May 26.4 5.7 43.1 31 (12.1) 1
June 399 711 59.5 45 (14.5)

July 61.3 84.7 83 72 (13)

August 60.8 70 77 68 )]

September 454 51 64 61 3

October 254 68 34 27 (13)

November 15.2 22 21 8 (13)

December 8.5 15 11 3

Average 27.5 35.6 41.9

* April & most of May 2020 RV Park was closed due to COVID-19.
** Forecast — Park allows for guests to reserve 6 months in advance.

Marina

Staff completed the first of two water tests for 1200z permit. All docks were walked before and
after rain events. Staff is looking for broken or loose ropes, cleats, waterlines, and any vessel that appears
to be below its water line or listing to either side. They also identify dock bolts and piling hoops that are
loose due to storm surge in both basins.

Port impounded a recreational vessel on A dock and terminated vessel for not renewing and no

payment.

\\



Seaworthy inspections are ongoing. Three vessels are scheduled for reinspection in December
and two more that are being scheduled for January. Vessels that have been scheduled for reinspection
have demonstrated a desire to make needed repairs in a reasonable time frame. If the work that they are
doing can be done safely and in & timely manner, [ will be work with the owners to get them into
compliance.

Boat Launches Paid through Launch Machine

2019 2020 2021 2022 SiEpesin
January 66 5 27 190 163
February 47 102 70 195 125
March 66 204 178 196 18
April 122 244 386 162 (224)
May 276 282 233 161 (72)
June 303 697 759 475 (284)
July 794 11095 826 982 156
August 875 768 716 762, 46
September 350 583 713 1,027 34
October 518 713 518 668 150
November 352 109 70 90 20
December 53 40 60
Totals 3,822 4,842 4,556 4908 412
Equipment Services Performed by Port Stalf
Telehandler Jobs Travel Lift Haul-Outs
2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022
January 4 2 0 8 January 2 | 0 2
February 1 6 3 2 February 2 5 1 6
March ] 4 6 5 March 4 5 6 6
April 7 10 5 7 April 7 5 6 7
May 6 3 7 6 May 13 9 5 8
June 3 0 3l 4 June 16 15 12 6
July 1 5 0 1 July 15 14 7 8
August 3 g 1 0 August 8 4 7 5
September | 3 3 ) 2 September | 7 6 8 4
October 10 6 5 i/ October 9 8 4 11
November 3 9 13 9 November 8 5 12 6
December 15 5 3 December 5 1 0
Totals 62 57 47 51 Totals 96 78 68 60

\L



Commercial Receiving Dock

Public Hoist — Staff inspected and greased public hoist. Crab pot slings and a rated dump bucket
were purchased for extra equipment unloading / loading gear or product. Pacific Seafood and small boat
owners have inquired about using the hoist for crab season. For the use of the public hoist, appointments
must be made at front office or with Harbormaster.

Hallmark Seafood — Visual inspections of the dock surface and support structure. No evidence of
new failures. Staff will continue to monitor throughout the season and report of any changes. Hoists are
operational

Bornstein Seafood — Steel wall bumper was resecured. Sandbags and water control measures
were put out for winter months to help improve water quality. Dock and Hoist are operational

Pacific Seafood — Hoists and docks are operational. The North dock that is closest to A dock is
showing signs of failure in the support structures due to rot. We will continue to monitor the supports and
surface and report on any major changes.

Commercial Retail Building

No changes to report of the boatyard warehouse structure. Clean up and grading was completed
by 5R construction to the backside of the warehouse. Sherriff office reported a small leak in their
building. Staff went up on roof and found a loose shingle that had moss build up underneath it. This was
allowing the wind to blow the water uphill and begin leaking inside. After we have some better weather,
we will be removing the moss and cleaning gutters.

Maintenance Crew

Staff completed 81 work orders for the month of November. Staff made upgrades to the gates that
were installed at the commercial bathrooms. Someone pried off the locking mechanism on the men’s side
to gain entry to the showers. With the help of John’s Portable Welding, we fabricated angle iron to cover
all hinge, and locking points. No new reports on the bathroom currently. All hydraulic fittings on the
Travel Lift have been taped to protect against corrogion. Retail lighting timer was adjusted for daylight
savings time. Two wax rings on the Kite Field urinals were replaced.

Office Staff

Attached is office staff completed tasks. Office will continue to document what and when things
are completed.

Following our hiring policy, the Port has created a job description and placed an ad on wehsite
and newspaper for an Office Manager. The tasks will fall in line with the Director of Finance position. We
hope to have this position filled by Jan 2, 2023.

'S5



April’s Tasks Completed: Nov 2022

WIEMBLER
November 1-
November 4

November 9
November 10

November 14

November 21

November 28
November 29
Nov1-230
Nov 1-30
Nov 1-30

Nov 1-30

Prepared renewal notice letters, created invoices and sent out 27 Moorage Renewals for December.

Sent letters to 131 moorage customers whose boat registrations (OSMB) expire on 12/31/22,
asking them to renew registrations and provide a copy of valid registration to port office upon receipt.

Sent letters to 283 moorage customers reminding them that winter storms are arriving, and asking that
they check their tie lines, bumpers, electric cords, bilge pumps, etc.

Designed the 2023-2024 Parking Permits for the Marina. Submitted design to vendor.
Ordered 2,000 permits for the upcoming year.

Note: | have issued 1,641 parking permits, so far, in 2022

Gathered 6 leases, 3 amendments, rate sheet and corresponding resolution/meeting minutes approving
2021-2022 rates, along with copies of April 2022 lease invoices, for scan and email as requested by
Connie Huntsman CPA for this years Audit (Kim was out on vacation).

Created and sent invoices for boat / trailer Storage customers (December 2022 invoices) 25 customers.

Created and sent invoices for all Gear Storage customers (December 2022 invoices) 38 customers.

Daily deposit of credit card payments received at front office.

Counting and verifying all cash / check deposits prior to staff taking them to the bank.

Accepting Moorage renewals, payments, etc., customer service in office, by phone and via email.

Daily back up of QuickBooks at end of day.

. NOTES:

\“



Danielle’s Tasks Completed

November 1

November 4

November 4

November 7

November 7

November 9

November 9

November 10

November 10

November 14

November 16

November 28

November 29

November 30

November 30

New tide books have been ordered for 2023 but will not be shipped until the end of the month.

Attended the Board of Commissioners Special Meeting.

Minutes for November 4" Special Commissioner Meeting have been completed and draft minutes have
been posted on the website.

Safety meeting with all staff members regarding updates to the Stormwater Pollution Caontrol Plan.
Travis & Danielle collected water samples for 1200Z permit. Danielle took samples to Grants Pass.

Travis & Jack Akin spoke with Region Ten Community Grants about matching funds, application
submittal award date by March 1, 2023 with application. Will also submit pre award costs for EPA to
review for eligibility.

Inspection of the shop warehouse was completed.

Packets for November 16" Regular Commissioner meeting was completed, given to the Board, and
published on the Port website.

Inventory of gear storage, Boat/Trailer storage and dock slips were completed.

Individual drove off south jetty, was on scene most of the day waiting for vehicle o be removed.
Attended the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting.

Water meter readings were sent to Harbor Sanitary.

Packets for November 30" Special Commissioner meeting was completed, given to the Board, and
published on the Port website.

Attended the Board of Commissioners Special Meeting,

Minutes for November 16™ Regular Meeting have been completed and draft minutes have been posted
on the website.

Danielle King's Tasks Completed, Month: November 2022 Page 1 of 1

\S



For November 2022:

9 Telechandler Jobs:

11/3 “Miss Emily” % hour

11/8 “Miss Sarah” 1 hour

11/9 “Karen Jan” 1 hour

[1/10 “Warrior II” 2.5 hours
11/16 “Noah’s Ark™ 1 hour
11/16 “Miss Sarah” %2 hour
11/28 “Pacific Hooker” 2 hours
11/29 “Warrior 1I” 1.5 hours
11/29 “Pacific Hooker” % hour

e & & & o o o o @

6 Haul Outs:

11/15 “Restless”

11/16 “Nemo’s”

11/17 “Moray”

11/21 “Lady Louise”

11/23 “Summertime Snow”
11/29 “Survivor”

81 Work Orders completed — see attached spreadsheet.

0 boats were inspected for seaworthiness in November.

Ongoing Inspections:
Triumph — reinspection is scheduled for 12/7 at 2:00 pm

Class Sea Lady — has until 12/1 to make decision / reinspection

Thor — has until 12/15 to repair for reinspection

Currently scheduling upcoming Inspections for:
Taku — N 20: waiting for customer callback to schedule as of 11/29

Nazdarovya — C 14: waiting for customer callback to schedule as of 11/29

\lo



WORK ORDERS LOG

Port of Brookings Harbor

November 2022
Date
Date Location Description of Work Corrective Action Completed  Completed By
| _11/1/22 |Basin 2, Restrooms Remove jam frem men's shower coin acceptor Completed 11/1/22 Brent
10/26/22 [Basin 2, Q18 Replace burnt outlet / plug on pedesial Completed 11/1/22 Brent & Travis
i1/1/22  |Basin 2, E-G-} Docks Tighten loose fingers Completed 11/1/22 Shawn & Sean
11/1/22 {Boatyard Clean up yard Completed 11/1/22 Shawn & Sean
11/1/22 RV Park Dig up 2 electric pedestals Completed 11/1/22 Shawn & Sean
11/2/22 |Port Property Monthly sewer inspections Completed 11/2/22 Brent
11/2/22 'Basin 2, () and P Docks Tighten loose fingers Completed 11/2/22 Shawn & Sean
11/2/22  Basin 1, A Dack Tighten loose fingers Completed 11/2/22 Shawn & Sean
11/2/22 Basin2,P 1 Install new cleat Completed 11/2/22 Shawn & Sean
11/2/22  Basin 1, 0 9/10 Tighten loose boits / rub board Completed 11/2/22 Shawn & Sean
11/2/22  Basin 1, G Dack Replace 2 water spickets Completed 11/2/22 Shawn & Sean
11/3/22  Fuel Dock Fill telehandler Conmpleted 11/3/22 Shawn
11/3/22  Boatyard Finish wrapping {itlings on Travelift Completed 11/3/22 Shawn & Sean
11/3/22  Port Property Put out charcoal bags at storm drains Completed 11/3/22 Shawn & Sean
1§/3/22° " Basin 1, A Dock at Ramp Replace pen and sleeve Completed 11/3/22 Shawn, Travis & Brent
11/1/22 RV Park, Office Remove AC unit and pul into storage Completed 11/3/22 Trent
11/4/22 RV Park Close gaps in storm wall, add 3 blocks Completed 11/4/22 Brent & Travis
11/4/22 RV Park, Sife 13 Repair light at fop of pedestal, install new capge Completed 11/4/22 Trent
1171722 RV Park, Office Clean, scuff and paint front door Completed 11/5/22 Trent
11/3/22 |Basin I, A 32 Replace burnt out 30 amp receptacle Completed 117122 Brent & Gowman Electric
11/7/22  |Basin 2, Restrooms Install gales to eontrol aceess to showers Completed 11/7/22 Brent & Marian
11/7/22 |Basin 1 and 2 Walk docks Completed 11/7/22 Shawn & Sean
11/8/22 IRV Park Reduce to 1 dumpster, move other to boatyard Completed 11/8/22 Brent
11/8/22  |Boatyard Do inventory count of dock bolt hardware Completed 11/8/22 Shawn & Sean
11/8/22 _Boalyard Move boat Completed 11/8/22 Shawn, Sean, Brent & Travis
11/8/22 Boatyard Clean up old doors to shop Completed 11/8/22 Shawn & Sean
11/9/22  Retail, Harbor Corner Market Replace screws in loose door strike Completed 11/9/22 Brent
11/9/22 Basin 2, P-Q Dock at Main Dock Replace whalers Completed 11/9/22 Shawn, Sean & Brent
11710722 Gear Storage Area Remove palleis Completed 11/10/22 Shawn
11/10/22 - Basin 2, N-0 at Ramp Install new roller plates at bottom of ramp Completed 11/10/22 Shawn & Sean
11/14/22 RV Park, Dry Camp Area Remove fence Completed 11/14/22 Shawn & Sean
11/14/22 Basin1,B 11 Tighten cleats Completed 11/14/22 Shawn & Sean
11/14/22 RV Park, Dry Camp Area Clean up after car wreck in site / an jetty / trail Completed 11/14/22 Shawn & Sean
11/9/22 RV Park, Site 26 Replace water spicket Completed 11/14/22 Trent
11/15/22  Boatyard Move docks for pond Completed 11/15/22 Shawn & Sean
11/15/22  {Gear Storage Area Load nets onto trailer Completed 11/15/22 Shawn
11/15/22 (3ear Storage Area Move gear Completed 11/15/22 Shawn & Sean
11/16/22 RV Park Unload blocks Completed 11/16/22 Shawn & Brent
11/16/22 |Boatyard Haul out houseboat Completed 11/16/22 Shawn, Sean, Breni & Travis
11/16/22 |Basin 2, Restrooms Remove jam from men's shower coin acceptor Completed 11/16/22 Breat
11/i6/22  |Fuel Dock Disassemble and repair valve on sani-sailor Completed 11/16/22 Breat
11/16/22 5teelwall Take diver to stell wall in boat Completed 11/16/22 Shawn
11/16/22 |Transient Dock Clear brush and trees Completed 11/16/22 Shawn & Sean
L1/17/22 |Boatyard Paint Travelifl Completed L1/17/22 Shawn & Sean
11717722 1RV Park Pick up old pedestals Completed 11/17/22 Shawn & Sean
11/17/22 Boatyard Work on burm Completed 11/17/22 Shawn & Sean
11/16/22 RV Park Remove old site numbers and install new ones Completed 11/18/22 Trent
11/9/22  Travelift Ramp Screw bolts down Completed 11/18/22 Shawn & Sean
11/18/22 Basin 1 and 2 Walk docks, and do boat inventory Completed 11/18/22 Shawn & Sean
11/18/22 Basin 2, Restrooms Secure locking gate, add angle iron and locks Completed 11/18/22 Brent
_11/16/22. RV Park, Site 50 Clean out and empty firepit Completed 11/20/22 Trent
11/1/22 RV Park, Office Clean alcove, outside of office Completed 11/21122 Trent
11/21/22  Fuel Dock Fuel telebandler and travelift Completed 11/21/22 Shawn & Sean
£1/21/22 RV Park Smash trash in dumpsters Completed 11/21/22 Shawn
11/21/22 RV Park, Dry Camp Area Remove old concrete posts and install 3 new Completed 11/21/22 Bhawn & Sean
11/14/22 Retail, Court Yard Adjust court lights to new time change Completed 11/21/22 Brent
11/22/22 RV Park, Dry Camp Area Build fence Completed 11/22/22 Shawn & Sean
11/22/22 Port Shop Cut tongue and grove down for RV Park fence Completed 11/22/22 Shawn & Sean
11722722 Port Office Patch holes, rehang toilet paper holder Completed 11/23/22 Danielle
11722422 Port Office Build new cabinet for restroom Completed 11/23/22 Daniclle
11/23/22 |Bagin1,B 15 Install new cleat Completed 11/23/22 Sean
11/23/22 |Port Office Hang new cabinet in restroom Completed 11/23/22 Shawn & Sean
11/23/22 |Basin | and 2 ‘Walk docks Completed 11/23/22 Shawn & Sean
11/23/22 |Basin 1 Remove boat from basin Compleied 11/23/22 Shawn, Sean, Brent & Travis
11/23/22 |Fish Cleaning Station Dump carcasses Completed 11/23/22 Brent
11/23/22 |RV Park Check power out in site, customer error Completed 11/23/22 Brent
11/23/22 RV Park Mount and secure new Wil'i gystem Completed 11/23/22 Brent
11/28/22 Basin 1 and 2 Walk docks Completed 11/28/22 Shawn & Sean
_ 11/28/22 Kite Field, Restroom Replace wax rings in 2 urinals Completed 11/28/22 Shawn & Sean

Page | o2

e .



11/28/22 |Steelwall Lubhricate public hoist Completed 11/28/22 Shawn & Sean n
11/29/22 |Basin 2 Remove boat from basin Compleled 11/29/22 Shawn, Sean, Brent & Travis | =
11/29/22 [Basinl, A 11 Replace 2 cleats Completed 11/29/22 Shawn & Sean n
11/29/22 [Bornstein Pick up trash pallets Completed 11/29/22 Shawn & Sean n
11/29/22 [Port Property Paich pot holes Completed 11/29/22 Shawn & Sean "
11/29/22 {Boatyard Load hoat onto trailer Completed 11/29/22 Shawn, Sean, Brent & Travis | »
11/30/22 |Basin 1 and 2 Walk docks Completed 11/30/22 Shawn & Sean %
11/30/22 |Port Shop Stain boards for new fence Completed 11/30/22 Shawn & Sean kel
11/30/22 |Retail, Sheriff Substation Find/repair leak, unclog gutters, seal windows Completed 11/30/22 Brent H]
111-11/30722 |Port Office Daily backup of Quickbooks Completed L1/1-11/30/22 April »
11/1-11/3%0/22 |Port Office Verify accuracy cash/check deposits Compleled 11/1-11/30/22 April w
1141-1140/22 | Port Office Daily credit card seltlement & deposit Completed 11/1-11/30/22 April 5
Total Work Orders 81 |

Page2ol2

\2



Date

11/01/2022
11/02/2022
11/03/2022
11/04/2022
11/05/2022
11/06/2022
11/07/2022
11/08/2022
11/09/2022
11/10/2022
11/11/2022
11/12/2022
11/13/2022
11/14/2022
11/15/2022
11/16/2022
11/17/2022
11/18/2022
11/19/2022
11/20/2022
11/21/2022
11/22/2022
11/23/2022
11/24/2022
11/25/2022
11/26/2022
11/27/2022
11/28/2022
11/29/2022
11/30/2022

Total Units Occupied Units Unoccupied Units Occupancy

127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
127
3810

November Occupancy

Total

8%

I B o R e I "o I & e

= e
W = o

O oo W o O o U~ 02

MW W M=
R T e B )

313

123
122
118
120
118
118
120
121
120
117
116
114
119
120
122
115
121
119
118
121
118
113
100

96

96

103

120
122

122.

121

3%
4%
7%
6%
7%
7%
6%
5%
6%
8%
9%
10%
6%
6%
4%
6%
5%
6%
7%
5%
7%
11%
21%
24%
24%
19%
6%
4%
4%
5%

A



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Date: December 21, 2022

Period; November 2022

To: Travis Webster, Harbormaster/Acting Port Manager
Issued By: Kim Boom, Director of Finance and Accounting
Overview

This month saw a deficit in all General Fund Programs except the Commercial Retail. The Beachfront RV Park
reservations continue to decrease, partly from the time of year and partly due to construction in progress. The
time of year has also affected the Fuel Dock and Marina/Moorage & Storage revenue.

On a positive note, the Port received 95.4% of the budgeted Current Property Tax Receipts in the amount of
$238,456. The month of November is usually when the bulk of the Tax Receipts are received but will continue
throughout the fiscal year.

The Port also received sale proceeds in the amount of $174,236. This money was received and promptly
transferred into our Reserve Fund, to be used for matching funds in reference to the EPA Community Grant for
the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Using the Port Construction Fund, a payment of $108,386 was issued to MclLennan Excavation, Inc. per
contract for the RV Park Improvement Project.

Balance Sheet

End of the month unrestricted cash and equivalents totaled $633,110. Restricted cash and equivalents totaled
$695,765 with Total Checking/Savings (cash) at $1,328,875.

Profit & Loss

Total revenue for all funds was $616,614, Total expense was $469,692. The net income for November was
$146,922.

General Fund Programs Program Revenues Program Expenditures Net
Beachfront RV Park $13,195 $33,137 ($19,942)
Commercial Retail $62,606 322,309 $40,297
Fuel Dock $30,826 $53,784 {($22,958)
General Fund Granfs 30 $3,237 ($3,237)
Marina $43,883 $46,358 {$2,475)

TOTALS $150,510 $158,825 (38,315)

Budget Perfocrmance FY 2022-2023

Total income for all funds is 36.1%, with General Fund revenues at 38.6%. Total expenditure for all funds is
21.9%, with General Fund expenditure at 36.3%.

ATTACHMENTS

Balance Sheet, 2 pages

Profit & Loss for the November, 3 pages

Profit & Loss Budget Performance, FY July 2022 thru June 2023 YTD, 4 pages
Check Register, 3 pages

Vendor Summary for January through December 2022 YTD, 4 pages

Depreciation expense Is not included in the budget or in our financial reports. [f-depreciation expense was included in the budget, it would be
difficult to balance the budget, and deprecation is not a cash expense, required under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
but not Governmental Accounting Standards Beard (GASB).

20



Port of Brookings Harbor
Balance Sheet

Cash Basis

ASBSETS
Current Asseis
Checking/Savings
100 - UNRESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS
101 - GENERAL FUND CHECKING & LGIP

18103 - General Funds Ckg Umpgua 3634
10104 - RCU Business Ownership 0687
10105 - RCU Business Savings 0600
10106 - General Fund LGIP 6017
10107 - Dredging Fund LGIP 6254

Total 101 - GENERAL FUND CHECKING & LGIP

10101 - Petty Cash

10102 - COUNTER CASH
10102.1 - Office/Reception Cash Drawer
10102.2 - RV Park Cash Drawer
10102.3 - Fuel Dock Cash Drawer

Total 10102 - COUNTER CASH
Total 100 - UNRESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS

110 - RESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS
104 - RESTRICTED MONEY MKT 8 CHECKING
20104 - USDA BOND Umpqua MM 9529
30104 - Debt Service Umpgua MM 8627

40104 - Capital Projects Umpcua 8018
Total 104 - RESTRICTED MONEY MKT 8& CHECKING

105 - RESTRICTED LGIP
20105 - USDA Bond Fund LGIP 6021
30105 - IFA Debt Service Fund LGIP 6020
50105 * Reserve Fund LGIP 6018
70105 - Capital Projects LGIP 6273
70105.2 - Port Construction Fund

Total 70105 - Capital Projects LGIP 6273
Total 105 - RESTRICTED LGIP
Total 110 - RESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivahle
120 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
130 - DUE FRONM TRANSFERS
40130 - Due From Capital Projects

Total 130 - DUE FROM TRANSFERS
150 - Undeposited Funds
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabiiities
Accounts Payable
200 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Nov 30, 22
339,723.55
18.31
10.00
252 342.45
38,891.99
630,986.30
414.00
400.00
510.00
800.00
1,710.00
833,110.30
2,521.17
2516.44
2,500.00
7,537.61
25,210.47
72,723.31
22756213
362,731.38
362,731.38
688,227.29
695,764.90
1,328,875.20
-16,277.51
-16,277.51
80,404.17
80,404.17
7473.61
87,877.78
1,400,475 .47
1,400,475.47

2\



Port of Brookings Harbor
Balance Sheet

Cash Basis

10201 - General Fund Accounts Payable
Total 200 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards
106.1 - RCU Business Ownership 0687
106.2 - RCU Business Savings 0600

Total Credit Gards

Other Current Liabilities
100222 : Payroll Liabilities
10222 - HealthCare Premium - Dependent

Total 100222 - Payrol! Liabilities

10226 - Lodging Tax Payable
230 - DUE TO TRANSFERS
40230 - Due To General Fund from CP

Total 230 - DUE TC TRANSFERS
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilifles

Equity
300 - Fund Balance
301 - Unappropriated Balance

10301 : General Fund Unappropriated Bal
20301 - Revenue Bond Unappropriate Bal
30301 - Deht Service Unappropriated Bai
40301 - Capital Project Unappropriated
50301 ' Reserve Fund Unappropriated Bal
70301 - Port Const. Fund Unappropriated

Total 301 - Unappropriated Balance

302 - Appropriated Carryover
10302 - General Fund Appropriated Carry
20302 - Revenue Bond Appropriated Carry
30302 - Debt Service Appropriated Carry
40302 - Capital Proj Appropriated Carry
50302 - Reserve Fund Appropriated Carry
70302 : Port Const. Fund Appropriated

Total 302 - Appropriated Carryover
Total 300 - Fund Balance
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Nov 30, 22
-10,328.56
-10,328.56
-10,328.56
18.31
10.00
28.31
-619.83
-619.83
9,975.53
B0,404.17
80,404.17
89,759.87
79,459.62
79,455.62
532,465.33
102,351.92
22,758.51
40,430.77
402,738.52
569,448.67
1,670,193.72
-532,465.33
-102,351.92
-22,758.51
-40,430.77
-402,738.52
-569,448.67
-1,670,193.72
0.00
1,321,015.85
1,321,016.85
1,400,475.47

2L



9:36 AM

1208722
Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor
Profit & Loss

November 2022

Income

400 - REVENUES
401 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES

10412 -
10443 -
10414 -

Property Tax Current
Property Tax Prior
Interest General Fund

10417 -
10418 -

Total 401 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES

402 - GENERAL FUND PROGRAM REVENUES
10421 - MARINA
10421.2 - MOORAGE
10421.3 - Commercial Slip Rent
10421.4 - Recreational Slip Rent
10421.5 - Transient
10421.6 - Other Moorage

Assets Sales
Miscellaneous

Total 10421.2 - MOORAGE

10422 - Boat Launch

10423 - STORAGE
10423.1 - Gear Storage
10423.2 - Boat Storage

Total 10423 - STORAGE

10424 - ADMINISTRATIVE FEES
10425 - MARINE SERVICES
10425.1 - Travelift
10425.2 - 12 K Telehandler
10425.3 - Other Sales & Fees

Total 10425 - MARINE SERVICES
Total 10421 - MARINA

10427 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK
10427.1 - Space Rental
10427.2 - Other Sales & Fees

Total 10427 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK

10428 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL
10428.1 - Retail Property
10428.2 - Docks
10428.3 - CPl and Other Fees

Total 10428 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL
10429 - FUEL DOCK
Total 402 - GENERAL FUND PROGRAM REVENUES

420 - USDA REVENUE BOND FUND
20414 - interest Revenue Bond Fund
20419 - Transfer to USDA Bond Fund

Total 420 - USDA REVENUE BOND FUND

430 - DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE
30414 - Interest Debt Service Fund
30419 : Transfer to Debt Service Fund

Total 430 - DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE

Nov 22

238,456.05
1,483.61
536.40
174,236.00
167.48

414,879.54

4,989.60
23,451.29
397.44
952,50

28,790.83
245.00

3,094.10
2,190.00

5,284.10
700.00

5,740.00
828.00
1,285.05

7,863.05

43,882.98

11,656.39
1,538.43

13,194.82

24.814.30
13,162.76
24,628.88

62,605.94
30,825.64

150,509.38

55.54
10,843.00

10,898 54

159.61
31,958.71

32,118.32

Page 1



9:36 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12108/22 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis November 2022
Nov 22
450 - RESERVE FUND REVENUE
50414 - Interest Reserve Fund 49923
50419 - Transfer to Reserve Fund 2,000.00
Total 450 - RESERVE FUND REVENUE 2,499.23
460 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK IMPROV. FUND
60419 - Transfer OR FFC 2020 Deht Serv. 4,809.87
Total 460 * DEBT SERV. RV PARK IMPROV. FUND 4,809.87
470 - PORT CONSTRUCTION FUND REVENUE
70414 - Interest Port Construction Fund 899.47
Total 470 - PORT CONSTRUCTION FUND REVENUE B99.47
Total 400 - REVENUES 616,614.35
Total Income 616,614.35
Gross Profit 616,614.35
Expense
600 - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
10900 - Operating Transfers Out General 49,611.58
500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
10502 - Office Staff 22,085.40
10504 - Operations Staff 29,624.62
10506 - Overtime 153.12
10608 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits
105608.1 - Paid Holidays 4,053.72
10508.2 - Sick Leave Benefit 151.48
10508.3 » Vacation 2,542 06
10508.4 - Payroll Taxes 5,622 43
10608.5 - SEP Retirement 5,482.96
Total 10508 + Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits 17,852 65
10810 - Health Care and Dental 8,032.40
Total 500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 77,748.18
601 - GENERAL FUND Material & Service
10601 - ADVERTISING & NOTIFICATIONS 26.70
10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANGE
10602.1 - Equip. Repair/fMaintenance 370.57
10602.2 - Supplies 6,019.62
10602.3 - Services 10,631.43
Total 10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 17,021.62
10603 - FUEL purchased for resale 34,312.28
10605 - UTILITIES
10605.2 - RV Park Cable TV 714.08
10605.3 - Sanifary 2,424.87
10605.5 - Telecommunications 969.80
10605.6 - Waste Removal B8,288.67
Total 10605 - UTILITIES 12,397.42
106086 - OFFICE EXPENSE 526,59
10607 - BANK SERVICE & FINANCE FEES 1,985.33
10608 - TRAINING & TRAVEL 976,85
10609 - PERMITS, LICENSES, TAXES & MISC 1,507.69

Page 2

4



Port of Brookings Harbor

Profit & Loss
November 2022

9:36 AM

12/08/22
Cash Basis

Nov 22

10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES
10611.1 - Accounting/Audifing
10611.3 - Engineering
10611.4 - Other SupportfConsultant

5,130.00
4,032.50
68550

Total 10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES

9,848.00

Total 601 - GENERAL FUND Material & Service

710 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY
10702 - Land Improvements

78,602.48

2,520.00

Total 710 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY

2,520.00

Total 600 - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

620 - USDA REVENUE BOND EXPENDITURES
20801P - USDA Revenue Bond Principal
208101 - USDA Revenue Bond Interest

208,482.25

83,913.19
45,208.81

Total 620 - USDA REVENUE BOND EXPENDITURES

630 - DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES
801 - Principal
30B03P - 50 BFMII Travelift Principal
30804P - 2018 Genie Forklift Principal

130,120.00

4.403.38
1,267.20

Total 821 - Principal

810 - Interest Payments
30813l - 50 BFMII Travelift Interest
30814l - 2018 Genie Forklift Interest

5,670.56

255.64
187.51

Total 810 - Interest Payments

453.15

Total 630 - DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES

640 - CAPT. PROJ. EXPENDITURES
740 - CAPT, PROJ. CAPITAL OUTLAY
404702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj
40702.1 - Engineering/Consultanis

6,123.71

11,770.60

Total 40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj

11,770.00

Total 740 - CAPT. PROJ. CAPITAL QUTLAY

11,770.00

Total 640 - CAPT. PROJ. EXPENDITURES

660 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK EXPENDITURES
60B06P - RV Park Improv. Loan Principal
608151 - RV Park Improv. Loan Interest

11,770.00

3,312.29
1,497.58

Total 660 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK EXPENDITURES

670 - PORT CONST FUND EXPENDITURES
70100 - PORT CONST. CAPITAL OUTLAY
70700 - Land [mprovement - Port Const.
70701.3 - Services

4,809.87

108,385.77

Total 70700 - Land Improvemant - Port Const,

108,385.77

Total 70100 - PORT CONST, GAPITAL QUTLAY

108,385.77

Total 670 - PORT CONST FUND EXPENDITURES

108,385.77

Total Expense

469,691.60

Net Income

146,922.75

Page 3

Py



9:35 AM Port of Brookings Harhor
12/08/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance FY 2022-2023
Cash Basis July through November 2022
Jul - Nov 22 Budget % of Budgef
Income
400 - REVENUES
401 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES
10411 - Cash Carry Over 337,247.33 490,000.00 68.8%
10412 - Properiy Tax Current 238,456.05 250,000 00 95.4%
10413 - Property Tax Prior 5,823.08 10,000.00 58.2%
10414 - Interest General Fund 2,069.62 2,000.00 103.5%
10417 - Assets Sales 174,236.00 10,000.00 1,742.4%
10418 - Miscellanecus 19,381.38 66,000.00 29.4%
10420 - Grants & Other Funding - GF 50,000.00 20,000.00 250.0%
Total 401 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES 827,213.46 848,000.00 97.5%
402 - GENERAL FUND PROGRAM REVENUES
10421 - MARINA
10421.2 - MOORAGE
10421.3 - Commercial Slip Rent 49 34478
10421.4 - Recreational Slip Rent 147,652.06
10421.5 - Transient 5,164.46 0.00 100.0%
10421.6 - Other Moorage 8,212.50
Total 10424.2 - MOORAGE 210,373,80 0.00 100.0%
10422 - Boat Launch 17,924.00
10423 - STORAGE
10423.1 - Gear Storage 21,161.24
10423.2 - Boat Storage 15,601.00
10423 - STORAGE - Other 150.00
Total 10423 - STORAGE 36,912.24
10424 - ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 3,704.61 0.00 100.0%
10425 - MARINE SERVICES
10425.1 « Travelift 24,650.00 0.00 100.0%
10425.2 - 12 K Telehandler 2,718.00 0.00 100.0%
10425.3 - Other Sales & Fees 14,205.78
10425.4 + Public Hoist 1,008.45
10425 - MARINE SERVICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Total 10425 - MARINE SERVICES 42,672.23 0.00 100.0%
10426 + EVENTS ON PORT PROPERTY 3,166.00
10421 - MARINA - Other 0.00 842,000.00 0.0%
Total 10421 - MARINA 314,752.88 842,000.00 37.4%
10427 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK
104271 - Space Rental 210,792.92 0.00 100.0%
10427.2 - Other Sales & Fees 24,412.05 0.00 100.0%
10427 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK - Other 0.00 800,000.00 0.0%
Total 10427 - BEACHFRONT RV PARK 235,204.97 800,000.00 29.4%
10428 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL
10428.1 - Retail Property 143,551.83 0.00 100.0%
10428.2 - Docks 78,957.44 0.00 100.0%
10428.3 - CPi and Other Fees 36,287.51 0.00 100.0%
10428 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL - Other 0.00 635,000.00 0.0%
Total 10428 - COMMERCIAL RETAIL 258,796.78 635,000.00 40.8%
10429 - FUEL DCCK 475 865.77 1,050,000.00 45.3%
Total 402 - GENERAL FUND PROGRAM REVENU... 1,284,620.40 3,327,000.00 38.6%
420 - USDA REVENUE BOND FUND
20411 - Cash Carry Over - USDA Revenue 102,841.78 102,820.00 100.0%
20414 - Interest Revenue Bond Fund 794.86 840.00 94.6%
20419 - Transfer to USDA Bond Fund 54,215.00 130,120.00 A41.7%

Page 1



9:35 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12/08/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance FY 2022-2023

Cash Basis

July through November 2022

Total 420 - USDA REVENUE BOND FUND

430 - DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE
30411 - Cash Carry Over - Debt Service
30414 - Interest Debt Service Fund
30419 - Transfer to Debt Service Fund

Total 430 - DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE

440 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND REVENUE
40411 - Cash Carry Qver - Capt Proj
40416 - Government Funding

40416.2 - FEMA Funding
40416.3 - State Lottery Funding

Total 40416 - Government Funding
40419 - Transfer to Capital Project
Total 440 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND REVENUE

450 - RESERVE FUND REVENUE
50411 - Cash Carry Over - Reserve Fund
§0414 - Interest Reserve Fund
£50419 - Transfer to Reserve Fund

Total 450 - RESERVE FUND REVENUE

460 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK IMPROV. FUND
60419 - Transfer OR FFC 2020 Debt Serv.

Total 460 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK IMPROV. FUND

470 - PORT CONSTRUCTION FUND REVENUE
70411 - Cash Carry Over - Port Const.
70414 - Interest Port Construction Fund

Total 470 - PORT CONSTRUCTION FUND REVE...
Total 400 - REVENUES
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
600 - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
10900 - Operating Transfers Out General
500 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
10502 - Office Staff
10504 - Operations Staff
10506 - Overtime
10508 - Payroll TaxesfCosts/Benefits
10508.1 - Paid Holidays
10508.2 - Sick Leave Benefit
10508.3 - Vacation
10508.4 - Payroll Taxes
10508.5 - SEP Retirement
10508 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits - Other

Total 10508 - Payroll Taxes/Costs/Benefits

10510 - Health Care and Dental
10512 - Workers Compensation

Total 500 - PERSONNEL SERVIGES

601 - GENERAL FUND Material & Service
10601 - ADVERTISING & NOTIFICATIONS
10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

10602.1 - Equip. Repair/Maintenance
10602.2 - Supplies

Jul - Nov 22 Budget % of Budget
157,851.64 233,780.00 67.5%
23,094.07 23,100.00 100.0%
470.68 616.00 76.4%
159,793.55 391,484.00 40.8%
183,358.30 415,200.00 44 2%
0.00 2,500.00 0.0%
66,460.92 3,580,000.00 1.9%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
66,460.92 3,580,000.00 1.9%
0.00 0.00 0.0%
66,460.92 3,582,500.00 1.9%
215,799.89 215,700.00 100.0%
1,762.24 1,500.00 117 5%
10,000.00 26,000.00 38.5%
227 56213 243,200,00 93.6%
24,048.35 57,720.00 41.7%
24,049.35 57,720.00 A.7%
574,018.64 572,000.00 100.4%
3,752.683 1,170.00 320.7%
577,771.27 573,170 00 100.8%
3,348,887.47 9,280,570.00 36.1%
3,348,887.47 9,280,570.00 36.1%
3,348,887.47 9,280,570.00 36.1%
248,057.90 605,324.00 41.0%
89,945.73 280,000.00 31.1%
112,769.38 267,800.00 42 1%
2,253.39 8,000.00 28.2%
6,722.68 0.00 100.0%
1,385.77 0.00 100.0%
18,565.85 0.00 100.0%
23,067.31 0.00 100.0%
21,800.81
0.00 193,300.00 0.0%
71,542.42 193,300.00 37.0%
41,050.71 106,600,00 38.5%
20,639.83 22,000.00 93.8%
338,202.46 8B66,700.00 38.1%
2,709.69 5,624 00 48.2%
21,417.71 0.00 100.0%
62,538 71 0.00 100.0%
Page 2

21



9:35 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12/08/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance FY 2022-2023
Cash Basis July through November 2022
Jul - Nov 22 Budget % of Budget
10602.3 - Services 53,047.37 0.00 100.0%
10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - Other 0.00 635,490.00 0.0%
Total 10602 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 137,003.79 635,490.00 21.6%
10603 - FUEL purchased for resale 427,081.40 924 ,000.00 46.2%
10605 * UTILITIES
10605.1 - Electric 31,434.78 0.00 100.0%
10605.2 - RV Park Cable TV 3,332.40 0.00 100.0%
10605.3 - Sanitary 20,050,83 0.00 100.0%
10605.5 - Telecommunications 5,503.63 0.00 100.0%
10605.6 - Waste Removal 47 447 44 0.00 100.0%
10605.7 - Water 8,219.74 0.00 100.0%
10605 - UTILITIES - Other 0.00 379,164.00 0.0%
Total 10605 - UTILITIES 115,988.82 379,164.00 30.6%
10606 - OFFICE EXPENSE 7.,608.75 51,032.00 14.9%
10607 - BANK SERVICE & FINANCE FEES 23,001.89 64,134.00 36.0%
10608 - TRAINING & TRAVEL 1,663.58 8,453.00 19.7%
10609 - PERMITS, LICENSES, TAXES & MISC 41,155.17 46,089.00 89.3%
10610 - INSURANCE; PROF & CAS, BOND 51,684.92 126,314.00 40.9%
10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES
10611.1 - Accounting/Auditing 6,630.00 0.00 100.0%
10611.2 - Attarney 35,993.00 0.00 100.0%
10611.3 - Engineering 36,968.37 0.00 100.0%
10614.4 - Other Support/Consultant 6,374.53 0.00 100.0%
10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES - Other 0.00 175,000.00 0.0%
Total 10611 - PROFESSIONAL FEES 85,965.90 175,000.00 491%
601 - GENERAL FUND Material & Service - Other 376.58
Total 601 - GEMERAL FUND Material & Service 894,330.49 2,415,300.00 37.0%
710 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY
10702 - Land Improvements 19,101.25
10704 - Equipment 7,106.73 0.00 100.0%
710 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY - Other 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%
Total 710 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL QUTLAY 26,206.98 25,000.00 104.8%
920 - OPERATING CONTINGENCY 0.00 217,676.00 0.0%
Total 600 - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,506,797,83 4,150,600.00 36.3%
620 + USDA REVENUE BOND EXPENDITURES
20801P - USDA Revenue Bond Principal 83,913.19 83,913.00 100.0%
208101 - USDA Revenue Bond Interest 46,206.81 46,207.00 100.0%
Total 620 - USDA REVENUE BOND EXPENDITURES 130,120.00 130,120.00 100 0%

630 - DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES
30802P - IFA PRINGIPAL

30802.1 - OBDD #520139/Boardwalk Prin 3,793.46 0.00 100.0%
30802.2 - OBDD #525172/RV Park Prin. 3,420.92 0.00 100.0%
30802.3 - OBDD #525176/Green Bldg Prn 6,024.09 0.00 100,0%
30802.4 - OBDD #525181/EurekaFish Prn 3,912.98 0.00 100.0%
30802.5 - SPWF #L.02009/Cold Strg Prin 55,663.62 0.00 100.0%
30802.8 - SPWF L02001/MarineFuel Dock Prn 0.00 0.00 0.0%
30802,9 - SPWF X03004/Eureka Fishery Prin 4,684,93 0.00 100.0%
30802P - IFA PRINCIPAL - Other 0.00 318,000.00 0.0%
Total 30802P - IFA PRINCIPAL 77,500.00 318,000.00 24.4%
801 - Principal
30803P - 50 BFMII Travelift Principal 21,830.89 53,293.00 41.0%
30804P - 2018 Genie Forklift Principal 6,286.46 15,374.00 40.9%
Page 3

25



9:35 AM Port of Brookings Harbor

12108122 Profit & Loss Budget Performance FY 2022-2023
Cash Basis July through November 2022
Jul - Nov 22 Budget % of Budget
Total 801 * Principal 28,117.35 68,667.00 40.9%
810 - Interest Payments
308131 - 50 BFMII Travelift Interest 1,464.11 2,623.00 55.8%
308141 - 2018 Genie Forklift Interest 1,037.09 2,210.00 46,9%

Tofal 810 - Interest Payments 2,501.20 4,833.00 51.8%
Total 630 - DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES 108,118.55 391,500.00 27.6%
640 - CAPT. PROJ. EXPENDITURES

40602 - Naterials & Services Capt Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0%

740 - GAPT. PROJ. CAPRITAL OUTLAY

40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj
407021 - Engineering/Consultants 43,748.00 0.00 100.0%
40702.2 - Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.0%
40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj - Other 0.00 3,580,000.00 0.0%
Total 40702 - Land Improvement - Capt Proj 43,746.00 3,580,000.00 1.2%

Total 740 + CAPT. PROJ. CAPITAL OUTLAY 43,746.00 3,580,000.00 1.2%
Total 640 - CAPT. PROJ. EXPENDITURES 43,746.00 3,580,000.00 1.2%
650 - RESERVE FUND EXPENDITURES

50200 - RESERVE for FUTURE EXPENDITURE 0.00 243,200.00 0.0%
Total 650 - RESERVE FUND EXPENDITURES 0.00 243,200.00 0.0%
660 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK EXPENDITURES

60806P - RV Park Improv. Loan Principal 16,483.17 39,900.00 41.3%

60815l - RV Park Improv. Loan Interest 7,566 18 17,820.00 42.5%
Total 660 - DEBT SERV. RV PARK EXPENDITURES 24,049 35 57,720.00 41.7%
670 - PORT CONST FUND EXPENDITURES

70100 - PORT CONST. CAPITAL OUTLAY

70700 : Land Improvement - Port Const.

70701.3 - Services 215,039.89

70700 - Land Improvement - Port Const. - Ot.., 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Total 70700 - Land Improvement - Port Const. 215,039.89 0.00 100.0%
70100 - PORT CONST. CAPITAL OUTLAY - Other 0.00 §573,170.00 0.0%

Total 70100 - PORT CONST. CAPITAL QUTLAY 215,039.89 573,170.00 37.5%
Total 670 - PORT CONST FUND EXPENDITURES 215,039.89 573,170.00 37.5%
930 - Fund Balances

10930 - Unappropriated Balance GF 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

20930 - Unappropriated Balance-USDA Q.00 103,660.00 0.0%

30930 - Unappropriated Balance Debt 0.00 23,700.00 0.0%

40930 + Unappropriated Balance Capt Pro 0.00 2,500.00 0.0%
Total 930 + Fund Balances 0.00 154,860.00 0.0%

Total Expense 2,027.671.62 9,280,570.00 21.9%
Net Income 1,321,015.85 0.00 100.0%
Page 4

A



Cagh Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor
Check Registers
As of November 20, 2022

Type Num Date Name Memo Dabit Credit
100 + UNRESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS
101 - GENERAL FUND CHEGKING & LGIF
10103 - General Funds Ckg Umpqua 36834

Bill Pmi -Check, 11032022 AuloZens, Inc. QuickBaoks generated zaro amounl transaction for bill payment stub 0.00

Blll Pt -Check ACH DEBIT 11/05/2022 US Bank Equipment Finance Confract No, 500-0623925-000 RICOH IMCE000 Copler 22320
Bill Pml -Check ACH DEBIT 11/07/2022 Spectrum Business 8752 19 060 0247029 Internat & Veice for Porf Meeting Room 10/19/22 - 11/18/22 124.28
Bill Pmt -Check ACH DEBIT 1110442022 Specirum Business 8752 19 060 0251369 Internet & Veice for Part Shai- Offices 1017122 - 11/16/22 117.97
Check. ACH DEBIT 11111/2022 ADP Advice of Debil 678461119 Payroll Date: 11/02/2022 14583
Bill Pt -Check ACH DEBIT 11/28/2022 Tyrea Ql}, Inc Acecunt # 56851 Fue! Purchase for Resale 17,636.51
Bill Pmt -Gheek ACH GEBIT 11182022 VERIZON WIRELESS Account#742050310+ 2001 Mobile Phanes for Staff 312.54
Bill Pmt -Cheek ACH DEBIT J1422/2022 Spectrum Business 8752 19 Q60 0226494 Internet for Porl Offica 11/05/2022 - 12/04/2022 109,88
Bill Pmt -Check ACH DEBIT 11/28/2022 Dish Netwark ACCOUNT#8255707024149507 RV Park Satellite TV 714.08
Cheeck ACH DEBIT 11/14/2022 BL/ RV Park STRIPE DEBIT - REFUNDS |ssued 11/09/2022 175.73
8ill Pmt -Check ACH DEBIT 11/28/2022 Tyree O, Inc Aocounl # 56851 Fuel Purchase for Resale 16,675.77
Bill Pmit -Check ACH DEBIT 11/28/2022 Spectrum Business 8752 19 080 6025169 8752 18 D80 0025169-Beachironl RV Internet 1056.22
Bill Pmi -Check ACH DEBIT 11/15/2022 Ziply Fiber 541-412-7930-102802-5 541-412-7930-102002-5 Fuel Dock Telephone 42.78
Eill Pmt -Check ACH DEBIT 11/15/2022 Ziply Fiber 541-468-5867-121616-5 541-468.5887-121516-5 Beachfronl RV Park 156,35
Bill Pmi -Check ACH DEBIT 11/116/2022 Chevron Business Card Account #: 049517075666 Fue! Purchases for Port Vehiclas/Equipment 836.35
Bill Pml -Check ACH DEBIT 11/29/2022 e sartment of State Lands JPA - Parinil Pracessing Fee 2022 Remaval - Flil - Application No. APPOD64152 1,242.00
Chack ACH DEBIT 11/25/2022 ADP Advice of Debit 619301747 Payroll Date. 11A18/2022 145.83
Chack ACH DEBIT 14/25{2022 ADP Advice of Deblt #518586704 ezl aborManagerfADP 300 Timaclock (3 Timeckseks) 176.85
Bill Pmt -Check ACH DEBIT 14/04/2022 ADP Advice of Deblil #618133316 Premium Cnly Plen Annual Fes 350.00
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 111022022 Rentprep Enterprise/Fidselis Screening 2 Moorage Background checks 39.80
BIll PmL -Check ATM DEBIT 11/02/2022 SimpliSafe Supporl for Porl Office Alarm System SUPPORT QCT 2022 17.89
Bill Prt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/01/2022 FRED MEYER Chogoiates for Halloween (Trick or Treal) 19.98
Bill Pmt-Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 US Relay/HD Ralay HO Relay Advanced Streaming - 500GB Monthly $9.00
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 Proficient Auto Center, Inc. 11/03/2022- Repairs lo EQ#1110 2007 Chevrolat CK2500 238,00
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DERIT 11/07/2022 Boal-ed.com/Safety Courses Boater Educalion Card - Sean Armstrong 59,956
Bill Pmt-Check ATM DEBIT 11/04{2072 Sunriver Resorl 4 Lodging Reservalions for SDAO Annual Conference 126 85
Bilt Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 Sunrlver Resorl 4 Lodging Reservatlons for 8DAQ Annttal Conference 126,85
Bill Pt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 Sunriver Resort 4 Lodging Reservalions for SOAQ Anmeal Conferenca 126 85
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 Sunriver Resorl: 4 Lodging Reservaliens for SDAQ Annual Conference 126 85
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/09/2022 Firafly Reservations Beachfroni RV Park reservation syslem 189.00
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/04/2022 Pacific Office Automation Cuslomer # 507410 Copier Leass & Maintenance 222.23
Bill Pmt -Check ATM DEBIT 11/16/2022 Walmarl 2% i Bathroom Mediclne Storage Wall Cablnat for Port Office Restroom £8.59
Bill Pmt -Chack: ATM DEBIT 112142022 Sunriver Resart One might depH Rms for 8DAO Conference in February 248 50
Bill Pmi -Chack ATM DEBIT 1142312022 My Parking Parmil 5'%3" Marina Parking Passes for 2023 - 2024 1,792 00
Check DEBIT 11402/2022 Edward Jones Employer Cantribulion 11/02/2022 ConfirmationTB1N1-1SCNF 137 41
Check CEBIT 110212022 Edward Jones Empleyer Contribution 11/02/2022 ConfirmationTB1N1-192K4 245,80
Check DEBIT 1110212022 Edward Jones Employer Contribution §1/02/2022 ConfirmationTB1N1-1B0XN 152.63
Check DEBIT 110202002 Edward Jones Employer Contribution 11/02/2022 ConfinmationTB1N{-182F5 156.00
Check DEBIT 11i02r2022 Edward Jones Empleyer Contribution 11/G2/2022 CenfirmationTB1N1-1B35H 6428
Check DERIT 110242022 Edward Jones Employer Gonlribution 11/02/2022 ConfirmationTB1N1-1BEZ1 198.75
Check DEBIT 110212022 Edward Jones Employer Conlribution 11/02/2022 ConfirmalienTBiN1-1B77Z 176.50
Chack DEBIT 11/02/2022 Edward Jones Employer Conlribution 11/02/2022 CenlirmalionTB1N1-1BS0Q% 136.46
Chack DEBIT 1170242022 Edward Jones Employer Conlribution 11/02/2022 ConfirmaticnTB1N1-1BBZ7 360,60
Gheck DEBIT 111022022 TD Ameritrade Employar Contribution 11/02/2022 ConflrmalionTB1N1-1B{ HE 195.56
Chack DERIT 11/02/2022 Elavon OCT 2022 MERCHANT SERVICE FEE ACCT#316 73B.99
Check DERIT 11/02/2022 Elavon OCT 2022 MERCHANT SERVICE FEE ACCT#873 Ventek Boal Launch 117.56
Check DEBIT 11/02/2022 Elavon OCT 2022 MERCHANT SERVICE FEE ACCT#951 711.88
Check DEBIT 11/0412022 Russell Flsheries Inc./ Day, Jim Refund fer involce#20221786 360.00
Check DEBIT 11/16/2022 Edward Jones: Employer Contributien 11/16/2022 ConfirmatlonTCGFB-YJINY 152 00
Check DEBRIT 11M6f2022 Edward Jones Employer Contribution 11F6/2022 ConfirmatienTCGFB-YJSYY 248.80
Check DEBIT 111612022 Edward Jones Employer Cantribulion 11/16/2022 ConfirmationTCGFB-YJVKC 150.63
Check DEBIT 11162022 Edward Jones Employer Contributien 11/16/2022 ConfirmationTCGFB-YJXFM 156.13
Check DEBIT 1471612022 Edward Jonas Employer Centribulion 11/16/2022 ConfirmalionTCGFB-YJYTE8 7180
Check DEBIT 14/16/2022 Edward Jones Employer Centribulion 11/16/2022 CenfirmationTCEFB-YKOB2 19307
Chack DEBIT 11/16/2022 Edward Jones Emgloyer Contribulion 11/16/2022 CenfirmalionTCGFB-YK1N4 141.61
Check DEBIT 11M8/2022 Edwarg Jones Employer Contribution 11/16/2022 Cenfirmalion TCGFB-YK3J3 178.62
Check DEBIT 11182022 Edward Jenas Employer Centribution 11/16/2022 ConfirmalienTCGFB-YRE0T 350.80
Check DEBIT 11/16/2022 T Ameritrade Employer Contribution 11/16/2022 CenfirmationTCGFB-YKEQG 184.51
Check DEBIT 114302022 Edward Jenes Employer Contribution 11/30/2022 CenfirmationTFO7 2-WEHSQ 139,71
Check DEBIT 11/30{2022 Edward Jones Emplayer Conilribution 11/3042022 ConfirmallonTFO72-WTFLW 248 B0
Check DEBIT 113042022 Edward Jones Employar Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmalionTFO72-WTHBY 151,56
Chack DEBIT 114302022 Edward Jones Employer Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmatlenT FO72-W7K0D 1586.05



Port of Brookings Harbor
Check Registers

Cash Basis As of November 30, 2022
Type Mum Date Name Memo Debit Credit
Check DEBIT 11302022 Edward Jones Employer Cantribution 11/3072022 ConfirmationTFO72-WTMQM 71.38
Check DEBIT 1113042022 Edward Jones Emgloyer Conlribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmationTFO72-W7P6T 193.29
Check DEBIT 1143042022 Edward Jones Employer Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmalionTFO72-WTRPW 152.22
Chack DEBIT 1173002022 Edward Jones Employar Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmationTFO72-W7TS3 177.26
Check DEBIT 11/30/2022 Edward Jones Employer Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmationTFO72-WTVS2 350.80
Chack DEBIT 1173042022 TD Ameritrade Employer Contribution 11/30/2022 ConfirmationTF072-W7X0G 195.73
Bill Pmt -Check PayPal 11/03/2022 Microsoft Office 365 Home Annual Subscription for Front Desk Computer 59.29
Bill Prot -Check PayPal 11/25/2022 Zoom Video Communications Inc, Account#112208511 Standard Pro Monthly Service 14.99
Bill Pmt -Check PayPal 1172812022 Adobe Adobe Acrebat Pro DC Annual Plan Paid Monthly 27-NOV-2022 & 26-DEC-2022 14.89
Genaral Joumal DEBT 11/01 1140972022 Transfer to Debt Service Fund for Travelift Payment 4,659.00
General Journal DEBT 11/ 11/01/2022 Transfer to Debt Service Fund for Fork Lift Payment 1,464.71
General Journal ~ DEBT 11/1 11/01/2022 Transfer to Tatil Sarv. RV Park for Umpgua Bank Loan Acct#97748040835 Payment 4,809.87
General Journal  PAY 11/02 111022022 Rec 11/02/2022 payroll 14,653.43
General Journal  TAX 11/02 1140212022 Rec 11/02/2022 payroll 5,949.16
General Journal  CP 11/04 11/04/2022 Transfer to Capital Projects for payment to EMC Engineers inv#81009-2216 10,450.00
Ganeral Journal CP 11/04 117042022 Transfer to Capital Projects for payment to EMGC Engineers invi#$1009-2217 1,320.00
General Journal  GF 1146 111162022 Transfer $100,000 from Umpgua Bank to LGIP - General Funds 100,000.00
Ganeral Journal ~ PAY 11116 1111672022 Rec 11/16/2022 payroll 14,751.04
General Journal TAX 1116 1111612022 Rec 111612022 payrol! 6,0086.97
General Journal  PAY 11/3¢ 111302022 Rec 11/30/2022 payroll 14,814.36
General Journal  TAX 11/30 11/3012022 Rec 11/30/2022 payroll 802002
Bill Pmt -Chack 11247 11104i2022 EMG-Engineers/Scientists, |LLC 30.7 Hrs Port Engineering RE Wastewatar Treatment Plant 3,670.00
Bill Pmt -Chack 11248 1110442022 EMC-Enginaers/Scientists, LLC REIMBURSEMENT: Cascadia Geoservices, Inc. inv#2534 862.50
Bill Pt -Check 11249 1110452022 Amazen Capital Services Business Account #A2VUCSYWS42764 - Suppliss/Materials 108.7%
Bill Prnt -Check 11250 1110412022 BI-MART Account #931481 Water & Sugplies 60.35
Bill Pmt -Check 11251 11/04/2022 Curry Transfer & Recycling Account #2040-2434-001 Tragh Dumpsters. 9,132.67
Bill Prat -Check 11252 1110472022 Fastenal Industrial Supplies Customer No.ORBRKOO13 Toiletries & Supplies. B868.25
Bill Pmt -Check 11253 1110452022 Gowman Electric, Inc. CCB: 198999 Electrical Repair 427.50
Bill Pmt -Chack 11254 1110472022 Harbor Sanitary District OCTOBER 2022 Sanitary Bill 2,424.87
Bill Pmt -Check 11255 1110452022 Northwest Parking Equipment Company Supplies for Buat Launch Kiesk 328.87
Biill Prt -Check 11256 1140472022 S0AQ Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Healthcare Customar # 03-0016414 - HEALTHCARE PREMIUM 0,497.67
Bill Pmt -Check 11257 11/0472022 Suburban Propane 10/2612022- Delivery of 71.2 Gallons of Prepans - RY Park 364.49
Bill Pmt -Check 11258 110412022 Thermo Fluids, Inc. Account # PO24273 Removal of Used Dil and Qily Water 141.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11259 1140412022 Tldewater Contractors, inc. Customer Cade: 000081 - 24 Concrete V Blocks for RV Park Fence Dividers 2,520.00
Bill Pt -Check 11260 11i04f2022 United Rentals, Ing. Customeri#26636682 FORKLIFT OF CERTIFICATION - ROUGH TERRAIN - Shawn Hail 190.00
Bill Pmt -Check 112681 19/04i2022 Four Aces Security Solutions LLC OCTOBER 2022 - 62 Hours Security Patrol - 34%Marina, 33%Beachfront RY Park, 33%Commereial Retail 2,873.70
Bill Pmt -Check 11262 1110472022 Stormwatar Biochar LLC Pura Rain Stermwater Filter Sock 36" Long BiocharBASIC 1,250.76
Bill Pmt -Chack 11263 111of2022 Amazon Capital Services Business Account #A2VUIC5YWS42764 - Suppfites/Materials 28.99
Bill Pmt -Check 11264 11072022 Aquerius Environmental, LLC On Call Services Provided - 12002 Stormwater Pollution Cantrol Plan (SWPCP) updates 1,268.75
Bill Pmt -Check 11285 T1M0/2022 Boardwalk Mail Service Postage 27.20
Bill Pmt -Check 11266 111072022 C.J. Huntsman GPA, P.G. Audit FY JUN 30, 2022- Progress Billing for October 2022 5,130,00
Bill Pmt -Check 11287 1102022 Country Media, Inc. CUST# 38747 Curry Coastal Pilot Notices 26,70
Bill Pmt -Chack 11268 111072022 Curry Equipment Account#1052 Equip Repair & Maint. Supplies 35.49
Bill Pmt -Check 11269 111072022 Del-Cur Supply Co-op Gustomer Ne. 38700 Hardware & Other Supplies 856.32
Bill Pmt -Check 11270 111072022 Freeman Rack, inc. 114012022 Delivery Reck for Boalyard Grading 126,42
Bill Pmt -Check 11271 11M10/2022 Gowman Electric, Inc. GCH: 188999 Elsctrical Repair 85,00
Bill Pmt -Check 11272 11/10/2022 In-Mation Graphics and Design, LLC Sign - Boat Ready Area 45.00
Bill Pt -Check 11273 11M10/2022 John KellumiJohn's Portable Welding 11/03/2022 - Repair and wald hinge on A Dock on Basin 1 Gangway 225.00
Bill Pt -Chack 11274 1111072022 Cregen Health Authority Annual Surcharge for Recreational Park 370.00
Bill Fmt -Check 11275 i1M0/2022 SDAG Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Prop & Cas Policy#31P18414-203 Customer I1D: 01-16414 - 2021 PROPERTY & CASUALTY POLICY 10,328.56
Bill Pmt -Check 11276 i1M6/2022 Government Ethics Commision GGEDOO1059 - Annual Billing 07/01/22 to 06/30/23 Oregon Governmarnt Eihics Commission 548.82
Bill Prt -Check 11277 1116/2022 Marineau and Associates Appraisat of Map & Tax Lot 41-13-08A-400-27, Parking Lot behind Cazadores Mexican Restaurant 3,150.00
Total 10103, - General Funds Ckg Umpeua 3634 0.00 291,458.07
Total 107 - GENERAL FUND CHECKING & LGIP 0.00 291,458.07
10101 - Petty Cash
Total 1013 - Petly Cash
Total 100 - UNRESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS 0.00 291,458.07
110 - RESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS
104 - RESTRICTED MONEY MKT & CHECKING
20104 - USDA BOND Umpgua M 9529
Check DEBIT 110772022 USDA Rural Develepment USDA #97-02 Reverue Bond Payment 130,120.00

O



Gash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor
Check Registers
As of November 30, 2022

Type Num Date Name Memo Debit Credit
General Journal USDA 11/ 110172022 To transfer to USDA Revenue Bond Fund.. 1 GIP 6021 to Umpqua Bank 9529 for November 2022 Paymenit 130,120.00
Total 20104 - USDA BOND Umpqua MM 8529 130,120.00 130,120.00
30104 - Debt Service Umpgqua MM 8627
60104 - OR FFC 2020 Debt Service
Check DEBIT 1115/2022 Umpgua Bank/OR FFC Agreement 2020 OR FFC Agreement 2020 Payment #28 4,809.87
General Journal  DEBT 11/01 114012022 Transfer lo Debt Sery. RV Park for Umpgua Bank Loan Accl#f97748040835 Payment 4,809.87
Total 80104 OR FFC 2020 Debl Service 4 809.87 4,800 87
30104 + Debi Service Umpgqua MM B627 - Other
Chack DEBIT 11152022 Umpgua Bank/Lean#747041620 Genla Reach Ferklift Loan#7 47041620 Paymenl #57 1,464.71
Check DEBIT 1112212022 m2 Lease LLG Customer #107104 Loar#110561 Pmt #73 - 50 BFMI| Travelift 4,659.00
Genaral Journal  DEBT {11/01 11/01/2022 Transfer to Dabi Service Fund for Travelifi Payment 4,659 00
General Journal  DEBT 11/01 11/01/2022 Transfer to Debl Service Fund for Fork Lifl Payment 1,484.71
Tolal 30104 - Debt Service Limpqua MM 8827 - Ciher 6,923.71 6,123 71
Total 30104 + Debt Service Umpqua M BB27 10,923,68 10,833.58
40104 - Capital Projects Umpqua 8018
40104.1 » Government Funds
General Journal ~ CP 11/04 11/04{2022 Transfer to Capilal Projecls for payment to EMC Engineers Inv#e1009-2216 10,450.00
General Journal ~ CP 11/04 11/04/2022 Transfer to Capilal Projecs for paymenl to EMC Engineers Inv#91009-2217 1,320.00
Bill Pmt -Check 433 11/04/2022 EMGC-EngineersiScientists, LLC 13.2 Hrs, Funding pursuit - HMGP-Hazard Mitigation Plan:FEMA 4432DR PW 162-1 1,320.00
Bill Pmi -Check 434 11/04/2022 EMC-Engineers/Scientists, LLC 104.5 Engineering Hrs- PW162-1 FEMA 4432 & 4452 10,450.00
Total 40104.1 - Government Funds 11,770.00 11,779.00
70104.1 - Port Construction Fund
General Journal ~ PCF 11115 11118/2022 Transfer to Porl Construetion Fund te pay McLannan Excavation Paymeni Requast #3 108,385.77
Bill Pmi -Check 435 1116/2022 Mctennen Excavalion, Inc, Progress Payment Requesl #3 for RV Park Remedel Project 108,385,77
Total 70104.1 + Porl Conslruction Fund 108,385 77 108,385.77
40104 - Capltal Projects Umpgua 8018 - Other
Total 40104 - Capital Projects Umnpqua 8018 - Other
Total 40104 - Capilal Projects Umpqua BB 120,155.77 120,155 77
Total 104 RESTRICTED MONEY MKT & CHECKING 261,208.35 261,209.35
Total 116 - RESTRICTED CASH & EQUIVALENTS 261,208.25 261,208 35
TOTAL 261,209.35 562,667.42

=




Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor

Purchases by Vendor Summary

January through November 2022

101 Things To Do

5-R Excavation, LLC

Adobe

ADP

Amazon Capital Services

Amber Espinoza

Anchor Lock & Key

Aqguarius Environmental, LLC

Art Signs, Inc.

Asurion Wireless Insurance
Autoglass Masters

AutoZone, Inc.

Beautiful Blinds Shutters & Shades
Best Western Plus Agate Beach inn
BI-MART

Billeter Marine, LLC-vendor

Black & Rice LLP

Boardwalk Mail Service
Boat-ed.com/Safety Courses

Boat Launch Kiosk

Boat Shop & More LLC

BoatlU.S. Boat Graphics & Lettering
BOLI PWR

BoomTech

Brookings Glass, Inc.

Brookings Harbor Chamber of Commerce

C Bar C Truck Sales

C.J. Huntsman CPA, P.C.
Cascade Auto Recycling, LL.C
Chetco Automotive

Chevron Business Card
CHEVRON/Shell
ComplianceSigns.com
Coos-Curnry Electric Cooperative, Inc.
Costco

Country Media, Inc.

Crescent ACE Hardware
Crescent City Harbor District
Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc
Curry Coastal Pilot

Curry County Business License
Curry County Clerk

Curry County Community Development
Curry County Road Department
Curry County Tax Collector
Curry Equipment

Curry Transfer & Recycling
Del-Cur Supply Go-op
Department of Sfate Lands
Desi's Tree Trimming

DF Supply, Inc.

Dish Network

DMV2U/Dept. of Transporation
DropBox

Eaton Corporation

EBay

Edwards Roofing

Elavon

Jan - Nov 22

1,448.00
6,125.07
164.89
8,210.28
5,981.14
585.00
1,672.00
8,488.75
8,383.00
16.00
50.00
2489
835.00
388.17
1,105.32
1,546.50
817.00
144,20
59.95
120.00
1,640.00
217.16
250.00
77.47
1,996.00
450.00
42,95
5,130.00
486.40
97.36
9,027.00
88.65
634.00
90,600.19
104.47
1,155.24
564.27
1,000.00
1,778.15
78.00
102.50
1,246.55
206.00
250.00
23,876.56
1,347.81
77,224.24
10,694.26
1,242.00
3,600.00
2,646.81
6,902.88
0.35
119.88
338.40
34,74
7,822.00
26,236.78

25



Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor

Purchases by Vendor Summary

January through November 2022

EMC-Engineers/Scientists, LLC
Englund Marine Supply Co.
Fastenal Industrial Supplies
Ferguson Enterprises, Inc.

Firefly Reservations

Flags.com

Fluid Manufacturing

Forte Clothing Company

Four Aces Security Solutions LLC
FRED MEYER

Freeman Rock, Inc.

Gaylord Klinefelter Contracting
GCB Automation & Marine LLC
George's Auto & Diesel Electric
Gerald W. Burns, CPA

GNS Wireless

GODaddy.com, LLC

Gold Beach Lumber Yard, Inc.
Government Ethics Commision
Gowman Electric, Inc.

Grainger

Grants Pass Water Lab, Inc.
Grating Pacific, LLC

Grundens

Harbor Logaing Supply, Inc.
Harbor Sanitary District

Harbor View Windows, Heating & Air
Harbor Water District P.U.D.
Hartwick Automotive

HD SUPPLY FACILITIES

Highway Specialities, LLC

Home Depot

homesquare

Honeybee Bakery

In-Motion Graphics and Design, LLC
Industrial Steel & Supply Co. Inc.
Intuit

John Kellum/Jehn's Portable Welding
K&K insurance Group, Inc.
Kaman Industrial Technologies
Kendrick Equipment USA LLG
Les Schwab Tire Center

Lithia Ford of Klamath Falls
Marine Surveyors & Consultants
Marineau and Associates

Mascott Equipment

McKays Market

Mclennan Excavation, Inc.

Metro Media

Microsoft

Mid Columbia Forklift

Miller Nash LLP

Motion Industries

My Parking Permit

NAPA Auto Part

NorLift of Oregon, Inc.

Northwest Parking Equipment Company
Narthwest Pump & Equipment Co.

Jan - Nov 22

189,568.95
238.19
19,913.35
770.80
2,180.00
924.00
357.15
2,143.00
25,307.10
240,57
1,.907.76
1,880.00
600.00
57.25
4,500.00
7,1056.73
239.88
26,949.46
548.82
6,035.48
4,332.22
5,752.00
1,132.00
799.92
5,486.03
42,908.52
460.25
19,862.26
60.99
814.08
1,809.60
5,393.15
417.98
28.61
573.00
332.57
7,210.23
4,350.00
400.00
2,389.92
14,617.98
1,661.58
46,441.32
1,170.00
3,1560.00
8932.74
2220
328,117.44
455.00
269,97
227.22
76,137.00
2,249.45
2,208.50
1,090.63
21718
328.87
8,145.35

A



Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor

Purchases by Vendor Summary

January through November 2022

Office Depot

Qil Can Henry's

ONLINE Purchases

Orcal Security Consulting LLC

Oregon Alarm

Oregon Coast Magazine

Oregon Department of Agriculture
Oregon Health Authority

Oregon PERS/State Social Security Admin.
Pacific Office Automation

Pacific Rim Copy Center

Pape Material Handling

Pitney Bowes Global Lease

Pitney Bowes, Inc.

Platt

PPG Paints

Pressure Washers Direct

Proficient Auto Center, Inc.

Pump Pipe & Tank Services, LLC

Quill Corporation

Rentprep Enterprise/Fidelis Screening
RiteAid

SDAQO Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Annual Dues
SDAQ Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Healthcare
SDAD Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Prop & Cas
SDAQ Spec. Dist. Assoc. OR - Workers Comp
See Water Inc.

Sensaphone

SimpliSafe

Slice Recovery

SmartSign

S0 Backflow Techs

Spectrum Business 8752 19 060 0025169
Spectrum Business 8752 19 060 0226494
Spectrum Business 8752 19 060 0247029
Spectrum Business 8752 19 060 0251369
Stadelman Electric, Inc.

Stormwater Biochar LI1.C

Strahm's Sealcoat & Striping, Inc.

Stripe

Suburban Propane

Sunriver Resort

SUPPLYHOUSE.COM

T. George Podell & Co.,Inc/Hot And Mighty
Thermo Fluids, Inc.

Tidewater Contractors, Inc.

Traffic Safety Supply Co.

TRAINING & TRAVEL Expenses

Travel Information Council

Tyree Oil, Inc

U Printing

ULire

Umpqua Valley Fire Services, Inc.

United Rentals, Inc.

UPS-NW Store #105

US Bank Equipment Finance

US Postal Service

US Relay/HD Relay

Jan - Nov 22

38.38
14.00
2,150.47
5,649.53
7,525.00
675.00
278.00
370.00
16.00
3,249.88
1,127.00
6,820.97
1,268.27
1,313.04
916.47
60.44
49.99
238.00
11,956.44
1,810.76
75810
14.38
10,610.41
110,511.38
114,802 44
20,639.83
1598.00
289.40
152.00
2,956.80
2,164.31
390.00
1,152.42
1,199.78
1,299.78
1,297.67
3,345.10
1,250.78
336.00
324.00
1,074.85
726.90
1,486.02
2,168.44
1,666.64
31,867.60
2,075.40
45.00
754.00
084,189.38
664.73
2,739.91
1,721.66
1,265.00
1,617.80
2,455.20
198.00
1,089.00

=N



Cash Basis

Port of Brookings Harbor

Purchases by Vendor Summary

January through November 2022

Valvoline Instant Oil Change
Ventek International

VERIZON WIRELESS

Vonage

Walmart

WeatherTech
WEEBLY-CHARGE.COM

Wes' Towing

Ziply Fiber 541-412-7930-102902-5
Ziply Fiber 541-469-5867-121516-5
Zola's Pizza

Zoom Video Communications Inc.
Zoro Tools, Inc.

TOTAL

Jan - Nov 22

208.45
2,070.00
3,612.43
2,822.26
2,378.55

69.95

910.00

375.00

402.73

767.20

106.00

164.89

202.97

2,579,157.53



ACTION ITEM — A

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Port Manager Agreement
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW
» Board opened Port Manager Recruitment with SDAQ August 22, 2022.

« Board reviewed applicants November 4, 2022,
s Board closed recruitment with SDAO November 16, 2022.

» November 16, Board approved legal counsel to draft a Port Manager Agreement

DOCUMENTS

¢ Port Manager Agreement, 7 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

« Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Port Manager Agreement between the Port of Brookings
Harbor and Travis Webster for a term of 1 year.

Y



Employment Agreement

This Employment Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of
December 21, 2022, by and between Travis Webster (the "Executive") and the PORT OF
BROOKINGS HARBOR, a Port District organized under the laws of the state or Oregon. (the
"Port"),

WHEREAS, the Port desires to employ the Employee on the terms and conditions set
forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Employee desires to be employed by the Port on such terms and
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and
obligations set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Term. Subject to Section 5 of this Agreement, the Employee's term of employment
hereunder shall be from the period beginning on December 1, 2022 (the "Effective Date")
through December 1, 2023 (the "Employment Term").

2. Position and Duties.

2.1 Position. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall serve as the Port
Manager of the Port, reporting to the Board of Commissioners. In such position, the
Employee shall have such duties, authority, and responsibilities as are consistent with the
Employee's position; provided that Employee will not hire a Harbormaster without the
Board of Commissioner’s consent.

2.2 Duties. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall devote substantially
all of the Employee's business time and aftention to the performance of the Employee's
duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business, profession, or occupation for
compensation or otherwise which would conflict or interfere with the performance of such
services either directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Board of
Commissioners.

2.3 Training and Evaluation. Employee shall develop and present a “Work Plan” to
the Board of Commissioners on or before January 1, 2023, summarizing the steps Employee
will take to develop adequate knowledge and skill to perform the position. The Work Plan is
subject to the Board of Commissioners’ input and approval and shall identify training,
workshops, conferences and similar types of activities that Employee agrees to complete. The
Board will evaluate Employee’s progress on the Work Plan and Employee’s overall work
performance on a quarterly basis, or as otherwise determined by the Board of Commissioners.

3. Place of Performance. The principal place of Employee's employment shall be at the
Port located in Harbor, Oregon; provided that, the Employee may be required to travel on Port
business during the Employment Term.

4, Compensation.

4857-8743-8654.1



4.1  Base Salary. The Port shall pay the Employce an annual rate of $95,000 in
petiodic installments in accordance with the Port's customary payroll practices and
applicable wage payment laws. The Employee's annual base salary is hereinafter referred to
as "Base Salary."

42  Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall be
entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans, practices, and programs maintained by
the Port, as in effect from time to time (collectively, "Employee Benefits"), to the extent
consistent with applicable law and the termos of the applicable Employee Benefits plans. The
Port reserves the right to amend or terminate any Employee Benefits at any time in its sole
discretion, subject to the terms of such Employee Benefit plan and applicable law.

43  Vacation; Paid Time Off. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall
continue to accrue paid vacation and/or sick time in accordance with the accrual rates then in
effect for 2022.

4.4  Business Expenses. The Employee shall be entitled to reimbursement for all
reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket business, entertainment, and travel expenses
incurred by the Employee in connection with the performance of the Employee's duties
hereunder in accordance with the Port's expense reimbursement policies and procedures.

4.5  Indemnification. The Port shall indemnify and hold the Employee harmless to
the maximum extent permitted under applicable law and the Port's bylaws for acts and
omissions in the Employee's capacity as an employee of the Port.

5. Termination of Employment. The Employee's employment hereunder may be
terminated by either the Port or the Employee at any time and for any reason or for no particular
reason. Upon termination of the Employee's employment during the Employment Term, the
Employee shall be entitled to the benefits described in this Section 5 and shall have no further
rights to any compensation or any other benefits from the Port.

5.1 Termination For Cause.

(a) If the Port terminates Employee's employment For Cause during the
Employment Term, Employee shall be entitled to receive:

(D) any accrued but unpaid Base Salary which shall be paid in
accordance with the timelines specified in ORS 652.140;

(i)  reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses properly
incurred by the Employee, which shall be subject to and paid in accordance
with the Port's expense reimbursement policy; and

Ttems 5.1(a)() through 5.1(a)(ii) are referred to herein collectively as
the "Accrued Amounts."

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" shall mean:

2

4857-8743-8654.1

&



1) the Employee's willful failure to perform the Employee's duties
(other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental
illness);

(i)  the Employee's willful failure to comply with any valid and
legal directive of the Board of Commissioners;

(i)  the Employee's willful engagement in dishonesty, illegal
conduct, or gross misconduct, which is, in each case, materially injurious to the
Port;

(iv)  the Employee's embezzlement, misappropriation, or fraud,
whether or not related to the Employee's employment with the Port;

(v)  the Employee's conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo
contendere to a crime that constitutes a felony (or state law equivalent) or a
crime that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;

(vi)  the Employee's material violation of the Port's written policies
or codes of conduct, including written policies related to discrimination,
harassment, performance of illegal or unethical activities, and ethical
misconduct;

(vii) the Employee's material breach of any material obligation under
this Agreement or any other written agreement between the Employee and the
Port; or

(viii) the Employee's engagement in conduct that brings or is
reasonably likely to bring the Port negative publicity or into public disgrace,
embarrassment, or disrepute.

For purposes of this provision, none of the Employee's acts or failures
to act shall be considered "willful”" unless the Employee acts, or fails fo act, in bad
faith or without reasonable belief that the action or failure to act was in the best
interests of the Port. The Employee's actions, or failures to act, based upon authority
given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the advice of counsel
for the Port shall be conclusively presumed to be in good faith and in the best interests
of the Port.

5.2 Termination Without Cause. If the Port terminates Employee’s
Employment Without Cause during the Employment Term, Employee shall be
entitled to (i) receive the Accrued Amounts, and (ii) at the Port’s election, (a) return
to Employee’s former job as Harbormaster with the salary and benefits previously in
effect, or (b) a lump sum payment equal to Employee’s Base Salary for the number of
weeks remaining in the Employment Term following the date of the Employee’s
termination provided that Employee executes a release of claims in favor of the Port
in a form provided by the Port (the "Release"),

3

4857-8743-8654.1



5.3 Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Employee's employment
hereunder by the Port or by the Employee during the Employment Term shall be
communicated by written notice of termination ("Notice of Termination") to the other
party hereto in accordance with Section 14. The Notice of Termination shall specify:

(a) the termination provision of this Agreement relied upon;

(b) to the extent applicable, the facts and circumstances claimed to provide
a basis for termination of the Employee's employment under the provision so
indicated; and

(c) the applicable date of termination, which shall be no less than 30 days
following the date on which the Notice of Termination is delivered if the Port
terminates the Employee's employment without Cause, or no less than 30 days
following the date on which the Notice of Termination is delivered if the Employee
terminates the Employee's employment; provided that, the Port shall have the option
to provide the Employee with a lump sum payment in lieu of such notice.

6.  Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of Oregon without regard to conflicts of law principles.
Any action or proceeding by either of the parties to enforce this Agreement shall be brought only
in a state or federal court located in the state of Oregon, county of Curry. The parties hereby
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive the defense of
inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any such action or proceeding in such venue.

7.  Entire Agreement. Unless specifically provided herein, this Agreement, contains all of
the understandings and representations between the Employee and the Port pertaining to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements,
representations and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject matter.

8.  Modification and Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or
modified unless such amendment or modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the
Employee and by the Board of Commissioners of the Port. No waiver by either of the parties of
any breach by the other party hereto of any condition or provision of this Agreement to be
performed by the other party hereto shall be deemed a waiver of any similar or dissimilar
provision or condition at the same or any prior or subsequent time.

9.  Severability. Should any provisions of this Agreement be held to be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provisions hereof, and if such provision or provisions are not modified as provided above,
this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provisions had not
been set forth herein.

10.  Captions, Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are
intended solely for convenience and no provision of this Agreement is to be construed by
reference to the caption or heading of any section or paragraph.

4

4867-8743-8654.1

U\



11.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

12.  Section 409A.

12.1  General Compliance. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section
409A or an exemption thereunder and shall be construed and administered in accordance
with such intent. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, payments provided
under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that complies with
Section 409A or an applicable exemption. Any nonqualified deferred compensation
payments under this Agreement that may be excluded from Section 409A either as
separation pay due to an involuntary separation from service or as a short-term deferral shall
be excluded from Section 409A to the maximum extent possible. For purposes of Section
409A, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a
separate payment. Any payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of
employment shall only be made upon a "separation from service" under Section 409A.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Port makes no representations that the payments and
benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A, and in no event shall the
Port be liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penaltics, interest, or other expenses that
may be incurred by the Employee on account of non-compliance with Section 409A.

12,2 Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
if any payment or benefit provided to the Employee in connection with the Employee's
termination of employment is determined to constitute "nonqualified deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and the Employee is determined to be a
"specified employee" as defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(1), then such payment or benefit
shall not be paid until the first payroll date to occur following the six-month anniversary of
the date of the Employee's termination or, if earlier, on the Employee's death (the "Specified
Employee Payment Date"). The aggrepate of any payments that would otherwise have
been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date and interest on such amounts
calculated based on the applicable federal rate published by the Infernal Revenue Service for
the month in which the Employee's separation from service occurs shall be paid to the
Employee in a lump sum on the Specified Employee Payment Date and thereafter, any
remaining payments shall be paid without delay in accordance with their original schedule.

12.3  Reimbursements. To the extent required by Section 409A, each reimbursement
or in-kind benefit provided under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with the
following:

(a) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits
provided, during each calendar year cannot affect the expenses eligible for
reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other calendar year;

(b)  any reimbursement of an eligible expense shall be paid to the Employee -
on or before the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the
expense was incurred; and

5

4857-8743-8654.1

“H2



(c) any right to reimbursements or in-kind benefits under this Agreement
shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.

13. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to the Employee and shall not be
assigned by the Employee. Any purported assignment by the Employee shall be null and void
from the initial date of the purported assignment. The Port may assign this Agreement to any
successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise)
to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Port. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of the Port and permitted successors and assigns.

14. Notice. Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, electronic delivery, or by registered mail to the parties at
the addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as specified by the parties by like notice):

If to the Port;

Travis Webster

Port of Brookings Harbor
16330 Lower Harbor Road
Harbor, OR 97415

If to the Employee:

806 Fawn Drive
Brookings, OR 97415

15. Representations of the Employee. The Employee represents and warrants to the Port
that:

The Employee's acceptance of employment with the Port and the performance of the
Employee's duties hereunder will not conflict with or result in a violation of, a breach of, or a
default under any contract, agreement, or understanding to which the Employee is a party or is
otherwise bound.

16. Withholding. The Port shall have the right to withhold from any amount payable
hereunder any Federal, state, and local taxes in order for the Port to satisfy any withholding tax
obligation it may have under any applicable law or regulation.

17.  Survival. Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective
rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to
the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the parties under this Agreement,

18. Acknowledgement of Full Understanding. THE EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES
AND AGREES THAT THE EMPLOYEE HAS FULLY READ, UNDERSTANDS AND
VOLUNTARILY ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THE EMPLOYEE
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EMPLOYEE HAS HAD AN

6

4857-8743-8654.1

H



OPPORTUNITY TO ASK QUESTIONS AND CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF THE
EMPLOYEE'S CHOICE BEFORE SIGNING TIHIS AGREEMENT.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

7

4857-8743-8654.1

4y



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first
above written.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
By
Name: Richard Heap

Title: Board President

TRAVIS WEBSTER
Signature:—_—-‘ P,
Print Name: Jruwrs L) ebster™

8

4857-8743-8654.1



ACTION ITEM — B

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Port Manager Work Program
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

« Commission discussed with legal counsel that Port Manager will present a work
plan as stated in Employment Agreement, 2.3 Training and Evaluation

DOCUMENTS
o Port Manager Work Plan, 3 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

» Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Port Manager Work Program.

Hio



Port Manager Work Program

Thank you for the opportunity to be the Port Manager. Over the next 6 months | will be focused
on maintaining our current path. The Board, and previous management have done a great job creating
policies, pracedures that lay the groundwork for Port to follow.

Goals: Personnel

With recent changes in staff and with budgetary obligations in mind, evaluate personnel, job
descriptions, and determine what is needed for the Port to keep operating smoothly with new
hires.

Provide new staff needed tools to excel and become viable Port employees.

Continue to cross train field staff so that they can better understand all functions of the Port and

be able to assist in more operations.
Establish SOP to ensure staff is performing in a united and organized fashion.
Adhere to an organization method to manage cutside operations and office staff.

With our current Moorage procedures, the Port attained milestones in respect to ADV’s.
Working with staff, continue and maintain current procedures to limit these vessels moored at
the Port.

Budget:

Working with Budget Officer, create a needed Supplemental Budget for current fiscal year 2022-

2023.

Research, review and adjust rates for FY 2023 - 2024 to submit to the Board for approval and be

ready to implement by July 1st, 2023

Working with Budget Officer, create Budget for FY 2023 — 2024 to submit to the Budget
Committee and Board for approval and adoption.

Training:

To fulfill the Port Manager position, the following training has been completed and / or
scheduled.

1. SDAO GoTo Webinar - First Thursday Webinar: The Importance of Documentation in
Performance Management

4



Training Scheduled:

1. Board of Directors and Management Staff Virtual Training pt. 1
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UB416eC_qgPk

2. Board of Directors and Management Staff Virtual Training pt. 2
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BI52WC7rot|

3. Advanced Board Skills: Chaosing Collaboration &amp; Clarity Over Chaos: {1HR)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MKIgD_tofzg&amp;t=6s

4. Budget and Finance 101: An Overview for District Officials — Accessible on 2022 SDAO Annual
Conference Site

5. Public Meeting Training https://register.gotowebinar.com/recording/7918317014921948687

6. Public Records Training https://register.gotowebinar.com/recording/7425357573811053837

7. Managing Your Employee from Hello to Good-Bye (5 Credits)
https://register.gotowebinar.com/recording/5158491152754876422

After July 1st:

1. Basic Strategic Planning, Roadmap for Your District&#39; s Future (5 Credits)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hPcoht-OEbE

2. Not Just Your Plan That Needs Updating - [t&#39; s Your Process: Refocusing Strategic
Planning (5 Credits) - Accessible on the 2022 SDAO Annual Conference site

Projects:

Oversee current and future projects and their completion. Maintain the projects are completed
to the Port and Board's standards

RV park project upgrade.
WWTP EPA funding application approval. {March 1st)

WWTP matching funds: Port Reserve Fund {Property Sale, grants, loans, and private
contributions.)

Continue progress on FEMA/HMGP planning and funding including matching funds with
Business Oregon.

Develop Port shop engineering and drawings to have ready for grant opportunities and
contractor procurements.

HB



General Activities:

Coordinate and interact with local, State and Federal agencies and elected officials. Continue
communication to establish and maintain good, lasting relationships viable to the Ports future
endeavors.

Act as liaison to Port users. Establish and maintain communication to create an excellent
customer and user service

Crganize and bhalance management responsibilities while continuing Harbor master duties and
respansibilities.

Delegating specific responsibilities to staff while considering their best attributes
Generally direct office staff and operations supervisor through supervision, and/or advice.
Review and update paolicies, procedures, and living documents as needed

Constant contact with our outside professional teams ta ensure that assigned projects are
moving forward and Information that is needed is provided in a timely manner.

Tesvesllegsre

Travis Webster - Port Manager

HA



ACTION ITEM — C

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE:

TO:

El Cazadores Parking Area

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

New owners, Cendi and Javier Olmedo, purchased the building from Mr. Ken
Byrtus.

October 2022 Regular Meeting Board approved terminating lease with Ken
Byrtus.

October 2022 Regular Meeting, Board reviewed what a new lease would be at
the current rates.

Board received a letter from new owners asking for Board consideration on saie
or reduced rate for the area.

November 2022 Regular Meeting Board reviewed a current appraisal on the
land.

DOCUMENTS

Draft lease with current rates, 12 pages
Letter asking for Board consideration on rate or sale, 1 page
Current appraisal, 18 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion, option 1:
Motion to approve draft lease with amendments.

Recommended Motion, option 2:
Motion to approve allowing the Port Manager to enter into negotiations with legal
counsel and start a draft Purchase Sale Agreement for the sale of Port property.



COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT
Cendi Olmedo and Javier Olmedo

This amended and restated lease agreement is made and entered into at Brookings, Oregon, effective the 1st
day of October, 2022, by and between the Port of Brookings Harbor, an Oregon special district (referred to
herein as the “Landlord”) and Cendi Olmedo and Javier Olmedo (hereinafter referred to as “Tenant”).

1. Leased Premises. Landiord hereby leases to Tenant the following described property located
in the Port of Brockings Harbor on the terms and conditions stated herein:

a. Approximately 3,750 square-feet of Asphalt, (the Leased Premises, as described in in
Exhibit “1"), located at 16218 Lower Harbor Road, Brookings, Oregon.

2. Lease Term and Base Rental Rate.
a. Initial Term. The initial term of this lease is three (3) years commencing October 1st,
2022 and continuing through September 30, 2025.
b. Base Rental Rate. The base rental rate for the Leased Premises is One Thousand Two

Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars ($1,275.00) per month, as calculated below, payable on
the first day of each month commencing October 1, 2022. The base rental rate is the
combined rate of:

1. The asphalt consisting of 3,750 square feet of property at $0.34 per square foot
per month, for a total of one thousand twelve hundred seventy-five Dollars
($1,275.00) per manth.

c. Option to Renew. Upon expiration of the initial term of this lease, Landlord grants to
Tenant the option to renew this lease in whole or in part of the Leased Premises, for
one (1) additional three (3) year term at terms and conditions to be negotiated, provided
that: (a) Tenant is not in default of this lease at the time the option is exercised; (b)
Landlord does not need the ground for its own use; and (c) Landlord is otherwise
satisfied with Tenant's use of the Leased Premises during the initial term. The parties
agree to negotiate in good faith with respect to the renewal terms and conditions on
terms at least as favorable as those offered to any other tenant of Landlord at the time.

d. Notice of Intent. Tenant shall notify the Landlord in writing ninety (80) days prior to
expiration of the lease of Tenant's intent to exercise all or any portion of Tenant’s aption
to extend the lease. Failure to provide such notice is a default and a material breach of
the lease and Landlord may terminate the lease on the expiration date and retake
possession of the L.eased Premises with or without process of law.

3. Base Rent Payment.

a. Annual Adjustment. Tenant must pay the base rent for the Leased Premises and any
additional rent provided herein without deduction or offset. The base rent will increase
annually, on each anniversary of the lease commencement for the second and each
subsequent year, according to the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-
U). The base rent increase will be for the total amount of the base rent due. Base rent
includes all prior percentage increases. In the event that the CPI-U is negative, the base
rent will remain the same, it will not increase or decrease.

b. Proration. Rent for any partial month during the lease term will be prorated to reflect the
number of days during the month that Tenant actually occupied the Leased Premises.

Page 1 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

S\



c. Additional Rent. Additional rent means any other sums payable by Tenant to Landlord
under this lease. At the end of the initial lease term, a new base rent will be established.

d. Fees and Charges. Should any rent or other payment required of Tenant by this lease
not be paid within 10 days after it is due, a late charge of 1.5% per month (18% per
annum) will be assessed. In the event any suit or action is instifuted to collect any
amount owed cn this account, the undersighed applicant agrees to pay any reasonable
attarney's fees, collection agency fees and any other costs associated with such action.
A $50.00 fee will be assessed on any returned payment.

4, Lease Consideration/Security Deposit. Upon execution of the lease, Tenant's base rent is
due the first day of the month of the lease term for which rent is payable. Tenant is required to
pay a security deposit in a sum equal to one month'’s base rent. Landlord may apply the security
deposit to pay the cost of performing any obligation that Tenant fails to perform within the time
required by this lease, but such application by Landlord shall not be the exclusive remedy for
Tenant's default. If the security deposit is applied by the Landlord, Tenant must on demand pay
the sum necessary to replenish the security deposit to its original amount. To the extent not
applied by Landlord to cure defaults by Tenant, the security deposit will be returned to Tenant
upon termination of this lease, or, by mutual agreement between Landlord and Tenant, applied
against the rent payable for the last month of the term.

6. Use. Tenant may use the Leased Premises for parking and dumpsters and for no other purpose
without Landlord's written consent. In connection with its use of the Leased Premises, Tenant
must, at its sole expense, promptly comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and
regulations of any public authority, including those of the Port of Brookings Harbor, and not
unreasonably annoy, obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants of the Port of
Brookings Harbor, wherever located. Tenant must not create or maintain any nuisance or any
objectionable fumes, noise, or vibrations while using the Leased Premises.

6. Equipment. Tenant may install in the Leased Premises only such equipment as is customary
for the intended use and must not overload the floors or electrical circuits of the Leased
Premises or alter the plumbing or wiring of the Leased Premises, without the prior written
consent of Landlord. Landlord must approve, in advance, the location and manner of installing
any electrical, heat generating or communication equipment or exceptionally heavy articles.
Any egquipment installed by Tenant will remain Tenant’'s property and must be installed and
operated at Tenant's expense. Any air conditioning required because of heat generating
equipment or special fighting installed by Tenant must also be installed and operated at
Tenant's expense.

7. Sign. No signs, awnings, antennas, or other apparatus may be positioned as to be visible from
outside the Leased Premises without Tenant cbtaining Landlord’s prior written approval as to
design, size, location, and color. All signs installed by Tenant must comply with Landlord's
standards for signs, and all applicable codes and signs and sign hardware must be removed
upon termination of this lease with the sign location restored to its former state unless Landlord
elects to retain all or any portion thereof.

8. Utilities and Services. Landlord will furnish all ufilities up to the Leased Premises and Tenant
will be directly responsible for any and all electrical charges or fees for electrical service and
must make arrangements to be billed directly from the local electric co-op (Coos-Curry Electric
Cooperative, Inc.). Tenant must also make the necessary arrangements to have a meter
installed in the name of Tenant for billing purposes. Water and Sewer usage will be billed
separately. Tenant must comply with all government laws or regulations regarding the use or

Page 2 — LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial



reduction of use of utilities on the Leased Premises. Tenant is responsible for all waste
generated by the business and disposal of the waste. Unless caused by Landlord's negligence
or intentional act, the interruption, limitation, curtailment, or rationing of services or utilities may
not be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Tenant's use and possession of the Leased
Premises, render Landlord liable to Tenant for damages, or relieve Tenant from performance of
Tenant's abligations under this lease. Landlord must take all reasonable steps to correct any
interruption in service.

8. Maintenance and Repair — Tenant’s Obligations

d.

Tenant is at all times during the term of this lease, and at Tenant's sole cost and
expense, obligated fo keep the enfire of the Leased Premises and every part thereof in
good condition and repair; excepting ordinary wear and tear and damage to the Leased
Premises by earthquake, act of God, or the elements. Landlord has no obligation and
has made no promise fo alter, remodel, improve, repair, decorate, or paint the Leased
Premises or any part thereof. Landlord does have the right to erect scaffolding and
other apparatus necessary for the purpose of making repairs, and Landlord will have no
liability for interference with Tenant's use because of repairs and installations. Tenant
will have no claim against Landlord for any interruption or reduction of services or
interference with Tenant's occupancy, and no such interruption or reduction shall be
construed as a constructive or other eviction of Tenant.

Tenant will be responsible for any repairs necessitated by Tenant's breach of this lease
or the negligent or intentional acts of Tenant, its agents, employees, and invitees,
excepting repairs that would otherwise be the responsibility of Landlord under Section 10
or Section 15.

Tenant is responsible for all other repairs to the Leased Premises which Landlord is not
required to make under Section 10 or Section 15.

If Tenant fails to perform Tenant's obligations under this Section 8 or under any other
Section of this lease, Landlord may enter upon the affected portion of the Leased
Premises after ten (10) days' prior wriiten notice to Tenant (except in case of
emergency, in which no notice shall be required), perform such obligations on Tenant’s
behalf and put the Leased Premises in good order, condition and repair, and the cost
thereof together with interest thereon at the maximum rate then allowable by law will be
due and payable as additional rent to Landlord together with Tenant’s next base rent
installment.

On the last day of the term hereof, or upon any sooner termination, Tenant must
surrender the Leased Premises to Landlord in the same condition as received, ordinary
wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris. Any damage or deterioration of the
Leased Premises will not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if the same could have
been prevented by commercially reasonable maintenance practices. Tenant shall leave
the air-lines, power panels, electrical distribution systems, lighting fixtures, space
heaters, air conditioning, plumbing and fencing which were on the Leased Premises
prior to the commencement of the lease, in good operating condition.

10. Maintenance and Repair - Landlord’s Obligations. The following will be the responsibility of
Landlord:

a.
b.

Page 3 — LEASE

Provide adequate means of ingress and egress to the Leased Premises.

Repair and maintain any structural element of the space that does not meet the
definition of Major Damage as provided in Section 15, with respect to the Leased
Premises.

Tenant Initial POBH Initial



1. Alterations. Tenant must not make any alterations, additions, or improvements {o the Leased
Premises without Landlord’s prior written consent. Any such additions, alterations, or
improvements, except for removable machinery and trade fixtures, will at once become part of
the realty and belong to the Landlord. Landlord may at its option require that Tenant remove
any alterations and restore the Leased Premises to the criginal condition upon termination of
this lease. Landlord will have the right to approve the contractor used by Tenant for any work
oh the Leased Premises, and to post nolices of non-responsibility in connection with any work
being performed by Tenant in the Leased Premises.

12. Indemnity.

a. Tenant may not allow any liens to aitach to the Leased Premises or Tenant's interest in

the Leased Premises as a result of its activities. In the event that a materialman,
mechanic's, or cther lien is filed, or a claim of lien is made for wark claimed tc have been
done for Tenant, Landlord will have the option in its sole discretion to require Tenant to
post a Surety Bond within ten {10) days at Tenant's expense or to pay and discharge the
lien. Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord promptly upon demand. These Landiord
remedies are not exclusive as Landlord has other remedies as provided by law including
requiring Tenant ta pay for Landlord’s attarney’s fees and costs relating to any such lien.

. Except as otherwise stated herein, Tenant hereby waives all claims against Landlord for

damage to any property or injury, iliness, or death of any person in, upon, or about the
Leased Premises arising at any time and from any cause whatsoever other than by
reason of the willful act of Landlord, its officers, employees, invitees, licensees or
agents. Tenant must defend, indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any and all
claims or liability for damage to any property or injury, illness, or death of any person (a)
occurring in or on the Leased Premises or any part thereof arising at any time and from
any cause whatsoever other than by reason of the willful act of Landlord, its officers,
employees, invitees, licensees or agents; or (b) occurring in, on, or about any part of the
Leased Premises when such damage, injury, illness, or death was caused by the act,
negligence, omission, or fault of Tenant, its agents, servants, employees, invitees, or
licensees., Except as otherwise stated herein, Landlord will have no liability to Tenant
because of loss or damage caused by the acts or omissions of other tenants of
Landlord, or by third parties. The provisions of this paragraph will survive the
termination of this lease with respect to any damage, injury, illness, or death occurring
prior to such termination.

13. Insurance. During the initial term of this lease and any extension thereof, Tenant must comply
with the following insurance requirements:

a. General Liability. Tenant must carry commercial general liability insurance at least as

b.

C.

Page 4 — LEASE

broad as 1SO Form CG Q0 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products
and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal and advertising
injury with limits no less than $2 million per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies,
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project location (ISO CG 25
03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
Property. Tenant must carry property insurance against all risk of loss to any tenant
improvement or betterments, at full replacement cost with no coinsurance penaliy provision.
Workers’ Compensation. If Tenant has employees, Tenant must carry workers’
compensation insurance as required by State law and Employer's Liability Insurance with
limits of no less than $1 million per accident for bodily injury or disease.

Tenant Initial POBH Initial

M



14.

16.

d. Excess Coverage. If Tenant maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the
minimums shown above, Landlord will be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by Tenant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage will be available to Landlord.

e. Additional Insureds. The Port of Brookings Harbor, its officers, officials, employees, and
agents are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability
arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Tenant including
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General
liability coverage can be provide in the form of an endorsement of the lessee's insurance (at
least as broad as |SO Form CG 20 10).

f. Certificates of Coverage. Tenant must furnish certificates of insurance to Port's General
Manager, P.O. Box 848, Brookings, Oregon 97415 certifying the existence of such
insurance no later than five (5) days prior to commencement of this lease. Each insurance
policy required by this clause must be endorsed to state that coverage will not be
suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or limits or not renewed without
fourteen (14) days advance written notice to the Landlord and Landlord’s agent, if any, and
a renewal certificate must be furnished at least 14 days prior to the expiration of any policy.

g. Primary Insurance. The insurance required herein will be primary and without right of
contribution from other insurance that may be in effect and without subordination. Any other
insurance carried by the Landlord is excess. The insurance policies must be underwritten
by a company licensed in the state of Oregon, and carry a minimum Best's rating of “A-VI” or
better.

h. Lapse of Policy. If Tenant's policies lapse or are canceled at any time during the term of
this Coniract, Landlord will have the right to immediately terminate Tenant’s lease until such
insurance requirements have been fully satisfied by Tenant. Tenant will be responsible to
Landlord, and must reimburse and hold Landlord harmless for any bodily injury, fire or
property damage not covered by Tenant's insurance.

Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord will not be liable
for injury to Tenant's business or any loss of income therefrom or for damage to the goods,
wares, merchandise or other property of Tenant, Tenant's employees, invites, customers, or any
other person in or about the Leased Premises or the Port, nor will Landlord be liable for injury to
the person of Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or
injury is caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the
breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defects of pipes, wires or lighting fixtures, or from any
other cause, whether said damage or injury results from conditions arising upon the Leased
Premises or upon other premises of the Port, or from other sources or places and regardless of
whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible
to Tenant. Landlord will not be liable for any damages arising from any act or neglect of any
other tenant, occupant or user of the Port, nor from the failure of Landlord to enforce the
provisions of any other lease of the Port.

Major Damage. Major damage means damage by fire or other casualty {o the Leased Premises
that causes the Leased Premises or any substantial portion of the Leased Premises to be
unusable. In the event that major damage occurs without negligence or willful misconduct of
Tenant or its employees, agents, or licensees, then either Landlord or Tenant may elect to
terminate this lease by providing written notice to the other party within thirty (30) days after the
occurrence of the damage. [f this lease is not terminated following major damage, or if damage
occurs that is not major damage, Landlord must promptly restore the Leased Premises to the
condition existing just prior to the damage, with the exception of damage to Tenant
improvements. Restoration of any Tenant improvements or alterations installed by Tenant, and

Page 5 — LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

<SS



16.

17.

18.

19.

the costs thereof, will be the responsibility of the Tenant. Rent will be reduced from the date of
damage until the date restoration work being performed by the Landlord is substantially
complete, with the reduction to be in proportion to the area of the Leased Premises not useable
by Tenant.

Waiver of Subrogation. Tenant will be responsible for insuring its personal property and trade
fixtures located on the Premises and any alterations or Tenant improvements it has made to the
Premises. Neither Landlord nor Tenant will be liable to the other for any loss or damage caused
by any of the risks that are or could be covered by a standard all risk insurance policy with the
extended coverage endorsement, or for any business interruption. There may be no subrogated
claims by one party’s insurance carrier against the other party arising out of any loss.

Eminent Domain. If a condemning authority takes title by eminent domain or by agreement in
lieu thereof to the entire Leased Fremises or a portion sufficient to render the Leased Premises
unsuitable for Tenant's use, then either party may elect to terminate this lease effective on the
date that possession is taken by the condemning authority; provided, however, that a condition
to the exercise by Tenant of such right to terminate will be that the portion of the Leased
Premises taken must be of such extent and nature as to substantially handicap, impede, or
impair Tenant's use of the balance of the Leased Premises for the purpose intended. Rent will
be reduced for the remainder of the term in an amount proportionate to the reduction in area of
the Leased Premises caused by the taking. All condemnation proceeds will belong to Landlord,
and Tenant will have no claims against Landlord or the condemnation award because of the
taking.

Assignment and Subletting. This lease binds and inures to the benefit of the parties, their
respective heirs, successors, and assigns, provided that Tenant may not assign its interest
under this lease or sublet all or any portion of the Leased Premises without first obtaining
Landlord’s consent in writing. This provision applies to all transfers by operation of law including
but not limited to mergers and changes in control of Tenant. No assignment may relieve Tenant
of its obligation to pay rent or perform other obligations required by this lease and no consent to
one assignment or subletting may be deemed consent to any further assignment or subletting.
Tenant will pay any costs incurred by Landlord in connection with a request for assignment or
subletting, including reasonable attorney's fees.

Default.
a. Any of the following constitute a default by Tenant under this lease:

1. Tenant’s failure to pay rent or any other charge under this lease within ten (10)
days after it is due, or failure to comply with any other term or condition within
twenty (20) days following written notice from Landlord specifying the
noncompliance. If such noncompliance cannot be cured within the 20-day
pericd, this provision will be satisfied if Tenant commences corrective action
within such period and thereafter proceeds in good faith and with reasonable
diligence to effect compliance as soon as possible. Time is of the essence of this
lease.

2. Tenant's insolvency, business failure or assignment for the benefit of its
creditors. Tenant's commencement of proceedings under any provision of any
bankruptcy or insolvency law or failure to obtain dismissal of any petition filed
against it under such laws within the time required to answer, or the appointment
of a receiver for Tenant's property.

Page 6 —LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial

So



3. Assignment or subletting by Tenant in violation of this lease.

4. Vacation or abandonment of the Leased Premises for more than three (3)
months without the written consent of Landlord.

5. If this lease is levied upon under any attachment or execution and such
attachment or execution is not vacated within ten (10) days.

6. If the Tenant fails to comply with any other requirements or obligations under this
lease.

20. Remedies for Default. In case of default as described in Section 19 above, Landlord will have
the right to the following remedies, which are intended to be cumulative and in addition to any
other remedies provided under applicable law.

a. Landlord may . terminate the lease and reenter, retake possession of the Leased
Premises, and remove any persons or property by legal action or by self-help with the
use of reasonable force and without ligbility for damages. Following such retaking of
possession, efforts by Landlord to relet the Leased Premises will be sufficient if Landlord
follows its usual procedures for finding tenants for the Leased Premises at rates not less
than the current rates for other comparable space on Port property. If Landlord has
other vacant space available, prospective tenants may be placed in such other space
without prejudice to Landlord’s claim to damages to loss of rentals from Tenant.

b. Landiord may recover all damages caused by Tenant’s default, which include an amount
equal to rent lost because of the default and all attorney's fees and costs. Landlord may
sue periodically to recover damages as they occur throughout the lease term, and no
action for accrued damages will bar a later action for damages subsequently accruing.
Landlord may elect in any one action to recover accrued damages plus damages
attributable through the remaining term of the lease. Such damages will be measured
by the difference between the rent under this lease and the reasonable rental value of
the Leased Premises for the remainder of the term, discounted to the time of judgment
at the prevailing interest rate on judgments.

C. Landlord may make any payment or perform any obligation that Tenant has failed to
perform, in which case Landlord will be entitled to recover from Tenant upon all demand
all amounts so expended plus interest from the date of the expenditure at the rate of one
and cne-half percent (1.5%) per month. Any such payment or performance by Landlord
will not waive Tenant's default.

21, Regulations. Landlord will have the right (but not the obligation) to make, revise, and enforce
commercially reasonable regulations or policies consistent with this lease for the purpose of
promoting safety, order, economy, cleanliness, and good service to all tenants of the Landlord,
provided that if Landlord passes a regulation or policy that interferes with Tenant's quist
enjoyment or unreasonably interferes with Tenant's use of the Leased Premises, then Tenant
may terminate this lease. All such regulations and policies must be complied with as if part of
this lease.

22, Access. During times, other than normal business hours, Tenant's officers and employees or
those having business with Tenant may be required to identify themselves or show passes in
order to gain access to the Leased Premises. In such event, Landlord will have no liability for
permitting or refusing to permit access to anyone. With reasonable notice to Tenant, Landlord
will have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at any time by passkey or otherwise to
determine Tenant's compliance with this lease, to perform necessary services, maintenance
and repairs to the Leased Premises, or to show the Leased Premises to any prospective tenant
or purchasers. Except in cases of emergency, such entry will be with at least 24 hours prior

Page 7 - LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial



23.

24,

25,

26.

27,

28.

29.

notice and at such times and in such manner as to minimize interference with the reasonable
business use of the Leased Premises by Tenant.

Notices. Notices to the parties relating to the lease must be in writing, effective when delivered,
or if mailed, effective on the second day following mailing, postage prepaid, to the address for
the party stated in this lease or to such other address as either party may specify by notice to
the other. Notice to Tenant may always be delivered to the Leased Premises. Rent will be
payable to Landlord at the same address and in the same manner, but will be considered paid
only when received.

Subordination. This lease will be subject and subordinate to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or
land sale contracts (hereafter collectively referred to as encumbrances) now existing against the
Leased Premises. At Landlord’s option this lease will be subject and subordinate to any future
encumbrance hereafter placed against the Leased Premises (including the underiying land) or
any modifications of existing encumbrances. Tenant must execute such documents as may
reasonably be requested by Landlord or the holder of the encumbrance to evidence this
subordination.

Transfer of Premises. If the Leased Premises is sold or otherwise transferred by Landlord or
any successor, Tenant will attorn to the purchaser or transferee and recognize it as the landlord
under this lease, and, provided the purchaser assumes al! obligations hereunder, the Landlord
(transferor) will have no further liability hereunder.

Estoppel. Either party will within twenty (20) days after notice from the other party execute,
acknowledge and deliver to the other party a ceriificate reciting: whether or not this lease has
been modified and is in full force and effect; whether there are any modifications or alleged
breaches by the other party; the dates to which rent has been paid in advance, and the amount
of any security deposit or prepaid rent; and any other facts that may be reasonably requested.
Failure to deliver the certificate within the specified time will be conclusive upen the party of
whom the certificate was requested that the lease is in full force and effect and has not been
modified except as may be represented by the party requesting the certificate. If requested by
the holder of any encumbrance or any ground lessor, Tenant will agree to give such holder or
lessor notice of and an opportunity to cure any default by Landlord under this lease.

Attorney’s Fees. In the event, any action, suit, or other proceeding is instituted by either party
to this lease to enforce any provision of this lease or any matter arising therefrom or to interpret
any provision of this lease, the prevailing party will be entitied to an award of reasonable
attorney’'s fees and costs of suit, including expert witness fees. [n the event, any such action,
suit, or other proceeding is appealed to any higher court or courts, the prevailing party will be
entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees and costs for prosecuting or defending such
appeal or appeals, in addition to the reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in the lower court, or
courts.

Quiet Enjoyment. Landlord warrants that so long as Tenant complies with all material terms of
this lease, Tenant is entitled to peaceable and undisturbed possession of the Leased Premises
free from any eviction or disturbance by Landlord. Landlord will have no liability to Tenant for
loss or damages arising out of the acts of other tenants of Port property or third parties, nor any
liability for any reason which exceeds the value of its interest in the Leased Premises.

Complete Agreement. This lease and the attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement of
the parties and supersede all prior written and oral agreements and representations. Neither

Page 8 — LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial



30,

3.

32,

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Landlord nor Tenant is relying on any representations other than those expressly set forth
herein. Any modification to this lease must be in writing and signed by both parties.

Nonwaiver. Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision of this lease may not
be deemed a waiver of or prejudice of the party's right to require strict performance of the same
provision in the future or of any other provision.

Real Property Taxes.

a. Payment of Taxes. Tenant must pay all real and perscnal real property taxes, if any,
applicable to Tenant's portion of the use and possession of the Leased Premises,
b. Additional Improvements. Tenant will be responsible for paying any increase in real

property tax specified in the Tax Assessor's records and work sheets caused by
additional improvements placed upon the Leased Premises by Tenant or by Landlord for
use by Tenant.

C. Definition of “Real Property Tax”. As used herein, the term “real property tax” includes
any form of real estate tax or assessment, general, special, ordinary or exiraordinary,
and any license fee, commercial rental tax, improvement bond or bonds, levy or tax
(other than inheritance, personal income or estate taxes) imposed on the Port or any
portion thereof by any autharity having the direct or indirect power to tax, including any
city, county, state or federal government, or any school, agricultural, sanitary, fire, street,
drainage or other improvement district thereof.

Severability. The invalidity of any provision of this lease as determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction, may in no way affect the validity of any other provisions herein.

Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the obligations to be performed under
this lease.

Security Measures. Each party acknowledges that they have no obligation whatsoever to
provide guard service or other security measures for the benefit of the other party or their
property. Each party assumes full responsibility for the protection of itself, its agents and
invitees and its property from acts of third parties. Nothing herein contained prevents Landlord,
at Landlord’s sole option from providing security protection for the Port or any part thereof.

No Warranties. The Leased Premises are leased “as-is” and in their current condition as of the
first day of the lease term. No warranties, express or implied, are provided by Landlord
regarding the condition or fitness for purpose of the Leased Premises.

Parking. Landlord does not assign any specific parking spaces to Tenant under this lease.
Tenant and Tenant's employees and invitees are permitted to use any un-restricted Port public
parking areas.

Headings. The headings in this lease are for the convenience of the parties only and are not to
be used in the interpretation of its provisions.

IN WITNESS, WHEREQF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this lease as of the
last date written below.

Page 9 — LEASE Tenant Initial . POBH Initial



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR, El Cazadores
L.andlord Cendi Olmedo and Javier Olmedo
Dated: Dated:
By: By:
Name:

ATTEST: Its: Member / Owner
Mailing Address: Mailing Address:

P.O. Box 848

Brookings, OR 97415
Phane: 541-469-2218 Phone: 541-254-1096s
Fax: Fax :

Page 10 — LEASE Tenant Initial POBH Initial




Asphalt parking Lease for El Cazadores

i & Legend
0

v Cazadores Mexican

&» El Cazadores asphalt parking lease
?  Portside Suites

Pajlside:SLiles!

v




Exhibit 2

3,750 Sq Ft asphalt parking area

oL



e Ang,/ P27 2.2 ad

> L/@Q.,du) %‘ /OM zq/ éw

| Ro: Ousdin,. Jéfamgﬁ,/mmé e/

IJM(’MMwé m /2/:/ LA féﬁwf‘i’f

,L

’Jaa/m;’w ALsA 0. Aa ot ,A,% Mﬂl&-z
€378 ‘l. A, V.‘O_’/Lfaﬁa‘d—/\,z_adé 20 ' /oazg;e_.
| ,J/J@M “Z,c/g_, {*::fé_u a,_/ﬂ,,sJJ éd—ﬂ-/L/OL o e
Nasreily Bned £dss togat ol fe oo K

féda_ b, thTits ook pora, B Srndoria P
WWWWM ALt #Mﬁ«ﬁ?mw/'
”Mﬂ Neprieces s Q{o/ﬂu) xﬁﬂfé{,z/g

WM M%WM /Mub%ﬁtﬁww

l‘ﬁ& ?ﬁ_z:tfi ém:c/ AQQLMM,@% gﬂmﬂfﬁz/” Qoo
Il

_ Le/e Mﬁdi@bdm £ Lo M{/}C&ZL’- et
&Céﬁﬁﬁﬂ{f}t&?’ Ad g _Jacal @e{xiw

___:lj‘%mﬂ_ ,éieiﬁ,M¢,¢céoa czﬁ@f-a&;ﬂa’éo Az ael A N oL

_ Aqleped ; ?ﬁ# st
|i ﬂ/ﬂ W e )b ?QJNJ f%”“/'fa/mecb
1 B { S M avn e &ﬁﬁ 8 mmw&ffﬂ’ﬂﬁ OJQC %0%




RESTRICTED USE
APPRAISAL REPORT
OF
The Port of Brookings Harbor Ownership Known As
Curry County Map and Tax Lot 41-13-08A-400-27

LOCATED AT
Behind Cazadores Mexican Restaurant
16218 Lower Harbor Road
Brookings, Oregon 97415

PREPARED FOR

Travis Webster
Acting Port Manager
16330 Lower Harbor Road
Brookings, Oregon 97415

PREPARED BY

Jeffrey L. Marineau, MAI
Marineau and Associates
P. O. Box 1017
Coos Bay, Oregon 97420

Date of Value as of November 10, 2022

Our File # CYB-509

L4



Client of the
Report:

Subject Parcel:

Property Owner:

Purpose of the
Appraisal:

Intended Users:
Intended Use:

Estate Appraised:

Prior Services
Disclosure:

Competency:

Scope of Work:

PROPERTY APPRAISAL INFORMATION

The Port of Brookings Harbor, Attn: Travis Webster

0.09 acres of Land, a portion of Curry County Map and Tax Lot 41-13-08A-400,
Cazadores Restaurant Parking Lot in Brookings, Oregon 97415

The Port of Brookings Harbor

To provide an opinion of the Fee Simple interest for potential sale negotiations.
The Port of Brookings Harbor and-or assigns.
To provide an opinion of the Fee Simple interest for potential sale negotiations.

Fee Simple

Marineau and Associates has performed no services, as an appraiser or in any
other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the
three year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment.

There is information in the Addenda section of this report that lists the
qualifications of Jeffrey L. Marineau, MAT, and the author of this report. Mr.
Marinean’s experience includes over 50 years of experience as an appraiser in
Oregon, which includes experience in the valuation and evaluation of offices,
commercial, industrial, residential, timberland, and agricultural properties.

Zachary R. Johnson, under the supervision of Jeffrey I.. Marinean, MAI, assisted
in the following categories described in QAR 161-025-0030(%)(a): “(A) define the
appraisal problem; (B) conduct a preliminary analysis, select and collect
applicable data; (C) conduct an analysis of the subject property; (D) conduct
highest and best use analysis; (E) estimate land value, including on-site
improvements; (F) estimate value of the property using the three approaches to
value — cost, a sales comparison and income capitalization [as applicable]; (&)
reconcile each value indication and reconcile the final value estimate; and (H)
report estimate(s) of value(s) as defined.”

This is a restricted format report, and the report may not contain supporting
rationale for all of the opinions and conclusions set forth in the report. Jeffrey L.
Matineau personally inspected the subject parcel on November 10, 2022, The
property valuation has a valuation date of November 10, 2022, the date when the
subject parcel was viewed and photographed. We bave researched the local
marketplace in order to find sale comparables sufficient to value the subject parcel
and, unless specifically noted otherwise, each sale comparable has been confirmed
through county deed records or a real estate listing service, and through a party to the
transaction or a representative or agent thereof. In order to arrive at the value
opinion of this report, we have developed the Sales Comparison Approach in this
analysis. The omission of the Cost Approach and the Income Approach does not

Marineau and Associates

2 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022
)




reduce the credibility of the value estimate. The Sales Compatison Approach is
congidered appropriate due to the quantity and quality of the data. The Income
Approach is an important element of income producing property, but it is not a
common measure of value for vacant land and it is not necessary to develop a
credible value conclusion. A Cost Approach has not been included because there
are no improvements on the vacant land other than asphalt pavement, nor is it
necessary to produce a credible value estimate. The results of our analysis are
reported within this appraisal report that has been written to conform with the
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) Standards 2-2 (a)
and the Interagency Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines. No FExtraordinary
Assumptions or Hypothetical Conditions have been employed in the writing of this

: appraisal.

Current Market

Trends: The last several years have seen an uptrend in residential property values and this
has resulted in significant increases in property values of all types. Population
growth trends continue to be positive. Increases in property values are possible
in the next several years, although higher interest rates will, in my opinion,
begin to slow down price increases going forward.

Exposure Time: 12 to 18 months of exposure to the market.

STATEMENT OF ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

The appraisal report is subject to the following limiting conditions. The report is not to be relied upon
unless the conditions are also accepted:

Ordinary Assumptions

Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated. A
Preliminary Title Report was not made available for this report. It is assumed that there are no
exceptions, exclusions and stipulations that substantially affect the Fee Simple valuation of the
subject parcel. A title company should be consulted if there are questions regarding the legal
description.

That there is legal access to the property through Port of Brookings Harbor adjacent ownership.
The property is appraised free and clear of any or all liens, easements or encumbrances unless
otherwise stated.

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may
not be present on the property, was not observed by the appraisers. The appraisers have no
knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property. The appraisers, however, are
not qualified to detect such substances. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea-
formaldehyde foam insulation, lead-based paints and other potentially hazardous materials may
affect the value of the property. The value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there
are no such materials on or in the property that would cause a Joss in value. No responsibility is
assumed for such conditions. If the client has any questions as to hazardous materials, an
independent expert or an engineer should be consulted.

It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and
restrictions unless nonconformity has been identified, described, and considered in the appraisal
report.

Assuming cash or cash equivalent terms for the subject valuation.

Marineau and Associates 3 CYB-509 —November 10, 2022




Assuming 12 to 18 months of open matket exposure.

Limiting Conditions

1. Information, estimates or opinions that are furnished to the appraisers, which may be contained
in this report, were obtained from sources considered reliable and believed correct. If the client
has any question regarding this information, it is the client’s responsibility to seck whatever
independent verification is deemed necessary.

2 Any maps or sketches, which may be attached to this report, are included to assist the reader in
visualizing the property. Area calculations are approximate, and if there are any questions as to
their accuracy, the client should have an independent expert verify the information utilized for
this repott.

3. A survey of the property has been provided to the appraisers, and noted in the report. If the
survey is not accurate, the valuation could be affected.

4. The appraisal report has been prepared for the exclusive benefit of the client and the client’s
assigns. It may not be used or relied upon by any other party. Any party or parties, who use or
rely upon any information in this report, without the preparer’s written consent, do so at their
own risk.

5. No right to testimony is included in this appraisal, unless previous agreements have been made.
None is proposed in this instance.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

Property

Identification.: Cazadores Mexican Restaurant Parking I.ot, Brookings, Oregon 97415, also
identified as Curry County Map and Tax Lot 41-13-08A-400-27. This proposed
partition is a small portion of Curry County Map and Tax Lot 41-13-08A-400.

Property: The subject parcel (owned by The Port of Brookings Harbor) is 0.09 acres adjacent
to other port owned lands. The land is zoned Industrial with no improvements other
than asphalt paving with (8) marked parking stalls. The site is located in the Lower
Harbor area along with the marina, restaurants, RV parks, and other water related
uses. All regular utility services are available to the subject parcel which includes
public power, sewer, water, and legal access is assumed through the adjacent Port
of Brookings praperty.

Land Size: The subject proposed partition is 4,000 square feet, or 0.09 acre based on the
survey provided.

Zone: The industrial zone () is intended to provide for urban industrial uses. This zone
is intended to be applied only within urban growth boundaries identified by the
Comprehensive Plan. Ouiright legal uses include retail or service establishment
including the outright storage of heavy equipment or materials; automobile or
truck service station, building material storage yard, tire retreading or vulcanizing
shop, wholesale trucking and storage establishment, machine shop, and
manufacturing, processing, assembling or fabricating plants, except those

Marineau and Associates 4

CYB-509 — November 10, 2022 LD

2



specifically listed in Section 3.183 but not inclnding processing facilities for the
processing of offshore oil, gas, or marine resources.

Flood Zone: The subject parcel is located outside of any federally identified Flood Hazard
Zones as evidenced by panel 41015C1242F effective on 11/16/2018.

— L W LT

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMetle #rava Lagend

PTG OGO WP L ErpOh e 5. 401 12 °F 43

P -
A Chiincn Fiotd HaZind, Ara
i B i poust Motd Wt irerags
1 A, i St 814 ot o with dabriage
= I-- " 3 i e b o e ThAA Al UL B T T
o= ahieg Fitur Con 8U0cm 1% Aedusl
Lt NETET ohpnrfiond Hurhed tars
1 grcid dpehwis Remcd food Mk dua i
ORER ARELY oF | 7 bamn, Sea Rotai et
| af
e oy e s o Minkeral FRAGA HALhrll 2w b
murn
aeeaAL |- —== Chiamsl, Curiel, o Sicim Somat
SHRUCIURES f1 141691 Laves, Dond. 04 Mot
)M Crots Secuons with 15 Armiusl [1ao0k
2L wam Eatare Bitn
-~ CAmtNDmaa
— tv— Bt Ficcd Ebvazion Una (BFE)
B L8 Sty
44— o Comatal Tratct Bamelng
OTHEN |« prctin Aurtna
FEATURES | jpoveprapne Festwn
I OxgraDita Asadub "
| T o migs Bas Kewnintin %
¥ HAP PARELS | \rmeprrd
, Tra pin oristeyrd an M s W in Bppetucomaie

aiod Luitnt by o b B B Sk PHETHRECL
0 ainPeitativd prdgieety Kation.

‘Tl e complis whA FLALEY erdiedd o v 080
AgTtal St g I 1 18 12 Yo 4 DM b,
st ray

)

Iy VEMA. Tai3 mag
wak gLsorad e L1007 1 P33 ol a

el i
RTSron Lipe ruee kg s 2503 i Bard,

o o b,
i, B LK. TS CTOACH N4, CAMTmily Kiyeiiiart,

-
— 1:6,000

vy
e L

Site Improvements: Asphalt paving with eight (8) on-site striped parking spaces, an amenity to the
property.

Assessment Data:  Per Curry County Assessor records, the total Real Market Value for the proposed
Jand partition is $29,830 and the assessed value is $28,180. The 2021/2022 tax
liability is $162.

Sales History: The Port of Brookings Harbor has owned the land for many years and no arm’s
length market conveyances have been recorded on the subject parcel in the last
three years. The subject parcel was formerly leased for $219/month to the
adjacent Cazadores Restaurant beginning in 2003, however the lease has been
dissolved prior to the effective date of this appraisal. The property is not actively
listed for sale and no unsolicited offers are known, other than the purpose of this

appraisal.

Highest and Best

Use: If vacant, the property could be developed for marine related uses.
If Improved:

1. Legally- The I (Industrial) zoning permits the use of a marine related use.

Marineaun and Associates 5 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022 (_B



2. Physically Possible- The construction of a marine related structure is
physically possible, and appropriate for the property.

3. Financial Feasibility and Marketability- The subject’s close proximity to
the Brookings harbor is a good location for marine related activities. The
structure could be leased to various marine related tenants, which we believe
the property to be highly marketable in this location.

Conclusion of Highest and Best Use “As Improved”- As improved, the
construction of a marine related structure (such as boat storage) in this location, to
be leased or sold, would maximize the value of the subject property.

Marineau and Associates

6 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022 (&



Assessor Plat Map (An Approximate Location)

whve cm i er v o o

e st e

1" = 200'

Subject Proposed Partition |

SEE MAP 41S 13W 05DC__.~

.

N.E.1/4 SEC.8 T.41S. R.13W. W.M.
CURRY COUNTY

SEE MAP 41S 13W 05DD

.o'/ I 4 -~
- \_/ ," oty
” P > -
" et o
= o3 P ‘“"-; | 2
g s : 5\ 7e A 1T
- 402 . PR\ TS
A 11111 2
- { ""’1—'-3§AE.__ES_4__——I . "Tzﬁ—_“'s‘a;""-‘-ﬁnf- m
= " - o Y. 527 :
o “ 2810 [ : . ,\\«?' \ 400 5 HssOW 55'1‘. _
A100  ? e 864AC % smee  BE -7
. VAGATED COUNTY \ 4. 502756 - =
§ ROAD NG 2874 \ \ 5 N1TTZOW Lt P
| e \ - -

The red dotted lines represent the approximate subject parcel lines.

Marineau and Associates 7

CYB-509 — November 10, 2022

10



Subject Property Survey Map

EXISTING
RESTAURANT

Marineau and Associates

CYB-509 — Navember 10, 2022

1



PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE SUBJECT PARCEL
Photos taken November 10, 2022

i »

Looking south at the subject parcel.

A view of the subject parcel looking north.

Marineau and Associates 9 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022

L



PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE SUBJECT PARCEL

Photos taken November 10, 2022

Another southerly locking view from the north end of the subject parcel with the adjacent Port of
Brookings property beyond the fence in the background.

Looking west at the subject’s current ingress/egress.

Marineau and Assaciates 10 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022

RE



PROPERTY VALUATION — APPRAISAL PROCESS

Appraisal Type: Restricted Appraisal Report.

Interest Appraised: Market Value ‘As Vacant’ of the Fee Simple Estate.
Date of Valuation: November 10, 2022
Date of Inspection: November 10, 2022

Date of Report: November 11, 2022

Definition of Market Value

Market Value means the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open
market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and
knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition are
the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under
conditions whereby:

e Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

e Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own best
interest;

e A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

e Payment is made in terms of cash in United States dollars or in terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and

¢ The price represents a normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special ot
creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.

* This definition is from regulations published by federal regulatory agencies pursuant to Title XTI of the Financial Institutions
Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) of 1989 between July 5, 1990, and August 24, 1990, by the Federal
Reserve Systems (FRS), Nationa! Credit Union Administration (NCUA), Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the
Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS), and the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (OCC). This definition is also referenced
in regulations jointly published by the OCC, OTS, FRS, and FDIC on June 7, 1994, and in the Interagency Appraisal and
Evaluation Guidelines, dated October 27, 1994,

VYaluation Approaches

Generally, three standard approaches to value are analyzed and these methods utilize information
gathered from the local real estate market. The Cost Approach is defined as that approach in appraisal
analysis which is based on the fact that an informed purchaser would pay no more than the cost of
producing a substitute with the same utility as the subject parcel. The Income Approach to Value is that
procedure in an analysis which converts anticipated income to be derived from the ownership of
property into a value estimate. The Sales Comparison Approach is an analysis which is based on the idea
that an informed purchaser would pay no more for a property than the cost of acquiring an existing
property with the same utility. The Reconciliation Analysis is an evaluation process where the
appraiser carcfully evaluates the value indication from each of the approaches. The strengths and
weaknesses of each approach, as used, are discussed. The applicability of each method is weighted to
establish a single defensible final value estimate.

Marineau and Associates 11 CYDB-509 — November 10, 2022

-



We have developed only the Sales Comparison Approach in this analysis. The omission of the Cost
Approach and the Income Approach does not reduce the credibility of the value estimate. The Sales
Comparison Approach is considered appropriate due to the quantity and quality of the data. The Income
Approach js an important element of income producing property, but it is not a common measure of
value for vacant land, and it is not necessary to develop a credible value conclusion. A Cost Approach
has not been included because there are no improvements on the vacant land other than asphalt paving,
nor is it necessary to produce a credible value estimate. Therefore, the Sales Comparison Approach has
been used to value the subject 4,000 square foot parcel.

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

Introduction

In the Sales Comparison Approach, the subject parcel is compared to similar properties that have sold
recently or for which listing prices or offering figures are known. Data for generally comparable
properties is used, and comparisons are made to demonstrate a probable price at which the subject parcel
would be sold, if offered on the market.

Market Sales

A thorough sales secarch was conducted in the Brookings/Harbor market area in an effort to find
meaningful sales data that could be compared to the subject parcel. The market variable analyzed is the
Dollar Per Square Foot ($/SF) indicator. This unit of comparison is often used by owner investors
interested in acquiring land as an investment property. Generally, as the overall quality of a property
and desirability of its location increases, the market value on a dollar per square foot basis tends to
increase as well. All market data is summarized in the following table:

SALES COMPARISON SUMMARY OF COMMERCIAL LAND

! Area
Sale[ ; : in | Areain Price |
No. | Date iZ{mingi Total Price | Type|Acres; SF | Per ST Comments

l § AN11/22 | ¢3 !'§ 116,000 | Land! 0.14: 6,098 | § 19.02 |41-13-05CB-5000 | RalphA Dusre to
“ | 19 DOM i i ' ' o %ﬁ}ﬁcmlocl{ 8 Eric & Pamela Jacobsen
Verified with Aaron Rian, Listing Agent | i | i Brookings, Curry County, Oregon !

2 | 7p3B1 | C4 S 80,000 | Laud] 028] 12,197[$ 6.56(41-13-06BC-1800 | Amin Maheshkumar to
; 1 DOM ! l = i = == I ' 0 Ch' o Avenue . ' Sar_]u&PayalPatel
Verified with Ruth Wilson, Buyer's Agent ! - Brookings, Curry Cownty, Oregon

3 [ 11520 | €3 |$ 145,000 | Land| 0.18] 7841 § 18.49 [41-13-05CB-4600 "Robert & Robin Snazuk to
Ty IDOM e h L— | ' | — 542 ﬁa‘{mé’édﬁtleet I TmyM AIvanado
Verified with Matthew Waegner, Llstmg Agcm .. ' | | Bmc)kmgs, Curry County, OlegoH o
Subject: | | Land’ 0.09 4,000 | “[#i-13 08 A-400-27 "Port of Brookings Harbor

|

! ! [ i f - R - B{ue Watm Pa1kmg Lot _
i . | | | ' Brookings, Curry County, Oregon |

Marineau and Associates 12 CYB-509 — Navember 10, 2022

s



Location Map of Comparable Land Sales

Rancom Ave = b Ranisam A\'e_ % = L
# : g ? 2 4
50k Sale 2 i A R §
0 Chetco Ave g ¢ n ¢
[asy §t 7 Eawst o3 &
. E 8
- " : S
5 E M Iw-l"“'\"“ % el
& 08
e o
® Sale 3
Moare 81 B 1 542 Railroad St Sale 1 Bishop Creek
|r"|m " il §) ™| 531 Hemlock St
rls 1 ) ; ’ 1
é n

Q

5 " =
. fgllein Ronaei Lu 2 Brookings 3 e :
I &g v gy -
s 2 Birch §1 7
o™ g % %
LS 8 Mmpest g %_‘
5 g 5 9 8 Ntauls %\; 5
M| R e 5 2 5 E 5 Hazel &
2Zwagg lsland Table Rock I a g
- \ é Memary Lo N i
] BT =
DiveriRock: 2

Mussel Rock

L)

Analysis

The comparables presented above are average to good quality commercial vacant land parcels located in
Brookings. The above sales fall within the sale price range of $80,000 to $145,000 and a price per unit
range of $6.56 - $19.02 per square foot. Sale 1 is superior in size and located on a corner lot with adjacent
off-street parking. Sale 2 is superior in size but situated in an inferior Jocation on the north end of Brookings
with sloped topography. Sale 3 is also superior in size, with level tapography in close proximity to off-street
parking. The subject parcel is smaller and would likely fall in the mid-range of closed sales, based upon
current market conditions, overall good topography, and location off Lower Harbor Road.

Tn conclusion, a market value for the subject of $13.00 per square foot is believed to be appropriate for the
subject parcel. This is based on the location, level topography, good access, and amenities.

Market Value = $13.00 per Square Foot

The 4,000 square foot parcel is valued at $13.00 per square foot, or $52,000

Marineau and Associates 13 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022

o



VALUE ESTIMATE VIA THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

A market value of $13.00 per square foot has been selected for the subject parcel. The indicated value for
the subject parcel via the Sales Comparison Approach is developed in the following mathematical display:

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH
Onerall Prfes PerSquare®od — | eaics et
- 41-13-08A-400-27 4,000 13 13.00 | § 52,000
Tatal O ; | I'$ 52,000
oAl LE B thie Sa123 Compinison Aggroach | it %000

In conclusion, the current 'as is' market value of the Fee Simple estate of the subject parcel, in light of

market conditions in effect on November 10, 2022, as indicated through the use of the Sales Comparison
Approach to Value, is $52,000.

- FIFTY-TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ---
VALUE BY THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH  $52,000

Marineau and Associates 14 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022

M



CERTIFICATION OF THE APPRAISER

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
The statementis of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and
limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions,
and conclusions.

I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and have
no personal interest concerning the parties involved,

I have no bias concerning the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved
with this assignment.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined
resulls.

My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or
reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the
amount of value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent
eveni directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.

The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by
its duly authorized representatives.

As of the date of this report, Jeffrey L. Marineau, MAI has completed the continuing education
program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute.

My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in
conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP),

I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.
Marineau and Associates has performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity,

regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the three years immediately
preceding acceptance of this assignment.

Zachary R. Johnson provided significant professional assistance in the preparation of this report to

the person signing this reporf.
November 11, 2022

Jeffrey L. Marineau, MAI Date
License# C000029 Expires: 4/30/2024

Marineau and Associates 15 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022




ol i 3]
! JEFFREY L MARINEAU

Marineau and Assoclales
510 HIGHLAND AVENUE

COOS BAY, OR 87420

Appraiser Certification and Licensure Board

State Certified General Appraiser i
28 hours of continuing educelion reqtired

License No.: C000029
Issue Date; May 01, 2022
Explration Date: Aprll 30, 2024

Ghad Koch, Administrator

-

Marineau and Associates

16 CYB-509 - November 10, 2022

jO\



QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

Education

Jeffrey L. Marineau, MAT
STATE CERTIFIED APPRAISER #C000029; Expiration April 30, 2024

Graduate of the University of Oregon, Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration ~ Real Estate Msgjor, 1973

Appralsal Institute:

Course 1-Part A

Course 1-Part B

Course 11

Litigation Veluation
Market Analysis 3
Standards of Professional
Practice, Port A (USPAP):
Stendards of Professional
Practice, Part B (420)
Condemnation Appraising
Course SE710 i
Condemnation Appraising
Course SE720 J

Seminars:

Americans w/Disabilities Act ~ 1992

Cash Flow Analysis - 1989

Hazardous Wastes & Toxic Materials - 1989
Real Estate Risk Analysis — 1989

Mineral Valuation - 1990

UCMTAR Fomm - 1989

Legal/Professional Topics — 2003

UBPAP Update —2006

Oregon Wetlands — 2001

Federal Land Acquisition — 2002 and 2007
Uncertainties of Measure 37 — 2005
Federal Land Acquisition — 2007

USPAP Update 2008, 2010, 2012, 2014
Office Buildings-Mortgage Underwriting 2012
Online Cool Tools Appraisal Institute 2014
Supporting Adjustments 2014

Right of Way Appraisals 2015

Right of Way Maps 2015

Right of Way Symposium 2015
Supervisor-Trainee Course 2016

Green Commercial Buildings 2018

Ground Lease Appraisals 2020

Southwestern Oregon Community College;

Successfully challenged exaemination
Successfully challenged examination
Suceessfully completed ceurse
Successfully completed course
Successfully completed course
Successfully completed course - 2001
Buccessfully completed course - 2001
Successfully completed course - 1999

Successfully completed course — 1999

Woetlands Evaluation Issues - 1992
Hotel/Motel Valuation - 1993

Income Property Valuation - 1993
Professional Timber Cruising - 1994
Subdivision Analysis - 1994
Hotel/Motel Valnation - 1993

The Intemet and Appraising - 1997
Eminent Domain — 1998, 2010, 2021
Federel Land Exchanges ~ 13505
Easement Valvation — 1990

GIS Applications - 2006

New Technology for Foresters - 2007
Industrial and Flex Buildings-2012
Sustainability of Real Estate-2012
Valuation of Partial Acquisitions-2014
Self Storage Appraisals 2020
Timberland Appraisals 2015
Temporary Constrietion Easement 2015
Business Practices and Ethies 2016, 2021
Eminent Domain — 2017

USPAP Update 2020

Residential Blueprint Reading & Sketching Commercial Blueprint Reading & Sketching

Residential Elecirical Wirng

Appraisal Experience

Eminent Domain;

Full and partial takings, Air rights, Microwave beam paths, Highway right-of-way, etc,

Industrial: Wood products manufacturing plants, Warehouses, Deep diafl waler frontage, Shipyards, Seafood
processing plants, Log yards, Industrial lands.

Commercial: Retail store buildings, Office buildings, Restaurants, Service stations, Supermarlets, Shopping centers,
iMedical, Dental and Vision Clinics,

Residential: Single-family dwellings, Muiti-family dwellings, Condeminiums

Special Purpose: Govemmental structures, Timbearland, Wetlands, Cranberry Bogs, Farms and Ranches, Assisted
Living Projects, Motels, Aggregate Pits and Quarries, Recreational vehicle parks, Mobile Homs Parks,
Churches, Hospitals, and Subdivisions.

9/01/2021
Marineau and Associates 17

CYB-509 — Novemnber 10, 2022 E




QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER (continued)
Jeffrey L. Marinean, MAI

STATE CERTIFIED APPRAISER #C000029; Expiration April 30, 2024

Employment

Apprentice Appraiser: 1968 to 1973, Appraisal experience working with Fred I. Marineaw, limited to non-school

days.

Licensed Real Estate Appraiser: Employed since 1973 with Fred J. Marineay, Real Estate Appraisers and

Congultants

Owner: Marineau and Associabes - July 1986 to present

Professional Organizations

Member, Appraisal Institnte-MAI Designation since 1981

Member, Rotary International
Member, Coos County Board of Realtors

Cowrt Appearances

District Court — Coos, Carry and Lincoln Counties
Cireuit Court - Coos, Cuiry and Douglas Counties

Oregon Tax Court

Federal Bankruptey Court - Eugene
Department of Revenue - Coos and Lincoln Counties
Board of Equalization - Coos County

REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF APPRAISAT/CONSULTATION CLIENTS

Corporate Clienis
Weyerhaeuser Corporation

Georgia Pacific Corporation
Menasha Corporation
Intemational Paper Corporation
Roseburg Forest Products
Al Pierce Company
Coos Head Timber Company
Sonth Coast Lumber Company
Lloyd Corporation
Chevron Corporation
Union Oil of California
Financial Clients
Wells Fargo Bank
U. 5. Bancorp
Bank of America
Oregon Bank
Umpgua Bank
Seafirst Mortgage Corporation
Oregon Pacific Bank
Siuslaw Valley Bank
Public Clients and Institutions
City of Coos Bay
Coos County
Douglas County
City of North Bend
City of Reedsport
City of North Bend
City of Bandon
City of Coquille
State of Oregor:
Oregon Department of Forestry
State Lands Division
Oregon Dept. of Transportation-QDOT
University of Oregon
Oregon State University
Southwestern Oregon Community College
North Bend School District 13

Jordan Cove Energy

Stuntzner Engineering & Foresty
Lesan and Finneran

Hough, MacAdam and Wartnik, LLC
Gould Law Firm, LLC
Westbrook Land and Tinber
Ocean Terminals

Bald Knob Land and Timber Co.
Coast Distributors, Inc.

Moore Mill Lumber Company
Sause Bros. Ocean Towing, Inc.

First Corumunity Credit Union
Evergreen Federal Bank

Banner Bank

Chetco Federal Credit Union
Rainier Financiel Services
Frontier Investment Corporation
First Farwest Capital Fud, Inc
Union Bank

U, 8. Bureau of Land Management
U. 8. Forest Service
Bonneville Power Administration
General Services Administration
U.S. Postal Service
Oregon Intemational Port of Coos Bay
Federal Deposit & Insurance Corp. (FDIC)
Federal Savings & Loan Ins. Corp (FSLIC)
Coos Bay School Distrdct 9
Trust for Publio Lands
Natural Resources Conservation Service
Nature Conservaney
Wild Rivers Land Trust
U. 8. Smeall Business Administration
U. 8. Corps of Engineers
Ports of Bandon, Brookings, and Gold Beach
Port of Newport
9/01/2021

Marineau and Associates

18 CYB-509 — November 10, 2022




ACTION ITEM — D

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Boat Yard Shop Plan
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

e The Board has had workshops and meeting in February, April, May, June, July &
August regarding the boat yard shop.

» We |ooked at costs of metal prefab buildings and costs exceed our expectations
about $180 - $185 per square foot.

DOCUMENTS

» Approximate location, size, and layout, 1 page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

» Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Port Manager to seek proposals for designer/engineer to
prepare construction drawings for new wood pole barn style boat yard building
and provide engineer estimate for project.

Q2.



<9

Proposed New Boat Yard Warehouse Buﬂding Layout — Option 1

50" wide x 50’ lang % 35 high prefab
3-sided metal huilding (2,500sf)

. Trave| Lift
Building

i

e o T

I

——— T, B = —— — -

Demollsh
eristing pole

type barn

FEMA Paved Area

bullding

— ey
i

r~
|
I
|
| ]

60’ wide x 205° lang x 16 high
prefab metal building (12,300sf)

FEMA Gravel-Graded Area

12’ wide x 14" high roll-up door Walk-ln Door Spaces 1 & 2 = ADft x 60ft Spaces 3 —6 = 25ft x 60ft Space 7 would include Restreom {200sf)



ACTION ITEM — E

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE: Resolution 2022-10, Retaining Property Sale Funds in Reserve
Fund for WWTP

TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

e A resolution concerning the proceeds from the sale of the property between
Lower Harbor Road and Shopping Center Avenue.

» This Resolution will be placing 100% of proceeds into a reserve fund in
connection with the EPA Grant Match.

DOCUMENTS

s Resolution 2022-10, 2 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

» Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-10, concerning the proceeds from the sale of
the property between Lower Harbor Road and Shopping Center Avenue,
Broakings, Oregon.

84



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF
BROOKINGS HARBOR CONCERNING THE PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF THE
PROPERTY BETWEEN LOWER HARBOR ROAD AND SHOPPING CENTER
AVENUE, BROOKINGS, OREGON

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2022, the Port of Brookings Harbor (the “Port”) closed on the
sale of approximately 0.7 acres of real property located in Brookings, Oregon between Lower
Harbor Road and Shopping Center Avenue (the “Property”) to Lloyd D. Whaley, Trustee of The
Lloyd Whaley Trust dated January 3, 2014, pursuant to authority granted by the Board of
Commissioners (the “Board’), with net proceeds in the amount of $174,236.00 (the “Proceeds™);
and

WHEREAS, the Port and Oregon Business Development Department (“Business Oregon™)
entered that certain Restructure Agreement dated December 22, 2009, in connection with which
the Property was encumbered by a mortgage in favor of Oregon Infrastructure Finance
Authority (the “Mortgage™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Restructure Agreement 80% of the Proceeds from the
sale of the Property were to be paid to Business Oregon to release the Mortgage on the Property,
with 20% of the Proceeds to be distributed to the Port; and

WHEREAS, the Port received an Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Clean Water SRF
STAG grant in the amount of $3,500,000 (“EPA Grant™), to aid in the financing of a new
wastewater treatment plant project; and

WHEREAS, the EPA Grant requires the Port to provide a 25% match of the project cost, which
is currently estimated to be approximately $875,000 (the “EPA Grant Match™); and

WHEREAS, Business Oregon is agreeable to releasing the Mortgage on the Property and
foregoing the 80% share of the Proceeds due under the Restructure Agreement, provided the Port
agrees to put 100% of the Proceeds into a reserve fund in connection with the EPA Grant Match;
and -

WHEREAS, the Port would be required to pay the 80% share of the Proceeds from the sale of
the Property (in the amount of $139,688.80) to Business Oregon should the design or
construction of the wastewater treatment project contemplated in connection with the EPA Grant
be abandoned; and

WHEREAS, Business Oregon documented and internally approved the arrangement described
above with respect to the Proceeds in a Memorandum dated October 25, 2022 (the
“Mermorandum™), which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.



NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Brookings
Harbor, Oregon as follows:

1. The Board hereby approves of Business Oregon’s conditions to the release of the Mortgage
as described in the Memorandum.

2. The Board hereby approves of Business Oregon’s agreement to disburse all Proceeds to the
Port, as outlined in the Memorandum.

3. The Board directs that all of the Proceeds be placed in the reserve fund maintained in
connection with the EPA Grant Match, with 80% of such Proceeds subject to potential
repayment to Business Oregon in the future should design or construction of the wastewater
treatment project contemplated in connection with the EPA Grant later be abandoned.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED and made effective the same day by the Board of Commissioners
of the Port of Brookings Harbor this 21st day of December, 2022,

ATTEST:

Richard Heap, President Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer



ACTION ITEM —- F

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Resolution 2022-11, Employee Handbook
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ Notable Changes:
» Adding Oregon Paid Family Medical Leave policy
« Starting January 1, 2023, employees and employers contribute to Paid
Leave Oregon through payroll taxes. In September 2023 employees
can apply for leave with Paid Leave Oregon.

DOCUMENTS

e Resolution 2022-11, Employee Handbook, 1 page
¢ POBH Employee Handbook, 86 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

¢ Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Resolution No. 2022-11 Port of Brookings Harbor Employee
Handbook for 2022.



PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
CURRY COUNTY, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
EMPL.OYEE HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the Port of Brookings Harbor is a port district, organized and operated under the provisions
of ORS Chapter 777, and has the authdrity to adopt resolutions; and

WHEREAS, the Port has revised its handbook in accordance with current State and Federal laws; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Broekings Harbor,
Curry County, Oregon as follows:

1. The Port of Brookings Harbor Employee Handbook, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted
by reference.

2. The Policies and Procedures may be modified by Resolution or may be modified administratively by
the Port Manager to follow best practices, for example, to update items to comply with Port Personnel
Policy, to adapt to changing technology, or to incorporate new laws and rules.

3. Staff is directed to codify this policy according to past administrative practices.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED and made effective the same day by the Board of Harbor Commissioners

of the Port of Brookings Harbor this 21st day of December, 2022,

ATTEST:

Richard Heap, President Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer




Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider

e



Port of Brookings Harbor Resolution No, 2022-] |03
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri

10



Table of Contents

Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook

INTRODUCTTION....cciiirnisiisnsnisssstssasssssassssassasssssssassosmaasssssassassnesasssassssassassass sessasssnasssassasssansassn 1
Welcome fo the Port of Brookings Tarbor ... .. e eses s eseesstsnesassesaenseosenas 2
About this Handbook ......cccvvemii e rns b esessness b s sbbass b ass e tssssebassnsanen 2
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES......ccccconeen. 5 D $S T SR8 NS A EE AT ST e S aa S T 5
Employment Relationship....c.c it se e sessseaesaessssssscasonsesesessensossossnns 6
Equal Employment OpPOFIUFIELY .......cccooceei ettt ee st et siaess et eaaestsetseeasens e 6
Workplace ACCOMMOIALIONS .....euiviruereieercereeseeeesseteasss et sssebevastebeasssrssatobenssbesestonssesnsssntsnsrannonens 7
Commitment to Equal Employment Opportuniities ...........c.ccvieciveicnesiennnissscesesesisssse s, 7
Requesting a Reasonable Accommodation, Medical Information..............cccoovivvevvcvcinnnnnne. 7
DCIEFIRIBALIONS ..ottt ettt ettt e b b ettt et e s e et s e et s mnene s e ensaenene e 7
NO REQIIATION ...ttt ettt et ettt e e et et e s ete et e an s s erae s ensarnrans 7
Policy Against Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation..............covvviivrvenioiesisieseseieensnns 8
Equal Employment OPpPOYIURILY ...........covvverieeriiiieiiirieee e ses s sreeses e ese s ess s sasas e ssess s 8
SEXUAL HAVASSMERL.........ovcvieieiriereiesieiie et et aeae s s en et eta s e e te b es s s aess s s ene st e eessebeans 9
Other FOrms 0f HArassmighL .........c.oouoveveiiiieiesiieissieee oot 10
RepOFING CONCEIMS ......c.ccvveviciiviiirirccneie it est vt s e a e sa s se s ne e e a e te e s 10
NO RIGLIALION . ....c.oivciiiiiiiiiiee s bbb s b e e et e 10
Investigation QRO RESPONSE..........cccovivieriee it eeeee et e et ee s enee s ses s an s aas s aas e 10
DIOCUMETIAITON. ..ottt ettt et s s tbesae b s sae e tsems s e e emsmeaneeeens 11
No Limitation Of REMEAIES.......c..cccooveeeeoeeee oo ettt s nae s s 11
Employment AGFE@MERLS............cccivvieriricrirnis i aesss et es e sss e se s ssasesaabes st seasanesans 12
VoIurtary DISCIOSUIE...........covvocieieiiiieeee e eat s steees s eaeans s steansseteatssansantesstastesseset e e eateneestes 12
Additional Employee SUPDOFT SErVICES ......c.c.cvvcicvieircieeiicetise e ees e sas v eeene e 12
Workplace ProfessionaliSIn ........c.vivircrireecoieecs e eciei s eeee e se e e e s sassrbessearaessevavecenenseransnnens 13
DiSPULE RESOIULION. ..ceveiiiirieierieirieeiiarieir et sas et rereerssessessaes e sbes e besssssessrsssemsesassessensessensestenrens 14
Reporting Issues Other Than Harassment/DisCrimingtion............cooovveeevvreesesieiiesssievesinnes 14
EmDIOYIIEDE . c.coutieiiiinie ittt ssns e strae s sesa e am s satane sresens e saes s e sesanssnsansanssnssnssressesatnseannasserass 14
New Employee OFIEHIGIION . .......c.ocoicieiiaeecs et ettt e et ee e ere s er et sras e snes s 15
TAIPOGUCIOPY PEFIOM ..ot ettt a e et et e e 15
Promotions and Transfer Training Period..........cocvveeeiieeceieieieeeeeeeceeee e 15
ReemplOymMent ...........uccviiericerreeciinneiiiesioreneeistesessstrsetsesses stesteseastssssserssase sesesesssnsesasessmmnsasaen 15
Credit for Prior SERIOFIY......occcocoeiiiieii ettt s st ts e sas b e b e st emserseone 16
Employment ClasSifICAIIONS .........cccoovaiioieiiii ittt ana s 16
Employment Record KEEPIg .. .o cvriicrirmirriiiresinianionsenoresesssscossrssssserisssnsnesssassssssessensseses 17
Access 10 Personnel FIlES ........c.coviviviiioiiiiie ettt saesestess s s ese s ss s sresseesas s 17
Change int PerSORA] DOI..........ovoceieiecrieeiiireeicieeeisensees et v sr sttt saeb s s ee e 17
EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS AND CONDUCT ....cconnninimnisimmanissmsisimsssinensonsassesnssssssaes 19
Port of Brookings Harbor Resolution No. 20221102
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

:mne,_(:gnbg' 2 |_, 2022

A\



Tt 8 e ey 2w
Misrepresentation
Qutside Employment
Off-Duty Conduct.
Solicitation and Distribution Policy
Public Officials .......ccccoooveivvvvcivvricinnnens
GIfLS e e
Use of Official Position or Office
Honoraria ..........cccoooveeivivneccinicincn,
Financial Interest in Public Contracts

Confidentiality ....coovieoaviiin.
Organization and Customers
Employee Records

----------------------------------------------------------------------------
...........................................................................

Workplace Rules.......ccoovveenincnvornccinrnscricaenes
Whistleblower Protections
| B (ol O T LSS
Communication and Software Systems
Electronic Communications Systems
Electronic Mail System
Organization-owned Personal Computers

Device SECUFTY .....oovveveviririeiiieerieir e,
Mobile Devices.......covveviviiiiiiiiiiianiss e,

---------------------------------------------------------------------------

...........................................................................................................

.......................................................................................

...........................................................................

...........................................................................

Use of Internet, Virtual Private Network, and Commercial Online Systems.........cc.coovvverennns

Social Media and Networking
Business Use .......oococvveeiiieiiciieiiicveeae,
MoRitoring ..o
Profection.........cooeveoeeecicvieeivcseeeinvennin

Voicemail System

Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook
28December 2|, 2022

Cell PRORES ...
IT Security Policy
Performance Management and Review
Corrective ACtioN.....ccoeevvrivniririernreesieseneneens
COMPENSATION .....ocrremerercnemremnanesmeansacnee
Pay Administration ..........ccoeeeevvererevennieerninnns
Pay Increases.........cocooeooevveiienveiiininnenn
Pay Practices ......cooiveveeiceeccverse e e e

TElEPROPE USGZE. ..ot et ettt e eneteare e see e nean e sae e saesaneseeneee

Pay Advances..........ccooeeevveviivicieciieen i,

Delivery of Paychecks
Method of Payment

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

.................................................................................................................

Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates (Form W-4)
Time Records for Non-Exempt Employees

Resolution No. 2022-1 |03
Revigion Date: Apeil



Hours of Work and WoOrk SCHEAULES .....ooiiv e eiieeeeeeeeee s eee e eeeerveesseasesaasssesessesasesesasneseasssesers 40

Organizaliorn HOUFS ...........c.oiieiiieieie ettt b s b aa e b 40
OVEITIINE. ...ttt ettt e rr e b et s b st e bt et e bt e sy essean e et e seeesenne e e saeeseeeneens 40
Meal ANd ReSt PEFTOGS ..........occooevievieiieiieaie oot s e se st srs e ess e srnanssas e sas st restas 41
LOACIAIION ..ottt ettt sttt et e e e s en e mben e ne b s e eeb e e e 41
Social and Recrealional ACHVIIIES .........ouccevieierivriee e sttt abe e 42
Inclement Weather and Emergency CIOSUPES .......c.covoviviiciiiiicsiececciecieeee e 42
Telework or TeleCOmMIMULE..........oiveiecestecee et et et s s n b s b n e sbeas s ebe s e 43
Employee-Incurred Expenses and Reimbursement .........ccouveevivernnne ettt et e rra s 43
Expense Reimbursement Procedure and REPOTES ........c.c...ooevivociieeivieee s rensvencneeennnes 43
Mileage ReimMBUISEIMEHL........ccocovevie ettt ettt e b e ae et eae sttt e ent et aeaeeens 43
Overnight Travel and Meal Expense ReimburSement .............ccccocevveeveisireveareveesiivieesnonesnns 44
Meal Reimbursement LIILS ...........ccc..ccccoveiviriiiieniesieresssieressssenssssesss e sesssiersssesanssssssssesensssens 44
Exceeding Meal ReimburSement LIMILS..........ccoouvevieeeee e e eeee st evae e v 44
ALCOROLIC BEVEFAZES.c...eeee ettt te et et s te e te et et e sae e be st st ae e s besabeebena b 44
Transportation Fxpense ReimbUrSEMEnt ..................cccoveeeveeiiieeeiseieereeseseee s saeeeen s 44
Spouse/Guest Expense ReIMBUFSEMENL...........c..ccccocuvvrveierecriesieiineissesisssnssssiessssssssssessssenns 44
Section 4094 of the Internal Reverue COAE .........c.oovcceiveeeiieee et eee st 44
PAY FIQUILY tvecveeererreeeernrersreieeesinseseseesaesesessns s ssaseasassasesaessesssessssasssanssnensssentensensessnessensenssnenensenes 45
BENEFIT S ceem i scavesss commomreasls s s wsamiess s soss seaasssd taasaaesaiias c25s sissnssaiovaassnguiios ssssns oo Tilasoms s puns 47
PUrpose and POLICY ...cciiiiriiiiiiticinietei it sbetiesab e st s e e sresress b er s esesraese seassensanssre s enerans 48
Benefit Pro-ration and Employee COSt SHAFIAL c...c...cocevioveeericeciereceeeieeereeieeeensanaesesaeins oo 48
Benefit Design and MOAIfICAITOR ..........cccceooveeciiiceeiieei e ettt eee st ra e et 48
Benefit PIOr DOCUTNEHLS...........coocoeveie vt sesat s sts s as st bseat e ettate et e eae s st s e eaaesaeas 48
Health InSurance Benefit.........ccovireiiri i sae st e ss s s am b ambe st sbresenbaes 49
BIGIBILIY. ..o eoover oot e s s s s s s eses st see et eee et esteeeren e eer et 49
Plan ERFOIIIERL.......c..coviveiveciereiisisieiriessssesis s sseas s tes s ss s asae s saesmsnesrasae b ese s ebe s asesnsaaens 49
PrEIIUI COST. oo eeeee ettt ettt e e e a e s e b e et e a s b eab e b et e eabeereesaeeanan 49
Termination of Coverage......... e bt eebeeahr e et b e be e te e ebf et e ean e e be e e s mnea s e e ean s eean e s e s nnereeaeneas 50
Portability/Conversion of Health PION ..............ccccoovveiiivieiereisoresssesssienesesssssisssssensssesenens 50
Dental Insurance Benefit........c..ccoevveueene. eetetstasetaseeetterereteteaetes et e s et e st ebs bt et st et ebeaeseseserasnas 50
BIIGIDIIIIY. ..o e b bt es b ebe et bt 50
COST e e et o K e 0 1 30
Other InSUrance Benefits. ... ..ot as s ne et rsss e e e e e s ssesbrasasabenns 51
GFOUP LifE INSUFARCE. ....coooove e eeeeie st ettt et e e e st eeae st eaessenaeeerenseeseassaneaes 51
SAOPE=-TCFI DISABIIILY ...ttt st ebs st easere et b eas s 51
Premitin ORLY 125 PIOF.........coouiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e eren st eeaersenn 51
Vacation Benefit ......cvvviicieiiirinieniieinine s s sae e st et sbebassseeb e b abtsbresessrran sasenseasensesenns 51
Sick Leave BeNEiit. i viiviiviiiineieiinriimin st sessseesresessesssstsreseesestasssssssessessssasarssssansass 52
Eligibility and ACCURMUIAITON .........ooveieceiee e st vt res bbb s 33
Retaliation ProRibited..........ccooiiiriciici ettt aebea 54
Paid Holiday Bemefit......cciviienicrise sttt st s b s e en s ane st 55
EIGIDITIY. ...cooov.eoeoeeveeeeee et ee s eees oo es e es s s s ee e sss s e e res e ee e renees e 55
Veterans Day HOIAAY ..vviviiniiiiiiinsiiiciric st ssesesseessssesseses sessssssessssssssssssssssssassnasses 55
OLher BENETIES et ettt et e rae e st s sae e saesas s e e e e s sas e s anans e benneantens 56
Simplified Employee Pension (SEP) IRA Plan ...........cc.coceoovuiiiioeeiiceecee e 56
LEAVES OF ABSENCE ...cciiiiienisssiciscinssisiamstmstesinssrmrssasssstassassamessasnsrassnssanssessossasssssssssssasnns 57
Leave Of ADSENCE POLICY ..oorivvireieciriarriiinecoisiiiesiesssiseeesnrnsesssnsssessessessesssesasssesssses ssesssssessensens 58
Port of Brookings Harbor Resolution No. 2022-1102
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

20December 21, 2022



Bl e Il L AV B . iviiviiiivererivrrnieerieieisrrasrssrestessionsssviss s siesatssantsssbonsassssstsssessrasasssnsnsssnsassrnrenssanes 58

OO L 0 L O O U UU PR 59
Jury oF Witness DULY LeAVE .......c...ccoiivieiiiceeec et een e st ese e e e 39
VOIIRE LEAVE ..o ettt ee st rae e et e et e st a e ee b e e e st e e sasteesase e saese s reseenaeernnee e aes 60

Crime VICHMS’ LEAVE ....iiiieirieeiiesies e ireei e et sc e ee st s sae e b e sra st esa st e s sas e et asbenanasaseenteeneas 60

DOMESLIC VIOIEINCE LBAVE vvvveivvvivecreereeieieeresiessiesereesthisveesbesnseasearsersostessossessssrssessonsessassasarsans 61

Family and Medical Leave (FMLA & OFLA) oot creesesesinee s e snvesanes 62

Leave t0 Donate BOne IMaITOW .......ceoviveciiieiee e cree s ciecessersessetessrnesessassssssassensossessassassossess s 6462

Personal Leave 0f ADSEIICE .c.cvvivi it e ne e sbn e e sbne s sbre e 6462

Uniformed Services Leave and Re-EMplOYment . ....oovevvvrivieciiiieeiinn s secssnesresssnnsessseanees 6563

Oregon Public Employee Temporary Active DULY Leave ........covvveevreeirienerseireineeereniie e 6765

Oregon Military Family LEeaVve .....c.coveiirieiiicne et et se et 6765

HEALTH AND SAFETY .ccccviimmeiiimennanssissssimsisnissiosmsisnssssissmssrssssares EN T 6967

Employee Health and Safety ... 7068
Farly Returnt {0 WOTK PrOZFQ . .c..c.oocvicieveeiieee et eee e eaeaes et e ses e staera st s 7068
Smoking it the WOTRPIACE ..........ccccoeeeiiiiiiiieecc ettt eren s ans s 7164
Employee Right to Know/Hazard Communication Program............cccvevevviceinccrancain, 7169
Substance and AICOROL..................c..ccooeeeeee e 7274

WOIKDIACE VIOIENCE .. . ivriciiiiirieceiinetctesinreiessssre s e sasseeraesaesresssasssesresaessestesneasesnsansssresnesnens 7472
Weapon-Free WOrRDIACE ........cc.cccuovueeiiceii ettt ettt ebe e Td72

EMergency Prepare€diess ... eiieeiicoiueieererieeeeseiseesseseesecessinessssesssesssssesssessesssssssnssssesesersaens 1573

EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION....cccociirimmirinasssstinminmsamsissasssnsassassasssessessess R RER—— 7775

Separation from EMplOYMENnt........ccvrviriviieniennirireis e sensisesressressssessasssesnsosssusesesnsnee 7876
RESIGHALION oottt te e et e rte et e et et e s e eaee e sanae s et s raa et anansesanan 7876
JOB ABGUUOFIIIENL............cooeoeeeeeee ettt es et s trb s e st r et sses s e sae e s eaatenenntesens 7876
Job Elimination, Reduction it Work HOUPS ......co.ooeeeoeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ata et 7876
DiSCRAY 20 s vesn o s |7 ss oo BTy 030 S 548 s SRR 3T Vs AT #+4s <USSETTaE 7977
EXTE JTHEEFVIEW .o ooe oot ettt sttt e e st e ra et a e ee s e are bttt e s e e ee s er e e bt aetaerssen e vt reanas 797F
Return of Organization PrOPEFLY ..o coeiieeeresecseeaeee s cnteee s sees e esae e aneeceaesreeneesmeseas 7957

EMPLOYEE’S NOTES ..oiiinniniinmneninnniniisniimistissssmnisinisisiistissatsssassssins 8078

HANDBOOK RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM....ccicitnmienssnissssrisasssisscssesansases 8179

Port of Brookings Harbor Resolution No. 2022-1163

Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

20December 21, 2022



INTRODUCTION

Port of Brookings Harbor Page[1 Resolution No. 202203 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April



WELCOME TO THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR!

On behalf of your colleagues and the Board of Commission—we’re glad you’ve joined us! We
take pride in selecting people such as you to join our organization, and we troly believe you will
be a positive addition to our most important asset—our employees.

We hope you will enjoy a productive and pleasant association with us. We have created a work
environment, compensation and benefits program, and interactive culture that we believe fosters
positive work relationships. We expect that you will enhance the atmosphere by contributing
your best efforts in whatever is asked of you.

We believe that you can contribute significantly to our success and want you to share in the
growth of our future. We also feel that the best way to help you achieve is to help you understand
our organization and your role in it. This Handbook has been prepared as a guide to give you a
better understanding of the organization's policies, procedures, and practices. Please familiarize
yourself with its contents and keep it handy for reference.

Our organization values two-way communication, and our “open door” policy encourages you to
ask questions if there are policies or procedures you don't understand. We welcome your ideas
and suggestions for ways to improve our operations and services or to save unnecessary costs
during your employment with us.

Again, welcome to our team. We wish you success in your new position and truly value you and
the contribution you make during your employment with us. We sincerely hope you will like it
here.

Port Manager

ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK

This Employee Handbook is a guide to help you understand our employment provisions and
expectations. The Handbook applies to all of our employees. It is intended to be a positive
document that begins to establish the relationship between us.

Please remember that this Handbook contains only general information and guidelines. It is not
intended to address all the possible applications of or exceptions to general policies and
procedures. Our policies are based on the belief that common sense, good judgment, and
consideration for the rights of others are paramount to our ability to serve our customers and
ourselves. While we have tried to anticipate many of your guestions, keep in mind that this
document won’t provide every answer. If you have any questions concerning eligibility for a
particular benefit or how a policy or practice applies to you, please ask the Port Manager, the
Director of Finance and Accounting or your Supervisor.

We know that employees have varied skills, goals, perceptions, and values, and that such
diversity may create situations not fully addressed within this Handbook. In that event, we’ll try

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 2 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: ApsH
20December 21, 2022

o



to make fair and equitable decisions while making sure that the best interests of the organization
are served.

Neither this Handbook nor any other organizational document or communication, whether
written or verbal, is intended to in any way create an express or implied contract of
employment or to guarantee any fixed terms or conditions of your employment. Your
employment is at will, meaning it is not for any specific period of time and may be
terminated, with or without reason, and without prior notice by the Port of Brookings
Harbor or you for any reason, at any time. Nothing in this Handbook ean be construed to
contradict, limit, or modify the at-will nature of your employment.

The Port of Brookings Harbor reserves the right to interpret and administer the provisions of this
Handbook as needed. Except for the policy of at-will employment, which can only be changed in
writing by the Port Manager. The Port of Brookings Harbor has the maximum discretion
permitted by law to change, modify, or delete any provision in this Handbook at any time with or
without notice. However, oral statements or representations cannot supplement, change, or
modify the provisions in this Handbook.

Each employee should read and become familiar with the information contained in this
Handbook. Failure to comply with the Port of Brookings Harbor's policies or procedures may
result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment.

This Handbook supersedes all inconsistent oral or written statements. Unless otherwise noted
herein, the provisions of this Handbook apply to all personnel. However, to the extent any
provision of this Handbook conflicts with the terms of a written employment contract signed by
the Port Manager, the terms of the written contract will prevail. Likewise, to the extent that any
provision of this Handbook conflicts with an applicable law, the law will be applied.

Some subjects described in this Handbook, such as benefit plan information, are covered in detail
in official policy documents. You should refer to these documents for specific information since
this Handbook provides summaries only. Please note that when discrepancies occur between
benefit language in this Handbook and in the official policy documents, the terms of the written
insurance policies are controlling. We encourage you to use caution when making decisions with
long-term impact based on our current benefit offerings, given that we may find it necessary to
make changes to these programs. You are encouraged to offer suggestions for improvement to
these policies, employment practices, or working conditions. Please read through the Handbook
carefully and share it with your family members so they will also understand your work
environment. If you have additional questions or need further details, please talk with your
supervisor, who can advise you or refer you to the appropriate resource.

Port of Brookings Harbor : Page |3 Resolufion No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

g



Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook
20December 21, 2022

Page | 4

Resolution No, 2022-03] |
Revision Date: April

B



EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 5 Resolution No. 2022-031 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
23December 21,2022

T



EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP

You and the Port of Brookings Harbor are engaged in an “at-will” employment relationship.
Therefore, employment at the Port of Brookings Harbor is for no definite period of time and
may, regardless of the time and manner of payment of wages and salary, be terminated at will.
This means that either you or the organization may terminate the employment relationship at any
time, with or without reason or advance notice.

No one in the organization has the authority to enter into any agreement contrary to this “at-will”
relationship except the Port Manager. It cannot be altered, except when in writing and signed by
the Port Manager and you. The Port of Brookings Harbor will not make, and will not be bound
by, any oral promises concerning the length or terms of your employment.

Equal Employment Opportunity

The Port of Brookings Harbor is an equal opportunity employer and, as such, considers
individuals for employment according to their abilities and performance. Employment decisions
arc made without regard to race, age, religion, color, sex, national origin, physical or mental
disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity, on-the-job injury, genetic
information, or any other classification protected by law. All employment requirements
mandated by local, state, and federal regulations will be observed.

The organization employs affirmative personnel measures to ensure the achievement of equal
employment opportunities in all aspects of employment and the work environment. These
policies of nondiscrimination will prevail throughout every aspect of the employment
relationship, including recruitment, selection, total compensation, promoftion, transfer, layoff and
recall, termination, training, and dispute resolution.

In keeping with our philosophy and applicable laws, our advertising and recruiting materials will
contain the following statement to encourage qualified applicants to apply: “Equal Opportunity
Employer.” Our policy as an equal opportunity employer is to employ those legally entitled to
work in the United States without regard to citizenship status, ethnic background, or national
origin. However, in conformity with the relevant immigration statutes and regulations, our policy
is to hire only those who are eligible to work in the United States. Verification documentation is
required of all new hites.

All employees in the organization are responsible for following and carrying out this policy
according to the spirit and intent of our equal employment commitment. Management provides
and supports a dispute resolution procedure for complaints alleging discrimination. Employees
are expected to bring any questions, issues, or complaints to Management’s attention. If you
believe you have experienced harassment, discrimination, or retaliation, you should report the
matter immediately according to the reporting process outlined in our policy against
discrimination, harassment, and retaliation, We also encourage that you document your concerns,
We will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint or cooperating in an investigation and we
will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management or coworkers.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 6 Resolution No, 2022-03 ] 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21,2022

|00



WORKPLACE ACCOMMODATIONS

Commitment to Equal Employment Opportunities

The Port of Brookings Harbor complies with all applicable federal and state laws providing for
nondiscrimination in employment, and this includes providing reasonable accommodations to
qualified individuals in accordance with these laws, except where such an accommodation is
unreasonable or would create an undue hardship. This includes accommodations for;

» EBEmployees who have a physical, mental, or sensory disability that affects their ability to
perform any of the functions of their job or enjoy the "benefits and privileges of
employment" equal to those enjoyed by similarly situated employees without disabilities;

¢ Employees with limitations related to pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical
condition, such as lactation, that may interfere with any job-related tasks or
requirements; and

o Where a work-related requirement may interfere with a religious observance or an
employee’s religious belief.

Requesting a Reasonable Accommodation, Medical Information

Employees who wish to request an accommodation for any of these reasons should contact the
Port Manager. As permitted by law and depending on the nature of the accommodation
requested, the Port of Brookings Harbor may request medical information and opinions to verify
the need for such accommodations, identify potential alternative accommodations, or to
determine whether continued work would pose a safety or health risk, where appropriate. We
will treat such information as confidential, except to the extent that others need to know to
evaluate the request or to implement any approved accommodations.

Determinations

The Port of Brookings Harbor will make decisions about reasonable accommodations on a case-
by-case basis considering various factors and based on an individualized assessment in each
situation. While we encourage employees to suggest the specific accommodations that they
believe may be ideal, please be aware that the Port of Brookings Harbor is not required to make
the specific accommodation requested and may provide an alternative effective and reasonable
accommodation, to the extent it does not pose an undue hardship on the Port of Brookings
Harbor.

No Retaliation

The Port of Brookings Harbor does not condone or allow any form of unlawful discrimination or
discipline, reprisal, intimidation, or retaliation against any individual for requesting an
accommodation under this policy in good faith. For this reason, the Port of Brookings Harbor
will not:

e deny employment opportunities on the basis of a need for reasonable accommodation;

e deny reasonable accommodation for known limitations, unless the accommodation would
cause an undue hardship;

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 7 Regolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

o]



» take an adverse employment action, discriminate, or retaliate because the applicant or
employee has inquired about, requested, or used a reasonable accommodation;

e require an applicant or an employee to accept an accommodation that is unnecessary; or

e require an employee to take family leave or any other leave, if a reasonable
accommodation can be made instead.

If an employee feels that they or another employee may have been subjected to retaliation or
other conduct that violates this policy, they should report it immediately to the Port Manager, the
Director of Finance and Accounting, or any other management representative with whom they
feel comfortable speaking.

POLICY AGAINST DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND
RETALIATION

The Port of Brookings Harbor prohibits unlawful discrimination and harassment. This policy
defines these terms and provides a complaint procedure for employees who believe they have
been the victims of prohibited conduct. This poelicy applies to all matters related to hiring, firing,
transfer, promotion, benefits, compensation, and other terms and conditions of employment.

A copy of the Port of Brookings Harbor policy against discrimination, harassment, and
retaliation is available at the Port of Brookings Harbor Bulletin Board, located at the Port Office.

Equal Employment Opportunity

The Port of Brookings Harbor will not tolerate conduct by any employee, elected official, board
or commission member, volunteer or intern, customer or member of the public that
discriminates, harasses, or creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile work environment. All
forms of unlawful discrimination and harassment are prohibited. We want to maintain a working
environment free from all forms of discrimination and harassment, whether based upon race, age,
religion, color, sex, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital or veteran status, sexual
orientation, gender identity, on-the-job injury, genetic information, or any other legally protected
characteristic or status. It is our intent that such factors shall not be a consideration for any of the
following: employment, retention, promotion, recruitment or recruitment advertisement, rates of
pay or other forms of compensation, administration of benefits, selection for job or management
training, and demotion or separation. All matters related to employment are based upon job
performance, plus trustworthiness, dependability, and reliability once hired. Retaliation
associated with a complaint of harassment is also prohibited.

This policy explicitly applies to conduct in the workplace and at work-related events, including
Port of Brookings Harbor-related social functions, business trips and functions (such as
conventions, trade shows, etc.), and off-site work meetings. This policy applies to any conduct,
however, as described above, which impacts the organization or work environment, regardless of
where it occurs,

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 8 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
ABDecember 21, 2022

\C



Unlawful harassment or intimidation of any kind by or toward another employee or any other
person (including a customer, visitor, or vendor/supplier), or harassment of any person not
associated with the Port of Brookings Harbor by use of Port of Brookings Harbor relationships,
resources, or assets will not be tolerated. Conduct that the Port of Brookings determines to
constitute a violation of this policy may result in the strictest disciplinary action.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment and sexual assault are forms of harassment. Both are violations of state and
federal law and will not be tolerated. “Sexual assault” is defined as unwanted conduct of a sexual
nature that is inflicted upon a person or compelled using physical force, manipulation, threat, or
intimidation, or a sexual offense has been threatened or committed as described in Oregon’s
criminal statutes. Sexual harassment, as defined by the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission and stated below, is expressly prohibited:

“Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when:

(1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of the individual's employment, (2) submission fo or rejection of such
conduct by an individual is used as a basis for employment decisions affecting
such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating,
hostile or offensive working environment.”

The definition of sexual harassment includes many forms of offensive behavior and can include
gender-based harassment of a person of the same sex as the harasser. Conduct that may be
considered in violation of this policy includes, but is not limited to:

e Unwanted sexual advances;

» Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances;

e Visual conduct, including leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of sexually
suggestive objects or pictures, cartoons, or posters;

e Verbal conduct, such as making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs, or jokes;
* Verbal sexual advances or propositions;

e Verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic verbal commentaries about an individual’s body,
or sexually degrading words used to describe an individual,

» Suggestive or obscene letters, notes, or invitations; and/or

» Inappropriate physical conduct, including touching, assaulting, impeding, or blocking
movements.

Cell phone use, including inappropriate text messages and other similar electronic
communications, can also be considered harassing behavior.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |9 Resolution No. 2022-0311

Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri
20December 21, 2022

\O%



Each manager/supervisor has a responsibility to maintain a workplace free of any form of
unlawful harassment. No person shall threaten or insinuate, either explicitly or implicitly, that an
employee's refusal to submit to sexual advances will adversely affect the employee's
employment, evaluation, wages, advancement, assigned duties, shifts, or any other condition of
employment or career development,

Other Forms of Harassment

This policy applies not only to complaints and investigations of sexual harassment and assault,
but to all other forms of harassment and intimidation based on age, race, sex, sexual orientation,
national origin, religion, marital status, disability, veteran status, or any other category protected
by federal, state, or local Iaw. Behavior such as telling ethnic jokes; using religious slurs or
offensive slang, or other derogatory terms regarding a person’s race, sexual orientation, age, sex,
national erigin, or disabiliy; or mimicking one's speech, accent, or disability are examples of
prohibited conduct and will not be tolerated. Harassing individuals by making derogatory
comments regarding protected status or characteristics is strictly prohibited, as is using any other
words or conduct that might create a hostile or offensive work environment.

Reporting Concerns

Management provides and supports a process for receiving and resolving complaints involving
workplace discrimination, harassment, or sexual assault. If you believe that you have
experienced or witnessed harassment, discrimination, sexual assault, or any other behavior
prohibited by this policy, you must immediately report the matter to the Port Manager, the
Director of Finance and Accounting, or any other management representative with whom you
feel comfortable speaking.

Upon receipt of a report of prohibited discrimination, harassment, or sexual assault, the manager
who received the report will provide a copy of this policy to the reporting employee.

No Retaliation

No team member will be retaliated against for making a complaint under this policy in good
faith, or for participating or otherwise assisting in an investigation of such a complaint in good
faith. If you believe you have been retaliated against in violation of this policy, you must report it
to the Port Manager, the Director of Finance and Accounting, or another management
representative.

Investigation and Response

Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination, or retaliation will be investigated by the
Port of Brookings Harbor promptly and in a manner appropriate to the circumstances. The
investigation will be conducted promptly, but no specific timeframe can be guaranteed because
cach situation is likely to be different, and individuals may have varying schedules. Every effort
will be made to complete the investigation within two weeks, In all cases, the reporting party will
be notified of the outcome of the investigation. We will also check in with an employee who
reports being the victim of alleged harassment every three months for one year following receipt
such report to ensure no further concerns or retaliation are experienced. However, employees
should not wait for the Port of Brookings Harbor to make contact to share or communicate any
further concerns or experiences. If an employee would like the Port of Brookings Harbor to
discontinue the follow-up process, a request must be submitted in writing to the Port Manager,
the Director of Finance and Accounting, or another management representative.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 10 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apsil
20December 21, 2022



All complaints of harassment will be investigated promptly and impartially. Discretion will be
used during the investigation in order to maintain as much confidentiality as possible while
effectively completing the investigation, however, confidentiality cannot be guaranteed. If you
are not satisfied with the handling of a complaint or the action taken by management, you should
bring the complaint to the next higher level of authority or to another management
representative. In all cases, you will generally be advised of the outcome.

Any employee or manager who is found by the Port of Brookings Harbor, after appropriate
investigation, to have engaged in harassment or to have retaliated against an individual for
reporting harassment will be subject to appropriate corrective action, depending on the
circumstances, up to and including termination,

Documentation

Employees are encouraged to document any incidents involving discrimination, harassment, or
sexual assault as soon as possible.

Anyone who receives a report of workplace discrimination, harassment, intimidation, sexual
assault, or related employment agreements containing prohibited provisions must document such
reports. Any supervisor, manager, or employee who observes or experiences what they believe to
be incidents of workplace discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or sexual assanlt should also
document such incidents.

The Port of Brookings Harbor must maintain records of workplace harassment including:
o the date of the incident;
o the date the complaint was received by the designated individual or alternate;
= the dates the investigation was started and closed,
» the investigation report;

e the outcome of the investigation and any actions taken by the Port of Brookings Harbor;
and

¢ the dates the Port of Brookings Harbor followed up with the victim, or a signed waiver of
the Port of Brookings Harbor responsibility to conduct follow up contacts with the
victim.,

No Limitation of Remedies

We encourage employees to bring their concerns and complaints to the organization and to seek
redress through the internal process outlined above. But we also understand that, at times, this
may not be the choice of the employee.

Nothing in this policy prevents a complainant from filing a formal complaint with the Oregon
Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI), or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
(EEOC) and/or any other state or federal agency responsible for enforcing laws governing
prohibited discrimination, harassment, and retaliation.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 11 Resolution No. 2022-021 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date; April
20December 21, 2022

IS



A complaint filed by an employee with BOLI alleging an unlawful employment practice as
described in ORS 659A.030 (prohibiting discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, age, or expunged juvenile record), 659A.082
(prohibiting discrimination and mandating leave for certain military service), 659A.112
(prohibiting discrimination against individuals with disabilities), or unlawful harassment, sexual
assault, or a violation of the additional protections for victims outlined above, must be filed no
later than five years after the occurrence of the alleged unlawful employment practice. Other
claims may have shorter timeframes.

In addition to the above, nothing in this policy prevents any person from seeking remedy under
any other available law, whether civil or criminal. An employee or claimant must provide
advance notice of claim against the Port of Brookings Harbor as required by ORS 30.275.

Employment Agreements

Under this policy, a nondisclosure agreement is any agreement by which one or more parties
agree not to discuss or disclose information regarding any complaint of work-related harassment,
discrimination, or sexual assault. A nondisparagement agreement is any agreement by which one
or more parties agree not to discredit or make negative or disparaging written or oral statements
about any other party or the Port of Brookings Harbor. A no-rehire provision is an agreement
that prohibits an employee from seeking reemployment with the Port of Brookings Harbor and
allows the Port of Brookings Harbor to not rehire that individual in the future.

The Port of Brookings Harbor will not require or coerce an employee to enter into any agreement
if the purpose or effect of the agreement prevents the employee from disclosing or discussing
conduct constituting discrimination, harassment, or sexual assault. An employee claiming to be
aggrieved by discrimination, harassment, or sexual assault may, however, voluntarily request to
enter into a settlement, separation, or severance agreement that contains a nondisclosure,
nondisparagement, or no-rehire provision and will have at least seven days to revoke any such
agreement.

Voluntary Disclosure
A victim of workplace harassment may voluntarily disclose information regarding an incident of
workplace harassment that involves the victim.

Additional Employee Support Services
Employees may choose to use other support services throughout and following instances related
to concerns and complaints. The organization provides the following for additional assistance:

e Legal services; and
e Counseling and Support Services and/or Employee Assistance Services.

Employees should contact the Port Manager, the Director of Finance and Accounting, or another
management representative for additional information about accessing these resources.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 12 Resolution No. 2022-82 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: ApeH
20December 21,2022



WORKPLACE PROFESSIONALISM

While harassment due to a person’s protected class is prohibited, so too is unprofessionalism,
such as incivility, due to personality clashes or issues. We want our focus to be on customer
service, productivity, and the ability for each employee to flourish here. This makes it essential
that our employees treat each other and those with whom we serve with courtesy, respect, and
consideration. Further, we require that employees work cooperatively and constructively in
tesolving issues or problems on the job to foster satisfactory working relationships.

The Port of Brookings Harbor defines unprofessionalism as one-time or repeated behavior that is
inappropriate, and that may be verbal, non-verbal, or physical; either direct or indirect which
generally occurs at work and in the course of employment but may also apply to offsite behavior
exhibited by employees that negatively impacts the working relationship. Such behavior,
whether exhibited between coworkers, management and staff, vendors/customers, another
outside party, or a member of the public, violates our policy on how others should be treated
while at the workplace or while engaged in organizational operations.

Where an allegation of unprofessionalism is made, consideration of the intention will be given.
The purpose of this policy is to communicate to all employees, including supervisors, managers,
and executives, that the Port of Brookings Harbor will not, in any instance, tolerate
unprofessional behavior. Employees found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to
corrective action, up to and including termination.

We will consider the following examples as unprofessional, although this is not considered a
comprehensive list. Any action that creates the same or similar result will also be considered.

e making inappropriate comments on social medial or via text messaging or other forms of
electronic communication;

e public humiliation in any form;

e constant unwarranted criticism on matters unrelated or minimally related to the person’s
performance or job description;

e spreading rumors and gossip regarding individuals;

o interfering with the ability of someone to perform job duties or consistently assigning
menial tasks not central to the job when there is no legitimate business reason for doing
S0; Or

o taking credit for another person’s work-related ideas.

Any Port of Brookings Harbor employee who has experienced unprofessionalism should
immediately report the behavior according to the reporting process outlined in our policy against
discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. All reports will be investigated and addressed.
Making bad-faith or malicious complaints of unprofessionalism will be regarded as a serious
offense, which may also lead to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 13 Resolution No, 2022-03] |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apeil
20Decentber 21, 2022

[op



Notwithstanding the above, the Port of Brookings Harbor will not construe or apply this policy in
a manner that improperly prevents employees from communicating with each other about wages,
hours, or other terms and conditions of employment. This policy is not intended to restrict
communications or actions protected or required by state or federal law.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

We believe that undisclosed problems will remain unresolved and will lead to impaired work
relationships, dissatisfaction with working conditions, and a decline in operational efficiency.
Therefore, the organization has established this dispute resolution procedure to solve problems as
quickly, fairly, and thoroughly as possible. This procedure is a method for impartially hearing
the complaint and is intended to resolve problems and provide a fair and objective review. All
issues raised in good faith will be handled without prejudice or retaliation.

Reporting Issues Other Than Harassment/Discrimination

If you believe you have experienced harassment, discrimination, or retaliation, you should report
the matter immediately according to the reporting process outlined in our policy against
discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. Any other questions or concerns you may have
should be discussed with your immediate manager/supervisor, absent special circumstances, as
soon as you are aware there is a problem or have a question. Your manager will generally
follow-up on your concern, in writing, within one week.

We realize there may be valid reasons to forego this initial step; in those circumstances (i.e., a

concern involves an immediate manager/supervisor), you may go directly to the next level of
management or to the Port Manager for assistance.

EMPLOYMENT

It is our goal to fill employment vacancies with the most qualified applicants, whether recruiting
internally, externally, or utilizing both options. Job applicants will be considered on an equal
basis for all positions without regard to sex, age, race, color, religion, national origin, marital or
veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity, on-the-job injury, genetic information, a
physical or mental disability, or any other characteristic or status protected under applicable law,
including Veterans® Preference.

Our goal will always be to select the most qualified person for each available job.

Former employees and relatives of current employees will be considered for employment in the
same manner as other applicants. We may, in our discretion, refuse to place a spouse, domestic
partner, or immediate family member under the direct supervision of a spouse, domestic partner,
or family member. :

You may, from time-to-time, be temporarily transferred or assigned to perform work outside of
your regular job duties, schedule, or location. Depending upon the circumstances, you may be
subject to a wage adjustment while performing such work. We may also reassign employees on a

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 14 Resolution Neo. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revigion Date: Agpril
20December 21, 2022

IcB



long-term basis whose placements are determined to be unsuited to their individual skills. We
may also transfer any employee who has an injury or impairment that requires modified duty
without posting the position.

New Employee Orientation

New employees are expected to attend a thorough orientation within the first week of
employment. This helps to ensure positive integration into our operations and helps new
employees start a productive and satisfying employment relationship. At the orientation, you will
receive detailed information about general policies, procedures, benefits, and basic information
on pay and leave policies.

Introductory Period

As a new employee, you are hired on a 60-day introductory period. The introductory period is an
extension of the employee selection process. During this period, you are considered to be in
training and under observation and evaluation by supervisors. Evaluation of your adjustment to
work tasks, conduct and other work rules, attendance, and job responsibilities will be conducted
during the introductory period. This period gives you an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory
performance for the position and provides an opportunity for us to see if your abilities and the
requirements of the position match. It is also a chance to see if we meet your expectations as an
employer.

Your performance will be evaluated at the end of the introductory period, and a decision about
your employment status will be made and shared with you in writing. If vou have successfully
completed the introductory period, you will be moved to regular status. Neither the introductory
period nor movement to regular status alters the at-will statis of your employment. At all times,
including during the introductory period, your employment is at-will and may be terminated by
the Port of Brookings Harbor or you, with or without reason and with or without prior notice. If
your skills border on satisfactory, but fall short, the infroductory period may be extended if there
is reason to believe that your skills will improve within 30 days. This period may be extended
only by approval of the Port Manager. The request for an extension won’t be approved if it is
submitted after the normal conclusion of your introductory period. If expectations are not met or
if your skills are not satisfactory, your employment will not continue.

Promotions and Transfer Training Period

If you are promoted or transferred to a new position, you must also complete an introductory
period of 60 days to determine the suitability of the placement and your ability to satisfactorily
perform the required work. If it is determined that the job change is not working during this
period, you will be returned to your original job if a vacancy exists. Otherwise, you will be
assigned to any other vacant job we deem suitable. [f no such job is vacant, your employment
may be terminated. If you are placed in a job other than your original job, the pay and benefits
may be adjusted.

Reemployment

Employees who resign from the organization in good standing may be eligible for reemployment
consideration. Applications received from former employees will be considered and processed
using the same procedures and standards that govern all other applicants. Previous performance
with the organization will be evaluated if the reference check phase is reached. We are not

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 15 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\A



obligated to rehire former employees. If an employee returns within 12 calendar months, their
previous sick leave balance will be restored in full,

Credit for Prior Seniority
All rehires shall be considered new employees, except where federal or state law requires
otherwise.

Employment Classifications

Employee status is categorized to make distinctions in employment-related conditions and to aid
in a better understanding of employment relationships within the organization. Employees may
be considered introductory, full-time or part-time, temporary, or on-call as described below:

Introductory Newly hired, transferred, or promoted employees within the introductory
period. New hires normally earn, but cannot use, benefits.

Regular Full-time:  An employee who is regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per
week. This classification is normally eligible for benefits,

Regular Part-time:  An employee who is regularly scheduled to work at least 20 but less than
30 hours per week. This classification is normally eligible for benefits, but
on a pro-rata bagis.

Temporary: An employee who is hired for a specified period of time, usually no more
than six months. This classification is typically not eligible for benefits,
except for those mandated by law.

On-Call: An employee who does not have a set schedule and works only when
called upon.

Employees are further classified according to federal and state wage and hour laws as exempt or
non-exempt, as defined below. Management will make the appropriate designation regarding the
status for each new position or when a position changes substantially, If you are uncertain as to
your status, ask your supervisor/managet.

Exempt: An employee who is exempt from the overtime pay and minimum wage
requirements under federal and state laws. Exempt employees are those who are
generally paid a salary and whose duties and responsibilities allow them to be
exempt under federal and state law.

Non-exempt: An employee who is paid an hourly wage and whose job generally calls for the
payment of minimum wage and overtime as specified under state or federal

regulations.
Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 16 Resolution No. 2022-8311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

20December 21, 2022



EMPLOYMENT RECORD KEEPING

Access to Personnel Files

The organization maintains personne! records for each employee, and access to those records is
restricted to authorized persons only. The records may include applications, written evaluations,
performance counseling notices, correspondence, and other information pertinent to
employment. Authorized persons are individuals in a direct line of supervision over the
employee to whom the file applies, employees performing human resources-related functions,
and any management representative involved in a pending personnel action.

Your personnel file is available for review (except for any material exempt from disclosure under
state law) by making advance arrangements with the Director of Finance and Accounting. We
will provide access to or copies of personnel records or files as required by law, but you may be
asked to reimburse us for the reasonable cost of providing copies.

Change in Personal Data

Keeping your personnel records current can be important to you with regard to pay, payroll
deductions, benefits, and other matters. If you have changes in any of the following items of
information, please notify the Director of Finance and Accounting.

Name

Marital status

Address

Telephone number

Dependents

Beneficiary(ies)

Emergency contact information

Job-related physical or other limitations that impact employment
Other information having a bearing on your employment

A Change in Personal Data form is available for your use in reporting any changes in your
personal information.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 17 Resolution No. 2022-021 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20Deceinber 21, 2022

W\



Port of Brookings Harbor Page |18 Resolution No. 2022-631 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

W2



Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook
20December 2 [, 2022

EMPLOYMENT
RELATIONS AND CONDUCT

Page | 19 Resolution No. 2022-631 |
Revision Date: Aprit



ETHICS

We believe in treating people with respect and adhering to ethical and fair practices. All Public
Officials are held accountable to the State’s ethics laws found in ORS 244,

Misrepresentation

As an employee, you should consider how you represent the Port of Brookings Harbor in your
transactions and interactions. You should be careful not to misrepresent the organization’s
policies, practices, procedures, or prices, or misrepresent your status and authority to enter into
agreements. You should also avoid using the organization’s name, likeness, facilities, assets,
resources, or the authority of your position with the organization for personal gain or private
interests,

Outside Employment

While employed at the Port of Brookings Harbor you may not engage in outside employment
that conflicts with the nature of the organization’s business, competes with the organization,
conducts business with the organization, or otherwise interferes with your ability to perform
according to established standards of performance and work rules. You also may not conduct
business connected to outside employment during hours you are scheduled to work at the Port of
Brookings Harbor or use company equipment for such purposes.

Off-Duty Conduct

Generally, we regard off-duty activities of employees to be their own personal matters. However,
certain types of off-duty activities concern us because of the potentially negative impact on the
organization’s reputation within the communities we serve. Therefore, employees who engage in
or are associated with illegal or otherwise harmful conduct that adversely affects the organization
or its public image, or their own ability or credibility to carry out employment responsibilities,
may be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Solicitation and Distribution Policy

The Port of Brookings Harbor has established rules to govern employee solicitation and
distribution of written materials. The Port of Brookings Harbor has established rules to

(1) maintain and promote safe and efficient operations, employee discipline, and an attractive
clutter-free workplace and (2) minimize non-work-related activities that could interfere with
customer satisfaction, product quality, and teamwork. This policy is not intended to restrict
communications or actions protected or required by state or federal law.

We use our organization bulletin boards to keep you up-to-date and to post notices and
information required by law. We also use them to announce activities and other items of interest
to employees. We ask that you check the bulletin board regularly to obtain information that may
be important to you. Bulletin boards are to be used only for posting or distributing notices or
announcements of a business nature that apply equally and are of interest to all employees or are
directly concerned with organization business.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |20 Resolution No, 2022-03 1 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apeil
20December 21, 2022

W4



Rules
Employees may not:
» solicit other employees during working time;
» distribute literature during working time;
o distribute literature at any time in working areas;

e use employer-owned property such as telephones, computers, smartphones, email
systems, and intranets to solicit other employees;

» solicit, expect, or accept contributions from vendors, clients, or anyone doing business
with the organization; or

¢ scll merchandise or collect funds of any kind without prior approval from the Port
Manager.

Definitions

Solicitation includes, but is not limited to, approaching someone in person or through employer-
owned property such as computers, smartphones, email systems, and intranets for any of the
following purposes:

e offering anything for sale;
= asking for donations;
s collecting funds or pledges;

e seeking to promote, encourage, or discourage participation in or support for any
organization, activity or event, or membership in any organization; or

e distributing or delivering membership cards or applications for any organization.

Distribution includes, but is not limited to, disseminating or delivering in person or through
employer-owned property such as bulletin boards, computers, smartphones, emails, and intranets
any literature or other materials including circulars, notices, papers, leaflets or other printed,
written, or electronic matter (except that distributing or delivering membership cards or
applications for any organization is considered solicitation and not distribution).

Working time includes any time in which either the person doing the solicitation (or
distribution) or the person being solicited (or to whom non-business literature is being
distributed) is engaged in or required to be performing work tasks. Working time excludes times
when employees are properly not engaged in performing work tasks, including break periods and
mealtimes.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |21 Resolution No. 2022-031 1
Empleyee Handbook Revision Date: April



Working areas include areas controlled by the Port of Brookings Harbor where employees are
performing work, excluding, for example, cafeterias, break rooms, and parling lots,

Discipline

Employees who violate any provision of this policy may be subject to discipline, up to and
including termination of employment,

Public Officials

A public official includes anyone serving the State of Oregon or any of its political subdivisions
or any other public body in any of the listed capacities, including as an “agent.” An “agent”
means any individual performing governmental functions. Governmental functions are services
provided on behalf of the government as distinguished from services provided to the
government. This may include private contractors and volunteers, depending on the
circurastances.

Upon employment with our organization you became a public official.

Gifts

During a calendar year, a public official, a candidate, or a relative or member of the household of
the public official or candidate may not solicit or receive, directly or indirectly, any gift or gifts
with an aggregate value in excess of $50 from any single source that could reasonably be known
to have a legislative or administrative interest.

During a calendar year, a person who has a legislative or administrative interest may not offer to
a public official or a relative or member of the household of the public official any gift or gifts
with an aggregate value in excess of $50.

During a calendar year, a person who has a legislative or administrative interest may not offer to
a candidate or a relative or member of the household of the candidate any gift or gifts with an
aggregate value in excess of $50.

Use of Official Position or Office

A public official may not use or attempt to use their official position or office to obtain financial
gain or avoid financial detriment for themselves, a relative or member of the household of the
public official, or any business with which the public official or a relative or member of the
household of the public official is associated, if the financial gain or avoidance of financial
detriment would not otherwise be available but for the public official’s holding of the official
position or office.

Except:

* any part of an official compensation package as determined by the public body that the
public official serves;

o the receipt by a public official or a relative or member of the household of the public
official of an honorarium or any other item allowed under ORS 244,042 (Honoraria);

e reimbursement of expenses;

Port of Brockings Harbor Page | 22 Resolution No. 2022-6311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21,2022

We



e anunsolicited award for professional achievement;

o gifts that do not exceed the limits specified in ORS 244,025 (Gift limit) received by a
public official or a relative or member of the household of the public official from a
source that could reasonably be known to have a legislative or administrative interest;

e gifts received by a public official or a relative or member of the household of the public
official from a source that could not reasonably be known to have a legislative or
administrative interest;

o the receipt by a public official or a relative or member of the household of the public
official of any item, regardless of value, that is expressly excluded from the definition of
“gify” in ORS 244.020 (Definitions); or

» confributions made to a legal expense trust fund established under ORS 244.209
(Application to establish fund) for the benefit of the public official.

A public official may not solicit or receive, either directly or indirectly, and a person may not
offer or give to any public official any pledge or promise of future employment, based on any
understanding that the vote, official action, or judgment of the public official would be
influenced by the pledge or promise.

A public official may not attempt to further or further the personal gain of the public official
through the use of confidential information gained in the course of or by reason of holding
position as a public official or activities of the public official.

A person who has ceased to be a public official may not attempt to further or further the personal
gain of any person through the use of confidential information gained in the course of or by
reason of holding position as a public official or the activities of the person as a public official.

A person may not attempt to represent or represent a client for a fee before the governing body of
a public body of which the person is a member. This subsection does not apply to the person’s
employer, business partner, or other associate.

The provisions of this section apply regardless of whether actual conflicts of interest or potential
conflicts of interest are announced or disclosed under ORS 244.120.

Honoraria

A public official may not solicit or receive, whether directly or indirectly, honoraria for the
public official or any member of the household of the public official if the honoraria are solicited
or received in connection with the official duties of the public official.

A public official may solicit or receive an honorarium or a cettificate, plaque, commemorative
token, or other item with a value of $50 or less or an honorarium for services performed in
relation to the private profession, occupation, avocation, or expertise of the public official or
candidate.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 23 Resolution No. 20220311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apsil
0 December 21, 2022

\\

—



Financial Interest in Public Contracts

A person who ceases to hold a position as a public official may not have a direct beneficial
financial interest in a public contract for two years after the date the contract was authorized.
This prohibition applies only to public contracts that were authorized by (1) the person acting in
the capacity of a public official or (2) a board, commission, council, bureau, committee, or other
governing body of a public body of which the person was a member when the contract was
authorized.

You are required to inform us of any activity that is ongoing or planned that may be or is a
conflict with these laws. We will work with the State ethics commission to determine the

appropriate steps for resolution.

Failure to meet these standards may result in discipline up to and including separation.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Organization and Customers

At the Port of Brookings Harbor, employees have access to highly confidential and proprietary
information, including information about our business plans and customers. Our customers trust
us with confidential information and disclosing this information without authorization would
have a materially adverse impact on our integrity and on our relationships with our customers.
Employees must not disclose, either during or after employment with the Port of Brookings
Harbor, any information pertaining to the organization or its customers without prior explicit
approval of their managers/supervisors and must sign a form stating such.

No organization records or information, including documents, files, records, computer files, and
similar materials may be removed from our premises without permission from the Port of
Brookings Harbor, except in the ordinary course of performing duties on behalf of the Port of
Brookings Harbor. Additionally, the contents of organization records or information otherwise
obtained in regard to business may not be disclosed to anyone except where required for a
business purpose. This prohibition alsc applies to disclosures or any type, including posts on
social media, blogs, or elsewhere on the internet, Employees are subject to appropriate corrective
action, up to and including termination, for revealing confidential information.

Nothing in this Agreement has the purpose or effect of preventing an employee or prospective
employee from disclosing or discussing conduct that constitutes discrimination prohibited by
ORS 659A.030, including conduct that constitutes sexual assault, or that constitutes
discrimination prohibited by ORS 659A.082 or 659A.112, if such conduct occurred: (1) between
employees or between an employer and an employee in the workplace or at a work-related event
that is off the employment premises and coordinated by or through the employer or (2) between
an employer and an employee off the employment premises.

‘This policy is not intended, and should not be construed, to limit or prevent employees from
exercising any rights under the National Labor Relations Act or equivalent state laws.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 24 Resolution No. 2022-03 1 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apiil
20December 21, 2022

\8



Employee Records

The Port of Brookings Harbor’s philosophy is to safeguard personal employee information in its
possession to ensure the confidentiality of this information. Additionally, the organization will
generally actively collect only personal information that is related to its business operations or to
government reporting and disclosure requirements, Personal information collected by the
organization includes employee names, addresses, telephone numbers, email addresses,
emergency contact information, EEO data, social security numbers, date of birth, employment
eligibility data, benefit plan enrollment information (which may include dependents’ personal
information), and school/college or certification credentials. All preemployment inquiries,
including reference check records, as well as former employee files are maintained in a locked,
separate area and are not used by the organization in the course of business operations.

Personal employee information will be considered confidential and, as such, will be shared only
as required and with those who have a need for access to such information. All hard copy records
will be maintained in a locked, secured area with access limited to those who have a need for
such access. Personal employee information used in business system applications will be
protected under company proprietary electronic transmission and Virtual Private Network
policies and security systems. Participants in company benefit plans should be aware that
personal information will be shared with plan providers as required for claim handling or
recordkeeping needs,

Organization-assighed information, which may include organizational charts, department titles
and staff charts, designated positions, department budgets, company coding and recording
systems, telephone directories, email lists, and company facility or location information and
addresses, is considered by the company to be proprietary company information to be used for
internal purposes only. The company retains the right to communicate and distribute such
information to conduct business operations.

If an employee becomes aware of a breach in maintaining the confidentiality of any personal
information, the employee should report the incident to Port Manager. As appropriate, the Port
Manager will investigate the incident and take corrective action. Please understand that the
reasonableness of actions taken in these circumstances will be taken into consideration.
Examples of the release of personal employee information that will not be considered a breach
include, without limitation, the following:

o release of partial employee birth dates i.e., day and month, which is not considered
confidential and will be shared with supervisors/managers who elect to recognize
employees on such dates;

e personal telephone numbers or email addresses may be distributed to
supervisors/managers in order to facilitate company work schedules or business
operations;

o cmployee-identifier information used in salary or budget planning, review processes, and
for timekeeping purposes will be shared with supervisors/managers;

» employees’ company anniversary dates will be distributed to appropriate
supervisors/managers periodically;

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 25 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

4



o employee and dependent information may be distributed in accordance with open
enrollment processes, for periodic benefit plan changes, or for benefit statement updates;
and

» release of any information required or authorized by law.

Should a security breach occur, appropriate notifications will be provided as soon as possible.

WORKPLACE RULES

The Port of Brookings Harbor believes policies and procedures are essential for the orderly
operation of our business and for the protection and fair treatment of all employees. As a result,
we have clearly identified performance expectations so that each employee behaves according to
our workplace standards. Courtesy and common sense should always prevail. Generally, conduct
that may be disruptive, unproductive, unethical, or illegal will not be tolerated. The following
work rules are not all-inclusive but serve as guidelines to demonstrate the work behaviors
considered important to the Port of Brookings Harbor.

1. You are expected to be at work on time, to stay until your workday ends, and to do the
work assigned or requested of you. If you are unable to be at work on time, you are
expected to contact your immediate supervisor promptly.

2. Youare expected to regard your workplace with respect and attention. The Port of
Brookings Harbor records, equipment, and property are to be treated carefully and
appropriately. You are responsible for those items in your custody and will be held
accountable for their maintenance, appropriate use, and accuracy.

3. You are expected to act in accordance with all appropriate codes, laws, regulations, and
policies, regardless of whether they are set by the Port of Brookings Harbor or by
outside regulatory bodies.

4.  You are expected to conduct yourself in a professional manner, exhibiting a high regard
for our customers, vendors, business associates, and for coworkers. No breach of
professional behavior (abusive language, harassment, personal business during work
time, efc.) will be condoned. This also applies to alcohol consumption when
representing the Port of Brookings Harbor in a business or social capacity.

5. You are expected to maintain the confidentiality of organization information or
customer information in your possession (i.e., personnel information, trade secrets, etc.)
in accordance with the terms of the Port of Brookings Harbor’s confidentiality policy.

6. Youare expected to wear clothing that is neat in appearance and consistent with a
professional atmosphere, keeping in mind the impression it has on customers, visitors,
and other employees as well as the need to promote organization and employee safety.
(Good individual judgment is the best guideline, but management retains the right to
decide what dress is appropriate.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 26 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date; April
2December 21, 2022

V20



7.  You are expected to avoid engaging in any of the following conduct: falsifying records,
engaging in fraud, removing employer property from the premises without
authorization, stealing or attempting to steal employer or employee property, being
habitually tardy or absent, engaging in poor timekeeping, fighting on employer property
at any time, being under the influence of illegal drugs on employer property at any time,
being insubordinate, using or abusing employer time, property, materials, or equipment
without authorization, gambling on employer premises at any time, sleeping on the job,
using offensive or profane language on company premises, bringing dangerous or
unauthorized weapons onto employer premises, engaging in criminal activity, violating
or abusing employer policies, neglecting job duties, or bringing the organization into
serious disrepute.

This information regarding our behavioral expectations should help guide employee actions. You
are urged to use reasonable judgment and to seek advice in doubtful or unclear situations. It is
our policy to resolve conduct and performance problems in the most informal and positive
manner possible; however, conduct that falls outside of the above guidelines may result in
cotrective action, up to and including termination. This policy is not intended to restrict
communications or actions protected or required by state or federal law.

We also believe that all of our employees should have an opportunity to be heard in matters

involving discipline; therefore, we have adopted a formal dispute resolution procedure, which
can be found on page 13 of this Handbook.

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Port of Brookings Harbor encourages any employee with knowledge of an illegal or
dishonest activity to report it to the Port Manager or designee. All such issues will be promptly
investigated with the intent to determine fault and institute any appropriate corrective measures.
Examples of illegal or dishonest activities are violations of federal, state, or local laws; billing
for services not performed or for goods not delivered; and other fraudulent financial reporting.
Any employee wishing for more information can obtain further details from Port Manager.

If an employee has knowledge of or a concern of illegal or dishonest fraudulent activity, the
employee should immediately contact a direct supervisor or the Port Manager. The employee
must exercise sound judgment to avoid baseless allegations. An employee who intentionally files
a false report of wrongdoing will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Whistleblower protections are provided to maintain confidentiality and to prevent retaliation.
Although someone’s identity may be disclosed to conduct a thorough investigation, to comply
with the law, or to respond to complaints and reports, the privacy of the individual making the
report will be protected to the extent possible. The Port of Brookings Harbor will not retaliate
against a whistleblower. This includes, but is not limited to, protection from retaliation in the
form of an adverse employment action such as termination, compensation decreases, or poor
work assignments as well as threats of physical harm, If you believe you have been retaliated
against in violation of this policy, you must report it to the Port Manager, the Director of Finance

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 27 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

12\



and Accounting, or another management representative. As appropriate, the Port of Brookings
Harbor will investigate such reports and issue corrective action.

DRESS CODE

Employees contribute to the atmosphere and reputation of the Port of Brookings Harbor in the
way they present themselves. A professional appearance is essential to a favorable impression
with customers and coworkers. Good grooming and appropriate dress reflect employee pride and
ingpire confidence.

Managers have the discretion to determine appropriateness in appearance. Employees who do
not meet a professional standard may be sent home to change and may not be paid for that time
off. A basic essential of appropriate dress includes the need for clothing to be neat and clean. A
reasonable standard of dress rules out overly-revealing clothing, tank tops, halter-tops, or any
extreme in dress, accessory, fragrance, or hairstyle.

Additionally, clothing, jewelry, and hair should not be worn in such a way that creates any kind
of safety hazard.

Body piercing jewelry and body art that does not convey a professional image should not be
visible.

Management may make exeeptions fo the dress code for special occasions. An employee unsure
of what is appropriate should check with the designated manager or supervisor.

Some departments may require specific guidelines. People who need to leave work to change
clothes for meetings must utilize personal time or vacation time. If you are meeting clients,
business dress is always appropriate. These policies may be changed as fashion trends in clothing
for the business world change.

COMMUNICATION AND SOFTWARE SYSTEMS

Electronic Communications Systems

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides electronic communication systems to maintain superior
communications both within the organization and with customers and vendors. You are
encouraged to learn about these tools and how to use them. This policy provides directions for
you regarding access and disclosure of information when using these communication systems.
All employees and others outside the organization who may use the systems are expected to be
aware of and comply with this policy. For further reference consult the IT security policy
adopted June 2021. This policy governs all IT resources and communications systems owned by
or available at the Port of Brookings Harbor, and all use of such resources and systems when
accessed using an employee's own resources.

Pori of Brookings Harbor Page | 28 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apei
20December 21, 2022

\ 22



Our electronic communication systems include computers, software, electronic mail (email),
copiers, fax machines, telephones, cell phones, voicemail, messengers, and various online
services. All of these systems are operated and managed based upon this policy.

These systems and any other informational, storage, or retrieval services that the organization
provides are organization tools and are to be used for business purposes only during business
hours. Use of company systems during business hours for other than work-related purposes
should be minimal and must not impact business operations.

All contents of the Port of Brookings Harbor's IT resources and communications systems are the
property of the company. Therefore, employees should have no expectation of privacy
whatsoever in any message, file, data, document, facsimile, telephone conversation, social media
post, conversation, or any other kind or form of information or communication transmitted to,
received, or printed from, or stored or recorded on the company's electronic information and
communications systems.

You are expressly advised that to prevent against misuse, the Port of Brookings Harbor
reserves the right to monitor, intercept, and review, without further notice, every
employee's activities using the company's IT resources and communications systems,
including but not limited to email (both outgoing and incoming), telephone conversations
and voicemail recordings, instant messages, and internet and social media postings and
activities, and you consent to such monitoring by your use of such resources and systems.
Do not use the company's IT resources and communications systems for any matter that you
desire to be kept private or confidential from the company. Messages sent with or through the
organization’s IT resources and communications systems are the property of the organization.

Subject to the terms of the organization’s confidentiality policy, you must not permit any
proprietary or confidential information of the Port of Brookings Harbor to enter the public
domain through electronic transmissions. Examples of the organization’s proprietary and
confidential information are provided in the confidentiality policy. Also, these systems shall not
be used to receive or distribute copyrighted materials, trade secrets, proprietary information, or
similar materials from/to outside the organization without prior authorization.

Any messages or communications used through this system are subject to our anti-harassment,
anti-discrimination, and non-solicitation policies. You are expected to carefully compose and
review the wording, tone, and content of your communications before transmission,

You should check with your supervisor if you have any question about the proper use of
communication or software systems. All system users who discover violations of this policy are
expected to notify their supervisors or managers immediately. Improper use or viclation of this
policy may result in corrective action, up to and including termination.

Electronic Muail System

You are reminded to be courteous to other users of the email system and to always conduct
yourself in a professional manner, Email messages are sometimes misdirected or forwarded and
may be viewed by persons other than the intended recipient. You should write email
communications with no less care, judgment, and responsibility than you would use for letters or
internal memoranda written on organizational letterhead.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 29 Resolution No. 2022-031 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date; Apei
M December 21, 2022

\3



You should know that even when a message is erased through email, it is still possible to retrieve
and read that message. Even though the organization reserves the right to retrieve and read any
email messages, those messages are to be {reated as confidential by other employees and
accessed only by the intended reeipient. We expect employees to respect others’ privacy and not
retrieve or read electronic messages for which they are not the intended recipient unless
authorized. The use of passwords for security does not guarantee confidentiality; all passwords to
company systems must be disclosed to the organization's Port Manager.

Organization-owned Personal Computers

To protect the integrity of our systems, all software used on our computers must be registered
with the Port Manager. Personal or downloaded software may only be installed after written
authorization from that individual. A virus check of all such software must be made immediately
before it is installed on any organization comnputer, A virus check must also be conducted on any
electronic devices originating from or used on any computer outside of the organization prior to
its use with an organization-owned computer. The copy or transfer of organization-owned
software may occur only with the written authorization of Port Manager.

Device Security

All staff that are issued laptops and other computer-related equipment will be given a copy of the
Port of Brookings Harbor’s computer-related equipment guidelines. These guidelines include
security precautions and procedures as recommended by the Port of Brookings Harbor.

Laptops and other company-provided equipment, including smart phones, tablets, and any
similar device, should be secured by two anti-theft devices to minimize the risk of theft, For
example, a computer camera stored in a locked cabinet within a locked office; a laptop locked in
a safe in a locked motel room; a laptop secured in a locked drawer within a locked residence. If
an employee does not secure company-provided equipment with two anti-theft devices and the
equipment is stolen, management retains full discretion allowed under applicable law to decline
to replace the equipment. Violations of this policy may also result in corrective action, up to and
including termination.

Mobile Devices

If you are connected to the organization’s server, understand that making this connection via a
mobile device may compromise the privacy of certain sensitive information. Confidential
electronic information, including personally identifiable information, must be protected to
prevent it from being exposed if the device on which the information was accessed is lost or
stolen. In order to protect this information, the organization retains the right to delete data and
applications from any device that contains the organization’s information. This right fo delete
such information may be exercised remotely or onsite if the orpanization determines such
action is warranted to protect confidential, sensitive, or proprietary information. Please
understand that in downloading any such information to a personal mobile device, you are
consenting to the organization’s ability to delete this information at any time. This policy
covers mobile devices such as smart phones, tablets, laptops, and any similar devices. Please
ensure that you regularly sync any personal data (e.g., applications, information, photos) to
another device/computer for safekeeping, as the wipe command does not differentiate between
business and personal information.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |30 Resolution No, 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
A0December 21, 2022

24



Mobile devices should be set to lock after every two (2) minutes for security reasons. A PIN-
based lockout is required, and the PIN for company-owned devices must be given fo the IT
department. Employees are not permitted to use, maintain, or access personal social media
accounts on such devices.

Any loss or theft of a device or equipment that was provided by the company, or that contains
company information, must be immediately reported to Port Manager.

Use of Internet, Virtual Private Network, and Commercial Online Systems

Although the Port of Brookings Harbor recognizes that the Internet may have useful applications
to our business, you may not engage in Internet use without prior written approval from the Port
of Brookings Harbor and unless a specific business purpose requires such use. Absent such
approval, you may not access the Internet using our computer systems at any time or for any
Teason.

Also, management approval is required before anyone can post any work-related information, or
any information while on duty, on commercial online systems, the VPN, or the Internet, Any
material not owned by the Port of Brookings Harbor that will be posted must have received all
proper copyright and trademark permissions from its originators prior to approval. For newly
generated material, an employee should obtain copyright and trademark designations, as
appropriate, prior to posting any content; the posted content should include copyright and
trademark notices. Absent prior approval to act as our official representative from the Port of
Brookings Harbor, you must include the following disclaimer with any information you post:
“Views expressed by the auther do not necessarily represent those of the Port of Brookings
Harbor.”

Notwithstanding the above, the Port of Brookings Harbor will not construe or apply this policy in
a manner that improperly prevents team members from communicating with each other about
wages, hours, or other terms and conditions of employment.

Social Media and Networking

Social networking websites and onlitie communities, such as Twitter, LinkedIn, Facebook,
Instagram, TikTok, and Flickr are increasingly used and can be accessed by individuals not only
from computer systems, but also from smart phones. These tools have value because they can be
used to market the Port of Brookings Harbor products and share information; employees may
also use these systems as a quick communication and networking tool to complete projects. It is
not the intent of this policy to unduly limit employees” access to these conduits, however,
guidelines and expectations surrounding their use are necessary.

Only employees who have been authorized to post on social media sites on the Port of Brookings
Harbor’s behalf may use social media as part of their official duties. The Port of Brookings
Harbor’s confidentiality policy applies to the use of social media sites by employees while at
work or otherwise using the organization’s technology.

¢ Employees should understand and abide by all relevant company policies, such as the
confidentiality policy and the policy against discrimination, harassment, and retaliation,
and ensure that their personal social media activities and postings are consistent with

these policies.
Port of Brookings Harbor Page |31 Resolution No. 2022-0211
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

20Decenmber 21, 2022

|25



» Employees must not post confidential information about the Port of Brookings Harbor, its
affiliates, employees, customers, or vendors and must adhere to all confidentiality
requirements listed in the confidentiality policy and set forth under local, state and federal
law.

e Employees should refrain from using social media while on work time or on company
equipment, unless it is work-related, as authorized by their supervisor.

s FEmployees may not use company email addresses to register on social networks, blogs or
other online tools utilized for personal use.

» Employees should never use or reference their formal position when writing in an
unofficial capacity.

When any employee is using organization-provided computers or cell phones or is representing
the organization via social networking activity, that individual is expected to represent the
organization in & professional and positive light. The Port of Brookings Harbor wishes to use
social networking exclusively to its advantage, preventing and minimizing any negative
outcomes. This includes ensuring that all employees will be free from harassment and
unprofessional behavior when utilizing or consuming social media; therefore, employees
authorized to use it must abide by all applicable laws (including copyright) and ethical
considerations.

Business Use

Employees may use social networking websites to conduct organizational business, as long as
such use is authorized and complies with the organization’s policies. Company logos or other
organizational information must conform to pre-approved marketing concepts and standards. We
do not endorse making business references on behalf of others on sites such as LinkedIn.

In the case that a social media account is set up for business purposes, the organization has the
right to review, edit, and delete content associated with the account. The organization will have
access to information associated with the account such as the username and password, and any
content associated with the account will be considered the propetty of the organization. If an
employee separates from the Port of Brookings Harbor, the organization has the right to assume
control of this account.

Monitoring

While the organization does not routinely monitor social networking sites, other employers,
organizations, and individuals do monitor and share information found on social networking
websites. Again, posted information is public information.

Protection

Social networking sites collect profile information for advertising opportunities and criminal
reasons. Phishing (email messages asking for username and passwords, etc.) and spamming are
two downsides. Never click on links asking for personal or confidential information. Heed
security warnings and pop-ups. Use of these sites may mean more SPAM sent to your email
account. If possible, disable the ability of others to post HTML comments to your home page.
When accessing these sites, use caution when you see a posting or link that looks suspicious;

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 32 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apeil
20December 21, 2022

24



when in doubt, delete it. Viruses and spyware may damage the organization’s operating system,
compromise data, or expose your privacy and that of others you communicate with via email and
social media sites.

Be aware that others may piece together personal information for identity theft purposes. Be
prudent in making comments or posts that reveal your or others’ travel plans or divulge other
safety-sensitive or private information.

Prohibited Conduct

Behavior and judgment in an electronic environment should mimic behavior in a physical
setting. Employees are expressly prohibited from posting content that is malicious, abusive,
threatening, intimidating, coercing, profane, disruptive, discriminatory, or harassing. Defamatory
statements are prohibited and employees should be aware they are personally responsible for the
legal consequences of such statements.

Nothing in this policy should be interpreted as limiting an employee’s right to engage in legally-
protected speech or other activity. Failure to adhere to these standards and to use appropriate
protocols may lead to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Telephone Usage

The Port of Brookings Harbor realizes that employees must occasionally make and receive
personal telephone calls at work. Such calls must be kept to a minimum and should impact your
work as little as possible. Unauthorized use of the telephone, including charging long distance
calls to the arganization, may result in corrective action, up to and including termination.,

Veicemail System

The voicemail system at the Port of Brookings Harbor is the property of the organization and is
provided for use in conducting company business. All communications and information
transmitted by, received from, or stored in this system are organization records and property of
the Port of Brookings Harbor, The voicemail system is to be used for business only; use of the
system for personal purposes is prohibited. You are not authorized to retrieve or listen to any
voicemail messages that are not sent to you. Any exception to this policy must be provided in the
form of prior written approval from your supervisor.

Cell Phones

Where job or business needs necessitate immediate access to an employee, the organization may
provide/require a business cell phone for work-related communications. This phone is provided
for business use only. Business cell phones are not to be used for purposes not related to work.
Keep in mind that cell phone internet usage, phone records, voicemail, and text messages are not
private and may be accessed. If an organization-provided phone is used for personal business,
any phone charges incurred by an employee related to the personal usage will be the sole
responsibility of the employee.

Personal calls during the workday using personal cell phones can be distracting to others and can
interfere with employee productivity. Use of a personal phone for any reason should therefore be
limited to breaks and lunches.

Any use of a cell phone while driving may present an unsafe condition for the driver, other
employees, and the general public. The organization prohibits the use of cell phones while
Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 33 Resolution No. 2022-031 1

Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

12



driving, except when hands-free accessories are used and all applicable laws are followed. In
cases where a cell phone call is necessary, employees must adhere to all federal, state, and local
rules and regulations regarding such to help ensure the safe operation of both organization-
owned and private vehicles. If an employee is using a cell phone while driving and has an
accident, any costs, fees, and fines shall be solely the responsibility of the employee.

IT Security Policy
The Port of Brookings Harbor adopted the IT security policy in June 2021. You are urged to
consult this reference in addition to the above palicy.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND REVIEW

To establish a meaningful performance evaluation system upon which the Port of Brookings
Harbor can continuously monitor the effectiveness of organizational operations and employee
performance, all employees will receive regularly scheduled formal performance evaluations (at
least annually).

The objectives of our performance management and formal appraisal process are to:

¢ ensure that employees know their individual performance against established
performance standards;

e determine how well the organization is doing in assisting employees with work
performance and meeting goals;

e ensure communication and two-way feedback;

» provide a consistent, objective, and fair method of making compensation decisions;

s provide a tool for career planning; and

s provide a permanent record of employee performance and organizational contributions.

Managers and supervisory personnel are accountable for providing employee development
actions designed to improve and enhance employee performance such as:

» reasonable employee training;

e assigning, directing, controlling, and reviewing employee work;

e assisting employees in correcting deficiencies; and

» objectively evaluating employee performance during the evaluation period.
Our performance appraisal program is intended to be participatory and equally involves both
your input and your supervisor’s. This allows you to contribute to the growth and improvement

of the organization. You are encouraged to:

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 34 Resolution No. 2022-031 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022



s inquire about your performance petiodically;
» accept additional responsibilities and show initiative;
» review opportunities for advancement within the organization;

» ask for assistance in developing a goal-oriented path for advancement within the
department or organization; and

s learn about training available to assist you in improving your skills or qualify you for a
promotion or lateral transfer.

Performance evaluations serve as one factor in decisions related to employment such as training,
merit pay increases, job assignments, employee development, promotions, and retention.
Evaluations identify specific performance levels as compared to established standards,
acknowledge the merit of outstanding performance, and prescribe the means and methods of
improving performance deficiencies.

CORRECTIVE ACTION

Everyone benefits when we work together and conduct ourselves in a manner that reflects the
best interests of both the organization and its employees. It is the philosophy of the Port of
Brookings Harbor to address performance deficiencies and address violations of policies and
work rules in order to correct situations and avoid repetition.

You will be informed if corrective action is necessary as soon as possible after any performance
or conduct problem has been identified. Your manager or supervisor will discuss the situation
with you, explaining this policy and the necessity of corrective action to avoid additional
disciplinary actions.

Although one or more corrective action measures may be taken in connection with a particular
performance problem, no formal order will be followed. Corrective action may include any of a
variety of actions depending on the circurnstances and severity of the particular situation.

Corrective actions taken at the discretion of management may include any of the following:

s verbal counseling with you, which will be confirmed in writing by your supervisor and
placed in your personnel file;

s written warning, which will be placed in your personnel file;

e suspension, which will be confirmed in writing for your personnel file. Suspension is
normally used to remove an employee from the organization’s premises during an
investigation or as a disciplinary action. A suspension may be paid or unpaid. If you are
suspended, it will be documented in your personnel file;

¢ demotion, which will be documented in your personnel file; or

Port of Brookings Harbor Pape | 35 Resolution No. 2022-03 | 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Ap+il
20December 21, 2022

\29



¢ termination, which will be documented in your personnel file.

The corrective action process will not always commence with verbal counseling or include every
step. The above options are not to be seen as a process in which one step always follows another.
Some acts, particularly those that are intentional or serious, may warrant more severe action,
including termination of employment, on the first or a subsequent offense. Consideration will be
given to the seriousness of the offense, any change in behavior, and the circumstances
surrounding the offense.

Counseling, verbal warnings, and written warnings may be undertaken by a supervisor without
prior approval from the Port Manager. However, the Port Manager must be informed by the
supervisor of any such actions taken. Suspension with or without pay, demotion, and discharge
require prior approval from the Port Manager before the action is taken.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 36 Resolution No. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apeil

130



COMPENSATION

Paort of Brookings Harbor Page | 37 Resolution No. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022



PAY ADMINISTRATION

The Port of Brookings Harbor values high quality work from its employees and is committed to
compensating employees for their efforts and resulis. It is our intent to provide a competitive
compensation package that will attract, retain, and motivate employees. It is also our intent that
policies and pay practices be administered consistently throughout the organization to ensure
internal equity is achieved.

Your pay as a new employee is established based on the pay level of current employees
petforming work of comparable character and based upon bona fide factors related to the
position in question, which may include previous experience, education, a seniority system, a
merit system, a system that measures earnings by quantity or quality of production (including
piece-rate work), workplace location, travel (if regular and necessary for the employee), and
training. This policy will be administered and interpreted in accordance with applicable federal
and state laws and regulations.

Pay Increases

It is the Port of Brookings Harbor 's policy to reward you with increases in pay for dedication in
your work, extra effort, and contributory performance. Management does not award increases on
an automatic basis, Recommended increases are not effective until approved by both the next
level of management and Port Manager.

Because information about your rate of pay and any increases is sensitive and personal, we ask
that you exercise discretion and care regarding the discussion of these matters.

PAY PRACTICES

Paydays

Pay periods cover two weeks, beginning on Monday and ending Sunday of the following week.
You will be paid every two weeks, generally on Friday, for the pay period that ends on the
previous Sunday. The Port of Brookings Harbor’s workweek begins on Monday at 12:00 a.m.
and ends on Sunday at 11;59 p.m. If a particular payday falls on a banking or organizational
holiday, employees normally will be paid on the last business day before the holiday. If you do
not receive your direct deposit or paycheck, notify the Port Manager or Director of Finance and
Accounting immediately. Employees should review their paychecks and the wage statements for
errors. If you find a possible error, report it to the Port Manager or Director of Finance and
Accounting immediately.

Payroll Deductions

Certain mandatory and elective deductions that are made from employee pay are noted on the
paycheck stub. The only deductions made are those mandated by law or authorized by you in
writing,

Pay Advances
Pay advances are not provided by the organization. Employees are encouraged to {ind other
appropriate resources for any financial difficulties.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 38 Resolution No, 2022-031 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

|32



Delivery of Paychecks

Your paycheck will be hand-delivered to you each payday or put in your designated in-box,
unless you elect direct deposit; paychecks will not be delivered to anyone else without your
writlen request.

Method of Payment

A statement showing gross earnings, deductions, and net salary will accompany each paycheck
(or notice of direct deposit). Employees have the choice between direct deposit and payment by
check. A pay statement will be provided regardless of whether the employee is paid by check or
direct deposit.

Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates (Form W-4)

You are required to furnish the organization with an Employee Withholding Exemption
Certificate (W-4) at the time of hire. You may file a new W-4 form any time. When you submit
an updated Form W-4, the organization will implement the desired changes by the start of the
first payroll period ending on or after the 30™ day from the submission date. We encourage
employees to seek independent tax advice if they have questions about withholding amounts.

Time Records for Non-Exempt Employees

The time sheet is a record of time worked. It provides a record of time spent on the job,
indicating the exact time you worked, Each non-exempt employee will be issued an ADP badge
number, This number is specific to you and should be used to record your time. Employees
should record on a daily basis all actual time worked, including the starting and stopping times of
each workday, and all time away from work, including the starting and stopping times of unpaid
meal periods leave, vacation days, and company holidays. Nonexempt employees are required to
record all hours worked, including any hours worked outside of their normal schedule. Non-
exempt employee pay is calculated from this record.

Time sheets should be reviewed carefully for completeness and accuracy as they will be used to
calculate pay. Supervisors will review and initial time sheets each pay period. If an error needs to
be corrected, the time sheet should be taken to the Port Manager or Director of Finance and
Accounting for appropriate action. All manual entries or corrections must be made, reviewed,
and initialed by the supervisor or other appropriate management member. Time sheets should be
reviewed, signed, and turned in at the end of the pay period. Your signature on the time sheet
each pay period verifies that the times and dates are true and accurate to the best of your
knowledge. You should never allow someone else to make entries on your time sheet, Willfully
falsifying a time sheet will be grounds for corrective action, up to and including termination.

Falsifying time entries, including by working off the clock, is strictly prohibited. If you falsify
your time entries or work off the clock, you will be subject to discipline, up to and inciuding
termination. Supervisors and managers are prohibited from falsifying your time entries or
requiring or encouraging you to falsify your time entries or work off the clock, You should
immediately report to the Port Manager, the Director of Finance and Accounting, or any other
management representative with whom you feel comfortable speaking, any supervisor or
manager who falsifies your time entries or encourages or requires you to falsify your time entries
or to work off the clock.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 39 Resolution No, 2022-0311
Empleyee Handbook Revision Date: April
26December 2 1, 2022

133



Time Records for Exempt Employees

Employees classified as exempt do not fill out time sheets and no deduction of pay will be made
for hours worked fewer than eight hours per day, unless authorized by law. However, because
the Port of Brookings Harbor does have vacation and sick leave benefits programs, if you have
earned time in these bank(s), you must use this time first (from whichever benefit applies) to
cover any time off that is less than your normal workday, as permitted by law. Salary will not be
reduced for absences of less than a full day, except as permitted by law, if the employee has no
available accrued leave. Employees are not required to use accrued leave for absences
occasioned by jury service. The Port of Brookings Harbor prohibits deductions from an exempt
salaried employee's pay except as required or permitted by applicable law.

Dispute Resolution Process for Paycheck Errors

If you have any questions regarding your pay or feel a manager or supervisor has made a change
to your pay that you do not belicve is accurate, please contact the Port Manager, the Director of
Finance and Accounting, or any other management representative with whom you feel
comfortable speaking.

Final Paycheck

While we request that you give us at least 10 working days’ advance notice prior to departure
when resigning or retiring from the organization, if you provide us with at least 48 hours’ notice
(excluding holidays and weekends} you will receive your final paycheck on the last day worked.
If less notice is given, the final paycheck will be provided within five days (excluding weekends
and holidays) after your last day of employment, or on our next regularly scheduled payday,
whichever occurs first. Final paychecks will include all wages earned and unpaid through the last
workday, plus payment for any accrued and vested benefits that are due and payable at
separation.

HOURS OF WORK AND WORK SCHEDULES

Organization Hours
The general Port Office, RV Park Office, and Port Shop hours at the Port of Brookings Harbor
are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Specific workday and workweek schedules for each employee will be determined from time-to-
time by the appropriate manager, based on the organization’s needs. We will attempt to notify
you of any changes in workdays or workweek schedules two weeks prior to the effective date of
change. Management reserves the right to modify schedules consistent with the needs of the
organization.

The normal workday is 8 hours. The total hours in a normal workweek are 40, Monday through
Sunday. If you are a non-exempt employee, you must not begin work before your scheduled
starting time or continue working beyond the scheduled stopping time without explicit advance
approval from your supervisor.

Overtime

You may occasionally be required to work overtime. Overtime hours will be paid to non-exempt
employees at one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of
Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 40 Resolution No., 2022-0311

Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21,2022

Ky



40 in a regular workweek, or as otherwise required by law. Overtime pay is based on hours
actually worked. For example, hours attributable to paid time off will not be considered when
computing overtime. Your department supervisor must approve any overtime hours in advance
or else you may face corrective action, up to and including termination.

If you believe that you have not been compensated for all hours worked, including overtime pay
you believe you are owed, you must immediately report your concerns to the Port Manager, the
Director of Finance and Accounting, or any other management representative with whom you
feel comfortable speaking. Supervisors and managers are prohibited from requiring or
encouraging nonexempt employees to underreport any overtime hours worked. You are obligated
to immediately report to the Port Manager, the Director of Finance and Accounting, or any other
management representative with whom you feel comfortable speaking, any supervisor or
manager who requires or encourages you to under-report your hours worked.

Meal and Rest Periods
Meal and rest periods will be provided for you according to any applicable state laws and
regulations. Supervisors will review these and establish schedules.

All non-exempt employees are required to take the following breaks in a normal workday:

¢ Two 10-minute rest breaks. Employees must take one paid 10-minute rest period (up to
15 minutes permitted) for each 4-hour work segment (e.g., each morning and each
afternoon shift). Rest breaks are to be taken as near as possible to the midpoint of each
work segment, For shifts longer than 8 hours, additional breaks may be required.

¢ One 30-minute meal break. Employees are required to take one unpaid meal break lasting
30 minutes (up to one hour permitted) if the work period is six consecutive hours or
more. The meal break is to be taken between the third and fifth hours worked.

Non-exempt employees only: Meal breaks and rest periods are intended to provide nonexempt
employees an opportunity away from work. Nonexempt employees are relieved of all duties and
are not permitted to perform any work during meal breaks or rest periods unless there is prior
approval from a supervisor, which may be granted on the rare occasion when exceptional and
unanticipated circumstances prevent the employee from taking an uninterrupted meal period. In
these situations, the entire meal period will be paid time. If an employee performs any work
during a meal period, the employee must record the entire period as time worked on their time
report,

Employees are expected to ensure that they take their required breaks during their shift., Tf they
are unable to do so for any reason, they must notify their supervisor by the end of the work day.
Employees who fail to take their meal breaks or rest breaks as required, or who take longer meal
or rest breaks than permitted, may be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge.

Lactation
The Port of Brookings Harbor promotes and supports the practice and need for employees to
express breast milk on its premises during the workday.

Until their babies are older than 18 months of age, employees may take reasonable rest periods to
express breast milk. Nursing breaks may be taken concurrently with regular meal and rest breaks,

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 41 Resolution No. 2022-6311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
26December 21, 2022

13S



although additional reasonable break time will be made available, as needed. Management and
employees will work together to find mutually agreeable hours of work and breaks that support
the continuation of expressing breast milk.

If an employee perceives or observes adverse treatment with respect to the expression of breast
milk, a supervisor/manager should be informed immediately. Such treatment is prohibited and
will not be tolerated.

The Port of Brookings Harbor will provide a clean, private space with an electrical outlet, within
the office building, to express breast milk. This space may vary according to available empty
rooms, Check with the Port Manager. Hand washing facilities and a refrigerator will also be
available at all sites and appropriate signage for privacy will be supplied.

Employees will be responsible for the storage of the expressed milk. The milk, if stored in the
refrigerator provided, must be clearly labeled with the employee’s name. To ensure the safety of
stored breast milk, it is recommended that the container used to store the milk be sealed in a
plastic bag to prevent contamination.

Social and Recreational Activities

Participation in off-duty social or recreational activities such as organization picnics and holiday
parties is entirely voluntary. Participation or nonparticipation will not affect your wages, hours,
working conditions, or present or future employment opportunities.

Inclement Weather and Emergency Closures

Emergencies such as severe weather, fires, power failures, earthquakes, and other natural
disasters can disrupt organizational operations. In exireme cases, these circumstances may
require the closing of our office.

In the event that the Port of Brookings Harbor makes the decision to close the office prior to the
start of the business day, the closure will be announced via an organization-wide email from the
Port Manager. A closure message will also be recorded on the Port of Brookings Harbor’s
general voice message line. It is the responsibility of each employee to check email and call the
voice message line (or other point of contact) for an update, if there is any doubt regarding office
operations.

If a decision is made to close the office after the business day has already begun, the closure
message will also be announced via email (or other method).

Exempt employees will be paid for all absences (full-day or partial day) related to emergency
closures,

Non-exempt employees generally will not be paid for time away from work due to office closure
unless the time qualifies for sick time. Additionally, with supervisory approval, available
vacation may be used. Non-exempt employees who have reported to work before the decision to
close is made will be paid for time worked, or a minimum of two hours, whichever is greater.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |42 Resclution No. 2022-021 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
W December 21,2022

V3¢



TELEWORK OR TELECOMMUTE

The Port of Brookings Harbor generally does not allow employees to telework or telecommute.
If you think you may need a reasonable accommodation, please follow the request procedure
outlined in the Workplace Accommodations policy.

EMPLOYEE-INCURRED EXPENSES AND REIMBURSEMENT

The Port of Brookings Harbor will reimburse employees for all actual and reasonable business-
related expenses incurred while performing job responsibilitics, subject to the guidelines and
procedures set Torth in this policy. All such expenses must be pre-approved by the employee’s
supervisor before payment will be made,

Expense Reimbursement Procedure and Repores

Expense reimbursements will not be paid unless and/or until an expense report and all itemized
receipts or, if lost, a note with a description of the business activity and expense are provided to
the accounting department. Expense reports and all supporting documentation is due to the Port
Manager within five days following the end of the month in which the expense is incurred.

The Port of Brookings Harbor will reimburse an employee for reimbursable expenses promptly
following the date on which the employee submits a cormpleted expense report that includes all
required approvals and substantiating documentation, but in any event no later than December 31
of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense is incurred.

Mileage Reimbursement

While in the course and scope of duties on behalf of the Port of Brookings Harbor, employees,
with their supervisor’s approval, may use their vehicle for business purposes. While driving on
behalf of the Port of Brookings Harbor, employees are required to follow all law, rules, and
regulations and to drive courteously. Coverage provided by the Port of Brookings Harbor for
damages to the employee’s own vehicle is secondary to any other collectible coverage.
Employees using a personal vehicle for business purposes should ensure that their automobile
insurance covers business travel and are encouraged to have comprehensive and collision
coverage on vehicles used for the Port of Brookings Harbor business.

When you use your own vehicle for organization business and with your supetvisor’s approval,
you will be reimbursed for organization-related business travel at the current IRS determined rate
per mile. However, the Port of Brookings Harbor will not reimburse employees for expenses not
necessary for business purposes, such as parking tickets, vehicle repairs and mamtenance fines
for moving violations, and vehicle towing charges.

In order to receive reimbursement for mileage expenses, an expense report must be completed
and sighed and dated by you, initialed by your supervisor, and submitted to the Accounting
Department for processing according to policy. If you have questions about expense reports and
mileage allowances, please ask your supervisor or Port Manager.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 43 Resolution No. 2022-031 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21,2022



Overnight Travel and Meal Expense Reimbursement

If an employee is traveling overnight on a work-related activity, the employee may expense
lodging in a reasonably-priced hotel, food, beverage, and any other incidental expenses that are
reasonable, necessary, and business-related. Employees seeking reimbursement for lodging
expenses must submit an itemized hotel receipt or statement that indicates that full payment has
been made and contains the name and location of the hotel or other lodging; the date or dates of
the employee's stay; and separately-stated charges for lodging, meals, telephone, and other
expenses.

Meal Reimbursement Limits
The Port of Brookings Harbor will not reimburse more than the following amounts for any meal
unless approved in advance by Port Manager; these maximums are inclusive of gratuity.

Breakfast $15.00
Lunch $15.00
Dinner $30.00

Employees must provide receipts or other appropriate substantiating documentation for each
meal taken throughout the trip.

Exceeding Meal Reimbursement Limits

The Port of Brookings Harbor recognizes that there may be certain group meal functions at
locations where a conference/training is held where exceeding the meal reimbursement limits
may be acceptable. Such situations should be known in advance and prior approval must be
obtained from your supervisor,

Alcoholic Beverages
The Port of Brookings Harbor will not pay for alcoholic beverages and such costs should not be
submitted for reimbursement.

Transportation Expense Reimbursement

Reasonable transportation costs may only be expensed upon prior approval from your supervisor.
Transportation costs include such items as airfare, airport parking, hotel shuttles, automobile
rental, and fuel for such rental.

Spouse/Guest Expense Reimbursement
The Port of Brookings Harbor will not pay for expenses incurred by or for an employee’s spouse,
guest, or significant other.

The Port of Brookings Harbor expects its employees fo use good judgment and reserves the right
to deny an expense if, in management’s belief, it is unreasonable.

Section 4094 of the Internal Revenue Code
Reimbursements under this policy are intended to comply with Code Section 409A and
applicable guidance issued thereunder or an exemption from the application of Section 409A.

Accordingly, all provisions of this policy shall be construed and administered in accordance with
Section 409A. The amount of reimbursements provided under this policy in any calendar year

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 44 Resolution No. 2022-62 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: AprH
20December 21, 2022

\ 2B



shall not affect the amount of reimbursements provided during any other calendar year and the
right to reimbursements hereunder cannot be liquidated or exchanged for any other benefit.

Notwithstanding any provision of this policy, the Port of Brookings Harbor shall not be liable to
any employee for any taxes or penalties imposed under Section 409A on any reimbursements
hereunder.

PAY EQUITY

The Port of Brookings Harbor strives to ensure all employees receive an equitable total
compensation package based on a variety of job-related factors, including position, job
performance, education, and experience. From time-to-time, employees performing work of
comparable character may have different compensation levels. Any such differences will be
based on one or more of the following factors: seniority, merit, quantity or quality of work,
workplace location, regular and necessary travel, education, fraining, experience, and any
combination of those factors.

Employees who believe they are not being compensated fairly are encouraged to discuss the
matter with the Port Manager to obtain clarification. Employees will not be retaliated against or
otherwise discriminated against for inquiring about pay equity in good faith, or because they
have filed a complaint, testified, or may testify in an investigation or proceeding to enforce the
Oregon pay equity requirements. If you believe you have been retaliated against or otherwise
negatively impacted for any such activity, you must immediately report the matter to the Port
Manager or any other management representative with whom you feel comfortable speaking.

This policy will be interpreted and applied in accordance with the Oregon Pay Equity Act and its
implementing regulations that may be adopted and amended from time to time.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 45 Resolution No. 2022-031 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Ap+i
20December 21, 2022

&



Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 46 Resolution No. 2022-03 11
Employee Handhook Revision Date: Apri
20December 21, 2022

B\



BENEFITS

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 47 Resolution No. 2022-631 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri
A0December 21, 2022

VAL



PURPOSE AND POLICY

The Port of Brookings Harbor strives to provide the most equitable and cost-effective benefits
for employees in recognition of the influence benefits have on employees’ economic and
personal welfare. Paid in various benefit forms on your behalf, the total cost of providing the
benefit program is a significant supplement to your pay and should be viewed as additional
compensation.

Policies, provisions, and procedures that govern the organization's benefit program apply to all
regular full-time and part-time employees, whether exempt or non-exempt, unless otherwise
stated in a particular benefif plan. Benefits do not apply to temporary or on-call employees.

Some benefits may accrue during your new-hire introductory period, but in most cases eligibility
to use these benefits will not occur until you obtain regular employee status or meet other
conditions of employment specified in this Handbook or contained in the benefit policy/plan
booklets.

Benefit Pro-ration and Employee Cost Sharing

If you are a regular part-time employee, your benefits are prorated based upon the number of
hours you work. Essentially, you accrue sick leave benefits at a lower rate than a full-titme
employee because your accrual rate is based on fewer hours.

Discretionary employee benefits not mandated by state or federal law are selected and controlled
by the Port of Brookings Harbor. Decisions to provide these benefits are based on such
considerations as cost, composition of our workforce, operational efficiency, and desirability of
benefit provisions. When costs of discretionary insurance benefit plans exceed the organization's
interest in or ability to pay the full premium, we will require you to share in the cost of your
coverage.

Benefit Design and Modification

The Port of Brookings Harbor has the right and the sole and exclusive discretion to design plan
provisions and to add, eliminate, or otherwise modify the benefits and their respective plan
documents. Such addition, elimination, or modification may occur at any time with or without
notice, subject to applicable law. Consider that changes to benefits may occur at the Port of
Brookings Harbor’s discretion prior to making a decision based on current benefit offerings.

Benefit Plan Documents

You’ll receive summary plan deseriptions upon eligibility and enrollment. The benefit programs
are explicitly defined in legal documents, including insurance contracts, official plan texts, and
trust agreements. In the event of any conflict between these documents or this Handbook and the
acfual terms of the applicable plan document, the terms of the applicable plan documents will
govern. These official documents are available from the Director of Finance and Accounting for
vour review. We ask that you refer any questions about this information to the Director of
Finance and Accounting.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 48 Resolution No, 20220311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apeil

\YZ



Individual benefits may be modified, become more expensive, or may even be eliminated in the
future because of cost increases or as a result of changes in our business situation or economic
conditions. We encourage you to be thoughtful about relying solely on these benefits, given that
they are subject to change, Upon separation from employment, employees may be eligible for the
continuation of benefits consistent with state and federal law. Any benefits described in this
Handbook apply only so long as the Handbook is current; employees do not have vested rights.

HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT

The Port of Brookings Harbor currently provides health insurance coverage for all employees
and their dependents if they are otherwise eligible to participate in the plan. You will be provided
with information about the plan at the time you become eligible to participate. You are asked to
review the summary plan description for answers to questions you may have. Any need for
further information should be referred to the Director of Finance and Accounting.

Eligibility

This benefit is provided for all regular full-time employees. If otherwise eligible, you may begin
to participate in the plan after you have completed 60 days of continuous employment. Insurance
plan coverage begins on the first day of the month following completion of 60 days of
employment. Part-time, temporary, and on-call employees are generally not eligible to
participate in the health insurance plan.

Plan Enrollment

Once you are eligible, you may complete enrollment forms available through the Director of
Finance and Accounting. If you don’t want to enroll at the time of eligibility and later decide to
request enrollment, you will only be allowed to enroll if you can demonstrate that a qualifying
event has occurred which qualifies you for a special enrollment period.

The organization pays the full monthly premium for enrolled employees.

Coverage for dependents of employees is also available; however, you are responsible for the
full cost of the monthly premium associated with this coverage. See Director of Finance and
Accounting for information.

An eligible employee who chooses not to enroll in the insurance plan is not entitled to any other
form of compensation in lieu of coverage and is required to sign a written waiver of
participation.

Medical information is covered by HIPAA regulations. The Port of Brookings Harbor realizes
the responsibility we have to treat your private health information with great care and discretion.
We have implemented safeguards to protect this information.

Premium Cost

Specific types of coverage and benefit payment schedules are described in the organization's
health care plan booklet that is available to all eligible employees. At the time of eligibility and
during open enrollment each year, you will be informed of how much the organization will

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 49 Regolution No. 2022-03 1 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: -April
20December 21, 2022

\H3



contribute toward your monthly premiums if you are eligible to participate in the plan. Premium
rates are established by the insurance carrier and are subject to change, usually based on
increased costs to provide medical services and the amount of services our employees require.

Any premium co-payment and dependent coverage you are required to pay is funded through a
monthly payroll deduction, The Port of Brookings Harbor determines the payroll deduction
schedule.

Termination of Coverage

In the event that you or your dependents lose eligibility to participate in the health plan, you may
have the option of extending your health plan coverage for a period of time under the
continuation coverage provided for by state law. Eligibility can be lost if certain “qualifying
events” occur that would otherwise cause your or a dependent’s group health coverage to
terminate. Examples of qualifying events include termination of employment, a reduction in
hours, death of the covered employee, divorce, entitlement to benefits under Medicare, and a
qualified beneficiary losing dependent child status.

You, your spouse, and dependents may continue group health insurance for up to nine months at
your own expense if you were enrolled in the plan for at least three months. However,
continuation does not occur automatically. You must elect coverage within 30 days, or you and
any dependent will lose the right to state continuation coverage. Payment of the premium must
then occur within 30 days for coverage to continue. You and any covered dependent(s) will
receive information about the provisions of the law when you first enroll in benefits and again if
a qualifying event occurs.

Portability/Conversion of Health Plan

If you’ve been continuously covered under our group medical insurance policy for at least

180 days and your employment with us ends, you may be eligible to convert to an individual
policy with our insurance carrier. You may request this portability coverage before, during, or at
the end of the benefit extension period described above. However, you must apply for portability
coverage from our insurance carrier within 60 days after your group coverage ends. Please
contact the insurance carrier for more information about this coverage.

DENTAL INSURANCE BENEFIT

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides a dental insurance plan for employees.

Eligibility

Full-time employees regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week are eligible for
dental insurance coverage on the first day of the month after 60 days of employment. Part-time,
temporary, and on-call employees are not eligible to participate in dental insurance.

Cost
At the time of eligibility and during open enrollment each year, you will be notified of how much
the organization will contribute toward monthly premiums,

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 50 Resclution No. 2022-03] 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apei
20December 21, 2022

Y



Employees may enroll dependents in the dental care plan, but must pay all of the premium costs
associated with this coverage, which will be deducted from the employee’s paycheck.

OTHER INSURANCE BENEFITS

Group Life Insurance

We provide group life insurance coverage for eligible employees. Full-time employees who are
regularly scheduled to work 30 hours per week or more become eligible for this coverage on the
first day of the month after 60 days of employment. The amount of insurance coverage is equal
to your base annual salary with a $50,000 maximum.

Short-Term Disability

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides a group short-term disability plan. Full-time employees
who are regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week become eligible for this plan on
the first day of the month after 60 days of employment. The Port of Brookings Harbor pays the
full premium.

Premium Only 125 Plan

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides a Premium Only 125 Plan that allows eligible employees
to pay their share of elected group medical or dental coverage on a pre-tax basis. Details will be
provided to employees in advance of eligibility (first day of the month after 60 days of
employment).

VACATION BENEFIT

All full-time employees are eligible for vacation based on the schedule below. All accruals begin
on the first day of regular employment, but employees are not eligible to use vacation time until
the introductory period of 60 days has been successfully completed. The accrual is based on the
first day of regular employment and continuing with the anniversary date of employment.

You will earn vacation benefits according to the following schedule:

Length of Employment Accrual Rate

First year .0385 hour/per hour worked
Second year 0577 hour/per hour worked
Third and fourth year .0769 hour/per hour worked
Fifth year and beyond .0962 hour/per hour worked

Eligible employees who want to use vacation time should request time off as early as possible so
that arrangements for coverage can be made. Requests for vacation time are to be made via ADP
Employee Access or made in writing and submitted to your supervisor. However, requests may
be denied if management is unable to have the employee’s requested time off covered. If more
than one employee in a department asks for the same time off and gives the required advance
notice, length of service within the department will be considered in granting the requests. In all

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 51 Resolution No. 2022-0211
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apei
20December 21, 2022



cases, management retains the maximum discretion allowed by law to decide whether to grant
requests for time off.

All vacation will be paid at the employee's regular rate of base pay, including applicable shift
differentials.

For purposes of this policy, an employee’s vacation leave years is based on the employee’s date
of hire anniversary. Eligible employees carry over a maximum of 100 hours of accrued and
unused vacation time from one leave year to the next. An employee who has more than

100 hours of accrued and unused vacation time at the end of their leave year may exercise any of
the following options:

o Carry over hours to the next leave year's vacation leave bank, not to exceed 100 hours.
o Cash out hours at 100 percent of face value.

The election of these option(s) must take place one month prior to the end of the employee’s
leave year. Review your vacation balance before that time. After review, inform the Director of
Finance and Accounting of the option(s) you have chosen. This review of unused vacation hours
is the employee’s responsibility. Any unused vacation hours exceeding 100 hours at the end of
the employee’s year will be automatically forfeited; only 100 hours may be carried over.

Vacation accrual will be paid out at separation in accordance with this policy and any applicable
law.

SICK LEAVE BENEFIT

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides paid sick leave to all employees in accordance with the
Oregon paid sick leave law, which this policy is intended to comply with and will be interpreted
in accordance with. For any questions about sick leave, please contact the Director of Finance
and Accounting,.

Sick leave may be used for any reason allowed under the Oregon paid sick leave law, including:

s An employee’s absence resulting from:
o the employee’s mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition;

o the employee’s need for medical diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental or
physical illness, injury, or health condition; or

o the employee’s need to obtain preventative health care.

* An absence to allow an employee:

o to provide care for a family member with a mental or physical illness, injury, or
health condition;

o to provide care for a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or
treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; or

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 52 Resolution No. 2022-02 | |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

14



o to provide care for a family member who needs preventative health care.

e For any purposes allowed under OFLA, including serious health condition leave,
bereavement leave, parental leave, or sick child leave, regardless of whether the
employee is eligible for OFLA leave and regardless of whether the company is a
“covered employer” under OFLA.

¢ For any purpose allowed under Oregon’s domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault,
or stalking law as described in ORS 659A.272.

» In the event of a public health emergency, including:

o Closure of the employee's place of business, or the school or place of care of the
employee's child, by order of a public official due to a public health emergency;

o A determination by a lawful public health authority or by a health care provider
that the presence of the employee or the family member of the employee in the
community would jeopardize the health of others, such that the employee must
provide self-care or care for the family member; or

o The exclusion of the employee from the workplace under any law or rule that
requires the employer to exclude the employee from the workplace for health
Teasons.

The Port of Breokings Harbor does allow employees to donate sick time to other employees.

Consistent with state law, for purposes of sick leave, “family member” includes an employee’s
spouse, same-gender domestic partner, or registered domestic partner; former spouse or domestic
partner; custodial parent, non-custodial parent, adoptive parent, foster parent, biological parent,
stepparent, parent-in-law, a parent of an employee’s same-gender domestic partner, de facto
parent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or registered domestic
partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; an
employee’s grandparent or grandchild; a sibling; or a person with whom the employee is or was
in a relationship of in loco parentis. “Family member” also includes a biological, adopted, foster
child, or stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands iz loco parentis, is a legal guardian,
or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or dependency status; of an employee, or the child of an
employee’s same-gender domestic partner.

Eligibility and Accumulation
All employees are eligible to use sick leave as soon as the employee becomes eligible (60 days
after hire date) based on the following:

e Full-time employees who have completed one year of employment:

Employees with one year of employment and that are regularly scheduled to work 30 or
more hours a week will be assighed and made available 40 hours of sick leave benefits at
the beginning of each year.

e Full-time employees employed for less than a full year:
Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 53 Resolution No. 2022-831 1

Employee Handbook Revision Date: Ap+H
Z0December 21, 2022



New regular full-time employees will receive sick leave on a pro rata basis equal to the
percentage of the calendar year left at date of hire.

For full-time employees employed for less than a full year, the number of hours of sick
leave benefits will be assigned on pro rata basis equal to the percentage of the calendar
year left at date of hire. For example, if an employee starts work on July 1, their sick
leave balance will be front-loaded with one-half of the annual 40 hours of paid sick leave,
or 20 sick leave hours. As soon as the employee becomes eligible (60 days after hire
date), these hours will be made available for use. On the first day of the immediately
subsequent year, the new employee will be assigned and made available 40 hours of sick
leave benefits at the beginning of each year.

e Part-time employees:

Employees that are regularly scheduled to work less than 30 hours a week will
accumulate sick leave benefits at the rate of 1 hour per 30 hours worked. As soon as the
employee becomes eligible (60 days after hire date), these hours will be made available
for use. Sick time may be used as it is accrued moving forward.

All sick leave time will be paid at the employee's regular rate of base pay, including
applicable shift differentials.

Full-time employees that are regularly scheduled te work 30 or more hours a week may
accumulate unused sick leave time until the employee has accrued a total of 720 hours’
worth of sick leave benefits. If the employee’s benefits reach this maximum, further
accrual sick leave benefits will be suspended until the employee has reduced the balance
below the limit.

Part-time employees that are regularly scheduled to work less than 30 hours a week may
accumulate unused sick leave time until the employee has accrued a total of 80 hours’
worth of sick leave benefits. If the employee’s benefits reach this maximum, further
accrual sick leave benefits will be suspended until the employee has reduced the balance
below the limit.

No payment will be made for any unused or accrued sick leave hours upon separation.

Retaliation Prohibited

An employee may not be discriminated or retaliated against for lawful exercise of paid sick leave
rights. Employees will not be disciplined for lawful use of paid sick leave. If an employee in
good faith believes that he or she has been discriminated or retaliated against under this policy or
applicable law, the employee must immediately report the matter to the Port Manager or any
other management representative with whom you feel comfortable speaking. Any employee who
discriminates or retaliates against another employee for his or her lawful exercise of paid sick
leave rights, may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 54 Resolution No, 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

4B



PAID HOLIDAY BENEFIT

The Port of Brookings Harbor observes the following holidays each year and our offices are
officially closed on these days:

New Year’s Day
Martin Luther King Jr, Day
President’s Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth
Independence Day
Labor Day

Veterans Day (Nov. 11)
Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

Employees will receive a schedule each year showing the date each of these holidays will be
observed. These holidays or any additional time observed, such as Christmas Eve or New Year's
Eve, will be determined each year at management’s discretion.

Eligibility

Full-time employees regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week will be paid for the
above holidays. Part-time employees regularly scheduled to work between 20 and 30 hours will
receive a prorated amount of paid time based on their regularly scheduled time. For instance, a
part-time employee regulatly scheduled to work 20 hours per week would receive 4 hours of
holiday pay because 50 percent of a full-time schedule is worked.

VETERANS DAY HOLIDAY

Eligible employees have the option of taking Veterans Day off by requesting it as a holiday
during any year it falls on a scheduled work day. This time will be paid as described in the Paid
Holiday Benefit section of this Handbook.

Establishing Eligibility

Employees are eligible if they fall within specific parameters outlined by law. Generally, an
individual is eligible if he or she has served on active duty for at least 178 consecutive days and
received an honorable discharge, and/or received a disability rating, and/or was in a combat zone
during active duty of any length. Please inquire about additional qualifying circumstances. We
may request that you provide documents establishing your eligibility.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor of your request at least 21 calendar days prior to the
holiday. Your manager or supervisor will respond to your request no less than 14 calendar days
prior to the holiday.

Port of Brookings Hairbor Page | 55 Resolution No. 2022-031
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri
20December 21, 2022

4



Employer Response
Due to situations where providing time off would create a significant economic or operational

disruption, or undue hardship would occur, the decision may be made not to allow anyone to take
the day off or to allow the day off for only the minimum amount of employees. If a veteran does
not receive time off for Veterans Day, the employee may choose, with supervisory approval, a
single day off within the year after the Veterans Day on which the employee worked as a
replacement for Veterans Day to honor the employee's service.

OTHER BENEFITS

Simplified Employee Pension (SEP) IRA Plan
An employee is eligible to participate in the Simplified Employee Pension IRA plan if he or she
is an eligible employee under the terms of the plan.

In general, an eligible employee is an individual who meets all the following requirements:
» minimum of 21 years of age
e been employed with Port of Brookings Harbor in at least one of the last five years

o received at least $650 in compensation from the employer during the year (in 2021
and 2022)

Contributions to the SEP-IRA are fully funded by the Port of Brookings Hatrbor through the
designated financial institution. The Port of Brooking Harbor reserves the right to change the
designated financial institution used for the SEP-IR A at any time, without notice.

Contribution limits may vary from year to year. See the Port Manager for current maximum
limits.

All eligible employees receive 10 percent of their salary (subject to an annual compensation
limit), funded by Port of Brookings Harbor. You will be provided more detailed information
upon eligibility.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 56 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21,2022



LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 57 Resolution No, 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

AL ALY }

\S\



LEAVE OF ABSENCE POLICY

We realize that our employees may encounter situations that require a {emporary short-term or
extended absence from work. We offer several different types of leaves of absence for the
following purposes:

Bereavement Leave Disability and Pregnancy Accommodation Leave [Non-FMLA]
Civic Duty Military Leave Leave to Donate Bone Marrow
Personal Teave Crime Victims’ Leave Domestic Violence Leave

Any other leave protected by law

The type of leave requested may determine which employees are eligible and what procedure
should be followed in requesting and obtaining the leave. The effect of the leave on benefit
accruals, benefits, and reinstatement rights also varies according to the type of leave you are
requesting. Each of these leaves is discussed on the following pages. If you have any questions
about your potential eligibility for a leave or your benefits and rights while on a leave, please
contact the Port Manager.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

You are eligible to take a Bereavement Leave in the event of the death of the following
immediate family members:

o Spouse/Domestic Partner

s Biological, Adoptive, Foster, or Stepchild

Parent/Parent-in-law

Grandparent/Grandchild

Sibling/Sibling-in-law

Another Person of “In Loco Parentis” Relation

e Any other relative residing in the same house or person acting in the capacity of an
immediate family member

Leave to attend the funeral of a non-immediate family member with whom you had an especially
close relationship may also be granted at the discretion of management.

This leave may be taken to attend the funeral or alternative of the family member, to make
arrangements necessitated by the death of a family member, or to grieve the death of a family
member. The leave must be completed within 60 days after the date on which you received
notice of the death of your family member.

Length of Leave

The length of leave you may be granted for bereavement is situational and may be decided based
upon the unique circumstances of your need. At a minimum, you are allowed to take up to three
consecutive regularly scheduled working days away from work for a bereavement leave for
immediate family members. If you need additional time off for any bereavement purpose, you

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 58 Resolution No. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\SL.



may ask your supervisor’s approval, or you may use earned vacation pay or apply for an unpaid
personal leave of absence.

Request Procedure

You are expected to give as much notice as possible of the need for time-off so that
arrangements can be made to cover your absence. You are required to at least provide oral notice
within 24 hours of taking leave, but someone else can do this on your behalf, if necessary. You
must provide written notice of the request for time off no later than three days after returning to
work.

Pay While on Leave

You will continue to receive regular pay (based on straight-time work hours missed up to eight
hours a day for up to three days, which is the maximum company-paid absence allowed for
bereavement leave under this policy.

Status of Benefits

Company-paid bereavement leave won’t affect your eligibility for benefits or the continuation of
benefit accruals. If you are granted additional time off, the effect of the additional leave on your
benefits will be determined by our personal leave policy and the applicable benefit plan.

Crvic DUTY LEAVE

Jury or Witness Duty Leave

Employees subpoenaed to serve as witnesses or for jury duty may obtain a protected leave of
absence. If we feel that your absence would cause an undue hardship to you or the organization,
we may instead request, with your agreement, that jury duty be postponed. You are not required
to use accrued leave for time spent in responding to a summons for jury duty. You are allowed to
take leave without pay for time spent by the employee in responding to a summons for jury duty.
Or you may choose to use your accrued paid vacation available for voluntary service as a witness
or for court appearances you must make as part of your own legal proceedings or lawsuit.

Length of Leave
Jury or witness duty leave is available for the period of time covered by the initial subpoena or
court order and any involuntary extensions.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor as soon as is practicable after you receive notice
asking you to serve as a witness or on a jury so that arrangements can be made to cover your
position. You are expected to provide us with a copy of the subpoena or notice within five days
after you received it.

Pay While on L.eave

You will be compensated for the difference between the civic pay received and your regular rate
of pay for up to two weeks if you are a non-exempt employee; after that period, you may utilize
accrued paid time off if desired. For exempt employees, any partial day or partial week worked
will be paid in full, employees are required to remit any jury fees received in connection with
their service.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 59 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
2B December 21, 2022

\S%



Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by jury or witness duty leaves.

Voting Leave

We encourage all employees to vote and to take advantage of polling hours before or after work.
However, if you are unable to vote outside of business hours, we will work to accommodate you
in arranging a time for you to vote.

Request Procedure
You must notify your manager or supervisor before election day if you are unable to vote before
or after work and provide a valid reason why voting during those hours ig not possible.

Pay While on Leave
Time off to vote will be without pay for non-exempt employees, unless you have earned hours of
vacation or personal time that you can use for that purpose.

CRIME VICTIMS’ LEAVE

If you or a member of your immediate family suffers financial, social, psychological, or physical
harm as a result of a personal felony you may be entitled to take protected leave from work to
attend criminal proceedings.

Eligibility

You will be eligible to take crime victims’ leave if you have worked an average of more than
25 hours per week for the organization for at least 180 days immediately before the leave would
begin.

Length of Leave

The amount and length of leave time you may take is limited to that which does not create
significant difficulty and expense (undue hardship) to the organization. If the organization must
limit your leave due to undue hardship, you may notify the prosecuting attorney in the criminal
praceeding, who is required to notify the court. The court will then take your work schedule into
consideration when scheduling the criminal proceedings.

Request Procedure

You must provide your manager or supervisor with reasonable notice of your intention to take
crime victims’ leave, and provide copies of any notices of scheduled criminal proceedings that
you receive from a law enforcement agency. We will treat such documentation as confidential
information.

Pay While on I.eave

Crime victims’ leave is unpaid; however, eligible employees who take this type of leave may use
any accrued paid (vacation/sick/personal) time available to them. Exempt employees working
partial days or partial weeks will be paid in full for the entire day or week. Accrued paid time off
may be used first.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 60 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook ' Revision Date: AprH
28December 21, 2022

\SY



Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by crime victims’ Ieave.

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE LEAVE

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault, or stalking, or is
the parent or guardian of a minor child or dependent who is a victim of domestic violence,
harassment, sexual assault, or stalking, may be entitled to take unpaid protected leave from work.

Eligibility

All Port of Brookings Harbor employees are eligible to take domestic violence leave.

Reasons for Leave
Reasons for taking leave under this policy include the employee’s (or the employee’s minor
child’s or dependent’s) need to:

o seek legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies including involvement in a judicial
action or proceeding;

e secure medical treatment for or time off to recover from injuries;
+ seek counseling from a licensed mental health professional;
» obtain services from a victim services provider; or
* relocate or to take steps to secure an existing home.
Length of Leave

The amount of leave taken will be reasonable and that which does not create a significant
difficulty and expense (undue hardship) for the organization.

Request Procedure

An employee accessing this leave provision needs to provide reasonable advance notice to a
manager or supervisor of the employee’s intention to take leave under the policy, unless giving
advance notice is not feasible. We understand that instances of violence are usually not
predictable, and these requests may be made with little forewarning. We will treat any
information you share as confidentially as possible.

Safety Measures

Employees who are victims of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault, or stalking may be
entitled to a “reasonable safety accommodation” that will allow the employee to more safely
continue to work, unless such an accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the
organization.

Pay While on Leave
Crime victims’ leave is unpaid; however, eligible employees who take this type of leave may use
any accrued paid (vacation/sick/personal) time available to them. Exempt employees working

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 61 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\SS



partial days or partial weeks will be paid in full for the entire day or week. Accrued paid time off
may be used first.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by domestic violence leave.

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE (FMLA & OFLA)

Oregon’s Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance (“PFMLI™) program, also known as Paid

Leave Oregon, (“PLO™) is a mandatory statewide insurance program that provides qualifving
emplovees with state wage replacement benefits {or time olf from work that is needed to give or
receive care, or for purposes related to domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking. or harassment.
These benefils are funded by premiums deducted from emplovees” wages beginning January 1,
2023 and are administered by the Oregon Employment Department (“OED™). Your premium
contribution will be reflected on your paystub.

OED will provide state paid leave benefits to eligible employees for leaves from work related to
qualifving events beginning on September 3, 2023. These are partial “wage replacement” benefits.
with a maximum weekly benefit amount based on the individual’s average wages from the
previous vear. Minimum and maximum amounts are based on the state average weekly wage,
which will be updated every vear on July 1st. Eligible employees may take up to 12 weeks of
PFMLI leave per vear. In some prepnancy-related situations, eligible employees may be able to
take up to two more weeks. for a total of 14 weeks.

Detailed information is available at hitps://paidleave.oregon.gov/Pages/default.aspx. You can also
call PLO at 833-854-0166 (toll-{ree) or email PLO at paidleave@oregon.gov with any questions.
Below is some additional information about what you can expect, and how those benefits will
work with vour existing leave and benefits through the Company.

Eligible Employees

To _qualify for wage replacement benefits under PFMLI, an employee must have earned at Jeast
$1.000 in wages in Oregon in the relevant base year and contributed to PFMLI through paycheck
deductions. Whether an employee gualifies for PEMLI leave, and the weekly benefit amount. will

be determined by OED when an employee applies.

Qualifving Events
There are three categories of gualifying events, and each may require documentation to support
the need for leave:

1. Family Leave — For an employee:

a. To bond with a new child within the first 12 months after birth, adoption, or foster
placement. This leave mav be extended by an additional two (2) weeks for the birth

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 62 Resolution No. 2022-031 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Aptil
20December 21, 2022

S



parent where needed for pregnancy issues or childbirth recovery, for a iotal of 14
weeks; or
b. To care for a family member experiencing a serious health condition,

2. Medical Leave — For an employee to care for their own serious health condition.

3. Safe Leave — As provided for in ORS 659A.272, for survivors of sexual assault, domestic
violence, harassment, or stalking to obtain legal or law enforcement assistance, seek
medical treatment to recover from injuries. obtain counseling or support services, to
relocate or take other steps to secure the health and safety of themselves or their dependent

child(ren),

A family member 1s defined in this program as:
e The employee’s spouse or domestic partner;
e The employee’s child or the child’s spouse or domestic partner;
e The emplovee’s parent or the parent’s spouse or domestic partner;
e The emplovee’s sibling or stepsibling or their spouse or domestic partner;
e The employee’s grandparent or the grandparent’s spouse or domestic partner,
o The emplovee’s grandchild or grandchild’s spouse or domestic partner; or
e Any individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with a covered
individual is the equivalent of a family relationship.

Applying for Benefits and Notice to the Company

If you are eligible and believe you have a qualifying event, you should notify Office Manager at
541-469-2218 or Port office and apply directly to the OED for benefits. If the need for leave is
foreseeable. yvou should provide notice at least thirty (30) davs prior to beginning leave. If an
emergency prevenis priot notice, then vou must provide verbal notice within 24 hours and written
notice within 3 days of starting PFMLI leave.

Continuation of Health Benefits

An eligible emplovee’s existing health benefits will continue for the duration of the employee’s
PFMLI leave, as if the emplovee had continued in employment continuously during the period of
leave.

Job Protection and Return to Work

Emplovees taking PFMLI will be entitled to job protection (i.e. reinstatement) if they have been
employed for at least 90 calendar days. If the position held by an eligible employee when the
emplovee’s leave started no longer exists, the employee may be restored to a different position
with similar job duties and the same employment benefits and pay at the Company’s discretion
and based on business necessity.

Interplay with Other Leaves
Employees cannot receive PFMLI wage replacement benefits at the same time that they are
receiving workers’ compensation or unemployment insurance benefits.

Paid Leave Oregon provides a helpful chart discussing the overlap between paid leave benefits
and FMLA, OFLA, and Oregon Sick Leave: hitps:/paidleave.oregon.gov/Documents/Paid-Leave-
OFLA-FMLA-Chart-EN.pdf. Due to the Port of Brooking Harbor’s size (below 25 employees),

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 63 Resolution No. 2022-6311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri
20December 21, 2022

N



Leave Act. Employees are therefore not eligible for FMLA or OFLA.

Retaliation Prolibited
Retaliation for applying for or taking PFMLI leave is prohibited. Any and all concerns about
potential retaliation should be reported to Office Manager at 541-469-2218,

LEAVE TO DONATE BONE MARROW

Eligibility

Employees working an average of 20 or more hours per week are eligible for this leave.

Length of Leave

An employee may take accrued paid leave to undergo a medical procedure to donate bone
marrow. Such leave shall not exceed the amount of accrued leave or 40 work hours, whichever is
less. In extenuating circumstances, approval to take more time off (paid or unpaid) may be
granted by a supervisor or manager.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor as soon as is practicable afier you become aware
that you will be donating bone marrow. You are expected to provide a copy of the doctor’s
verification of the purpose and length of leave requested for bone marrow donation. If there is a
medical determination that you do not qualify as a bone marrow donor, the paid leave of absence
used before that determination was made will not be affected.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by this leave.

PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Full-time, regular employees may be granted an unpaid personal leave of absence under certain
circumstances. A personal leave of absence is an approved period of time away from work for
personal reasons that do not fall under the guidelines of any other leave policy. A personal leave
of absence is granted at our discretion and is normally granted to protect the length of service
and benefit rights of an employee whose service might otherwise be terminated.

Eligibility

You become eligible for a personal leave of absence after 12 months of service. All earned paid
leave must be exhausted first. If you want to take a personal leave of absence, you must make
arrangements with your supervisor.

Length of Leave
A personal leave of absence starts on the first regular workday following the last day worked.
The maximum leave allowed under this policy is 60 days.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 64 Resolation No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: ApsH
20December 21, 2022

1S&



Request Procedure

A written request, using the Leave of Absence Request Form, should be submitted at least one
week (five working days) before personal leave will begin, except in emergencies. Leave
requests must include an expected date of return. If you do not return after three days of that date
and no extension has been requested, we’ll assume you have resigned.

Pay While on Leave
Personal leaves of absence are without pay.

Status of Benefits

Insurance coverage will not be maintained for you while on a personal leave of absence of more
than 30 days; leaves longer than 30 days may require continuation of benefits through state
continuation provisions or COBRA. You may continue insurance coverage by paying the full
premium by the first of each month. Benefits do not accrue during this type of leave of absence,
but are instead retained at the same level.

Reinstatement

The organization will attempt to reinstate individuals returning from a personal leave of absence,
but no guarantees are made. While you are on a personal leave of absence, you are required to
check in with your supervisor on a regular basis to inform us of your status and to notify us of
any change in personal data. You may be required to present a doctor’s release before being
reinstated if the leave was medically-related.

UNIFORMED SERVICES LEAVE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT

Regular employees requiring a leave of absence for service in the uniformed services are
provided leave and will be reemployed at the end of the leave. Policies governing this leave are
designed according to, and should be interpreted consistent with, the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act and applicable state regulations. The policy covers
employees who enter active military duty voluntarily and extends to Reservists or National
Guard members who are called to limited active duty or extended training duty, including
regularly-scheduled annual training and military summer camp training. These military
members, and those with previous or current military service, are protected from discrimination
and harassment.

Eligibility
All employees of the organization except those hired on a brief, non-recurrent basis are eligible
for leave.

Length of L.eave

Given that the requirements regarding this type of leave are subject to change, the length of this
leave will be administered under the current provisions of all applicable laws at the time of
OCCUIrence.

Request Procedure
You must provide oral or written notice, using the Leave of Absence Request Form, of your
obligation or intention to perform service in the uniformed services, unless notice is precluded by

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 65 Resolution No. 2022-8311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022



military necessity or is otherwise unreasonable or impossible. Failure to do so may result in loss
of reemployment rights.

Pay While on Leave
Military leaves are without pay unless you elect to utilize vacation benefits earned before the
commencement of the leave.

Status of Benefits

Reservists, National Guard members, and veterans returning from military service in the Armed
Forces have and retain rights with respect to seniority, vacation, compensation, and length of
service pay increases, as may be provided by applicable statutes of the United States and the
State of Oregon. For any leave extending beyond 30 days, you may maintain health care
insurance benefits for up to 24 months while on leave by paying the full insurance premiums.

Reinstatement

If you are returning from a USERRA leave, you generally must report to work or request
reemployment within prescribed time limits, which are based on the length of the leave as
follows:

1to 30 days: You are expected to report to work on the first regularly scheduled work
day following the completion of your service and an eight-hour rest
period. You will most likely be reinstated to a position you would have
held had you not taken leave or to the same position you held prior to the
leave.

31 to 180 days: You should submit an application for reemployment no later than 14 days
after an honorable release from service unless it is impossible or
unreasonable through no fault of your own. You will generally be
reinstated to the position you would have attained if continuously
employed, so long as you are qualified for the job or can become
qualified after reasonable efforts by the Port of Brookings Harbor or to
the same position you held prior to leave. In some cases, reinstatement
may be made to a position of like seniority, status, and pay to either of
the aforementioned positions or to their nearest approximation.

181 daysor  You must apply for reemployment no later than 90 days after the

longet: completion of satisfactory service, absent extenuating circumstances.
You will generally be reinstated to the position you would have attained
if continuously employed, so long as you are qualified for the job or can
become qualified after reasonable efforts by the Port of Brookings Harbor
or to the same position you held prior to leave. In some cases,
reinstatement may be made to a position of like seniority, status, and pay
to either of the aforementioned pogitions or to their nearest
approximation.

For service of 31 days or more, the Port of Brookings Harbor will request that you provide
documentation to verify your rights to reemployment, including your separation papers.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 66 Resolution No. 2022-02 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\LO



Veterans who have suffered a service-connected injury or illness and are hospitalized or
convalescing have up to two years following completion of military service to return to their jobs
or apply for reemployment, depending on the length of recovery time required. If an employee is
unable to comply with the reporting schedule in this policy through no fault of their own or if
they are injured or recovering from an injury and need an accommodation for specific
circumstances beyond their conirol, they should speak with the Port Manager as soon as possible
to determine if they are eligible for a reasonable accommodation or additional time to apply for
reemployment. Failure to file an application within the required time periods may otherwise
result in a loss of the right to reemployment.

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEE TEMPORARY ACTIVE DUTY
LEAVE

Employees who have worked for the Port of Brookings Harbor for six months are entitled to
military service leave with pay not to exceed 15 calendar days in any one training year for annual
active duty for training as a member of the National Guard, National Guard Reserves, or any
reserve component of the U.S. Armed Forces, or the U.S. Public Health Services.

A “training year” means the federal fiscal year (October 1 through September 30) for any unit of
the National Guard or a reserve component. Such leaves are granted without loss of other leave
and without impairment of other pay, rights, or benefits, provided the employee receives bona
fide orders to training duty for a temporary period and provided they return to their position
immediately upon expiration of the period of ordered duty as provided for under ORS 408.290.

OREGON MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE

Due to the size of the Port of Brookings Harbor {(below 25 employees), the organization is not
covered by the Oregon Military Family Leave Act, Employees are therefore not eligible for this
leave type. Notice will be provided to employees if this eligibility changes.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 67 Resolution No. 2022-031 1
Employee Handbook Revigion Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\to\



Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 68 Resolution No. 2022-631 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\oL-



HEALTH AND SAFETY

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 69 Resolution No. 2022-03 | |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apri
20December 21,2022

\(3



EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Port of Brookings Harbor is committed to providing our employees with a safe and healthful
work environment. To accomplish this goal, both management and employees must make
diligent efforts to promote safety within applicable laws and standards. For further reference, the
Port of Brookings Harbor adopted the health and safety policy in 2019.

We develop and implement safety rules and regulations through our managers and supervisors.
This process is ongoing and requires periodic safety audits. Safety audits are undertaken to
determine the necessity and feasibility of providing devices or safeguards to make the workplace
safe and healthful. We also educate employees about workplace hazards and the proper and safe
methods to use in performing job tasks.

You are expected to give your full skill and attention to the performance of your duties, using the
highest standard of care and good judgment. You are also expected to always follow safety rules
and regulations, including using appropriate protective clothing, shoes, and equipment, attending
all mandatory training sessions offered, and following directions of warning signs, signals, and
supervisory personnel.

All job-related injuries or illnesses are to be reported to your supervisor immediately, regardless
of severity. In the case of serious injury, your reporting obligation will be deferred until
circumstances reasonably permit a report to be made. Failure to report an injury or illness may
preclude or delay the payment of any benefits to you. No one will be retaliated against for filing
a workers’ compensation claim in good faith.

Safety rules may be issued or modified from time-to-time and will be effective immediately upon
communication. Rules will be distributed to you and posted on the employee bulletin board.

If a workplace injury or illness occurs, you are required to:

1. take remedial first aid actions; seck emergency care if necessary;

2. report the injury or illness as soon as possible;

3. fill out the report form and workers” compensation form; and

4, review the incident with our Safety/Security & Environmental Coordinator.

Early Return to Work Program

Our Return to Work program provides guidelines for returning you to work as eatly as possible
after you have suffered an on-the-job-injury or job-related illness. The program is not intended to
be a substitute for a reasonable accommodation when an injured or ill employee also qualifies as
an individual with a disability.

The Return to Work program consists of a team effort by supervisors, employees, and their
treating physicians, management, and our workers’ compensation insurance carrier. All team
members will take an active role in returning an employee to productive work. Through this team

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 70 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

WY



effort, we hope to help our employees recover and return to full employment as soon as their
medical condition permits.

If you are injured on the job and your doctor determines that you are able to perform modified
work, the organization will attempt to provide such a job until you are able to tesume your
regular duties, except where provided as an accommodation for a permanent disability. All
modified work is temporary and may be offered at any location or on any shift. If you are offered
a modified position that has been medically approved, failure to report at the designated time and
place may affect time loss compensation.

Smoking in the Workplace

The Port of Brookings Harbor is a non-smoking facility, This includes the use of electronic
cigarettes and vaping devices. Places outside the office may be designated as smoking areas;
smoking is limited to these areas. Please do not smoke or vape within 10 feet of any entrance,
exit, window, or air intake device. If any employee has a concern about the areas designated, that
individual should speak with the appropriate supervisor.

Employee Right to Know/Hazard Communication Program

The Port of Brookings Harbor provides a Hazard Communication Program so that all employees
are aware of chemical hazards in the workplace. By becoming familiar with this information you
can help prevent injuries and illnesses from chemical exposure. If you have any questions
regarding chemical hazards, do not delay in asking your supervisor or our Safety/Security &
Environmental Coordinator.

The following safety precautions have been taken to prevent injuries and illnesses from chemical
exposure:

Container Labeling
The Operation Lead or the Safety/Security & Environmental Coordinator will verify that all
containers received for use will:

e be clearly labeled as to the contents with a product identifier;

» note the appropriate hazard warning with a precautionary statement, pictogram, hazard
statement, and supplemental information; and

» list the manufacturer/supplier’s name, address, and emergency phone number.
It is our policy that no container will be released for use until the above data is verified.

The supervisor in each section will ensure that all secondary containers have either an extra copy
of the original manufacturer's label or a generic label that has identification and hazard warning
blocks. For help with labeling, see the Operation Lead or the Safety/Security & Environmental
Coordinator.

Safety Data Sheets (SDS)

Caopies of safety data sheets for all hazardous chemicals that employees of the organization may
be exposed to will be kept in the Port Office and/or Port Shop. Safety data sheets will be
available to all employees in their work areas for review during each work shift. Never use a

Port of Brookings Harbor Page| 71 Resolution No, 2022-68311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

]

\LS



chemical or associated machinery if its safety data sheet is not available; you should immediately
contact the Operation Lead or the Safety/Security & Environmental Coordinator before using the
chemical or the machine containing it.

Employee Information and Training
Before starting work, you will attend a health and safety orientation and receive information and

training about the following:

e an overview of the requirements contained in the Globally Harmonized Hazard
Communication System;

e chemicals present in your workplace operations;
¢ Jocation and availability of our written hazard communication program;
o physical and health effects of the hazardous chemicals;

e methods and observation techniques used to determine the presence or release of
hazardous chemicals in the work area; and

e how to reduce or prevent exposure to these hazardous chemicals through the use of
control/work practices and personal protective equipment.

After attending the training class, you will sign a form to verify that you attended, received our
written materials, and understand our policies on hazard communication.

Prior to a new hazardous chemical being introduced into any section of this organization, each
employee of that section will be given information as outlined above. The Operation Lead or the
Safety/Security & Environmental Coordinator is responsible for ensuring that Safety Data Sheets
(SDS) on new chemicals are available.

Substance and Alcohol

The objective of this policy is to provide a workplace and environment that are free from the
effects of substance abuse. Furthermore, the Port of Brookings Harbor has a responsibility to our
employees, to those who use or come into contact with our services, and to the general public to
ensure safe operating and working conditions. To satisfy our drug-free workplace objective and
meet these responsibilities, we have established a work environment where employees are free
from the effects of drugs, alcohol, or other impairing substances. Accordingly, we have adopted
this substance and alcohol policy.

The following conditions and activities are expressly prohibited on our premises or property or
during work time or while representing us in any work-related fashion and will lead to corrective
action, up to and including termination:

o manufacturing, selling, attempting to sell, using, distributing or possessing alcohol or
other controlled or substances that impair job performance or pose a hazard when use or
possession occurs (as a government employer this includes marijuana); and

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |72 Resolution No. 2022-6311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apsil
20December 21, 2022

\Lolo



s reporting for or being at work while impaired by the use of alcohol, drugs, or controlled
substances.

If your doctor prescribes over the counter or pharmaceutical drugs, you are responsible for
determining if you are able to maintain work performance standards, including safety. If you are
not, you are to contact your immediate supervisor or Port Manager before returning work.

If you have a problem with substance or alcohol use and wish to undertake rehabilitation, you
may be granted a leave of absence for this purpose. It is your responsibility to seek help before
the problem adversely affects your work performance or results in a violation of this or any other
policy. If you need assistance in seeking this help, you may talk to the Port Manager. No one will
be discriminated against for undertaking rehabilitation.

Where we have a reasonable basis to believe that an employee is in violation of this policy, the
employee will be required to submit to testing to determine presence of, use of, or involvement
with alcohol or drugs. We reserve the right to determine whether reasonable basis exists.

The following definitions apply:

Reasonable suspicion is defined as an articulable belief based on specific facts and reasonable
inferences drawn from those facts that an employee is more likely than not under the influence of
controlled substances or alcohol or has used drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy.
Circumstances that can constitute a basis for determining “reasonable cause” may include, but
are not limited to:

e apattern of abnormal or erratic behavior;

¢ information provided by a reliable and credible source;

e direct observation of drug or alcohol use;

e presence of the physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use (i.e., glassy or bloodshot eyes,
alcohol odor on breath, slurred speech, poor coordination and/or reflexes);

s unexplained significant deterioration in individual job performance;
e unexplained or suspicious absenteeism or tardiness;
» employee admissions regarding drug or alcohol use;

» unexplained absences from normal work areas where there is reason to suspect drug or
alcohol related activity; and

» causing or contributing to an accident that seriously damages organization property or
results in an injury requiring offsite medical attention.

Controlled Substances include, but are not limited to, any substance listed in Schedules I
through V of the Federal Controlled Substances Act, including marijuana that is otherwise lawful
to use under Oregon or any other state’s law.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 73 Resolution No. 2022-83 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

01



Over-the-counter drugs are defined as those that are generally available without a prescription
from a medical doctor.

Prescription drugs are defined as those drugs that are used in the course of medical treatment and
have been prescribed and authorized for use by a licensed practitioner/physician or dentist.

Any employee who is found to be in violation of this policy and who refuses to submit to testing,
or refuses to cooperate, or attempts to subvert the testing process will be subject to corrective
action, up to and including termination.

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

Weapon-Free Workplace

To ensure that the Port of Brookings Harbor maintains a workplace safe and free of violence for
all employees, the company prohibits the possession or use of dangerous weapons on company
property. A work environment that is safe and comfortable enhances employee satisfaction with
work as well as employee productivity.

All Port of Brookings Harbor workers are subject to this provision, including contract workets
and temporary employees. A license to carry the weapon on company property does not
supersede company policy. Any employee in violation of this policy will be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Situations may occur, despite our best efforts to prevent them, that present a risk of harm to
employees and others. All employees have an obligation to report any incidents that pose a risk
of harm to employees or others associated with the organization or that threaten the safety,
security, or financial interests of the organization. Employees should make such reports directly
to the Port Manager.

All information related to the reports, including the name of the reporting employees, will be
kept as confidential as possible under the circumstances. We will generally notify the reporting
employee of action taken in response to the report.

“Company property” is defined as all company-owned or leased buildings and surrounding areas
such as sidewalks, walkways, driveways, and parking lots under the company’s ownership or
control. This policy applies to company-sponsored events and all company-owned or leased
vehicles and all vehicles that come onto company property.

“Dangerous weapons” include firearms, explosives, knives (other than folding pocket-knife), and
other weapons, items, and materials that might be considered dangerous or that could cause
harm. If you have a question whether something may be considered a dangerous weapon in
violation, you must ask your supervisor prior to bringing the item onto company property.
Employees are responsible for making sure that any item possessed by the employee is not
prohibited.

The Port of Brookings Harbor reserves the right, at its discretion, and to the full extent allowed
by law, to search at any time all company-owned or leased vehicles and property, and all

Port of Brookings Harbor Page |74 Resolution No, 2022-031 |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April

WS



vehicles, plus packages, containers, briefcases, purses, lockers, desks, enclosures, and persons
entering its property, for the purpose of determining whether any weapon is being, or has been,
brought onto its property or premises in violation of this policy. Employees who fail or refuse to
promptly permit a search under this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including
termination.

This policy is administered and enforced by the Port Manager. Anyone with questions or
concerns should contact the Port Manager.

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

The Port of Brookings Harbor may be subject to major disruptions as a result of occurrences
beyond the control of the organization. All employees should exercise good judgment in
responding to these events as the situation necessitates. The Port of Brookings Harbor will try to
provide emergency and limited services during periods of disruptions. The Port Manager shall
make the determination to close the organization, suspend activities, or make the organization
available for community support.

In the event of potential or actual disruptions that may be weather-related or a result of a
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, fire, explosion, or public health emergency, contact
your immediate supervisor or the Port Manager,

Compensation of employees will be determined in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations when individual facilities or activities are closed as a result of emergency conditions.
Employees not compensated during an emergency-related closure may be able to use available
sick or vacation time.

Should a threat to company property or an employee be received, it should be reported
immediately to your immediate supervisor or the Port Manager.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 75 Resolution No. 2022-0311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: Apsi
20December 21, 2022

\L



Port of Brookings Harbor
Employee Handbook
20December 2 1, 2022

Page | 76

Resolution No. 2022-02 11
Revision Date: April

\10



EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 77 Resolution No, 2022-03 11

Employse Handbook
20December 2 L, 2022

Revision Date: April

U1



SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

Separation from employment with the Port of Brookings Harbor occurs when you voluntarily
resign, are laid off, or are discharged by the organization.

Resignation

Employment with us is at-will, which means you are free to resign at any time, with or without
cause or notice. However, in order to achieve an orderly transition, we would appreciate
receiving notification of your resignation at least 10 working days before the intended date of
departure. For supervisors and management-level personnel, at least 30 days’ notice of a
resignation is required.

Job Abandonment

To maintain a safe and productive work environment, employees are expected to be reliable in
reporting for scheduled work. Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on other employees and
on the organization; poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive. Either may lead to
corrective action, up to and including termination of employment. If an employee fails to call in
or show up for work for three consecutive shifts or days, job abandonment and voluntary
resignation will be assumed.

Job Elimination; Reduction in Work Hours

Our desire is to avoid circumstances that require a reduction in hours or staff, but we also
recognize that situations may arise where such reductions are necessary. Depending upon the
circumstances, we may respond in a variety of ways, including offering a voluntary reduction in
hours or days of work, reducing your work hours or days of work, reducing the workforce, or
reducing expenses by other means. Among the factors we will consider in selecting employees
for any reduced hours or reduction in force are:

s your department, location, or job;

» your job knowledge, skills, and ability to do the required work;

* your performance, attendance, and safety and corrective-action history and records;
e your possession of licenses, registrations, and certifications required by the job;

e your creativity and teamwork skills, if required for the job;

e your demonstrated willingness to go the extra mile for the organization, coworkers, and
customers; and

= the efficiency of our operation.

Evaluation of these factors is at our discretion. When we conclude that all the factors are
substantially equal, we will reduce the hours of or lay off the employee with the shortest term of
service. An immediate supervisor/manager will personally notify employees of a layoff. After
explaining the layoff procedure, you will be given a letter describing the conditions of the layof,

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 78 Resolution No. 2022-03 | |
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

A



such as the effects on benefits, the possibility of reemployment, procedures, and any
outplacement services,

If practicable at the time of layoff or upon an employee being placed in an inactive status, we
may provide limited reemployment rights for a period of eight weeks. The order of recall will be
determined using the above factors. An offer of reemployment may be made orally or in writing
to the last address reflected in your personnel records. It is your obligation to keep us informed
of any changes to your telephone number, email address, and physical address. The offer will
identify the available job and the date you are to report to work. If you are not rehired during the
period specified, your reemployment rights end; if you decline reemployment or fail to report on
the date specified in an offer, you generally waive any reemployment privileges.

Discharge

Our philosophy and general practice is to provide employees who have completed the initial
introductory period of employment with an opportunity to correct minor performance and
conduct problems before discharge is implemented.

The organization has a corrective action policy found on page 33 in this Handbook that describes
action management may take, at its discretion, to correct performance deficiencies or policy
violations prior to discharging employees. The decision to discharge employees is based not only
on the seriousness of the current performance infraction or policy violation, but also on the
individual’s overall performance and conduct record and length of service.

We also believe that our employees should be given an opportunity to be heard in matters
involving corrective action, including discharge, and we have provided a formal dispute
resolution procedure found on page 13 of this Handbook for that purpose. You are encouraged to
use this procedure to resolve any issues you may have that cannot be resolved by consulting with
your supervisor.

Exit Interview

An exit interview may be arranged to give you an opportunity to share information before
leaving the organization. It also allows us to solicit your opinions about our organization and any
suggestions you may have for its improvement. We encourage all employees invited to
participate in an exit interview when they separate from employment to do so, and we value all
opinions and suggestions we receive in the process.

At the exit interview session, you will be given information regarding your benefit continuation
rights and responsibilities and how you will receive your final paycheck.

Return of Organization Property

Upon separation from employment, either voluntarily or otherwise, you must return all
organizational property in your possession. Such property may include credit cards, organization
vehicles, keys, 1D cards, pagers, tools, software, electronic devices, uniforms, this Handbook,
and any other items in your possession that belong to the organization.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 79 Resolution Ne. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
2BDecember 21, 2022



Employee’s Notes

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 80 Resolution Ne. 2022-6311
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

14



The Port of Brookings Harbor
HANDBOOK RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

As an employee of the Port of Brookings Harbor, 1 acknowledge the following:

I have been provided a copy of the Employee Handbook. I understand that the Handbook
contains important information about the Port of Brookings Harbor’s policies, work rules, and
my benefits, I have both read and understood the information in the Handbook and to ask my
supervisor and/or Port Manager for clarification of any information I do not understand.

I acknowledge the Handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a guarantee of specific
treatment in any situation; that the organization has the right to change, modify, add to,
substitute, eliminate, interpret, and apply, in its sole judgment, the policies, rules, and benefits
described in this Handbook; and that the current Handbook supersedes all prior handbooks,
policies, and understandings related to the subjects it contains.

The Port Manager is the only person authorized to make changes to the Handbook and all such
changes must be in writing to be valid. Any changes to the content will be communicated to
employees via official notices.

I understand that, unless stated otherwise in an employment contract, my employment
relationship with the organization is “at-will” and either the organization or I can end the
relationship at any time, with or without reason or notice. The Port Manager is the only
person who has the authority to enter into an employment contract, which must be in writing and
signed by both parties to be valid.

Lastly, I am aware that T may be given confidential information during my employment,
including customer lists, proprietary organization plans, and other information. I understand
this information is critical te the success of the Port of Brookings Harbor and I agree not to
disseminate or use it outside of the organization, even in the event of my separation, either
voluntary or involuntary.

Non-exempt employees only: I understand that I am required to take a rest break of 10 minutes
(up to 15 minutes permitted) for each four-hour work segment (e.g., each morning and each
afternoon shift) that I work and that such breaks are to be taken as near as possible to the
midpoint of each work segment. For shifts longer than eight hours, additional breaks may be
required. 1 further understand that I am required to take an unpaid meal break of at least

30 minutes (up to one hour permitted) for every six-hour shift I work. The meal break is to be
taken between the third and fifth hours worked. Meal breaks and rest periods are intended to
provide nonexempt employees an opportunity away from work. Nonexempt employees are
relieved of all duties and are not permitted to perform any work during meal breaks or rest
periods unless there is prior approval from a supervisor, which may be granted on the rare
occasion when exceptional and unanticipated circumstances prevent the employee from taking
an uninterrupted meal period. If I perform any work during my meal period, I will record the
entire period as time worked on my time report. [ will not return work-related phone calls or
email messages during my lunch period, and if work-related interruptions are common, I
understand that [ may be required to leave my work area during my meal period.

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 81 Resolution No. 2022-831 1
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 2 |, 2022

(N



I also acknowledge that before signing this form, T asked for and received clarification on any of
the items discussed above that I did not understand.

Employee Signature Date

Print Employee's Name

Port of Brookings Harbor Page | 82 Resolution No. 2022-03 11
Employee Handbook Revision Date: April
20December 21, 2022

\



ACTION ITEM — G

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Capital Improvement Plan Approval
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ The Strategic Business Plan Update Table -14 Capital Improvement Plan was
last reviewed and updated in 2019.

¢ Staff went through and updated the existing CIP and add new projects.

DOCUMENTS

s 2019 Port Annual SBP Update Table — 14 Capital Improvement Plan, 1 page
e 2022 Port Annual SBP Update Table — 14 Capital Improvement Plan, 2 pages
* Repair-Maintenance Projects and Planning Fiscal Year 2022-23, 1 page

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

s Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve updated Capital Improvement Plan and submit top 3 priorities
to Business Oregon.

I



P

-—

D

Capital Improvement Plan
Top 3 Priorities

‘Revised: ‘ . L |
20;9 CIP | 2022:CIP NHMP | Capital Improvements Descelption 2022 Cost Timeline Potential Funding 2.02:". Prierity Project
ank Rank Rank Estimates Sources Priority Category
2 1 1  |Boatyard Shop New Construction to replace existing 1,500,000 |2021-2024 Grants High  |Commercial facility
building Loans upgrade
9 g 6  |Hallmark Receiving Dock |Demolish existing timber dock; construct 1,200,000 2025 Grants High  |Commercial facility
concrete dock; install concrete pavement; Loans upgrade
install storm drainage facllities.
18 9 9  |Boardwalk Expansion/ |Repair / restore piling; secure slope; 750,000 | Yrs 510 Grants Medium Marina facility
Replacement replace wood planks with concrete surface upgrade / public
amenifies

ZAMOREGONBusiness Oregon - IFA\Sirateglc Business Plan\Strategic Business Plan Updated Table 14 CIP 20221128




_J
L

Strategic Business Plan

2022 Annual Update

Table-14 Capital Improvement Plan

2019 | 2022
Revised . 2019 Cost | 2022 Cost - 2019 2022 - :
lg:k R(;l:k | NHMP Rank Capital Improvements Descripfion Estimates | Estimates Timeline Priority Priority Priority Project Category
2 1 1 Boatyard Shop New Consiruction to replace existing building 1,500,000 | 2021-2024 High  |Commaercial facility upgrade
2 2 2 VWastewater Treatment Plant  [Install Wastewater Treatment Plan on Pacific Seafood 3,500,000 2023 High  |Commercial facility upgrade
South Dock.
5 3 3 Basln 2 West Embankment  |Embankment repatr, via H-pile/concrete sestion 800,000 | 2023-24 High  |Commercial / Marina faciiity upgrade
Repair - HMGP 4452 stahilization; instalt fencing
7 4 4 Basins 1 and 2 Dredging Basins 1 and 2 dredging 38,000CY 2,300,000 | 2023-25 High  |Maintenance
FEMA 4432
13 5 5 Stormwater Crainage and Stormwater improvements; grading, paving and curbs 700,000 2024 High  |Commercial facility upgrade
Paving Zones 1 Commercial
Storage Area - HMGP 4452
9 B8 6 Halimark Receiving Dock Demolish existing fimber dock; construct cancrete 1,200,000 2025 High  [Commercial facility upgrade
dock; install cancrete pavement; install storm
drainage facilities.
8 7 7 Stormwater Drainage and Stormwater improvements; grind / overtay parking lot; 1,180,000 2024 Medium |Commercial facility upgrade / public amenities
Paving Zones 4 Basin 2 West |curbs; striping
Parking Lot and RV Park
10 8 § Basin 2 South and East Embankment repair, via H-pile/concrete section 2,500,000 | Yrs5-10 High  |[Commercial / Marina facility upgrade
Embankment Repair - stabilization; install fencing .
Reconstruction
15 9 g9 Boardwalk Expansion / Repair / restore piling; secure slope; replace wood 750,000 Yrs 510 Medium | Marina facility upgrade / public amenities
Replacement planks with tongrete surface
] 10 10 Stormwater Drainage and Stormwater improvements; grind / overlay parking fot; 1,080,000 | Yrs 5-10 Medium  |Commerclal facility upgrade / public amenities
Paving Zones 3 Basin 2 East  |curbs; striping
Parking Area
2 11 11 Pacific Seafood North Demolish two existing timber docks and concrete 1,200,000 | Yrs 16 High  {Commercial facility upgrade
Receiving Dock bulkhead; construct concrete dock on both sides of Yrs 5-10
naw feceiving dock; install concrete pavement; install
storm drainage facilities.
12 12 Port Office Canstruction of new Port Office Facilities 1,000,000 | Yis1-5 High Commercial facility upgrade
13 13 RV Park Expansion Consruction of 28 new RV Sites at Kite Field with 1,500,000 [ Yrs 18 Medium  |Commercial facility upgrade
new RV Park Office
18 4 i4 Lease Upgrades Make commercial building upgrades including new | thd (Portto est, | 250,000 Yrs 1-5 Medium High  [Facility upgrades
roofg SF of new and Yrs 510
renovation)
11 15 15 Basin 2 Docks Replace old docks from € thru H and N thru P; 2,500,000 | Yrs1-5 High  |Commercial / Marina facility upgrade
reconflgure spaces to accommodate larger vessel Yrs 5-10
12 16 16 Commercial Genter Upgrade/ |Commercial building and site repairs or building third 2,000,000 | Yrs5-10 Medium  [Gommercial facility upgrade / public amenities
Renovation retail building
14 17 17 Stormwater Drainage and Stonmwater Improverments; grind { overlay parking lot; 200,000 2025 Medium  |Marina facility upgrade / pubiic amenities
Paving Zones 5 Fishing Pier  [curbs; strining
16 18 18 Long-term Development Access condo / mixed-use developrnent potential with tod Yrs 10-20 Low Low Public-private partnership opportunity
Potential drainage Impravements including the addition of a
canal f bioswale
17 18 18 Devetopment Potential Examine opportunity site for potential development - tbd Yrs 10-20 Low Low Public-private partnership cpportunity
hotel / condo

Z\OREGON\Business Oregon - IFA\Strategic Business Plan\Strategic Business Plan Updated Table 14 CIP 20221128

lof2



2

Strategic Business Plan

2022 Annual Update

Table-14 Capital Improvement Plan

19 20 20

Boatyard Upgrade

Acquire new 100-ton straddle hoist ($600,000),
reconstruct sheet pile bulkhead along north and west
edge of barge slip, constrict new haul-out pler for
straddle hoist, regrade and pave work areas and
access roads, construct paved transfer road, Install
feneing, install storm dralnage facllities. Dredge for
barge slip Is not included, See Flgure 5,

5,000,000

Yrs 1-8
Yrs 5-10

Highto
Medium

Low

Gommercial / Marlne improvements, 50-ton sfraddle
lift was purchased In 2017 to continue: to operate a
functional boatyard and provide service to Coast
Guard vessels

Project nearing completion

RV Park Protection Wall and
Facility Improvemnents

Install protection seawall; demolish existing restroom
shower facility, RV office and laundromat foundation;

construct new facility with RV office, [aundromat,

showers and restroom; consfruct new pull-thru sites

Project estimated completion date: January 2023

parking lot, add curhing and striping, add concrete

sidewalks, Install stormwater improvements -

Project Completed Stormwater Drainage and Sealcoat and overlay Project completed 2021
Paving Zones 2 Commatcial
Retall Parking Lot

Project Completed Fuel Dock Access Pad Reroute fuel lings; reconstruct slope and concrete pad Projec! completed 2021
Replacement

Project Completed Fish Market and Cleaning Upgrade exlsting bulldings to accommodale fish Project completed 2017
Statlon market and cleaning stalion

Project Completed Marina Parking Upgrades Reconfigure boat launch circulation, grind and overlay Project completed 2017

Z:\OREGON\Business Oregon - IFA\Strateglc Business Plan\Strategic Business Plan Updated Table 14 CIP 20221128

2o0f2



Port of Brookings Harbor
Repair - Maintenance Projects and Planning
Fiscal Year 2022-23

# | Port Area Description Date Dane
1| Basin 1 Repair Waterlines on Docks
2| Basln 1 Repair Electrical Box af Boat Launch Ramp
3| Basin 1 Replace Shore to Dock Waterlines (1 each)
4| Basin 1 Install Power to D - Dock '
5| Basin 1 Install Mew Waterline to Docks E, F & G
6| Basin 1 Replace Electrical Pedestals
7| Basin 1 Resurface Basin Ramp (2 each)
8| Basin 1 Repair Basin 1 A - D Dock Ramp Connectlon
9| Basln 1 Slope Repairs
10| Basin 1 FEMA Project - Dredging
11| Basin 2 Repair Waterlines on Docks
12| Basln 2 Replace Electrical Pedastals g
13{ Basin 2 Replace Shore to Dock Waterlines (4 each)
14| Basin 2 Resurface Basin Ramps (4 each)
15| Basin 2 Dock Repalrs to Dock Fingers & Piling Hoops
16| Basin 2 Repair / Install Curbs in Parking Lots {300')
17| Basin 2 Travel Lift Ramp Dredging
18! Basin 2 Wark Dock Extension to Travel Lift Ramp for Unloading
19{ Basin 2 Slope Repalrs
20| Basin 2 FEMA Project - Slope Repalrs
21| Basin 2 FEMA Project - Dredging
22| Basin 2 Handrail - Fencing along Walkways
23| Basin 2 Install Disposal Method for Crab Dock Tenant
24| Boardwalk Repair Flood Lights '
25| Boardwalk Repalr North Sectlon of Boardwalk -
26| Boat Yard FEMA Prolect « Storm Dralns and Paving
27| Boat Yard Warehouse Bullding Repairs / Replacement
28| Commercial Retall Paint Retall Restroom / Exterior Walls
29| Commaercial Retail Repair Retail Building # 1 Roof
30| Commercial Retail Repair Retall Bullding # 2 Roof
31| Cotnmercial Retail Woash and Paint Lightpoles  }
32| Crab Dock Reapir Connection :
33| Fuel Tanks Install Gates (2 each)
34| Gear Storage FEMA Project - Storm Dralns and Paving
35| Gear Storage FEMA Project - Sediment Dredge Basin
36| Gear Storage Wastewater Treatment Plant - Fish Processing
37| Gear Storage Handrall - Fencing Cold Storage Truck Ramp
38| Kite Field FEMA Project - RV Park Expansion Earthwork
39] Kite Field RV Park Expansion Utilities and Amenltles
40| Port Landscape Across Lower Harbor Road
41| Port Basins Landscape Slopes
42| Port Office Repair Roof
43| Port Office Repair Electrical
44| Port Office Repalr Wood Rot
45| Part Shop Repair Electrical Wiring and Lighting
45| Recelving Docks Repalr Broken Dock
47| Recelving Docks Repair Damaged Dock - Pacific Seafood
48| Recelving Docks Repair Damaged Dock - Hallmark
49| RV Park Install Self Opening / Closing Main Gate
50| RV Park Pavement Resurfacing
51| RV Park Fence Dividers for New Remodeled Sites
52| Steel Wall Repalr Bumnpers
53| Storm Drains Clean Out Debris {Boat Launch Parking Lot)
54| Storm Drains Clean Out Debris (Retail Parking Lot)
55| Storm Dralns Clean Out Debris (Boat Yard - Curry Courity)
56| Translent Dock Repair Electrical Shed
57| Translent Dock Slope Repairs
58| Translent Dock Resurface Ramps (2 each)

LAPOBHVOPER

TTONS = Equipment, Frojects & Work Oraers\PROJECTSVFY 20727

Repair List

1

()



ACTION ITEM — H

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE:

TO:

MclLennan Excavation Payment Request #4

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Contract and change order with McLennan Excavation for the Beachfront RV
Park Improvement Project was approved and executed on October 20, 2021, and
May 6, 2022, respectively.

Three payments have been made to McLennan Excavation: Payment #1 of
$83,141.87 was on May 12, 2022, after receiving board approval to issue
payment on May 6, 2022. Payment No. 2 for $106,654.12 was made on August
17, 2022, after receiving board approval to issue payment on August 8, 2022,
Payment No. 3 for $108,385.77 was made on November 16, 2022, after
receiving board approval to issue payment on November 16, 2022.

Crow/Clay Associates received fourth payment request from McLennan
Excavation for work performed October 29, 2022 through November 30, 2022.

Port has received BOL| Payroll Wage Reports and verified accuracy.

DOCUMENTS

McLennan Excavation Payment Request No. 4, 2 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve McLennan Excavation progress Payment No. 4 for $39,963.02
for work performed October 29, 2022 — November 30, 2022 per contract.

\?L



LB

Contractor's Application for Payment No. 4_

APPLICATION PERIOD:  October 29, 2022 1o November 30, 2022 APPLICATION DATE:  Deaember 2, 2012

TO: Pon of Drookings Hubor

FROM: McLesinan Excavation Inc,

PFROJECT: Beschivont RV Park Improvements

{Contraciar)

CONTRACT:

VIA:  Timothy A, Lambsan{ Crow - Crow/Clay & Assoctales [nc Arehiiecwre snd Plannitig

OWNERS CONTRACT NO. 19005

CONTRACTOR'S FROIECT NO. 2022 » Por of Brogkings ENGINEER'S PROJCCT NO.:
CIIANGE ORDER SUMMARY 1, ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE 1evsvossnsssesc msesstons susesi snsens ssoests storeesrs sresermsseomosmmetse s 5 657,000.00
Approved Change Onders 2. Net changa by Change Ordens 3 7433583
Number Additlons | Desiedl 3, Cumrent Conlme Price (Line 1 & 2} e § 131,326.82
1 SZB,W!.S&' 4, TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE
2 {Calum F total oni Progross Extimates) _§ 3550413
3 529.690.81 5, RETAINAGE:
] 51569345 o 5% X 517238162 Work Compleied . 3.629.08
s b5 X 51826025 Stoced Material 5___ —aomeaeq, 168,00
6 <. Tolal Retainage {Lina5a+ Line5b) 519,714%.09 —eprem
7 6. AMQUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE {Line 4 - Line 5.C) ﬁ!& ‘M.lﬁ 37323621
TOTALS NET] 5 Pk
CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS| 574,326.92 7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS {Lino 6 Iroms prior ] 5 393,191.76
8. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION ....ooo.. 1391 963%.02
$74,320.82 2. BALANCE TQ FINISIL, PLLUS RETAINAGE
(Colum, C1owsd on Prrgress Lanmites - Line 5.6 sbave) H =ittt
Canteactor's Coriifeatlon 3‘['5' 182 'OH
The undersigned Contructor cartilies; to the best ol'ite knowledge, the following: {}]
Al proviuus progress payments roceived from Cwaer on iecaunt of Work dono under th Canirgey hava been applicd on secount ta discharge Payment Gf 6‘1 ] q 6 3 Noy A
C ’s logitimata obl} i d in ian with tho Work covered by prior Applications for Payntent; {2) Title toall {line B or sther - atiach explanation of the ather amount)
Work, materials and equipment incorperated in said Work, of olhenwise listed In ar covered by this Application for Payment, wil] pasa to Owner ot
timp of paynwont free and elear ofoHl Liens, sesurily intecesty, and encumbrnees (except such as ara d by & bond scceptable 1o Qwner
indennifying Owner against any such Liens, security Interesl, o encumbronces); and 13} Al the work covered by is recommended by:
this Application for Payment js in necordance with the Coniracs D ond is not defeei] <
vehite ot
A0 Py O
1 = [P -
Contraciar Slgnature; t\m H& {, i (Jina 8 or olher - milach of the olhier
By: Cosey M, Mclengan, Py i of MeLanman E lon. Ine Date: & IO‘,}I‘m’;‘l isapproved by:

{owier) {Date)

EJCDC® C-620 Contractar's Applicutian far Payment
© 2013 National Sociely of Frofessional Englneers for EJCDE. Al rights reserved,
Page | of




\

EIC00H €420 Contrmiors Applicition far Papiscol
© 213 Matfonal Society o] Professionsd Englacers for RICDC, Al righis fescrvod,

Page Lol

Progress Breakdown for Contractor's Application for Payment No, 4
APPLICATION FERIOD: _ Oasbor 29, 2022 1 Noverber 30, 2002 APPLICATION DATE: _ Docember 1, 201
[TQ; Pon of reckings lstor  (Quoc FROM: i n By Copimeior) ViA: Timethy - 2 Architostuns and Planpln
ECT; h Patk Im CONTRACT-
[OWNERS CONTRACT NO, 19603 R'S PROJECT NO. BNGINEER'S PROJECT NO.:
e Coatenct Informrat Valuo of Wack Tosed Commplesed | Quantly | Quaminy Guamity
o Materlal Presonlly | - Valug of Work 10 Valeaof Wark
liem No. Deseaiption Q__'n"n‘:'h Urits | Unh Prico 15y T:‘I"‘N:"':: e Stored oo MO [ Frovios |Compleiaiel " pgreyy | MR ity i)
| Mublieatioa/Deamabilizatian
Sonds and Insunnce ] LS |5 w4s00(5  igdakm 5 - 1004 00t |$  Jedism 5 .
F Ienfalisratl 1 L5 |5 150000038 15,000.00 3 - 5 . 100%, 00% |S 1800000 3 .
hobilimmilon 1 s |5 socwals 5,000,00 ] . - 10086 loot: |8 $.000.00 i -
Deaibllheathn 1 LS {5 da0000] 5 3.000,00 5 - - H . 5 1.000.00
Ve porary Foctiies [ LS |5 800000[5  apousn 5% s laou 120000 | 1% W |5 24000 700w |3 demm
Sigw 1| iS5 |3 zowm|s  zome s . s - |tk | wow |¥  2mem0 s -
2 Materials jo Qrder A
R '-Fifgﬁﬂwﬂm;ﬂ;&“;: 1| s s mamas|s wanen s 3 5 ] e | owew |5 v 5 5
3 iﬁ._nmrr
|$taClasing ] L5 |'s siwem|s 9.266.00 0% $ 26300 §  reno| “hw B 420380 | o0 | 1033.20
| Canceeie end Fence Reamoval ] LS |5 iseost0|s  1ssosm0 W% T 5 aeis| sm W% s 1dEdie] om |5 EXETET)
| Grading acd Levellng 1 LS |5 1.99381%  Ilsepas s - 5 - s % 15 dana| Toom [s l1w.48
| Sprming ) LS |5 neswals  1awo s - 5 : s - | oo {5 Uission
4 | Sewer
Locata | LS | s - 13 N s . [ . s - | woirs [s «
[ Trachilng/Shoring 1 LS |5 194m.2]8 2949304 5 . ] . ) % |s sason| 700% |5 mainam
Haul QI 1S |5 oMam|s sl s 5 3 5 % 3% |5 suee | ok |[s essAns
Placciine of Fips A3 ] Haswe|s 1H.616.50 § - $ - W Jjo% |s s3mMas ]| 7o0m |8 10231.33
Bk & O LS |5 2000905 09 s - s . 3 - | ioon]s 09368
5 Waler
Loty 1 5[5 - I3 . s f < o S . | wesrs |8 E
Treoehing/Shoring 1 LS |5 120w [ anevssn s [EXIT 3 22| 1M o s 4 | oo s 947728
ol O | 1§ [s 13s600]s 135600 0% s $12.40 [ Hi40 % |s a0 | soo% [s 813,00
Pinccatent of Pipe i L8 |5 33| s 436170 s . 5 . s « | 0w |s 4361,
BackfHl & C T 1 LS |§ simm|s 15250 3 - 5 - $ - e | s 3.132.30
[ Elecirical
Locwe 1 LS |5 B » S . [ . s - | looets | s B
Trerching 1 LS 15 Buad0ls  2),H840] % 3 94m36 £ 04nd K w3 ] ook |t 14.249.4
Saboommator - Recse Eltoiris + M: & Laixx 1 LS |S2ormizds s quimzss [] - ] - bi% s |3 mmn| wk {5 mwoew
Bewhfill & Comipaciion 1 15 |3 269m00]5 2633000 5 . s 3 s + | eote |8 2643000
T |Coacreie
|Mascrials | 5 s i[5 wiom s . s . [] - | 00 (5 sri%m
Curh 1 IS {5 Mmmofs 175,00 3 . 5 - s » | o s 3.935.00
Prepping slabs and pedeslal 1 Ls IS Manarfs  saalr s 5 5 - [ s e |5 nann
Pouring and Finiing | LS {§ pazss|®  sadnpar 3 . 5 . ] - | oo s aiizds
H Clean wy S |
Site Clezin wp and Puschlist ] LS |5 5000002 3,000, H - H = 5 - W0 | 5 300000
| Gesge Opder 1 JAdditlonal Eletirle Lipgrade - Cooa Carry 1 1S |5 ingmsa| s asmse s . 5 . o | 0% |5 s 5 .
| Coange Onler2 |Coniret Daleand comphetion Clangs | 15 s . [ - $ - [1 - | 0gow | s -
| Chasge Ordera | Woicr to Maln ] 3 [ERFY ST TTH FETY 7T % 3 ssMe $ NG % s  sowla] wmon (e tumsss
ange Qrder- | Woler io Back Loty 1 Ls |s Boti45]s 1568043 e 3 156943 31368 0% |3 i ¥ -
Touls 5. BI3Teal S 4159348 s eAnas SN ]S JUMINT] VL |8 Iaurar




ACTION ITEM — 1

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE:

TO:

Gerald Burns Financial Consultant Agreement Amendment

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Last year the Port advertised for a financial consultant and received one proposal from
Gerald Burns. Gerald has provided valuable assistance to the Port for the last five years
and is a key part of the reason why the Port has been able o meet its state’s audit
reporting deadline for the last three years.

Port staff is requesting to extend the agreement for (1) one additional year.

NOTE: A Certified Public Accountant will be required to complete the state audit
reporting. The CPA will be under a separa‘ge contract.

Port legal counsel is reviewing the extension agreement.

DOCUMENTS

Email from Gerald Burns, 1 page

Agreement for Professional Services, Financial Consultant, 6 pages

Agreement for Professional Services, Financial Consultant, Amendment No. 1, 3 pages
Agreement for Professional Services, Financial Consultant, Amendment No. 2, 2 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve Amendment No. 2 with financial consultant Gerald Burns for one
additional year.

\8>



12/8/22, 9:47 AM Part Office Mail - Agreement/Amendment Rates?

i 4
M Gmalll Kim Boom <accounts@portofbrookingsharbor.com>
Agreement/Amendment Rates?
Gerald Burns <gwburnscpa@gmail.com> Thu, Dec 8, 2022 at 9:42 AM
To: Kim Boom <accounts@portofbrookingsharbor.com>
Kim,

Here are my thoughts.

1. Rate per hour: $120
2. Monthly retainer: $600

| realize this is a 20% bump, but | believe the increase is reasonable given that my fee
has not changed for a few years and we are all confronting the incredible inflationary
increases in everything we purchase.

Thoughts?

Gerald W. Burns, CPA
Accounting Advisor
541-840-0226

CIJn Wed, Dec 7, 2022 at 5:34 PM Kim Boom <accounts@paortofbrookingsharbor.com> wrote:
Hi Gerry,

Have you had a chance to review your rates for next year's agreement? Travis would like to get this
added at December's meeting. Please let me know.

Thank you.
Kim

Kim Boom
Director of Finance and Accounting

Port of Brookings Harbor

P.O. Box 848 Harbor, Oregon 97415

Office: (541) 469-2218 ext: 405

hitps:/fmail.google.com/mail/uf0/?1k=0783bfcd 1 5&view=pt&search=all&parmmsgid=msg-f%3A17516686 17649089741 &dsqt=1&simpl=msg-f%3A1751 ... \'@La



Port of Brookings Harbor
Agreement for Professional Services, Financial Consultant

This Agreement for Professlonal Services (“Agreement”} Is made and entered Into this 19 day of January
2021, by and between the Port of Brookings Harbor, an Oregon special district, herein referred to as
"pOBH” and Gerald W. Burns, CPA an Oregon Individual/sale proprietor or single-member Limited Liability
Company, hereln referred to as “Contractot.”

WHEREAS, the POBH requfres consulting, advising and related services on financial matters which
Contractor |s capable of providing, under terms and conditions hereinafter described; and

WHEREAS, the POBH solicited bids by website and newspa per from December 2, 2020 until December 31,
2020 and received 1 bid(s).

NOW, THEREFORE, in conslderation of the promises and covenants contained herein, the partles agree
as follows:

1.0. Effective Date and Puration. This Agreement will become effective upon its execution by the
POBH and will expire December 31, 2021, unless otherwise terminated or extended.

2,0, Scope of Work, Contractor wili perform the following scope of work under this Agreement:
Contractor wlll prepare annual financial report.

2.01. Services. Contractar will assist in cansulting and advising on financial matters relating to
hudgeting and accounting using QuickBooks when needed. Time will be charged for one financial
consultant, and includes communications with financlal professlonals, and with POBH.

2.02. Information Provided by Others. POBH shall provide Contractor such informatian as is
available to POBH with respect to the work and Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy
and completeness thereof, POBH recognizes It is not possible for Contractor to insure the
accuracy, completeness, and sufflclency of such Information If Contractor was not retalned to
verify the information POBH is providing. Accordingly, POBH agrees, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, to Indemnify and hold Contractor, its officers, agents and employees harimless
from any claim, liability or cost (including reasanable attorney’s fees and costs of defense) for
Injury or loss arising or allegedly arising from errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in documents or
other Information pravided by POBH to Contractor.

3.0. Compensation & Billing.

3.01. Retainer Fee. Contractor will be compensatad with a monthly retalner fee of $500 for the
ongolng Informal advice and assistance, not to exceed 46,000 in accordance with Exhibit
A, attached hereto and incorparated herein by this reference. Contractor will Invoice the
POBH on the first of each month. POBH will pay Contractor $500 retainer fee within 30
days of recelpt of Invoice.

3.02. Hourly Rate, Contractor wiil be compensated an hourly rate of $100 per hour to prepare
the 2020-21 Annual Financial Report.

3.03. Travel Expense. Contractor will be compensated travel expenses for onsite meetings at
POBH in addition to the retalner fee.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FINANCIAL CONSULTANT Page |1

L)



3.04. Bllling Dispute, If there is a dispute as to one or more line items on the involce, POBH will
pay the undisputed portion withih 30 days of receipt, The parties will exerclse good faith
and diligence in the resolution of any disputed Invoice amounts and POBH will pay
promptly upon resolution of the dispute,

4,0,  Effective Date and Duration. This Agreement wiil become effectlve upon its executlon, the
submission of certificates of insurance to POBH and the Issuance of a notice to proceed by the POBH. This
Agreament will expire December 31, 2021 unless otherwise terminated or extended,

50. Schedule for Paerformance. Contractor shall be available for advising POBH staff when needed,

6.0. Licensing and Certiflcation, Contractar is required to maintaln, at its own expense, all license and
certifications required by the State of Oregon to perform services under this Agreemant.

7.0,  Status of Contractor as Independent Contractor. Contractor certifies that;

A. Contractor acknowledges that for all purposes related to this Agreement, Contractor is and
will be deemed to be an independent contractor as defined by ORS 670.600 and not an
emplayee of the POBH, is not entitled to benefits of any kind to which an employee of the
POBH is entitled and is solely responsible for all payments and taxes required by law.
Furthermore, in the event that Contractor Is found by a court of law or any administrative
agency to be an employee of the POBH for any purpose, the POBH will be entitled to offset
compensation due, or to demand repayment of any amounts paid to Contractor under the
terms of this Agreement, to the full extent of any benefits ar other remuneration Contractor
receives {from the POBH or third party) as a result of said finding and to the fuli extent of any
payments that the POBH is required to make {to Contractor or to a third party) as a result of
sald finding.

B. The undersigned Contractor hereby represents that no employee of the POBH, or any
partnership or corporation in which a FOBH employee has an interest, has or will receive any
remuneration of any description from Contractor, either directly or indirectly, In connection
with the letting or performance of this Agreement, except as specifically declared in writing.

C. |fthis payment is to be charged against Federal funds, Contractor certifies that he or she is
not currently employed by the Federal Government and the amount charged does not exceed
his or her nermal charge for the type of service provided.

D. Confractor and its employees, If any, are not active members of the Oregon Publlic Employees
Retirement System and are not employed for a total of 600 hours or more in the calendar
year by any public employer participating In the Retirament System,

E. Contractor Is not an officer, employee, or agent of the POBH as those terms are used in ORS
30,265,

8.0.  Early Termination.

8.01. Mutual Consent. This Agreement may be terminated without cause prior to the expiration
of the agreed upon term by mutual written consent of the parties,

8.02. For Cause hy POBH. The POBH may terminate this Agreement effactive upon delivery of
written notice to Contractor, or at such later date as may be estahblished by the POBH, under
any of the following candlitions:

A. Ifdueto budgetary consideratlons, the POBH decides to terminate the Agreement;

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FINANCIAL CONSULTANT Page |2

\e



81031

8.04

B. Ifany license or certificate required by law or regulation to be held by Contractor,
Jts subcontractors, agents, and employees to provide the services required by this
Agreement is for any reason denled, revoked, or not renewed;

C. If Contractor becomes insolvent, if valuntary or involuntary petitlon in bankruptcy
is filed by or against Contractor, if a receiver or trustee is appointed for Contractor,
or if there Is an assignment for the benefit of creditors of Contractor; or

D. If Contractor’s performance under this Agreement is not to the satisfaction of the
POBH, then PORH shall give wrltten notice and 14 days opportunity to cure the
deficiency identified. If the deficlency is not cured within that time, then this
Agreement may be terminated upon written notice to Contractor.,

Na Prajudice. Any such termination of this Agreement under paragraph 8.02 will be
without prejudice to any obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to
such tetrmination.

Remedies Not Exclusive. The rights and remedies of the PORH provided herein related
to defaults (including breach of contract) by Contractor are not exclusive and are In
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. If the
POBH terminates this Agreement, Contractor will be entitled to recelve as full payment
for all services rendered and expenses Incurred up to the date of termination.

8.0, Insurance. Contractor and its subcontractors must maintain insurance acceptable to the POBH In
full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement. The policy or policies of insurance malntained
by the Contractor and [ts subcontractors must provide at |east the following limits and coverages:

9.01, Coverages. Contractor and its subcontractors must, at Contractor's or subcontractor’s
expenise, and keep In effect during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance
coverage with the following minimum policy limits:

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence Limlit BI/PI/PD
$2,000,000.00 General Aggregate

Worker's Compensation Per Oregon Law {ORS 656.017) as applicable

Comprehensive Automobile $ 500,000.00 / $500,000.00 Bodily Injury
$100,000.00 Property Damage
(including coverage for all owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles)

Professional Liability / E&Q $500,000.00 Each Occurrence
$500,000.00 Aggregate per year

9,02. Additional Insured Provision, The POBH, its elected and appointed offlcers, agents, and
employees must be added as additional insureds with respect to thls Agreement. All
Liability Insurance policles must be endorsed to show this additional coverage.

9,03. Insurance Catrier Rating. Coverage provided by the Cantractor must be underwritien by
an insurance company deemed acceptable by the POBH. The POBH reserves the right to
reject all o any insurance carrier(s) with an unacceptable financial rating.

9.04. Certificates of Insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverage required by the contract,
Contractor must furnish a Certificate of Insurance to the POBH. No contract will be

PQRT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FINANCIAL CONSULTANY Page |3

\&A



effective untll the required certificates have heen recelved and approved by the POBH.
The certificate will specify and document all of the required insurance provisions within
this Agreement. A renewal certificate must be sent to the POBH 10 days prior to coverage
explration.

9.05. Primary Coverage Clarification. All parties to thls Agreement hereby agree that
Contractor's coverage will be primary In the event of a loss.

9.06. Notice of Cancellation, Contractot's Insurance policles must contaln provisions that such
pollcies may not be canceled or thelr limits of liability reduced without thirty (30} days
prior notice to POBH. A copy of each insurance policy, certified as a true copy by an
authorized representative of the issuing insurance company, or at the discretion of POBH,
In lleu thereof, a certificate in form satlsfactory to POBH certifying to the issuance of such
insurance shall be forwarded to the POBH Authorized Representative prior to the
commencement of work.

9,07, Effect of Insurance, The procuring of such requlred insurance may not be construed to
limit Contractor’s liability hereunder. Notwithstanding sald insurance, Contractor will be
obligated for the total amount of any damage, Injury, or loss caused by negligence or
neglect connected with this Agreement.

10.0, Methad and Place of Giving Notice, Submitting Bills and Making Payments, All notices, bills and
payments must be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery ar by mail. Notices, biils and
payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

If ta Pott of Brookings Harbor: If to Contractor:

Attn: Port Manager Attn:; Gerald W. Burns

PO Box 848 Gerald W. Burns, CPA

16330 Lower Harbor Rd 1762 E. McAndrews Rd. Ste. €
Brookings, OR 97415 Medfard, OR 97504

and when so addressed, will be deemed given upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid. In
all other instances, notices, bills and payments will be deemed given at the time of actual delivery.
Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and payments are
to be given by giving written notice pursuant to this paragraph.

11.0, Compliance with Public Contract Laws, Contractor will observe ali applicable state and local laws
pertaining to public contracts. ORS Chapter 279 requires every public contract to contain certain
provisions. Pursuant to ORS 279, the following provislons are part of this contract, as applicable, Including
without limitatlon the fallowing:

11.01. Compliance with Tax Laws. Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor has
complied with the tax laws of this state or a political subdivision of this state, including but not
limited to ORS 305.620 and ORS chapters 316, 317 and 318, Contractor covenants to continue to
comply with the tax laws of this state or a political subdivision of this state during the term of this
Agreement. Contractor understands that Contractor’s failure to comply with the tax laws of this
state ar a polltical subdivision of this state before execution of this Agreement or during the term
of this Agreement is a default for which POBH may terminate this Agreement and seek damages
and other relief avallable under the terms of this Agreement or under applicable law.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FLNANCIAL CONSULTANT Page |4

A0



11.02. Compliance with Payment Pravislons, Contractor is required to:

{a) Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to Contractor labor or
materlal for the performance of the work provided for in this Agreement.

(b) Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the
Contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of this Agreement.

{c) Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted agelnst the state or a county,
school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on
account of any labor or material furnished.

(d) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS
316.167.

11,03. Compliance with Wage and Hour Laws. ORS 2798235 1s hereby Incarporated by
reference as though set forth in full, Contractor agrees to abide by ORS 279B.235, as applicable.

11.04. Other Applicable Laws. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to
comply with; (i) Tltles Vi and VIl of the Clvil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; (li) Sections 503 and
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; {iii) the Americans with Disabllitles Act of 1990,
as amended; {iv) Executive Order 11246, as amended; (v) the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1896; (vi) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended,
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; (vif) the Vietnam Era Veterans’
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; {viii) ORS Chapter 659, as amended; (ix) all
regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (x) all other
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and
regulations. A condition or clause required by law to be in this contract shall be considerett
included by these references.

12.0. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the POBH and its
officars, agents and emiployees against all liability, loss and costs arising from actions, suits, claims or
demands attributable to the acts or omisslons of Contractor, and Contractor's officers, agents and
employees, in performance of this Agreement, except as specifically provided otherwise in this
Agreement.

13,0, Assignment & Delegation. This Agreement, and all of the covenants and conditions hereof, will
Inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the POBH and the Contractor respectively and their legal
representatives, Contractor may not assign any rights nor delegate any duties incurred by this contract,
or any part hereof without the written consent of the POBH, and any assighment or delegation in violation
hereof wlll be void.

14.0. Force Maleure. Neither the POBH nor Contractor will be considered in default because of any
delays In completion of responsihilities hereunder due 1o causes beyond the control and without fault or
negligence on the part of the party so disenabled, Including, but not restricted to, an act of God or of a
public enemy, volcana, earthquake, fire, flood, epidemic, quarantine, restriction, area-wide strike, freight
embargo, unusually severe weather or delay of subcontractor or suppllers due to such cause; provided
that the party so disenabled must within ten (10) days from the beginning of such delay, notify the other
party in writing of the causes of delay and its probable extent, Such notification may not be the basls for
a claim for additional compensatian. Fach party must, however, make all reasonahle efforts to remave or
eliminate such a cause of delay or default and, upon cessation of the causeg, diligently pursue performance
of its abligation under this Agreement.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FINANCIAL CONSULTANY Page |5

A\



15.0. Nonwaiver, The failure of the PO8H 1o Insisl upon or enforce strict performance by Contractor of
any of the terms of this Agreement or to exercise any righls hereunder may nol hie construed as a waiver
or relinquishment 1o any extent of its flght to asserl or rely upon such lerms or rights on any future
oceasion.

16.0. Severability. In the evenl any pravisian or portion of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable
or invalid by any courl of competent jurisdictlon, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force
and effect and will In no way be affected or Invalidated thereby.

17.0. Amendment. No consent, modification, or chanpe of tarms of this Agreement may pind either
party unless in writing and signed by both partles. Such waiver, consent, Imedification, or change If made,
will be effectlve only In specific Instances and for the specific purpose given,

18,0. Attorney's Fees. In case suit or action is Instituted to enforce the provisions of this Agreement,
the parties agree that the prevalling party will be entitled to an awsrd of reasenable attorney's fees and
court costs inclutling attarney's fees and court costs on appeal,

18,0, Governing Law. The provisions of this Agreemeit will be construed in accordance with the
provisians of the laws of the State of Oregon. Any action ar sults involving any questions arising under this
Agreement musl he brought in the Circuit Court of Curry County o the U. 5. District Calrt In Medford.

20,0, Complete Agreement. This Agreement and the attached exhiblts, constilute the entire agreement
between the parties. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, no!l
speclfied herein regarding this Agreement,

21.0. Acknowledgment. Contractor, by the signature of its authorized representative, hereby
acknowledges that he has read this Agreement, understands it and agrees to be bound by its terms and
conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date herein above
first written.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR CONTRACTOR:
BOARD OI}QMMIE;QIONE_RS Gerald W, Burns, CPA

s ‘:‘lt/ Bw‘_}é @ijf’a /4 —

E‘j,:l:ﬁov C. Davis W ) Name: Gerald W, Burhs

Is:
ATTEST: ...
-~ commissioner
\' PORT o BROCKINGS HalBOR
AGICEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FINANCIAL CONSULTANT Pape |6

QL



AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, FINANCIAL CONSULTANT

This Amendment No. 1 to the Port of Brockings Harbor Agreement for Professlonal Services,
Financial Consuitant ("“Amendment”) is entered Into by and between the Port of Brookings Harbor
("POBH") and Gerald Burns, CPA an Oregon individual/sole proprietor (Contractor”) to amend
the terms of the Agreement for Professional Services, Financlal Consultant dated January 19,
2021 (the "Agreement”).

1. AMENDMENTS. The Agreement Is hereby amended as follows:

A. Time of Performance and Termination. Section 1.0, Effective Date and Duration, of the
Agreement Is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

"This Agreemant will become effective upon its execution by the POBH and will expire
December 31, 2022, unless otherwise terminated or extended.”

B. Compensation for Annual Report Preparation. Section 3.02, Hourly Rate, of the
Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

"Contractor will be compensated an hourly rate of $100 per hour to prepare the 2020-21
Annual Financial Report and 2021-22 Annual Financlal Repart.”

C. Compliance with Wage and Hour Laws. Section 11.03, Compliance with Wage and Hour
Laws, of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

“Hours of Labor; Pay Equity; Salary Discussions (required by ORS 279B.020 and
279B.235).

A. Maximum Hours. Contractor shall not employ any person for more than 10 hours in
any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, emergency,
or where the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, except in cases
of contracts for personal services as defined in ORS 278A.055, the laborer shall be
paid at least time and a half pay:

o For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 hours In any one wesk
when the work week is five consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and

o For all overtime in excess of 10 hours a day or 40 hours in any one wesk
when the work week is four consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and

o For work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in any
applicable collective bargalning agreement or ORS 278B.020 (1)(b)(B) to (G).

B. The requirement to pay at least time and a half for all overtime worked in excess of
40 hours in any one week, does not apply to individuals who are excluded under
ORS 663.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. Section 201 to 209 from receiving
overtime.”

D. Publi¢ Contracting Raquirements. The following provisions are added to Section 11.0 of
the Agreement;

"11.05 Payment of Labor (Required by ORS 278B,220).

A%



Contractor shall make payment promptly, as dus, fo all persons supplying labor or
material to Contractor for the performance of services provided for in this Agreement;
Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund
from Contractor or any subconsultant incusred in the performance of this Agreement;
Contractor shall not permit any llen or clalim to be filed or prosecuted against POBH
on account of any labor or materlal furnished; and

Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from
employees under ORS 316,167,

T o @ >

; :I{_ 9036 Payment for Medical Care and Workers' Compensation. As reguired by
.230;

A. Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership,
association, or corporation furnishing medical, surgical, and hospltal care services
or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, fo the employees
of Contractor, of all sums that Contractor agrees to pay for the services and afl
moneys and sums that Contractor collected or deducted from the wages of
employees under any law, confract, or agreement for the purpoee of providing or
paying for the services,

B. All subject employers working under this Agreement are elther employers that will
comply with ORS 658,017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656,126,

11.07 Notice to Employees.

A. Contractor shall give notice in writing to Its employees who perform work under this
Agreement, elther at the time of hire or bafore commencement of work on this
Agreement, or by posting a nofice in a location frequented by employees, of the
number of hours per day and days par week that the employees may be required to
work.

B. Contractor shall comply with ORS 662.220 (prohibiting discriminatory wage rates
based on sex and requiring that emplover not discriminate against an employee who
is a2 complainant). Compliance with this Section 11.07 Is a material element of this
Agreement. Failure to comply is a breach thet entities POBH to terminate this
Agreement for cause.

C. Contractor may not prohibit any of Contractor's employees from discussing the
employee’s wage, salary, benefits, or other compensation with another employee or
another person, and Contractor may not retaliate against an employee who does
so.”

2. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS. All otherterms and conditions of the Agreement not in
conflict with this Amendment remain in full force and effect and remain unaffected hareby.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Amendment shall be effective as of January 1, 2022.

[Signature Page to Foliow]

14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Amendment as of the date last below

written at Brookings, Oregon.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

Gerald W. Burns, CPA

Dated: \22-2077

ATTEST:
727
o -"'f-

Treasurer

S
Richard Heap, Bo resident

By: '
" Gerald W. Burns
Its:

s



AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO
PORT OF EROOKINGS HARBOR

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, FINANCIAL CONSULTANT

This Amendment No. 2 to the Port of Brookings Harbor Agreement for Professional Services,
Financial Consuitant (“Amendment”) is entered into by and between the Port of Brookings
Harbor ("POBH") and Gerald Burns, CPA an Oregon individual/sole proprietor (“Contractor”) to
amend the terms of the Agreement for Professional Services, Financial Consultant dated
January 19, 2021, as amended by that Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Professional
Services, Financial Consultant dated January 22, 2022 (collectively, the “Agreement”).

1. AMENDMENTS. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

A. Time of Performance and TerminatiorSection 1.0, Effective Date and Duration, of the
Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

“This Agreement will become effective upon its execution by the POBH and will expire
December 31, 2023, unless otherwise terminated or extended.”

B. Retainer. Section 3.01, Retainer Fee, of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced
with the following:

“Contractor will be compensated with a monthly retainer fee of $600 for ongoing informal
advice and assistance, not to exceed $6,000 in accordance with Exhibit A, attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Confractor will invoice the POBH on
the first of each month.”

C. Compensation for Annual Report Preparation. The following sentence is added to the
end of Section 3.02, Hourly Rate:

“Contractor will be compensated an hourly rate of $120 per hour to prepare the 2022-23
Annual Financial Report.”

2, OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not in
conflict with this Amendment remain in full force and effect and remain unaffected hereby.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Amendment shall be effective as of January 1, 2023.

[Signature Page to Follow]

\Ao



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Amendment as of the date last
below written at Brookings, Oregon.

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

Gerald W. Burns, CPA

Dated:

By:

' Richard Heap, Board President

ATTEST:

Sharon Hartung, Board Secretary /
Treasurer

Dated:

By:

Gerald W. Burns
Its:

\a1



ACTION ITEM — J

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Coos-Curry Electric Service Upgrade
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

e Coos-Curry service upgrades were not included in the bid price for RV Park
Project.

o All Coos-Curry service upgrades will be a Port's expense.

DOCUMENTS

» Contract for Coos-Curry Electric Service Upgrade, 4 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACGTION

¢ Recommended Motion:
Motion to approve contract for Coos-Curry Electric service upgrade in the amount
of $11,271.54.

\98



Work Order# 220115 WRi# 33637
Structure#t BBBI1-1LLILIT Location# 4113080017
Date: December 5, 2022

COOS-CURRY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
ELECTRIC SERVICE AND LINE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This Contract made and entered into this day of ,20 , by
and between _ BROOKINGS PORT COMMISSION _ (the “Member”) and COOS-CURRY ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE, INC., PO BOX 1268, PORT ORFORD, OR 97465 (the “Cooperative”).

WHEREAS, the Member has requested the Cooperative to install electric facilities as described: A
secondary service upgrade from a 200-amp service to a 600-amp service at 16374 Lower Harbor Rd,
Brookings, Or.

On a parcel of land located in the S %2 of the NE ¥ of Section 8, Township 41 South, Range 13 West,
Willamette Meridian, Curry County, Oregon. Tax Lot #1500 (Map 41-13-08A)
(Port of Brookings Harbor Beachfront RV Park)

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, it is mutually
agreed as follows:

1.

SALE
The Cooperative agrees to sell and deliver to the Member, under the terms and conditions
hereof, and the Member agrees to purchase and pay for electric power and energy located

on the above-referenced Member’s property.

SERVICE CHARACTERISTICS

Delivery facilities will be installed, owned and maintained by the Cooperative.

Member is not allowed to change power requirements or horse power without the written
permission of the Cooperative.

The Cooperative reserves the right to disconnect the Member’s service equipment from the
Cooperative's system at any time during the life of this service, if the Cooperative
experiences system power quality problems caused by the Member’s facilities operating on
the Cooperative’'s system. The Member, at his/her expense, agrees to install the necessary
equipment to remedy power quality problems caused by the Member,

SCOPE OF WORK

The Cooperative will install one 100 KVA pad mount transformer, two runs of
approximately 15 feet of 350 MCMUALX wire, and one 600-amp CL20 CT meter.

Line Construction Contract ~ Page 1

94



4, COST OF CONSTRUCTION VALID FOR 60 DAYS

Item Description Total

A. COST OF CONSTRUCTION: $11,271.54

B. ENGINEERING FEE S< 0.00 >
TO BE PAID BY MEMBER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION $11,271.54

The costs above are valid for sixty (60) days. If Cooperative construction is delayed more
than 180 days, a new cost may be prepared and, if necessary, costs recomputed. If the
construction is cancelled, any construction fees already advanced will be refunded, less
the Engineering Fee, any additional engineering costs and those funds advanced for special
equipment and/or long-lead time material.

The Cost of Construction shall be paid in full by the Member prior to any material being
ordered or any actual construction beginning.

The above Cost of Construction does not include additional costs due to unnecessary
problems, delays, changes, etc. caused by the Member or Member’s contractor(s) or
subcontractor(s). If additional costs are anticipated, as determined solely by the
Cooperative, a new cost will be prepared and shall be paid in full by the Member before
any further materials will be ordered or construction activities recommenced.

5. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Member shall pay the Cooperative for service hereunder at the rates and upon the terms
and conditions set forth in the applicable Rate Schedule of the Cooperative. It is understood
and agreed that the Cooperative has the absolute right to establish, amend, or supplement
rate charges and payment requirements for services rendered hereunder as determined to
be necessary or appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Cooperative.

6. MEMBERSHIP

The Applicant shall become a member of the Cooperative, if not already a member, by
applying and paying the membership fee and is hereby bound by the provisions of the
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Cooperative as amended from time to time, and
by such policies, rules and regulations as may be adopted from time-to-time by the
Cooperative’s Board of Directors.

Line Construction Contract —Page 2



10.

11,

CONTINUITY OF SERVICE

The Cooperative shall use reasonable diligence to provide a constant and uninterrupted
supply of electric power and energy. The Cooperative is not, however, guarantor of power
supply, and shall be excused from performance under this Contract and shall not be liable
for any loss or damage sustained by the Member (a) if the supply of electric power and
energy, or facilities, equipment, parts or material shall fail, be interrupted, curtailed, or
become defective, through an Act of God, governmental authority, action of elements,
public enemy, accident, strikes, labor trouble, required maintenance work, or any other
cause beyond the control of the Cooperative; or (b) if the wholesale power supply to the
Cooperative is unavailable, restricted, curtailed or interrupted.

TERM OF LINE EXTENTION CONTRACT

This Contract shall become effective on the date executed. Member will comply with the
general provisions outlined in the Cooperative’s Policy No. 300-060, Line Construction Policy.

MAINTENANCE AND OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES

The delivery facilities installed by the Cooperative upon the premises shall be maintained by
the Cooperative and shall remain the property of the Cooperative notwithstanding the
attachment of such facilities to the premises, and shall not be subject to any voluntary or
involuntary encumbrance or disposition of any nature allowed or caused by the Member. It
is agreed and the Member specifically grants to the Cooperative, a permanent easement
across and upon the premises as specified in the Cooperative’s Policy No. 300-060, Line
Construction Policy, for the purpose of installation of the delivery facilities, and for the
maintenance, repair, replacement, inspection, and relocation of such facilities, or for any
other purpose reasonably related.

DUE AUTHORIZATION

The Member represents that he/she has the authority to execute this-Contract, and that all
persons required to create terms, conditions and contracts have executed this Contract
below.

BINDING EFFECT

It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that the conditions, terms, and
covenants of this Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto.

Line Construction Contract —Page 3

20\



12.  SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Member will be responsible for back-filling and compaction of trench to the Cooperative’s
satisfaction. Prior to back-filling, a Cooperative representative will inspect and approve the
installation. The Cooperative will allow joint use of its facilities in accordance with existing
joint use agreements that conform to applicable state codes (excluding sewer and gas). The
Cooperative may allow the Member to participate toward the construction of facilities {i.e.
trenching and conduit installation). In these instances, the Member agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the Cooperative and its directors, officers, agents, owners, and
employees from all claims of whatsoever nature or kind, including those brought by
employees or subcontractors of the Member, arising out of or as a result of any act or failure
to act, whether or not negligent, in connection with the performance of the work to be
performed pursuant to this Contract by the Member, its employees, agents and sub-
contractors.

13. ACCEPTANCE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Contract as of the date
written below.

SIGN by Authorized Signatory Date:
For: BROOKINGS PORT COMMISSION
{Sign dacument using biue ink)

Print Name For: BROOKINGS PORT COMMISSION Title
(Sign document using blue ink)

Return Signed Qriginal to:
Coos-Curry Electric Cooperative, Inc.
Engineering Aid

PO Box 1268

Port Orford OR 97465

Rev 07/27f2011

Line Construction Contract — Page 4



INFORMATION ITEM — A

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Project Timelines (EMC Engineers)

TO: Honcrable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

« EPA Funding Process
> EPA Process/Deliverables
» Timing
> Status

» DEQ Permitting
» Deliverables
» Timing
» Status

e FEMA Project
» Change in Category
» Permit
» Options, introduction to HMGP
» Timing
» Status

o HMGP
> Process
» Timing
> Status

DOCUMENTS

» EMC summary of proposed work, 25 pages



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

GP Offlice: 1867 Willlams Hwy,, Suile 216, Grants Pass, OR, 97527

Jvllle Office: 450 Conestoga Dr., Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 ¥ TFax 541-727-5488

eme @emeenginecrsscientists.com; http:/www.emcengineersscientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

12/05/22

Mike Crop, Mitigation Program Representative
Mitigation Section
Oregon Department of Emergency Management

Anna Feigum, State Hazard Mitigation Officer
Mitigation Section
Oregon Department of Emergency Management

cc: Travis Webster
Port Manager, Port of Brookings Harbor

Julie Slevin

Recovery Section Manager

State Public Assistance Officer

OEM Mitigation and Recovery Division

Dear Mike, Anna,

The following summary of the proposed work, reductions in scopes of work, references to attached
Exhibits and all regulatory/environmental consideration is presented in the effort to reduce the Scope of
Work for the Mitigation Project at the Port of Brookings Harbor, and to separate that overall project into
subprojects to better accommodate funding opportunities within the HMGP.

Purpose and Strategy for the Project Scope of Work

The long delays in the approval of funding for the Port of Brookings Harbor (Port) repair and mitigation
projects via FEMA has exposed Port-proposed Mitigation projects to unexpected and unusual economic
inflationary conditions. It is our understanding that the HMGP funding protocol does not allow for
adjustments due to inflation. Therefore, in order to retain successful design to harden the Port facilities
against future recurring damages, the team of Port Staff and contracted engineering has reduced the overall
scope of work. These reductions have been made while still obtaining the required hardening of Port
facilities against recurring storm damages, as experienced at the Port in the last 25 years.

Cost increases have occurred, particularly within the last two years, as demonstrated in Exhibits B and D
(described below), as seen with items such as costs per cubic yard for materials and excavation.

_ et 1

T L L LR R R I e pe.
P R el p—
EEERsSSE e

semw=l
e SEEEssswssammsEsEsEEEReEEe=Ea=RE

20%



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

GP Office: 1867 Williams Hwy., Suite 216, Granls Pass, OR, 97527

Jville Oflice: 450 Conesloga Dr., Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 * Fax 541-727-5488

emc @ cmcengineersscicntists.com;  hitp:/fwww.cincengincersscientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

Since most of the costs associated with mitigation in this project are generated by paving and stormwater
conveyance, the Port team endeavored to reduce the paving footprint in such a way so as to adequately
reduce the total budget, while still retaining its initial objectives.

Exhibits

Attached to this narrative are four Exhibits which are spreadsheets, entitled Exhibits A, B, C and D, which
provide budget details for the proposed mitigation sub-projects. Exhibit A details the initial budget
requirements to stabilize, repair, and upgrade the Basin 2 west embankment at the Port of Brookings
Harbor. Exhibit C is the budget as revised from Exhibit A, reflecting the changes since 2020 and the costs
for materials and services necessary to produce the work.

Similarly, Exhibit D is the budget as revised from by Exhibit B, also showing the changes due to inflation
since 2020, and the costs for materials and services necessary to produce the work. Exhibit B and D
itemized the costs for providing stormwater control (paving, curbing, pipe and catch basin installation) for
the Commercial, Boatyard and RV/Kite Field Areas. No changes or revisions were found to be feasible for
the RV/Kitefield Paving/Stormwater Control subproject.

Exhibits E, F, G and H are the engineered drawings that have been revised to show the proposed
subprojects that are itemized in Exhibits B and D.

Budget Changes as a Result of Scope of Work Reductions
Commercial Area Subproject

As can be seen from the Exhibits A and C, previously submitted, the original proposed coverage in the
Commercial Area totaled 287,113 ft.?, which resulted in 2 proposed budget of $1,537,760. That
coverage has been reduced to 149,500 ft.2 with a resulting budget reduction to $1,000,152. Stormwater
piping, catch basin and curbing are reduced accordingly.

Boatyard Area Subproject

As can be seen from the Exhibits B and D, the total paving and stormwater control footprint was
originally proposed to be 104,500 ft.% The revisions the revised scope of work has reduced that total
square footage to 75,504 ft.2, resulting in a proposed budget reduction from $545,208 to $431,930.
Again, storm water piping, catch basin and curbing requirements are reduced accordingly.

aumaEse=®

piesy



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

G Office: 1867 Williams Hwy,, Suile 216, Grants Pass, OR, 97527

Jville Office: 450 Conesloga Ibr., Tacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-8434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 * TFax 541-727-5488

eme @ emeengineersscientists.com;  hitp:/www.cmcengincersseientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

Projects with Unchangeable Scopes of Work
There are two subprojects in which we found no options for reductions.

The first is the embankment repair project. This project consists of excavation for toe deaths, height of wall
(12 foot from bottom of base to top of crown, etc.), wall thickness (which is based on wall height
unloading). Unfortunately, costs of materials and labor have resulted in an increased budget from $653,260
to $762,039.

For example, mobe/demobe costs have increased from $85,000 to $92,000; costs for mixing, placement and
compaction of general fill and construction materials have risen in the area from $130 per cubic yard to
$145 per cubic yard and the purchasing and placement of riprap has risen from $65 per cubic yard to $87
per cubic yard.

Similarly, the addition of engineering, the cost of fabric per square foot and other items have increased, as
shown in Exhibit C. Costs items associated with the RV/Kitefield subproject remain unchanged, because
minimal square footages were designed into the project initially, and these have not been changed.

Budget Units.

In conclusion, the Commercial Area ($1,152,000), the Boatyard Area ($431,930), the RV/Kitefield
Areca ($365,836) and the Embankment Repair ($762,039), or any combination of these, could be
considered separate fundable units.

Timing

There are time limitations imposed on the completion of these projects. Out-of-water work, that is; the
Boatyard Area, the Commercial Area, and the RV/Kitefield area can be and should be accomplished during
dry months between late March to mid-September at any given year.

In-water work, put forth by ODFW as IWWW (In-Water Work Window), is regulated for the Chetco
Estnary to be between October 15® and February 15® of any given year. The Basin 2 West Embankment
Repair/Upgrade would have to be accomplished during those months.

el 3

L T R - .
il B R
- T e— - 1
L IR R mammaw®
LE N R RER EEE TN

200



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

GP Office: 1867 Williams Hwy., Suile 216, Granis Pass, OR, 97527

Jville Olfice: 450 Conestoga Dr., Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 * Fax 541-727-5488

emc @emcengineersscientists.com;  hitp:/www.emeengineersscientists.comn

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

Regulatory/Environmental
In-Water Work

As stated above, the Basin 2 West Embankment Repair/Upgrade would have to be accomplished during
the TIWWW between QOctober 15" and February 15 of any given year.

In Oregon IWWW projects are within the regulatory jurisdiction of the US Army Corp of Engineers
(USACE) and the Oregon Department of State Lands (ODSL). During the permitting process, utilizing
the Joint Permit Application (JPA), concurrence is required by the Oregon Department of Fish &
Wildlife (ODFW), the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS/NOAA), State Historic Preservation
Office (NMFS) and affected Tribal Organizations and the Coastal Zone Management (LCDC). A WQC-
401 permit is also required, unless otherwise included within the Nationwide Permit structure, by the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) will receive the Port’s request for authorization to stabilize
just under 1000 feet of the western bank of Basin 2 (South Basin) at the Port. The proposed project
description, location and design is to be provided within the JPA, with the engineered drawings attached.

In order for this authorization to be valid, the work must be performed in accordance with the
Nationwide Permit 13 Terms and Conditions, the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
401 Water Quality Certification Conditions, the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development (DLCD), Coastal Zone Management Conditions and the following special conditions:
a. All in-water work must be performed during the IWWW of October 15" to February 15" to
minimize impacts to aquatic species. Exceptions to this time period require specific approval from the
Corps and the National Marine Fisheries Service.
b. This Corps permit will not authorize the Port to take an endangered species. In order to legally take
a listed species, the Port would need separate authorization under the Endangered Species Act (ESA)
(e.g., an ESA Section 10 permit, or a biological opinion under ESA Section 7, with “incidental take”
provisions with which the Port would have to comply). The National Marine Fisheries Service
(NMES) Stormwater, Transportation and Utilities programmatic biological opinion, dated March 14,
2014 (NMFS Reference Number NWR-2013-10411), contains the mandatory terms and conditions to
implement the reasonable and prudent measures that are provided in the “incidental take” statement
associated with the opinion. The Port’s authorization, once received, will be under the USACE permit
is conditional upon compliance with all of the applicable mandatory terms and conditions associated
with the incidental take statement.

T 4

S L L L E L L L Ll
- o L -
T T X
Nl e sasssmewssEEEseRaEEEEE PR

20



Grants Pass * Jacksonville ¥ Medford, OR

GP Office: 1867 Williams Hwy., Suite 216, Granis Pass, OR, 97527

Jville Office: 450 Conestoga Dr., Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 % TFax 541-727-5488
emc@emcengineersscientists.com; http://www.emcengineersscientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

c. The Port, as the Permittee, must fully implement all applicable Project Design Criteria (PDC) of
the SLOPES V Stormwater, Transportation and Utilities programmatic biological opinion. A detailed
list of the PDCs are provided to the Port upon receipt of the USACE Permit Verification. The
applicable PDCs for this Project (landslide repair and scourline dredging) would include numbers: 5-
7,13, 14, 23, 25-27, 30, 31, 41a (4, 1i,vii), 41b, 41d, 41e, 413, and 4 1k.

d. The Port, as the Permittee, must complete and submit an Action Completion Report form within 60
days of completing all work below ordinary high water.

The USACE will review the embankment repair/upgrade project pursuant to the requiremenis of the
Endangered Species Act, the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act and the
National Historic Preservation Act.

The requirements of the Endangered Species Act are expected to be met through a programmatic
biological opinion as listed in the special conditions above.

In order to receive the permit from USACE/ODSL it must first have been determined that this Project
complies with the requirements of these laws, and rests on the requirement that the Port complies with
all of the permit general and special conditions.

The DEQ must issue a 401 Water Quality Certification for the Project, and the Project must comply with
the DLCD Coastal Zone Management Act concurrence for the permit.

Tt also must be noted that the Portland District NWP Regional General Condition 3, Cultural Resources
and Human Burials-Inadvertent Discovery Plan, which deseribes procedures should an inadvertent
discovery occur, must be observed during the excavation part of the site work.

USACE verification is based on the project description and construction methods provided within the
JPA submitted by the Port. Failure to comply with all terms and conditions of this USACE Permit
Verification would invalidate the authorization and could result in a violation of Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act and/or Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

The Port is also required to obtain all local, state, and other federal permits that apply to this project.
Upon completing the authorized work, the Port must fill out and return the Compliance Certification
form.



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

GP Office: 1867 Williams Hwy,, Suite 216, Grants Pass, OR, 97527

Jvllle Office: 450 Conestoga Dr., Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 = Cell; 541-261-9929 * I'ax 541-727-5488

cnic @ emecengineersscientists,.com;  hitp:/www.cmeengineersscientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

Upland, or Above-Water Work

As mentioned above, all above-water work, that is; the Boatyard Area, the Commercial Area, and the
RV/Kitefield area can and should be accomplished during dry months between late March and mid-
September on any given year.

As such, the USACE, ODSL, NOAA/NMFEFA, ODFW and DLCD do not have jurisdiction over this portion
of the project.

However, in addition to local and state regulation, the ODEQ 1200-C permit, which includes an erosion
control plan, is required for excavation projects that cover greater than 1 acre of area. Since the paving and
stormwater ditching for the proposed project at the Boatyard and the Commercial Areas exceed 1 acre, the
1200-C permit will be required.

Further, the Commercial Area project is in part on cultural resources. A review of Oregon Archaeological
Records Remote Access information indicates there are documented cultural resources and prior evaluations
within Commercial Area Project. Prior archacological evaluations (#24439 and 25453) have confitmed the
presence of significant archaeological deposits at the Port that are associated with the Chetco Indian village of
Teet-xo (35CU42) initially documented in 1935. The site was determined eligible for the National Register of
Historic Places in 2012.

The 2011 testing for the seawall wark rediscovered archeological deposits associated with the Tcet-xo village
and determined the site likely extends to the north under the adjacent asphalt surface. Additionally, a 2005
survey (#19795) to the north of the Commercial Area for a proposed sanitary force main project also determined
the potential presence of archeological deposits under paved surfaced near the Port was high. Thus prior
findings suggest archacological materials may be present underncath the gravel and asphalt at of the proposed
work areas.

The Port will, as it has in the past when working in Site 35CU42, employ a SHPO-approved archaeologist to
oversee excavations within these culturally sensitive areas.

Precedence

The Port has in the recent past completed project tasks similar to that proposed for this mitigation in the
Commercial, Boatyard and RV/Kite Field Areas. Dredging, excavation, embankment repair, pile and dock
repair and replacement, paving and stormwater system repair/installation have all been performed in these Areas
since 2011. All of these projects have been accomplished as fully permitted projects, in partnership with
USACE, ODSL, NOAA/NMFA, ODFW, DLCD, ODEQ, SHPO, Local Tribes, Parks & Recreation. Some
of these past projects have been under USACE as the Lead Agency, and some under FEMA/OEM.

T 6

ammeaEEE s e
---I..------ ________________
L T
LR -
P EssssssssmsEseBEssEREREEREE



Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

GP Office: 1867 Williams Hwy., Suile 216, Granis Pass, OR, 97527

Jville Office: 450 Conestoga Dr,, Jacksonville, OR, 97530

Ph: 541-474-9434 * Cell: 541-261-9929 * TFax 541-727-54B8

eme @emeengineersscientists.com;  hitp:/www.emcengineersscientists.com

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

Thanks Mike and Anna, for your assistance.

Sincerely

g

Jack (John) Akin, MS, PE, IC, HMS, CAI
EMC-Engineers/Scientists, LL.C

RENEWAL: 1231723

asmadgFEBDEE SN
semEww
"R



Exhibit A

Initial Budget to Stabilize, Repair, and
Upgrade the Basin 2 West Embankment

AN



0005Y
097E59
092809 09696 CcZ18 S8899 SITvel 005291 CLSYY
05T] 00L8C 0101 96
€z0 St €9 O£l STT 00058

9.9p0&# -sadors TV

INIJANVEINEG LSIM T NISYE 40 dIVd3y - vV 1191HX3

pAgA



Exhibit B

Initial Budget for providing stormwater

control for the Commercial, Boatyard
and RV/Kite Field Areas

PAKS



ILADANg 0000L Sunuuag 0o0‘sL Supaauiduy
S90LYTE _
TVLOL 9€859¢ 660LT LELBEE S6EQL
S088PHT 80TSHS 980 TT’P0S 91£95
- iy 09LLEST S06£TT 76RETHT €791¢
13pnyg aeday
TWOTONIISUS)) JuAUD[UBRqU ‘V
eo], LIGIHXH Wwolq
SLYTL L9EH3 00105 0000¢ 000Z€ 4 00S
0SZ192 9059 05728 00011 00568 L 00L
ERLLTL 0ETLLL LSSEYT 099LS 0009L2 8 0002

05

00ST SLS L33 00ST v 00SE
0S 00Z1 0607 0621 05§ 0% 00SE
0zl 0011 TrLS SpSE £887 0% 00S¥
01 STl 0S $0 0z 002001 BAIV AY PRI 9N
0ST <zl 05 50 0T 005#01 pIedjeog
0S1 STl 0S 50 0T £11.8T

NOILVOILLIN - 9 LI9IHX3

BaYy [BIOJIUITIO))

EAR



Exhibit C

Revised (from Exhibit A) Budget to
Stabilize, Repair, and Upgrade the Basin
2 West Embankment

PANY



6£079.L

6€0L0L

0L080T

ol

9703

L5C991

052181

uoneju] 21epowloddy 0} pasiaay - INJINDINVEIAIS 1SIM T NISYE 40 H1vd3ad -D LigiHX3

2\



Exhibit D

Revised (from Exhibit B) Budget for
Providing Stormwater control for the
Commercial, Boatyard and RV/Kite
Field Areas

2\



LADdNd 0000L dupywiad 000°sL Juusaumsuy
8Ser(0.LT _
TVLOL 9€8c9¢ 660,27 LELIEE SEE0L
6Y6L6LT 0E61EY S661¢€ CE666E 91£96
C66S:
HEGOSSE 680254 TST0001 S80YL 190926 £791S
3e3png aredoy
TOMPILISEO)) || Jusunjuequuy v
reloL LIGTHXH woxy |
SL81L L9608 00105 00008 000zE K 008
092881 L099% TELLE 000TT 00565 L 00L
0SLELE #3276 0SL¥L 099§ 0009.2 3 0002
0S 00S1 GLS L38 0051 oY 005¢
0S 00zt Q151 786 0SS oF 00S€
071 0011 066C 9v81 £987 0t 00sF
0S1 g7l 0s 50 0T 007001 2IV AY PRI 1Y
05T §TT 0s <0 07 #0SSL presjeoq
0S1 SZ1 0S S0 0T 00S6%1 BAIV [BIDIOTIII0))

uolejjuj 91epowloddy 03 pasindy ‘NOILVYOILLIA - D LI9IHX3

20




Exhibit E

Revised Engineered Drawing of
Proposed Commercial Area Mitigation

24



Cut/Fill Summary ""_'_F'_.__ﬂ_f S
Hame Eut Factor Fill Factor 2d Area Eut: Fil1 Net =
ROAD 1 VOLUME 1.000 1.000 25771,39 Sa. Ft. 636.52 Cu. ¥d, 70.26 Cu Yd.  566.24 Cu. ¥d.<Cut> FINISHED ASPHALT ey | 14
ROAD 2 VOLUME 1,000 1.000 1623950 FT +- 370.58 Cn. Yd. 227.6l Cu. ¥d. 143.37 Cu. Yd.<Cut> SURFAGE TO MATCH AD. = I o]
RCAD 3 VOLUME 1.000 1.000 11763.83 Sgq. Ft. 229.25 Cu. Yd. 50.52 Cu. td, 178,74 Cu. Yd.<Cuk> EXISTINGHQLEEEIEg ARﬁ?ﬂi’_ﬂ e o %
e e s e ) e ST =<~~~ IS i SN e Yy e i) s ~u
PARKTHG LOT 1,000 1.000 5,726 5. T U - = oW ‘ —— 20RTO o«
m— - = —— EXISTING AC
e ——— - X R -
— N SCAREYPE b FINISHED ASPHALT 1% STORAGE
————m NTETE T R e pUBIETPED oo gl
149, 500 SQ. FT. /- REVISED 5Q. FT. AREA 11-14-2022 B.U’lLDlNG 26 s
== FUTURE ¥ ATION
T — L ! ROAD 3 - SEE FROFILE
I ) SHEET C2.02
/ :
\ = 3
) GRADED CRUSHED AGGREGATE ol -8
R SEL RAHG NO SURFACING Eg g
(] 'E 3
I
WRTYR, . i%i
QUTDOOR STORAGE uq;‘:‘ O
3 I % FSS Em ] ﬁ
E 3 ROAD - ol E%,ﬁ g
SHEET €2, ]
22 \igo o« R frEr R
afi (RS * e X L= 20 RTVP, = ﬁ}iE .;ﬁ‘a
B —— < = 1~ NEWDBL GATE_ aBes <
\ NEW FENCE = 52?15'
ity
3
UGHED Al GEg:
GRP\DEDT‘;’SSURFAG'-NG L i?
NG PAVING IN b
a STOCKPILE AREA,
SEE SHEET C28 FOR.DETAILS
GRA
: _.5.):{' it .. Ef __.- "/.-
ROAD 2 AREA .
? A gﬁﬁgﬁw\fffﬁ‘é Y N A e vl s oN sheekT Py WNTR R EMOVED -~
» E% \‘ Eaaron CONSTRUCTIGN DESIGN IN AVEGE

D 2 PROGRESS BASIN #2
1 ioﬁg;\‘“ég:g?‘_x N -
\‘ & d OUTDOOR STORAGE g E
& ‘ I g :
NO SURVEY DATA IN THE \‘ R = ez caTe et g

FINISHED ASPHALT
SURFACE TO MATCH
EXISTING SURFACE
ELEVATIONS

"m CONTOUR LABEL EX.

13 CONTGUR LABEL PROP. FG
CONTOUR EX.

CONTOUR PROP. SUBGRADE
—a —  FENCE LINE (NEWW}

———  FENCE LINE (EXISTING}

----- = BURIED PIPELINE

=== EXPOSED PIPELINE

— ROW

—=  ROAD CENTERLINE

EXTENTS SURVEY

SURFACE WATER FLOW

SURFACGE BREAKLINE

CULTURAL VILLAGE HERITAGE SITE
SPOT ELEVATION

AREA DRAIN

TRANSFCRMER

POWER POLE

‘
DRAWING FOR THIS AREA \

GHAVEL FAYING
5 ‘
&

AREA OF PAVING
95,726 SQ. FT,

GRAVEL PAVING

‘
7\

TOMWER PA{

BLURFACE TO MATCH
EXISTING CONCRETE
ELEVATIONS

RN

]
2

R
v 3

TELEPHONE POLE
STREET LIGHT
auy

WATER VALVE
MATERMETER DRAWN BY: GD/W
FIRE HYDRANT " paTE: $4-NOV-Z0z2
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE JOB No:  ©22-2202
SAMITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT SHEET No

W = S = e L v /\ N Rt ND EIECTRIC
L . . - sl
: R C2.01

1 SITE PLAN o a0 R 1507
SCALE 1" = 50 Al ™ ™ ™ SITE PLAN

T

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
16330 LOWER HARBOR ROAD, BROOKINGS, OR 87415
COMMERCIAL ROADS AND STOCKPILE

£ e

28 HOPE

GRAVEL PAVING &

P OUTDOOR STORAGE

@XE

('H

@&

220



Exhibit F

Revised Engineered Drawing of
Proposed Boatyard Area Mitigation

272\



PORT OF BROOKINGS
MAP 4113-0BA TL120)

STORM DRAIN & 0,5% {MIN)

PORT OF BROOKINGS  ——""
AP 4113.08A TL1300

PROPOSED
CATGHBASIN P4
TG=7000
P-I8.85
ZBIFOF 7D ;
STCRM DRAIN @ 0.5% (HH)

EDGE OF PAYING TOBE
MODIFIED TO MATCH

FOOTPRINT OF FUTURE
BUADING AS REQUIRED

PERENGINEER.

h 11gts|=°u pPE = / ¥

“'.'I"‘ DRAI 0 0.3% VN /\\ _’?"
t &

STORM DRAIN £ 0.5% |

FiNISH GRADE
CONTCHIRS

1116 LF OF '8 HDPE {0
STORM DRAN @ 0.3% (M)
N

AREAOFPAVING /. i S N T
75,504 SQ. FT. 7 ey 2 RN e

£ L

gl L
FIMAL CB DRAIKAGE TO BE 3 ) g Tﬁﬁoé!;ﬂemm_m g -_ o
DISCUSSED EXTERKAL OF THE o [ROWST & . :
AVWARDED CONTRACT. N | L G SIBLE FILL &~ Y
] 24 1 A

i1

@l 1

PORT OF BRODKINGS
MAP 4113-D84 Tl.1500

LEGEND

—=—— APPROX. DIRECTION OF DRAINAGE FI.OW
NORTH

T 1 STORMWATER CONVEYANCE

LE: 1" = 30’ (24
SCALE: 1" = 30 SCALE: 1" = 30" ({24x78)

DRIFTWOOD, LLE
MAP 4113-08AD TL400D

l‘ 014
[+ i
v

CALL BEFORE YOU DIGI

BY:

REVISIONS

® Fax 541.727-S408
271

=

o
]
ik
£e
Egg
2i{
i5%
i
55t

T
3
i e
§
|
t

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
BOAT YARD PAVING

16330 LOWER HARBOR ROAD, BROOKINGS, OR 97415

DRAWN BY: CRAW

DATE: 14 NOV 2022

JOB No: 22-202201

SHEET No:

C4.0

STORMWATER
CONVEYANCE

2277



Exhibit G

Engineered Drawing of Proposed
RV/Kite Field Area Mitigation

275



GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

1. WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM Td THE PROVISIONS OF THE CURRENT "OREGON STANDARD GPEGIFICATIONS FOR
CONSTRUCTION® , ODOT/ AMERICAN PUSLIC WIORKS ASSOCIATION (APWA), UNLESS OTHERWISE COVERED BY THE
SPECIFICATIONS WRITTEN FOR THIS PROJECT{|/F APPLICABLE), GR THE "WATER f SEWER STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS' OR
THE *$TANDARD [ #25WINGS™ OF CURRY GOUNTY,

2. IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT IN REGULATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS GOVERNING THES PROJECT, THE ORGER OF PRECEDENCE IS
AS FOLLOWS:
A, CONTRACT SPEGIAL PROVISIONS;
B. CONSTRUCTION PLANS;
C. PORT OF BRODXINGS HARBOR STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS;
D. GENERAL NOTES;
E. CDOTAPWA SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION.

3, ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE SUBJEGT TO INSPECTION AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE ABOVE APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND
EPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL POSSESS AVALID STATE CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE PRIOR TO'COMMENCING
WORK ON THIS PROJECT. ALL CONTRAGTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS MUST ALSO BE CURRENTLY PREQUALIFIED WITH
CGURRY COUNTY FOR THE CLASS(ES) OF WORK REQUIRED PRITR TQ ANY CONSTRUCTION,

5, & MANDATORY PRE-GONSTRUCTION GONFERENGE OF ALL PARTIES SHALL BE HELD PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUGTION.
6. THE PORT OF BROCKINGS HARBOR SHALL BE NOTIFIED 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY STAGE OF CONSTRUGTION,

7. THE ENGINEER DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE GOMPLETENESS OR AGCURACGY OF THE EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN
ON THESE PLANS, THE CGONTRAGTOR 15 SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR: FIELD VERIFYING ANY POTENTIAL UTILITY CONFLIGTS
BETWEEN EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND THE WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THIS INCLUDES BOTH POTENTIAL,
UTILITY CONFLICTS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS AND POTENTIAL UTILITY CONFLICTS ROT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS BUT EITHER
LOCATED, FOUND OR MARKED IN THE FIELD. WHERE PETENTIAL CONFLICTS ORE FOUND, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE
WHATEVER MEASURES ARE NEEDED (INCLUDING PRELIMINARY POTHOLING OF THE UTILITIES AT THE POTENTIAL CONFLICT
LOCATION) PRIOR TO WORK IN THE AREA TQ ALLOW TIME FOR THE RESPONSIBLE AGENGY TO CORRECT THE CONFLICT
(UNLESS OTHERWISE BPECIFIED ON THE PLANS). NG ADDITIONAL PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FOR ANY EXPENSE THE
CONTRACTOR MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF HIS FAILURE TO ADEQUATELY EXPLORE, IN THE ©PINION OF THE ENGINEER,
POTENTIAL UTILITY CONFLICTS.

8. THERE SHALL BE NO DEVIATION FROM THE APPROVED PLANS UNLESS REQUESTED IN WRITING BY CONTRACTOR AND APPRGVED
IN WRITING BY THE PORT OF BROCKINGS HARBOR.

8. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND SERVICE LATERALS ARE TO BE INSTALLED PRICR TO CONSTRUCTION OF AG PAVING,
10, CRUSHED ROCK BASE MATERIAL SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM A SOURGE APFROVED BY THE PORT OF BRODKINGS HARBOR,

11, CRUSHED ROCK BASE MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH APWAIODOT &EC, 00841 AND SEG, 02630 AND SHALL BE PLACED IN
MAXIMUM LIFTS OF (G} INCHES AND SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 100% OF MAXIMUM RELATIVE DENSITY AT OPTIMUM MOISTURE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AASHTO T-582 METHOD A WITH COURSE PARTICAL CORRECTION ACGOREING TO DOOT TM-223 PROCEDURE
FOR THE DETERMINATION OF 180% RELATIVE MAXIMUM DENS|TY OF GRANULAR MATERIALS,

42. CLABS “B” TRENCH BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH APWAODOT SEG. 0040514 AND BHALL BE 3/4” CRUSHED ROCK
UNDER PAVEMENT CR IN RIGHT-DF-WAY. BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN MAXIMUM LIFTS OF 6" AND SHALL BE
COMPACTED BY MECHANICAL MEANS TO 95% OF MAXIMUM RELATIVE DENSITY AT GPTIMUM MOISTURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
AASHTO T-33 METHOD D PROCERURE FOR THE DETERMINATION OF 85% RELATIVE MAXIMUM DENSITY DF GRANULAR
MATERIALS.

13, UNLESS: NBTED OTHERWISE, THE SAMPLING AND TESTING OF MATERIALS FOR USE ON THE JOBSITE SHALL SHALL BE AT THE
EXPENSE OF THE CONTRACTOR, ALL TESTING OF MATERIALS AND WORKMANSH|P SHALL BE PERFGRMED BY A CERTIFIED
TESTER. RESULTS OF THE TESTS SHALL BE SENT DIRECTLY TO THE FORT OF BROOKINGE HARBOR AS WELL AS THE
CONTRACTOR, BY THE LABORATCRY , LOCATION AND FREQUENCY OF TESTS SHALL BE DESIGNATED BY THE PORT OF
BROOKINGS HARBGR AND COORDINATED BY THE CONTRACTER.

14. CLASS "A" TRENGH BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL RE APPROVED NATWE MATERIAL PER ODOT/APWA SPECS. SBEC. DE405.14 FOR ALL
AREAS DUTSIDE OF TRAFFIC AREAS AND THE RIGHT-OF-WAY. BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN MAXIMUM LIFTS OF SEX
[8) INCHES ANDSHALL BE COMPACTED BY MECHANIGAL MEANS TO T5% OF MAXIMUM RELATIVE DENSITY AND OPTIMUM
WOISTURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AASHTO T-99 METHOD D PROCEDURE FOR THE DETERMINATION OF 85% RELATIVE MAXIMURM
DENSITY OF GRANULAR MATERIALS.

15. ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT SHALL BE LEVEL 2, /2" DENSE GRADE MIX. MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIF SHALL BE AS
SPECIFIED N SECGTION 00744 OF THE ODOT/APWA SPECS. INSTALLATION SHALL BE |N ACCORDANCE WITH FORT OF BROOKINGS
HARBOR STANDARD SPEGIFICATIONS, AND TO THE GCROSS-SECTION(S), GRADE AND LOCATIONS SHOWR ON THE APPROVED
PLANS.

16, CONSTRUCTION STAKING SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S SURVEYOR, FOR EACH PHASE OF CONSTRUGTIGN.
STAKES SHALL BE 1N PLACE PRIOR TO COMMENGING CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL BE CONTINUGUSLY MAINTAINED BY THE
CONTRACTOR UNTIL EAGH PHASE OF CONSTRUCTION HAS REEN GOMP1ETED AND INSPEGTED, THE CONTRAGTOR'S SURVEYOR
SHALL PERFORM THE CONTRAGTOR RESPOMSIBILITIES DESCRIBED [N THE CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING MANUAL FOR
CONTRAGTORS, CHAPTER 1.8 (SEC. D0305)

17. A COPY QF THE APPRGVED PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD DRAWINGS SHALL BE ON THE JOBSTTE AT ALL TIMES WHILE
THE WORK IS IN PROGRESS.

18. STREET NAMES, SIGNS, STOP BARS AND STOP SIGNS SHALL BE INSTALLED BY PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR. SIGN SLEEVES TO
BE SUPPLIED AND INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR,

1B, ALL MATERIAL REMAINING AFTER BACKFILLING QPERATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLETED SHALL BE DISPOSED OF BY THE
CONTRACTOR IN A MANNER APPROVED OF BY THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR AND THE ENGINEER.

20. PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANGE, THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR: SHALL. CERTIFY THAT ALL IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN
CONSTRUCTED {N ACCORDANCE YWITH THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

21, IF THE CONTRAGTOR WISHES. TO USE WATER FROM THE PORT OF BRODKINGS WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM, CONTRACTOR
SHALL MAKE USE OF A BULK WATER STATION IF AVAILABLE. AB AN OPTION, THE GONTRAGTOR MAY APPLY FOR A HYDORANT
WETER PERMIT THROUGH HARBOR WATER DISTRICT.

22. GCONTRACTDR SHALL NOT USE THE PUBLKS RIGHT-BF-WAY FOR LONIG TERM STAGING GR MATERIAL STORAGE WITHOUT PRICR
APPROVAL. WORK AREA FOR STORAGE OF PROJECT MATERIALS AND ECUIPMENT THAT WILL BE USED DURING THAT DAY;
HOWEVYER, AT THE END OF THE DAY, THE WORK SITE SHALL BE CLEANED UP TO THE SATISFAGTION OF THE ENGINEER.
LISPOSAL OF MATERIALS 13 NOT PERMITTED WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.

23. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE ARRANGEMENTS FOR DISPOSAL SITES QUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-AWAY, SHALL PAY ANY AND
ALL COSTS INVOLVED, AND SHALL FURNISH THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR WITH ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND DISPOSAL
SITE AGREEMENTS.

24, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DES|IGNATE AN EMERGENCY TONTACT PERSON THAT WILL HANDLE AFTER-HOURS I5SUES RELATED
TO THE PROJECT, AND SHALL. PROVIDE EMERGENCY GONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBERS TO THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR.

25. ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN @N THE PLANS OR
LISTED IN THE CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS.

26, ALL GRADES SHOWN ON THE PLANS SHALL AF SURJECT TO ADJUSTMENT IN THE FIELD BY THE ENGINEER {(IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PRQJECT SURVEYOR).

27. THE CONTRACTOR SHAL| GONTACT THE PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY EXCAVATION NEAR THE
COUNTY OR PORT FACILITIES, CONTACT THE PORT OF BROCKINGS HARBOR IF ANY UNALLOCATED FAGILITIES ARE DISCOVERED
DURING CONSTRUCTIGN.

28, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY GURRY COUNTY 24 HOURS IN ADVANGE OF ANY EXCAVATION OR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

PORT OF BROOKINGS - HARBOR
BEACHFRONT RV PARK EXPANSION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
TITLE: BEACHFRONT RV PARK EXPANSION

REFERENCE: 116

LOCATION: BOAT BASIN ROAD
TAX LOT(S): 1400, 401

PROJECT NOTES

SCALE 1" =200

NATURAL FEATURES

EXISTING NATURAL RESOURCES OR NATURAL HAZARDS ON THE
SUBJECT PRCPERTY, INCLUDING WETLANDS, STREAMS, RIPARIAN
AREAS, FLODD PLAINS, OR FLOODAYVAYS TO BE DETERMINED BY
ENGINEER

EXISTING TREE CANOPY
THERE ARE N EXISTING TREES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

CULTURAL RESQURCES

LOCALLY, OR FEDERALLY DESIGNATED HISTORIC ANDIOR CULTURAL
RESQURCES CN THE SITE OR DN ADJACENT PARCELS TO BE
PETERMINED BY ENGINEER,

PUBLIC SERVICES

PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICES, INCLUDING WATER, SEWER, STORM
DRAINAGE, POWER, TELERPHONE, CABLE INTERNET, AND GAS ARE
AVAILABLE TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

LUTILITY STATEMENT

EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ILLUSTRATEDR IN THESE FLANS
ARE APPROXIMATED BASED.CON MAPS OBTAINED FROM CURRY
COUNTY GIS ELEVATIONS ESTIMATES, GR HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY A
UTILITY LOCATE COMPANY. LAYOUT INDICATED IS NGT TQ BE RELIED
ON A5 BEING EXACT OR COMPLETE. ALL LINES WITHIN PROJECTED
WORK ZONE SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED AS REQUIRED PRICR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

ASSESSOR MAP  poscas

o

PROJECT OVERVIEW

1

KITE FIELD
RV RESORT

Taa

BASIN #2

VICINITY MAP

&  NO SCALE

N T

\RDDK[NG %
2 ARPORT
CB

GITY OF BROCKINGS

BY:

REVISIONS

PonrT

OF
BROAKINGS
FIARBOR

v coscc S pneEr el atisis, com

2/

Grants Pasg * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

G Cfifee: 1067 Wi Hiey., Subin 116, Gromibl Pom, O, 91527

o= (riflece 24 Comeniags Dr., Jackooavills, D0k 37550
Ph S41-474-0434 ¢ Cail: S{LFHM02D * Fax S41.727-5486

memenagincerwctentivs com:

- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

SURVEYOR PROJECT ENGINEER
ROBERTS & ASSOCIATES LANCHEURVEYING, INC.  EMC ENGINEERS / SCIENTISTS
611 5PRUCE STREET 450 CONESTOGA ORIVE
BRDOKINGS, OR 97415 JACKSONVYILLE, OR 57530
(541) 4B9-0182 (541) 261-9929

GONTACT: RICH ROBERTS CONTACT: JACK AKIN, PE.

HORIZONTAL DATUM VERTICAL DATUM

FENEWAL DAT: 1231 /03

OREGON COORDINATE REFERENCE SYSTEM (OREGON ~ MEAN LOWER LOW WATER EPOCH

COAST ZONE) AS DEFINED IN OREGON ADMINISTRATIVE  1953-2041

RULES 734-005-0005 THRU 734-005-0015, GOORDINATES  BENCH MARK UTILIZED FOR THFS. SURVEY

WERE CONSTRAINED TO THE OREGON REAL-TIME (GFS) US ARILY CORPS OF ENGINEERS
REFERENCE NETWORK {ORGN) REFERENGE TONAD ~ BENCH MARK - "FUEL 7

83(2014) EPOCH 2010, INTERNATIONAL FEET, WITH A ELEVATION - 21,85 FERT
RELATIVE ACCURAGY OF <Zom

GEOTECHNICAL NOTE

THE COCNTRACTGR SHALL COORDINATE EONSTRUCTIGN ACTIVITIES WITH THE PROJECT
ENGINEER FOR REQUIRED REMEDIATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
THE PROJECT ENGIMEER FOR REQUIRED BITE CBSERVATIONS AND TESTING OF ALL
FILLS,

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

16330 LOWER HARBOR RCAD, BROOKINGS, OR 97415

BEACHFRONT RV PARK EXPANSION

AGENGY APPROVED BY DATE DAE | seT DESCRIPTION e
FOWER COOE-GURRY ELEGTRIC 05/27120622 PRELIMINARY - REY, REVIEW 90% SUBMITTAL
O T e |{HAREOR WATER DISTRICY 08/1/2022 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SUBMFTTAL SET
SANITARY-SEWER HARBOR SANITARY GT15iZ02e X
TORMDRARAGE | CURY COTRTY CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SUBMITTAL SET
STREETS CURRY COUNTY RECORD DRAWINGS
ENGINEERING PORT OF EROGKINGS HARBOR
SHEET INDEX
CO.1 COVER SHEET- GENERAL NOTES C4.0 RV STANDARD DETAILS DRAWN BY: CD/IW
C0.2 GENERAL NOTES G4 UTILITY DETAILS DATE. 15 JULY 2022
CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZED TO PROUEET IN ACCORDANCE WITH C1.1 EXISTING CONDITIONS C4.2  UTILITY DETAILS
APPROVED PLANS WHEN ALL PERMITS HAVE BEEN ISSUED AND £2.0 DEMOLITION & CLEARING PLAN C4.3  UTILITY DETAILS JOB No: 22-202204
PREGONSYRUCTION MEETING HAS CONCLUDED. €21 INITIAL GRADING PLAN €44  UTIUTY DETAILS SHEET No
CA.0 FINAL GRADING PLAN
€31 SITE PLAN
C32 STAKING PLAN C 0 . 1
- C33 LTILITY PLAN
oy LE Rk C3.3A ALTERNATE PLAN CALL BEFORE YOU DIG! gﬂ;g?




CHETCO RIVER

Point Tahle Point Table
Painl # | Elexetlon | Nerthing Easting. | Dasoripion FPoint# | Fleyalion | Nerhing Easting | Coseription

z 224005.6¢ | 38313136 | STAKE 42 72543481 | 38270650 | STAKE
] 225457 16 | 38278711 STAKE 43 225443.54 | 39281044 BTAKE
4 225024.01 | 383000.38 | STAKE a4 22501376 | 35283750 | STAKE
5 224862.50 | 283181,11 | STAKE 45 226368413 | 38285550 | STAKE
1 225010.00 | 3B3152.48 STAKE 48 225354,48 | 38287361 STARE
T 225430,39 | 38274388 | STAKE 47 20532484 | 38289161 | STAKE
B 22552525 | 38283845 | STAKE 48 205295.19 | 362309,51 | STAKE
] 295549.07 | 38282037 | STAKE 43 725205.54 | 282927.51 | STAKE
10 225515.88 | 382726.57 | STAKE 50 735235.89 | 33294551 |  STAKE
1 22480569 | 393221,12 STAKE bl 225208.24 | 282063.51 STAKE
12 225130,99 | 33208112 | STAKE 52 225178.59 | 38268151

13 22510060 | 382564 44 STAKE 53 225748.95 | 382609.51

14 225105.42 | 3B2555.67 STAKE 54 2257117,20 | 38301751

15 225180.60 | 302063.02 STAKE 55 22508765 | 303035.5%

16 22512131 | 332041.51 STAKE 56 225088,00 | 383052.51

17 225126.11 | aB293273 STAKE 57 225024.35 | 393071.51

18 22519347 | 38204324 STAKE [::3 22499071 | 38308951

10 225115.89 | 302077 26 STAKE 68 224050.08 | 383107.51

2] 22515048 | 282008.48 STAKE 60 22496308 | 363127 52

Fal 22522317 | 38282545 STAKE B1 225050.00 | 383128.74

x 225175.34 | 382800.08 STAKE 62 225079.66 | 283110.74

23 22518093 | 332090.30 STAKE 83 22510832 | 38300274

24 22525574 | 3B2005.37 STAKE 64 225138.07 | 3BI0TAT4

25 225208.07 | 362875.38 BTAKE B5 225168.62 | 383056.74

o] 275212.85 | 382670.61 STAKE 66 225108.2¢ | 38302874

b 225285.54 | 302607.28 STAKE 67 225227 92 | 3302074

z0 225237 71 | 392861.21 | STAKE 68 22575683 | 30300234

29 22524250 | 3nzE62.42 STAKE 69 2IS2HT 21 | 39208474

an 225318,11 | 30286750 STAKE F] 225316.85 | 382966.74

a1 22527044 | 382041.52 STAKE T 225346,51 | 382048.74

Er] 527672 | 3828374 STAKE T2 225976.16 | 382930.74

jut] 22524762 | 392848.40 STAKE 73 225405,56 | 38281250

kL) 225300,08 | 39282334 STAKE 7 22543500 | 8288451

k- 22(504.87 | 382814.56 STAKE 75 225484.66 | 302876.49

36 2253680,49 | 382920.63 STAKE 76 22549475 | J82830.73

kig 225332.81 | 382803.65 STAKE

i3 Z25327.60 | 38770467 STAKE

39 22541029 | J82811.53 STAKE

40 7256296 | 30278547 | STAKE

a1 225367.24 | 302776.69 | STAKE

el

S S
HOQKUP'PEDESTAL K
AT RHD-WAY, POINT

! SITE18& 19
REVERSE-IN ONLY
LENGTH

TYPICAL RV SITE DETAILS
SCALE 1"=20'

D

TYPICAL REVERSE IN
80' RV SITE W, POWER ——
& WATER HOOKUP  ©

T

STAKING PLAN

SCALE: 1= 60°

EL

1
i
3
’
: "

a )
i Bl

L ")

UXE PASS THRU

90’ RV SITE W, SEPTIC,
POWER, WATER HOOKUP

-

& WATER HOOKUP

"

X

TYPICAL PASS THRU :
—— 50" RV SITEW POWER

TAX #4928

BY:

REVISIONS

Grants Pass * Jacksonville * Medford, OR

S e THET Wilkianss My, Suits 216, Gesnti F iz, (R §752T

el DMfice; €50 Coumsgs Dr., Judnewsiiie, L, FTE

el g compingerac i tintyoom:  biapy) www emeongiacerdientislsomm
- Engineers/Scientists, LLC

P RL4H-0E ¢ Calls S41-26F929 ¢ Fax S41-T27-5488

SCALE: 1" =50

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

16330 LOWER HARBOR ROAD, BROOKINGS, OR 97415

BEACHFRONT RV PARK EXPANSION

DRAWN BY: CDIW

DATE:* 15 JULY 2022

JOB Ne, 22-202204

C3.2

STAKING PLAN

22S



Exhibit H

Engineered Drawing Embankment
Mitigation

240



RECONSTRUCTION AREA-

A

PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR

LEGEND

MAP OF TAX LOTS

PORT OF BROOKINGS - HARBOR
EMBANKMENT ROCK RECONSTRUCTION

PORT
OF
BROOKINGS
HARBOR

£

EXIST, FIRE HYDRANT
BUST. WATER VALVE
EXIST, BLOW OFF
EXIST WATER METER
EXIST. HOSE BI8
EXIST. (RRIGATION VALVE
EXIST. AIR RELEASE VALVE
EXIST. STORM DRAIN MANHOLE
EXIST. CLEANOUT
EXIST SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
EXIST. MAILBOX
CURB RAMP
PARALLEL RANP
HANDICGAP PARKING SYMBOL
PARALLEL PARKING STRIPING
BICYCLE LANE SYRBOL
EXIST. SANITARY SEWER
EXIST. STORM ORAIN

EXIST WATER

EXIST. GAS

EXIST. ELECTRIC

EXFST. CYERHEAD POWER
EXIST. TELEPHONE

EXIST. FIEER OPTIC

EXIST. CURB AND GUTTER
EXIST. CENTERLINE

EXIST. RIGHT OF WAY
EXIST, CONTOUR
PROPOSED CONTOUR
EXIST, EDGE QF PAVEMENT
CHAIN LINK FENCE.

BARB WIRE FRANC
SANITARY SEWER

STORM DRAIN

YWATER

CAS

ELECTRIC

CURB AND GUTTER
PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY
FLOW LINE

PROPERTY LINE

’
A
v
)
©.
¢
°
m Il

—-

SITE

)

PROJECT NOTES

NATURAL FEATURES

VICINITY MAP

¥ NO SCALE

0
i

CHETCO th

BANK RECONSTRUCTION

EXISTING NATURAL RESOURGES OR NATURAL HAZARDS ON THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY, INCLUDING WETLANDS, STREAMS, RIPARIAN AREAS, FLOOD PLAING, OR
FLODDWAYS TQO BE DETERMINED BY ENGINEER

INSPECTION AND TESTING NOTES

BY:

EXISTING TREE CANGPY
THERE ARE NO EXISTING TREES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

CULTURAL RESOURGES
LOCALLY, OR FEDERALLY DESIGNATED HISTORIC AND/OR CULTURAL RESOURCES
ON THE SITE OR ON ADJACENT PARCELS TO BE DETERMINED BY ENGINEER.

PUELIC SERVICES
PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICES, INCLUDING WATER, SEWER, STORM DRAINAGE, POWER,
TELEPHONE, CABLE INTERNET, AND GAS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE SUBJECT

1. CONTRACTOR 1S RESPONSIBLE FOR-STCHEDULING ALL TESTING,
INSPECTICNS, AND SPECIAL INSPECT|CHS, AND SPECIAL INSPECTIONS AS
REQUIRED BY PROJECT ENGINEER, CURRENT BUILDING CODES, OR
JURISDICTIONS HAVING AUTHORITY. ALL TESTING MUST BE GOMPLETED AND
APPROVED PRIOR TO SUBSEGUENT WORK ADDITIONAL OR FREQUENT
TESTS MAY BE REQUIRED BY AGENCY, BUILDING OFFICIAL OR ENGINEER.

2. TESTING MUST BE PERFORMED BY AN APPROVED INDEPENDENT TESTING
LABRORATORY RETAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

3. INADDITION TO IN-PLACE DENSITY TESTING, THE SUB-GRADE AND BASE
RQCK SHALL BE PRGOF-ROLLEDWITH A LOADED DUMP TRUCK OR HEAVY
NONVIBRATORY ROLLER, SOILS SHALL BE REMOVEDR AND RE-COMPAGTED

w

g

@

]

o

m g
[=3%

£ 1
Zyfn e
?;§{|
IS EE
238 8¢
Esiig
4043y &
2= a3 B
.j;;é-s
fiEit
I
CEEED §

FIRE HYDRANT o By et FROPERTY. OR REPLAGED WITH APPROVED IMPORTED STRUCTURAL FILL IF THEY DO
k — \ "N NOT DEMONSTRATE A FiRi, UNYIELDING CONDITION, BASE ROCK
WATER VALVE \\\ N 5?( RN 8 UTILITY STATEMENT PROOF-ROLL SHALL TAKE PLACE LESS THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO PAVING
" ol ND SHALL BE ESSED B E ENGINEER OR GOVERN| GENCY,
WATE R RE T \\\3\\‘\3.,\.e N \ f}\ i EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ILLUSTRATED IN THESE PLANS ARE A REVITNESSER BY THE ENGINEER OR GOVERNMING AGENGY
BACKFLOW DEVICE \'Q\\‘&\\& N NN i\ B APPROXIMATED BASED OM MAPS OBTAINED FRCOM CURRY COUNTY GIS ELEVATIONS 4. THE AFPROVED INDEPENOENT LABCRATORY SHALL PROVIDE
" ) CLARIFICATION STAMPED BY AN ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE OF
|RRIGATION WATER METER \ ‘%ﬁ\;\\&\“ 8 W o \ ESTIMATES, OR HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY A UTILITY LOCATE CONMPANY. LAYOUT e e e e e
AR RELEASE VALVE INDICATED 1S NOT TO BE RELIED ON AS BEING EXACT OR COMPLETE. ALL LINES ARE PLACED IN ACCORDANGE WITH THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS AND 3
BLOWOFF DEVICE ASSEMBLY WITHIN PROJEGTED WORK ZONE SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED A8 REQUIRED PRIOR TO DOGUMENTS. G
CONSTRUCTION ;
FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION i 5. PROVIDE ENGINEER WITH SPOT ELEVATION VERIFICATION FOR SUB-GRADE g
END PLUG AND TOP OF AGGREGATE PRIOR TO. PLACING GONGRETE, ASPHALT, ANDIOR ¢
o .
iy PROJECT OVERVIEW GENERAL GRADING NOTES THER STRUGTURES(WHEN INGLUDED [N THE PROJECT) £
SAHITARY SEWER CLEANOUT 1. DEQ 1200-C PERMIT IS REQUIRED.
SANTARY SEWER MANHOLE 2, UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE, REMOVE CLEARED AND GRUBBED MATERIAL FROM =
STORM DRAIN CLEANOUT PROJECT DESCRIPTION THE EITE AND DISPOSE AT AN APPROVED L.OGATICN, (x 2 O
STORM DRAIN MANHOLE. 3. PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION, VERIFY GRADES AT BAWCUT LOCATIONS O E ._|__
ATRIUM DRAIN { BURBLER g ' AND MATCHING OF EXISTING GRADE LOGATIONS. =
e CHBASE e TITLE: EMBANKMENT ROCK RECONSTRUCTION 4. MINIMIZE TRAFFIC ON SOIL AREAS DURING WET WEATHER. IF THE SITE S0ILS ARE A N)] e (D-)
REFERENCE: 113 EXPOSED DURING WET WEATHER, THE USE OF GRUSHED ROCK PLACED A8 oZ G
CURB INLET . .
ENGINEERED FILL IN THE BOTTOM OF THE EXCAVATIDNS MAY BE NECESSARY TO < —
STORM DRAIN CONTROL STRUCTURE LOCATION: BASIN BOAT ROAD PROTECT THE SUBGRADE TAKE ALL PRECAUTICNS TO LIMIT SURFACE I g w
ELECTRIC BOX DISTURBANCE AND PROTECT THE SITE GRADING AREA FROM EROSION AND g =
ELECTRC TRANSFORMER TAX LOT(S): 1400, 1300, 401 RUNOFE. DS o
LiGHTS 5. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, THE SAMPLING AND TESTING OF MATERIALS FOR USE L) 8 O
CONTROL FOINT ON THE JOBSITE SHALL BE AT THE EXPENSE OF THE CONTRACTOR. ALL TESTING OF = o L]
T MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A GERTIFIED TESTER PROJECT ENGINEER :""‘: o o
) RESLILTS OF THE TESTS SHALL BE SENT DIRECTLY TO THE PRQUEGT ENGINEER AS EWC ENGINEERE 7 SCIENTISTS < N
TRAFFIC SIGNAL LIGHT
g WELL AS THE GONTRAGTOR, BY THE LABORATORY, LOCATIGN AND FREQUENGY OF P DRV EItR St (] g G
SIAH (TRAFFIC, INFORMATIOR) TESTS SHALL BE DESIGNATED BY THE GENERAL GONTRAGTOR. ot oo O O
BOLLARD B.  ALL CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE MAXIMUM OF 2:1 CONTACT. JAGRAKIN, P o e o
BICYCLE PARIING SPACE m a —
DECIUGUS TREE AGENCY APPROVED BY DATE DATE SET DESCRIPTION RE‘Q‘E‘EN&G?EESSVED LI § le.l
CONIFERTREE FOWER PACIFIC POWER. STORMWATER PLAN & 25% CD X O EI E
ECMESTIC HATER o | ITY OF PRODKNGS PRELIMINARY - REVIEW 50% SUBMITTAL X = % el
NEW CONCRETE SPATARY BEWER L HARPOR SAMTIARY USOUZ0Z2 || K| PRELWANARY - REVIEW 80% SUBMITTAL X nra =
e GRAVEL SAVIHG STORMDRANAGE | CURRY COUNTY o <C
i 1T OF BRODRGGS CONSTRUCTION BOCUMENTS SUBMITTAL SET O 2 m
NEW HMAC PAVING - STANDARD ENGINEERING PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR REGORD DRAWINGS o e LIE_I
NEW HMAC PAVING - HEAVY
SHEET INDEX
peil LARDSCRGE C1.0 GOVER SHEET - NOTES DRAWN BY: CDAWY
NEW RIF RAP C1.1 GENERAL NOTES DATE" 4 MAY 2022
CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH C2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS OB No:_ 22202203
APPROVED PLANS WHEN ALL PERMITS HAVE BEEN ISSUED AND C2.1 EXISTING EMBANKMENT PHCTOS i
PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING HAS CONCLUDED. C8.0 DEMOLITION ARD CLEARING SHEET Ne:
©4.0 PROPOSED EMBANKMENT
C5.0 PROPOSED DETAILS C 1 0
[ ]
BY WILE DATE COVER
CALL BEFGRE YOU DI] SHEET

200



- ‘?-"Ir = _) \—. ],l .-/_‘—U. o Ay / 2 f
_ PROPOSEDDETAL| — ~ 'y = =— ! HE
" SHEET C5.0 ' NOTES
CROSS-SECTIONS & DETAILS |2
ON SHEET ©5.0 ] 2
’ =
z
TIE EMBANKMENT = ‘ 5
| TO EXISTING GRADE = [ !
SR S A - TIE EMBANKMENT | ‘;
N . TOEXISTING GRACE ri . ]
== -1 n-md_'—_f__/—',ﬁ o. __|
5 B
; Vol 8 - A E& g
£ olume SuDAry ~ 5 ﬁ I
- - BUER
) ] 2d Area Cu Fill Net ) ¢ 5 g 5 - EaniE
Name Type Cat Factor Fill Factor {8q. Fty (Con. ¥4d) (Cu. ¥d) {Cu. ¥d) PLAN 0 EMBANKMENT G DING - @S ROP\J Yy . B i £
L~y - 1 s R ‘\ . Ot - — A e A= B
ISOPACH full 1.000 1.000 28559.24 344,67 1760.47 1415.82<Fill> 1w - NG . =l - - R L — S 7 / EPNER-AY
. SEALE "= 580" ° L e | TA ? ~y
f — PN o —— 1= e Tl i [ S ——=== = o TR e - T 1 - i) £ { gf!, “1
O Mmoo L
E:zd 3 g
+ 2§d 5
gc- ¥
EFY b
[ b
2HETE 2
EEIZE &
Chs “a &
]

SEF CONTINUATION BELOW

5'W x 3'D ANCHOR TRENGH

SEE CONTINUATION ABOVE
SEE CONTINUATION BELOW

. BEE CON‘HNUAUIC)N ABOVE

ENLARGED PROPOSED EMBANKMENT & GRADING T = - PROPOSED
SCALE 1" = 10 o g P— EMBANKMENT




INFORMATION ITEM — B

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: RV Park Project Update
TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ Contract and change order with McLennan Excavation for the Beachfront RV
Park Improvement Project was approved and executed on October 20, 2021, and
May 6, 2022, respectively.

» Two payments have been made to McLennan Excavation: Payment #1 of
$83,141.87 was on May 12, 2022, after receiving board approval to issue
payment on May 6, 2022, Payment No. 2 for $106,654.12 was made on August
17, 2022, after receiving board approval to issue payment on August 8, 2022.

» Crow/Clay Associates received third payment request from McLennan
Excavation for work performed August 1, 2022 through October 28, 2022.

¢ Port has received BOLI Payroll Wage Reports and verified accuracy.

e November 16, Board approved MclLennan Excavation progress payment for work
performed August 1 — October 29, 2022.

» November 21, Crow Clay & Associates completed a site observation.

» December 12, opening sites to take reservations after March 1, 2023.

DOCUMENTS
» Site Observation Report #1, 1 page

24



Bmm (ROW/(LAV & ASSOCIATES INC

- ARCHITEC FUIRE AND PLANNING
LAMND LUSE AND I NTERIORS

SITE OBSERVATION REPORT #1
DATE: 11-21-2022
PROJECT: Port of Brookings-Harbor RV Park
PROJECT No.: 19005
TIME: 1:00PM CONDITIONS: CLEAR, SLIGHT BREEZE

OBSERVATIONS / NOTES:

1.

Some existing cable boxes are located in the middle of future RV Sites. It was
determined that the intent of the drawings is to leave the cable connections in
their original locations. The contractor has been directed to install the existing
cable connections in fraffic-rated boxes with lids that are flush with the
surrounding surface.

Sites 1-22 have been laid out according to plan and the contractor has verified
that the spaces will fit on site as designed without complication,

A new location was chosen for the transfarmer box that is to be relocated. If the
power line cannot be pulled, the contractor will attempt to shear the cable in an
effort to leave as much conduit in place as is reasonable. The contractor will
attempt to clean out the existing conduit, as needed.

The County has required the GC to have a licensed Plumber do all work above
ground unless the Port of Brookings would like to participate in the installation.
The contractor has a plan to employ a plumber.

. The new Broadlink conduit will be placed in the existing open ditch 1’-0" above

the electrical lines. An agreement will be reached with Broadlink to ensure that
The Port of Brookings isn't taking on any unnecessary liability.

Timothy A. Lambson
Principal Architect

Coos Bay, Oregon
125 W. Central Ave., Sulte 400 « Coos Bay, OR 87420 (541) 269-9348
MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS
www.crowclay.com

230



INFORMATION ITEM — C

DATE: December 21, 2022
RE: Letters from C.J. Huntsman, CPA, P.C.
TO: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

ISSUED BY: Kim Boom, Director of Finance and Accounting

OVERVIEW

e Port audits must be reviewed by Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and approved
by the Board, then submitted to State of Oregon by December 315t every year.

» Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2021-22 was completed and approved by
the Board on November 30, 2022.

* Professional standards require letters from the Auditor to the Board to
communicate any material weaknesses, significant audit findings and other
matters.

DOCUMENTS

» Communication of No Material Weakness, 1 page
« Communications with Those Charged with Governance at the Conclusion of the
Audit, 3 pages




C. J. Huntsman, CPA, P.C.

Constance J. Huntsman P.O. Box 569
Certified Puhblic Accountant Coos Bay, OR 97420
Admin@huntsmancpa.net 541-808-3080

Memberships
American Institute of CPA’s

Oregon Society of CPA’s

Communication of No Material Weaknesses

November 30, 2022

To Management and the Board of Commissioners
Part of Brookings Harbor

P.0O. Box 848

Brookings, OR 97415

In planning and performing my audit of the modified cash basis method of accounting financlal statements of the
governmental activities and each major fund of the Port of Brookings Harbar, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, | considered the Port of
Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a hasis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Part of Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s internal

control. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s internal
control, :

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a comblnation of deficiencies in internal contral, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations during my audit, | did
not identify any deficiencies in internal contrel that ] consider to be material weaknasses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of the
Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

&MQ Mw, CPA

Constance J. Huntsman, CPA

232



Y

C. J. Huntsman, CPA, P.C.

Constance J. Huntsman P.O. Box 569 Memberships
Certified Public Accountant Coos Bay, OR 97420 American Institute of CPA’s
Admin@hunismancpa.net 541-808-3080 Oregon Society of CPA’s

Communications with Those Chargad with Governance at the Conclusion of the Audit

November 30, 2022

To Management and the Board of Commissioners
Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon :

P.O. Box 848

Brookings, OR 97415

| have audited the modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Port of
Brookings Harbor, Oregon, for the year ended June 30, 2022, Professional standards require that | provide you with
information about my responsibllities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to
the planned scope and timing of my audit. | have communicated such information in my letter to you dated April 1, 2022.
Professional standards also require that | communicate to you the following information related to my audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies
used by the Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon, are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies
were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2022. As described in
Note 1 in the financial statements, the Port of Brookings Harbor, Cregon, follows a modified cash basis of accounting for
which only cash and items that involve the receipt or disbursement of cash during the fiscal year is recoghized, expect for the
following modifications:

{1) Interfund receivables and payables that arise from transactions and events invelving cash are recognized.
(2) Assets that normally convert to cash that arise from transactions and events Involving cash are recognized.

(3) Liabilities for cash (or cash equivalents) held on behalf of others, held in escrow, or recelved in advance of being
earned or meeting eligibifity requirements are recognized.

| noted no transactions entered into by the Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon, during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The Port of Brackings Harbor,
Oregon, reported no estimates in its annual financial report as a result of using the modified cash basis special purpose
framework.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement
users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statement was in Note 1:

The government-wide financial statements are reported on a modified cash basls of accounting. The
modified cash basis of accounting used is based on the recording of cash and cash equivalents, and changes
therein, and only recognizes revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities resulting from cash transactions,
adjusted for modifications that have substantial support in generally accepted accounting principles. While
there is no standard setting body that establishes accounting standards for the maodified cash basis of
accounting, both the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the American Institute of CPAs
(AICPA) publish guidance and example materials used in preparing maodified cash basis financial statements.

L83



The Port used these application materlals published by the GFOA and the AICPA in preparing these financial
statements. Generally accepted accounting principles are defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB} through thelr pronouncements.

The financlal statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear,
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
| encountered no significant difficulties in performing and completing my audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require me to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all
such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures, and corrected by

management, were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s financial
statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether
or not resolved to my satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. | am pleased
to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of my audit.

Management Representations

I have requested certain representations from management that are Included in the management representation letter dated
November 30, 2022.

Management Consultations with Cther independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. if a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Port
of Brookings Harbor, Oregon'’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed
on those statements, my professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with me to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. A Financial Information and Analysis consultant, licensed as a CPA, prepared the Port of

Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s financial statements for audit. To my knowledge, there were no such consultatlons with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

| generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management and the Financial Information and Analysis consultant prior to engagement as the Port of Brookings Harbor,
Oregon’s auditor. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of my professional relationship and my
responses were not a condition to my retention.

Circumstances led to an Emphasis-of-Matter paragraph in my Independent Auditor’s Report as follows:

| draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, My opinions are not modified with respect
to this matter.

Other Matters

| was engaged to report on supplementary information which includes the supplemental schedule of property tax
transactions — modified cash basis, schedule of long-term debt principal and interest transactions, schedules of future cash
requirements for payment of long-term debt for the revenue bond series 2000, combined IFA notes payable, notes payable,
RV park improvement note payable, and lease financing agreements. With respect to the supplementary information, | made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine
that the information was in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to my audit of the financial statements. | compared and reconciled the supplementary information to
the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

2

234



| was not engaged to report an the Introductory Section of the Port of Brookings Harbor, Oregon’s annual finanicial report,
which accompany the financial statements and the trend information since adoption of the modified cash basis of accounting.
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements,
and accordingly, | do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Cammissioners and management of the Port
of Brookings Harbor, Oregon, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(’,&MQ Hreneinnon., €PA

Constance J. Huntsman, CPA



INFORMATION ITEM — D

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE:

TO:

Miss Stacey Update

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Travis Webster, Acting Port Manager

OVERVIEW

January 13, 2022, moorage terminated due to no insurance, no moorage
agreement, no documentation, and no payment.

January 21, 2022, Port requested documentation, current conditions survey, valid
insurance, and signed moorage agreement.

Survey was scheduled for February 25, 2022 but was canceled by moorage
holder/boat owner.

June 15, 2022, moorage for 2022 was approved, 2022-23 renewal will be
determined by conditions of vessel. '

August 31, 2022, no survey has been done yet, and vessel was found to be
leaking electrical AC/DC current into the water.

September 21, 2022, Board decided to terminate moorage December 31, 2022,
unless all requirements are met, which includes marine survey.

September 22, October 3 and November 2, letters were sent to Mr. Schacht
stating a survey must be submitted for approval by December 31, 2022,

November 28, another letter was sent to Mr. Schacht stating moorage will be
terminated and boat will be required to be removed from the Port of Brookings
Harbor unless a survey is submitted by December 31, 2022.

December 13, Rick called Travis. He has scheduled a survey for Jan 3rd, 2023,
and has asked if he could have the extra time (3 days) past his renewal date.
After we get the results of the survey then the Port can decide from there.

He has full intentions to sell the boat and all the gear.

DOCUMENTS

Miss Stacey Timeline, 12 pages
September 22, November 2, & November 28, 2022 Letters sent to Mr. Schacht, 4
pages

23\



Port of Brookings Harbor Board of Commissioners

16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848 Bl oy el

. Joseph Speir, Vice-President
Brookings, p"eg"n 97415 Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218

Kenneth Range
Fax (541) 359-3999 Larry Jonas

www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

F/V: Miss Stacey Timeline, Summary of events since June 15, 2022 Board Meeting

On 1/21/2022 Gary and Travis met with Rick Schacht and Julie Tomlinson who had requested a
renewal of their Moorage upon receiving their termination letter. Gary and Travis informed them that
the following would be required before a renewal of Moorage would be considered or approved:

*Documentation on the vessel,

*Obtain valid insurance,

*Sign Moorage Agreement,

sPayment of the Moorage fees,

*Have a current conditions survey completed.

On 6/15/2022, the Board of Commissioners approved Commercial Moorage for the current year
(dates: 1/1/2022 through 12/31/2022). The Board also requested an update at a future meeting
regarding the status of the vessel.

Regular meeting minutes (attached), reads:
Vessel Miss Stacey Moorage Renewal
Dehlinger reviewed the status of the vessel with the Board. The marine survey still has not
been completed, and there is still a lien on the crab pots and crab permit.

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Speir to approve Miss Stacey Moorage
agreement from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. Update the Board at the
November 2022 regular meeting on the status of the vessel for consideration on the next
moorage agreement, The motion passed 5 — 0.

On 6/21/2022, a letter was sent to Rick stating that Moorage for 2022 was approved by the Board, and
that renewal options for 2023 Moorage would be determined at the end of this year (2022) depending
on the conditions of the vessel.

On 8/31/2022, Travis reached out to Rick by phone, to discuss the timeline for the upcoming Moorage
renewal in 2023, survey requirements etc. Rick claimed that "he hasn't made money in 2 years, hasn't
been able to fish in 2 years, and can't get a survey done until he has some money saved up". He claims
that his "moorage, gear storage, fishing licenses, insurance, and other things" have consumed his
savings and that he cannot get a survey done until he makes money.

Also, on 8/31/2022, certified electrician Gary Burton found that the Miss Stacey is leaking 5 amps into
the water, and is also showing DC leakage, which means it likely has no usable zinc working on the
boat.

Page |10f2

A



On 9/7/2022, Travis contacted Rick and Julie, regarding the electrician’s findings last week. Travis
asked them to unplug the vessel, 1o check the vessel, and make the necessary repairs to resolve the
electric issue. We did not receive any call back or notice that they did check the vessel.

On 9/21/2022, the Board of Commissioners decided that moorage of Miss Stacey be terminated unless
all requirements for moorage for the Port of Brookings Harbor is met on January 1, 2023.

Regular meeting minutes (attached), reads:
Miss Stacey Update
Webster reviewed the vessels timeline with the Board, and the owner has informed Webster
that he will not be doing the survey as requested. Hartung suggested that the survey be done
or terminate the moorage. There was a discussion about the termination process.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve moorage of Miss Stacey
be terminated unless all requirements for moorage for the Port of Brookings Harbor is
met on January 1, 2023. The motion passed 3 — 0.

On 9/22/22, a letter was sent to Rick stating the Board of Commissioners decided to terminate the
Moorage for “Miss Stacey” unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for
approval by December 31%, 2022 (as per the Moorage Requirements requested on 1/21/2022).

On 10/3/22, a second letter was sent to Rick stating the Board of Commissioners decided to terminate
the Moorage for “Miss Stacey” unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for
approval by December 31, 2022 (as per the Moorage Requirements requested on 1/21/2022).

On 11/2/22, a third letter was sent to Rick stating the Board of Commissioners decided to terminate
the Moorage for “Miss Stacey” unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for
approval by December 3 1%, 2022 (as per the Moorage Requirements requested on 1/21/2022).

On 11/28/22, a fourth letter was sent to Rick stating the Board of Commissioners decided to terminate
the Moorage for “Miss Stacey™ unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for
approval by December 31, 2022 (as per the Moorage Requirements requested on 1/21/2022).
» This letter also noted that if the Moorage is terminated, they will be required to remove
the vessel from the Port of Brookings Harbor.

On 12/3/22, Rick called Travis. He has scheduled a survey for Jan 3rd, 2023, and has asked if he could
have the extra time (3 days) past his renewal date. After we get the results of the survey then the Port
can decide from there. He has full intentions to sell the boat and all the gear,

Page |2 o0f2



APPROVED MINUTES
BUDGET HEARING AND REGULAR MEETINGS OX THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ;
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT
Wednesday, June 15, 2022 :

This is not an exact transcript. The audio of the sesslon is available on the Port’s website.

The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in Budget Hearing and Regular session on the above date at 2:00pm. Open
session at the Port Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 974135, teleconference and
webinar.

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET HEARING (ORS 294.430)
Commission President Richard Heap called the Budget Hearing Meeting of the Port of Brookings Harbor of
Cominissioners 1o order at 2:00pm,

1. Pledge of Allegiance
o All participatts stated the Pledge of Allegiance

2. Call te Order
¢ Coemmissioners Preseni:
Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos. #1); Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos. #2); Larry Jonas (Pos. #3);
Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4) and Kenneth Range (Pos. #5).
* Management and Staff:
Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager; Travis Webster, Harbormaster; and Danielle King, Safety/Administrative

3. Public Comment - Audio time 0:01:43
¢ There were no public cominents.

4, Action Jtems — Audio time 0:02:02
A. Resolution 2022-06 Adopting the 2022-23 Fiscal Year Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying and
Categorizing the Tax
Heap explained this is a formal process to approve the budget. Dehlinger stated there were no changes from the

budpet committee. There was a question from the Board regarding the Port debt and the estimated dollar amount
for fuel sales.

A Motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Speir to approve Resolution No, 2022-06 Adopting the
2022-2023 Fiscal Year Budget, making appropriations, and imposing and categorizing the tax, Motion
passed 5- 10,

5. Adjournment from Budget Hearing — Audio time 0:06:03
s Having no further business, ihe meeting adjourned at 2:05 pm

REGULAR MEETING — Audio time (:06:08

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Commission President Richard Heap called the Regular Meeting of the Port of Brookings Harbor of Commissioners to
order at 2:05pm.

Budget Hearing and Regular
Commissioner Meeling Minutes June 15, 2022 Page T of 4

2.3



Commissioners Present:

Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos. #1); Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos, #2); Larry Jonas (Pos. #3);
Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4) and Kenneth Range (Pos. #5). |
Management and Staff: l
Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager; Travis Webster, Harbormaster; and Danielle King, Safety/Adminisirative,

There was no maodifications or additions fo the agenda.

There was no declaration of potential conflicts of interest,

APPROVAL OF AGENDA — Audio time 0:06:56

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Hartung to approve the agenda as written. The motion
passed 5 —0.

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES — Audio time 0:07:25

A,

B.

Approve Minutes of Budget Committee Meeting Tuesday May 10, 2022,
Approve Minutes of Regular Commissioner Meeting Wednesday, May 18, 2022,

A Motion was made by Speir and seconded by Jonas to approve the meeting minutes for the Budget
Committee Meeting Tuesday May 10 and the Regular Commissioner Meeting Wednesday May 18 as
discussed. The motion passed § - 0.

PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0;08:10

Al

‘There was one public comment by Tony Partish regarding Stout Mountain Railway location in the Port,

. MANAGEMENT REPORTS — Audio time 0:14:36

May 2022 Safety & Security Report - Audio time 1439
King reported on stafl safety training, incidents, accidents, security issues that happened for the month of May
and upcoming events for June.

May 2022 Harbormaster Report - Audio time 0:16:58

Webster reported on projects that were completed in the month of May in the RV Park, marina, and equipment
services. There was a discussion among the Board and staff regarding the commercial basin restrooms door code
being handed out and the vandalism happening in that bathroom.

May 2022 Financial & Manager Report - Audio time 0:26:16

Dellinger reported on the financials for the month of May. Dehlinger reviewed the status of the RV Park project,
FEMA Projects, the condition of the Hallmark Dock, and the status of the boat yard warehouse. Since the start of
cleaning up the boatyard 6 years ago we have demolished or sold 40 boats, and we finally demolished the last
boat. Dehlinger also informed the board of the 4% of July activities being planned.

‘A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Speir to approve the management reports. The motion

passed 5 0.

ACTION ITEMS

Al

Vessel and/or Trailer Storage Agreement -~ Audio time 0:37:43
Dehlinger reviewed with the Board what items Port Counsel has added to the agreement. There was a question
from the Board regarding why these boats aren’t required to have insurance.

A motion was made by Speir and seconded by Range to approve draft vessel and/or trailer storage
agreement for the boat and trailer storage area {o be put into effect immediately. The motion passed 5 -0,

Vessel Miss Stacey Moorage Renewal — Audio fime 0:41:11
Dehlinger reviewed the status of the vessel with the Board. The marine survey still has not been completed, and .
there is still a lien on the crab pots and crab permit.

Budget Hearing and Regular

Commissioner Meeling Minutes June 15, 2022 Page 2 of 4

240



A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Speir to approve Miss Stacecy Moorage agreement from
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. Update the Board at ithe November 2022 regular meeting on the
status of the vessel for consideration on the next moorage agreement, The motion passed 5-10.

Charters and Guides Sign Agreement Form — Audio lime 0:44:31

Dehlinger reviewed this would be for anyone who wants to be on the sign. There was a discussion among the
Board and staff of the location of the signs, what sign concept the Board likes, and if they would like a “You are
Here” map. The Board allowed public comment.

A motion was made by Heap and seconded by Hartung to approve proceeding with the sign concept
design size without “You Are Here” map and locations as discussed and limit the number of signs to 24
individual signs, Sign locations at the RV Park, Boat Ramp and somewhere near the Port Office
determined by the Port Manager. The motion passed 4 — 1, Yes: Jonas, Range, Hartung, & Heap. No:
Speir.

7. INFORMATION ITEMS

A,

G.

BOEM Wind Energy Farm Off the Coast of Brookings Oregon, Presentation by Oregon Trawl
Commission — Audio time 1:02:49

Yelena Nowak, Executive Director of Oregon Trawl Commission gave a presentation to the Board regarding
BOEM Offshore Wind Energy Farm off the coast of Brookings Oregon, and the impacts this will have on our
fishing fleet, Brad Pettinger, Vice Chair of Pacific Fishery Management Council, Leonard Krug President of
Oregon Anglers Alliance and William Goergen Owner of Catalyst Seafood gave the Board their opinion on the
Offshore Wind Energy Farm being presented by BOEM. Commissioner Heap informed the Board of his support
for the Resolution being presented to the Board. Board agreed to have a Special Meeting the following week to
approve the Resolution.

Pacific Seafood Request for Dock Hoist — Audio Time 2:04:52
Dehlinger informed the Board that the hoist is back in place, the yellow hoist is nof used.

Zola’s on the Water Concrete Patio Outside Leased Premises — Audio Time 2:06:18

Dehlinger just wanted to inform the Board that Zola’s had poured concrete outside of their leased area, didn’t
notify Port Managetnent, and a letter has been sent to Zola’s regarding the violation. It was agreed npon the
Board and Management that if another violation happens with Zola’s the next letter will come from Port Council
terminating their lease.

Cable TV and Wi-Fi at Beachfront RV Park - Audio Time 2:09:26
Dehlinger asked for the opinion of the Board on Wi-Fi since the Wi-Fi service is not currently covering the
whole park and the cable tv is becoming harder and harder to repair. Board agreed to invest in a Wi-Fi system.

USDA Civil Rights Compliance Review & Response — Audio Time 2:11:46
Dehlinger informed the Board there were some changes that needed to be made in the Port Office and RV Park
Office to be compliant with USDA Civil Rights.

Boat Yard Building(s) and Port Office Propoesal — Audio Time 2:13:21

Dehlinger asked for an open discussion regarding what is being proposed, then reviewed the proposal. There was
a discussion regarding the loan, and how the money will be recovered. It was suggested to look into quotes for
the warehouse building and investigate the other structures at a later date.

RV Park New Fence Dividers — Audio Time 2:33:49
Dehlinger informed the Board that the RV Park project does not include site dividers and are locking into new
fence ideas, and asked for the Boards opinions or different suggestions.

Budget Hearing and Regulay
Commissioner Meeting Minutes June 15, 2022 Page 3 of 4

ZASY



H. Summer Food Dine-lu Bus Route — Audio Time 2:38:10
Commissioner Hartung discussed the food dine-in bus program, the Board and Port Management didn’t see an
issue or liability with the bus being on Port property.

L. Travel Lift Ramp Sediment Impacts — Audio Time 2:41;09
Dehlinger informed the board that this issue has presented itself again and we can only haul out boats during !
high tide. Dehlinger has been in contact with the Curry County Roadmaster to discuss what the next steps are. '
The Board suggested having a meeting with the County Commissioners an how to fix this,

J. Beach Cam for Website — Audio Time 2:45:31 '
Dehlinger is suggesting a beach camera due to the sutvey’s received back from the RV Park guests; it would be
posted on the Beachfront RV Park website,

8. COMMISSIONER. COMMENTS — Audio time 2:47:19
e Commissioner Heap commented that the budget looked great and was easy to read.

9. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE — Wednesday, July 20, 2022, at 2;00pm,

10. ADJOURNMENT — Audio time 2:47:56
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:47 pm.

_Qﬁu&k_‘il& 7-2b-2p22

Richard Heap, President Date Signed

.Z/-’/ Tz i b2
- 'S(haron Hartung, Storetary/Treagurer Date Signed

[

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission packet are available on the
Ports website: www.portofbroakingsharbor.com.

Budget Hearing and Regular ,
Commissioner Meeting Minutes June 15, 2022 Page 4 gf 4

2L




POI‘t Of Brookings Harbor Board of Commissioners

Richard Heap, President
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848 Joscpl-:csszir, \??&.p::;d:t
Brookings, Oregon 97415 Sharon Hariung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218

Kenneth Range
Fax (541) 359-3999 Latry Jonas
www.portofbrookingsharbor.com n

Renewal Notice
June 21, 2022

Dear Rick,

On Wednesday, June 15, the Board of Commissioners approved Commercial Moorage for the current
year (January 1%, 2022, through December 31%, 2022), for the fishing vessel “Miss Stacey”.

Enclosed you will find an invoice for 2022 Commercial Moorage and a Moorage License Agreement that
needs to be completed and signed.

The following documentation must be provided if you would like to renew vour slip:
1. Moorage License Agreement (enclosed) — completed and signed.
2. 2022 Commercial Fishing License.

In accordance with Port Policy, all Moorage Agreements must be paid in full at the time of renewal.

If all required documentation and payment are not received within 30-days of this letter, your
Moorage will be terminated.

Please note: the Board of Commissioners approved Commercial Moorage for the current year (2022);

renewal options for 2023 will be determined at the end of this year, depending on the conditions of the
vessel.

If you have any questions, please contact Port Manager Gary Dehlinger or Harbormaster Travis Webster.

Thank you,

April Sachanowski
Port of Brookings Harbor Office

2u3
COPY,.



APPROVED MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR DISTRICT
Wednesday, September 21, 2022

This is not an exact franscript. The audio of the session is available on the Port's website.,

‘The Port of Brookings Harbor District met in fegular session on the above date at 2:00pm. Opon session at the Port
Conference Room, 16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415, teleconference and webinar,

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Commission President Richard Heap called the Regular Meeting of the Port of Brookings Harbor of Commissioners to
order at 2:00pm.

s Port of Brookings Harbor Commissioners Present:
Sharon Hartung Secretary/Treasurer (Pos. #2); Latry Jonas (Pos. #3); Richard Heap, President (Pos. #4); and
Kenneth Range (Pos. #5). Joseph Speir, Vice-President (Pos, #1) was absent.

¢ Port of Brookings Harbor Management and Staff:
Travis Webster, Harbormiaster; Danielle King, Safety/Administrative; and James Walker, Port Counsel.

»  Webster requested to table Action Item D due to the quotes have not been received yet and table Action Item R.
Webster requested to add Action Item S, Port Manager Search Update.

o There were no declarations of potential conflicts of interest.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA — Audio time 0:02:15
A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Hartung to approve the agenda as modified. The motion passed
4-0,

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES — Audio time 0:02:39
A. Approve Minutes of Special Commissioner Meeting Tuesday August 9, 2022
B. Approve Minutes of Special Commissioner Meeting Thursday August 11, 2022
C. Approve Minutes of Regular Commission Meeting Wednesday August 17, 2022

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Jonas fo approve the meeting minutes for August 9, 2022,
August 11,2022, and August 17, 2022, The motion passed 4 — 0.

4, PUBLIC COMMENTS — Audio time 0:03:16
There was one public comment by Dan Fraser regarding the Boat Shop & More Lease.

5. MANAGEMENT REPORTS / APPROVAL
A. August 2022 Safety, Security, & environmental Report — Audio time 0:04:41
King reported on staff safety training, incidents, accidents, and security issues that happened for the month of
August.

B. August 2022 Harbormaster Report — Audio time 0:05:26
Webster reported on projects that were completed in the month of August in the RV Park, Marina, and
equipment services. Reviewed with the Board that data was collected for the University of Oregon and Business
Oregon to help increase funding in Oregon Ports, fraud alert at our Rogue account, and the safety alert to the
new Port vehicles. The Board had further questions regarding the study through University of Oregon.

C. August 2022 Financial Report — Audio time (:12:50
‘Webster reviewed the financial report to the Board. Board allowed public comment.

Regular Commissioner Meeting Minutes September 21, 2022 Page 1 of §

244



A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Hartung to approve the Management Reports for August
2022 as discussed. The motion passed 4 — 0.

6. ACTION ITEMS
A. Boat Shop & More Lease Amendment #1 — Audio time 0:17:16
Webster reminded the Board this was discussed in a previous meeting and reviewed itemn; the lease space has
increased. There was a question from the Board if thete is a penalty for early termination, and what if we did
not approve the termination. Board allowed public comments.

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Heap to approve Boat Shop and More, LL.C
Commercial Lease Amendment No. 1. The motion passed 3 — 1. Yes: Jonas, Hartung & Heap. No: Range.

B. Resolution 2022-08 Adopting Best Management Practices — Audio time 0:25:46
‘Webster watched a demo of the dustless sandblasting and found it very useful for vessels, approving this
Resolution it will allow for this operation to happen in the Boat Yard, then we will update the 1200Z permit.
The Board had questions about how the dustless blasting works and the operations. Boaid allowed public
comment.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Hartung to approve Drafi Resolution 2022-08 adopting
Best Management Practices to update Section 1.2 Scraping and Sandblasting to include dustless blasting.
The motion passed 4 — (.

C. Boat Yard Rates — Audio time 0:33:34
Since the Port is now in charge of the Boat Yard Webster wants to review our rates. The Board agreed upon
Yard days at $1.50 per foot per day, 10% environmental service charge and $20.00 a month for oufrigger poles.
Webster suggested a monthly yard rate. Board allowed public comment. There was discussion about the
monthly yard rate.

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Range to approve added rates for yard days,
environmenta)l fee, pole storage, and clean up charges as discussed. Yard days vessels per foot per day at
$1.50 a foot, monthly rate $.75 per foot, and environmental service charges 10% of the balance, and
outrigger pole storage $20.00 a month, and clean up charges port labor and materials per hour as the
port labor and materials rate. The motion passed 4 —0.

D. Boat Yard Clam Shelling — Audio time 0:49:46
Ttern was tabled.

E. EMC Engineer/Scientists, LL.C Agreement Amendment #1 — Audio time 0:49:50
Webster explained this is an amendment to add an additional year, everything else is the same,

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Jonas to approve EMC Engineer/Scientists, LL.C
Professional Agreement Amendment No. 2. The motion passed 4 — 0.

F. Charter and Guide Boat Sign Installation — Audio time 0:51:18
Webster went over the quotes that were received to install the signs. Dave Lacey with Oregon Coast
Association will be covering the cost of the signs to be installed. The Board asked about compliance with he
new chartet/fishing guide fee.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve Art Signs Inc. to manufacture and
install 3 charter and guide boats sign, Signs to include a small 4”x4” spot for credit logos. The motion
passed 4 — 0.

Regular Commissioner Meeting Minutes September 21, 2022 Page 2 of 5

24y



G. Delinquent Account Write Off Request Dylan Koster — Audio time 0:57:05
Webster explained this is the motorhome that caught on fire and was left in our boat launch parking lot, this will
send him to collections.

A motion was made by Joras and seconded by Hartung to approve delinquent account write off for
$1,757.12 from accounts receivable and submit Dylan Koster’s account amount of $1,757.12 to the Port
collection agency. The motion passed 4 — 0.

H. Southern Oregon Credit Service Request for Small Claims Approval — Audio time 0:59:14
Webster reviewed this is a remaining balance for moorage, this will be sent to litigation.

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Hartung to approve Southern Oregon Credit Services /
Collect Northwest to proceed with litigation on Dennis Thomas for the remaining debt owed. The motion
passed 4 — 0.

I.  Sale of Port Property — Audio time 1:00:20
Heap reviewed item with the Board, Webster explained what the next steps would be if the Board wanted to
move forward with the sale. Port Counsel recommended to approve the resolution so Webster can negotiate and
bring the sale agreement back to the Board for approval. Board allowed public comment.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve draft Resolution 2022-09, Authorizing
the Harbormaster, or his designee to enter into negotiations with the Lloyd Whaley Trust Dated January
3, 2014, for the sale of property between Lower Harbor Road and Shopping Center Avenue, Brookings,
Oregon. The motion passed 4 —0,

4. Closure of all Rogue Credit Union Accounts — Audio time 1:09:27

Webster explained the account has experienced a fraudulent charge, the card was canceled and will only use the
account through Umpqua bank,

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Hartung to close all Port of Brookings Harbor Rogue
Credit Union Accounts, including Business Saving Account #4000030600, Business Ownership Account
#4000030687, and Business Platinmm Credit Card Account #6000189521. The motion passed 4 — 0.

K. Umpqua Bank Account Access Authorization — Audio time 1:12:12
Webster reviewed item with the Board.

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Hartung to approve Board President, Richard Heap, to
sign Account Access Authorization Form for authorized agents Kim Boom and Travis Webster and to
revoke anthorized agent Gary Dehlinger for all Umpqua Bank checking and loan accounts. The motion
passed 4 — 0.

L. LGIP Authorized Bank Agents and Signers — Audio time 1:13:26
Webster reviewed item with the Board.

A motion was made by Hartung and seconded by Jonas to approve removal of Gary Dehlinger as
authorized agent for Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP account(s). Motion to approve retaining Joseph
Speir, position #1, with authorization for the Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP account(s) with the
following permission/s: View/Access pool account information and Open/Close pool 2cconnt.

Motion to approve retaining Sharon Hartung, position #2, with authorization for Port of Brookings
Harbor LGIP account(s) with permissions to View/Aceess pool account information, Add/Remove
ACH/wire/transfer instructions, Open/Close pool accounts, Receive paper statements. Motion to approve
retaining Larry Jonas, position #3, with autherization for the Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP account(s)
with the following permission/s: View/Access pool account irformation and Open/Close pool account.
Motion to approve retaining Richard Heap, position #4, with authorization for the Port of Brookings

Regular Caommissioner Meeting Minutes September 21, 2022 Page 3 of §

X



Harbor LGIP account(s) with the following permission/s: YView/Access pool account information,
Add/Remove ACH/wire/transfer instruction, Open/Close pool account, Mation to approve retaining
Kenneth Range, position #3, with authorization for the Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP account(s) with
the following permission/s: View/Access pool account information and Open/Close pool account. Motion
to approve adding Travis Wehster with authorization for Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP account(s)
with permissions to View/Access pool account information, initiate transactions, Add/Remove
ACH/wire/transfer instructions, Manage permissions. Motion to approve retaining Kimberley Boom with
authorization for Port of Brookings Harbor LGIP accouni(s) with permissions to View/Access pool
account information, initiate transactions, Add/Remove ACH/wire/transfer instructions, Manage
permissions. The motion passed 4 — 0.

Agreement for dishursement of SLFRF Funds (Curry County) — Audio time 1:17:44
Webster explained these finds are a disbursement of State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds under the
American Rescue Plan Act and suggested to tallkk with Port Counsel before spending any of the funds.

A motion was made by Harfung and seconded by Jonas to approve Curry County Agreement for
Disbursement of State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLERF), The motion passed 4 -0,

Mobile Concession Rate — Audio time 1:21:33

Webster informed the Board we currently do not have a rate for this and explained the proposed rate. Range
agreed on setting a rate but believes the rate is low and construction is going on would like to look at the rate
again in six months. The Board had questions about the locations of the mobile concession stand and who it
applies to.

Commissioner Heap left meeting at 3:30PM.
Item was tabled until further notice.

Proposal for Coffee Stand in RV Park — Audio time 1:37:34

Webster informed the Board that a proposal was received by the owners of Bell & Whistle Coffee Shop, Matt &
Anna Powers. The proposed location is in the RV Patk in a closed down site with full hookups. Due fo winter
and construction in the RV Park, Range snggested to look at the rates in 6 months. Public comment was
allowed.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve proposal for mobile coffee concession
stand to be placed in the Beachfront RV Park in a site with full hookups and bring draft lease for
approval at October’s Regular Meeting the lease will be for $250.00 per month for a period of 6 months.
The motion passed 3 — 0.

Miss Stacey Update — Audio time 1:43:24

Webster reviewed the vessels timeline with the Board, and the owner has informed Webster that he will not be
doing the survey as requested. Hartung suggested that the survey be done or tetminate the moorage. There was 2
discussion about the termination process.

A motion was made by Range and seconded by Jonas to approve moorage of Miss Stacey be terminated
unless all requirements for moorage for the Port of Brockings Harbor is met on January 1, 2023. The
motion passed 3 ~ 0.

There was a discussion between Range and Webster about the electricity in the water.

Portside RV Park Lease — Audio time 1:51:56
Webster informed the Board Mr. Byrtus has sold the property to Cazadores, the new owners have a copy of the
draft lease. Board allowed public comment.

Regular Commissioner Meeting Minites September 21, 2022 Paged of 5

247



A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Range to approve the lease termination between the Port
of Brookings Harbor and Portside RV Park effective September 30, 2022. The motion passed 3 — 0.

R. Permission to Display Bible Education Cart — Audio time 1:55:49
Itern was tabled.

S.  Port Manager Search Update — Audio time 1:56:48
Webster updated the Board, and it was recommended to keep the recruitment ad out for one or two more weeks.
Range asked about whete the ad is published and would like a list. Board allowed public commeat.

A motion was made by Jonas and seconded by Range to approve extending the recruitment timeline for
an additional 4 weeks. The motion passed 3 0.

7. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. SDAO Safety & Security Grant - Audio Time 2:04:45
Webster made the Board aware that we have applied for this grant to place a security camera our fiel dock.

B. Events — Audio time 2:05:52
Ttem was tabled.

C. Wastewater Treatment Plant Questions — Audio time 2:06:23

Webster wanted to give the Board a chance to ask any questions they had about the treatment plant. Hartung
stated the position we currently are in and believes its to earlier in the processes for her questions, Range had a
few comments and concerns about the communication between board and management, engineering,
operations, costs, and suggested to have a special meeting with organizations about the treatment plant, would
still like a business plan.

8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS - Audio time 2:22:59

9. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE — Wednesday, October 19, 2022, at 2:00PM

10. ADJOURNMENT — Audio time 2:23:15

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:22 pm.

L Tl
adt R/ l {O-21-20C T
Richard Heap, President Date Sigped

, [D-R/R2-
Sharon Hartung, Sécretary/Treaghrer Date Signed

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording and the full commission packet are available on the
Ports website: www.portofbrookingsharbor.com.

Regular Commissioner Meeting Minutes September 21, 2022 Page 5 of 5

PANYS)



Port Of Br@okings Harbo]r Board of Commissioners

Richard Heap, President
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848 Joseplicsszair \‘;i?e—P:-Z:;dZEt
Brookings, Oregon 97415 Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218 Kenneth Range
Fax (541) 359-3999 Larry Jonas
www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

September 22, 2022

Rick Schacht

Dear Mr. Schacht,

On Wednesday, September 21%, during a public meeting, the Board of Commissioners made a decision
regarding the Moorage for fishing vessel “Miss Stacey™.

It was decided that the Port of Brookings Harbor will terminate the Moorage on its current expiration date
unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for approval by December 31%, 2022.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (541) 291-7380.

Sincerely,

N a i
et bnt —
Travis Webster
Harbormaster



P@i—t Of Brﬂ@]kings Harbor Board of CommiSSion'ers
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848 i ORAT SRR et

s Joseph Speir, Vice-President
Brookings, Oregon 97415 Sharon Haitung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218

Kenneth Range
Fax (541) 359-3999 Latry Jonas
www.portofbrookingsharbor.com
| Secon i
September 22, 2022 L d Notice
i 10/3/2022

Riclk Schacht

Dear Mr, Schacht,

On Wednesday, September 21%, during a public meeting, the Board of Commissioners made a decision
regarding the Moorage for fishing vessel “Miss Stacey™,

It was decided that the Port of Brookings Harbor will terminate the Moorage on its current expiration date

unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for approval by December 31%, 2022.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (541) 291-7380.

Sincerely,

Travis Webster
Harbormaster

COPY,__



Port of Brookings Harbor Board of Commissioners

Richard H President
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848 {CnATC T eap, [tesidan

: Joseph Speir, Vice-President
Brookings, Oregon 97415 Sharon Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218 Kenneth Range
Fax (541) 359-3999 Larry Jonas

www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

November 2, 2022

Rick Schacht

Dear Mr. Schacht,
On Wednesday, September 21%, during a public meeting, the Board of Commissioners made a decision
regarding the Moorage for fishing vessel “Miss Stacey”. '

It was decided that the Port of Brookings Harbor will terminate the Moorage on its current expiration date
unless a Marine Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for approval by December 31%, 2022.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (541) 291-7380.

Sincerely,

Jess G2
Travis Webster
Harbormaster

COPY
PASY

\



Port of Brookings Harbor
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848
Brookings, Oregon 97415

Phone (541) 469-2218

Fax (541) 359-3999
www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

Board of Commissioners
Richard Heap, President

Joseph Speir, Vice-President

Sharen Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer
Kenneth Range

Larry Jonas

November 28, 2022

Rick Schacht

Dear Mx. Schacht,

The current Moorage for slip Q-13 and fishing vessel “Miss Stacey” expires on December 31%, 2022,

On Wednesday, September 21*, 2022, during a public meeting, the Board of Commissioners decided that
the Moorage for fishing vessel “Miss Stacey” will terminate on its current expiration date unless a Marine

Survey is completed and submitted to the Board for approval.

The Port of Brookings Harbor will terminate the Moorage on its current expiration date, and you will be
required to remove the vessel from the Port of Brookings Harbor, unless you submit a Marine Survey to

the Board for approval by December 31, 2022.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (541) 291-7380.

Sincerely,

Tenvre lb@ﬁ‘é?%’@/

Travis Webster
Port Manager

COPY_



